Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Audit Committee

THURSDAY, 25TH MARCH, 2010 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Khan (Chair), Diakides, Gorrie, Mallett (Vice-Chair), Mughal,
Meehan, Butcher and Dobbie

AGENDA
1. APOLOGIES

To note any apologies for absence.
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 17 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the matter
becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member’s judgement of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



10.

11.

12.

MINUTES (PAGES 1 - 16)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the Audit Committee held on the 1% February
2010.

DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING REGULATIONS AND COUNCIL POLICY (PAGES 17
- 26)

Item deferred from 1 February 2010. Report of the Head of Audit and Risk
Management to advise the Audit Committee of the updated Corporate Anti-money
laundering policy.

QUARTER 3 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE AND REVISED CORPORATE RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY (PAGES 27 - 62)

Item deferred from 1 February 2010. Report of the Head of Audit and Risk
Management to inform the Audit Committee of the current position on risk
management implementation across the Council and to provide an updated
Corporate Risk Management Policy and Strategy for review and approval.

JAR ACTION PLAN UPDATE (PAGES 63 -116)

Report of the Director, Children and Young People’s Service to provide an update on
progress with delivery of the Safeguarding Plan, as requested by the Committee, and
an update on the findings of the Ofsted follow-up inspection.

DATA QUALITY UPDATE (PAGES 117 - 128)

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive, Policy, Performance, Partnerships and
Communication, to provide an update on work being done to improve data quality
across the council in particular the Children’s and Benefits and Local Taxation
service.

PARTNERSHIP WORKING (PAGES 129 - 174)

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive, Policy, Performance, Partnerships and
Communications to present the findings of a review of partnership working
undertaken by Grant Thornton.

LEASEHOLDER CHARGES (PAGES 175 -202)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer — To to present the findings of a review of
leasehold services undertaken by Grant Thornton

GRANT THORNTON - AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT (PAGES 203 - 210)



Grant Thornton progress report.

13. HOUSING BENEFITS 4TH QUARTER TO DATE PROGRESS REPORT ON
COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY (PAGES 211 - 216)

Report of the Chief Financial Officer to advise and update Members on the Counter
Fraud performance of the Benefit and Local Taxation Service from the 1% January
2010 to the 8™ March 2010.

14. TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES IN HARINGEY (PAGES 217 - 234)
Report of the Acting Joint Director of Public Health to update the Committee on
progress made in addressing the recommendations in the Grant Thornton Tackling
Health Inequalities Audit Report.

15. INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN AND STRATEGY 2010/11 (PAGES 235 - 276)

Report of the Head of Audit and Risk Management to inform Members of the
proposed Annual Internal Audit plan for 2010/11 and to advise Members of the
internal audit strategy.

16. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 2008/09 (PAGES 277 - 300)
Report of the Chief Financial Officer to receive the Annual Audit Letter for 2008/09
from the Council’'s external auditors Grant Thornton and to note the issues raised and
actions being taken.

17. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

To consider any new items of urgent business admitted at item 2 above.

Ken Pryor Helen Jones

Deputy Head of Local Democracy and Member Principal Committee Coordinator
Services Tel: 020 8489 2615

5" Floor Fax: 020 8489 2660

River Park House Email: Helen.jones@haringey.gov.uk
225 High Road

Wood Green 17 March 2010

London N22 8HQ



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

Councillors Khan (Chair), Diakides, Meehan, Butcher and Dobbieemirci

Apologies Councillors Gorrie and Mughal
MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PRAC139. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Clir Mallett, for whom Clir
Demirci was acting as substitute.

Apologies for absence were also received from Clirs Gorrie and Mughal.

PRAC140. URGENT BUSINESS

The Committee expressed concern that the meeting was being held in a
room which was not fully accessible to members of the public and asked
that all future meetings be held in a more suitable venue.

PRAC141. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

PRAC142. MINUTES
RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2009 be approved
and signed by the Chair.

PRAC143. DEPUTATIONS AND PETITIONS

There were no such items.

PRAC144. GRANT THORNTON PROGRESS REPORT

Paul Hughes, Grant Thornton, introduced the report on audit progress. It
was reported that a meeting in preparation for the 2009/10 accounts
audit was scheduled for 10 February 2010 and that a draft timetable for
the Use of Resources had been agreed with officers.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding how the Council
could make audit processes more successful in future, particularly in
relation to interim visits, Grant Thornton reported that the process had
worked very well in the previous year, and that it was hoped that this
success would be repeated in the current year. In response to a question
from the Committee, Grant Thornton confirmed that the Council’s audit
had been completed on time but that the authorities singled out for




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

mention in the Audit Commission publicity were those who had
completed very early and had evolved their processes for a number of
years with a higher level of resources to enable their audits to be
completed at an early stage.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRAC145.

GRANTS REPORT 2008/09

Graham Oliver, Corporate Finance, introduced Grant Thornton’s Grants
Report 2008/09. It was reported that good progress had been made on
the relevant performance indicators and that this was reflected in the
decrease in fees payable. Further improvements were still required, and
the management responses to the recommendations made by Grant
Thornton were attached to the report. Paul Hughes, Grant Thornton,
advised that the report showed an improvement and that the number of
claims qualified by the auditor had decreased on the previous year,
which was positive. The data quality issues identified had been raised
with the Committee previously. It was reported that the number of
qualified claims at Haringey was broadly in line with other London
Boroughs audited. In respect of the issues identified in relation to
Housing and Council Tax Benéefit, it was reported that management were
aware of these issues, and that the actions being undertaken to address
them were encouraging.

The Committee expressed concern at the scale of some of the issues
identified, and asked why these issues had not been picked up internally
rather than by the external auditor. lan Biggadike, Benefits and Local
Taxation, reported that a new, more robust quality assurance process
had been introduced and that a compliance team had been established
to focus on quality checking. New software had also been brought in to
flag up any errors, and where an error had been identified, all the work
by the officer concered was data-checked. Mr Biggadike also reported
that new training had been introduced for Benefits and Local Taxation
staff. It was noted that there was a national issue in relation to data
quality, due to the complexity of this area of work.

The Committee commented that errors in Benefits led to a very direct
impact on individual residents, and asked why these issues had not
been flagged up by complaints from residents. The Chief Financial
Officer reported that quality assurance procedures had been in place,
but that these had not focused sufficiently on areas such as performance
indicators, and this was now being addressed. There had been no direct
impact on residents. Mr Biggadike reported that the main issue identified
was that of start dates. A test for staff on the issues identified had been
introduced, and anyone failing the test would require all their
assessments to be signed off by another officer to ensure accuracy.

The Committee asked whether the cost of revenue lost as a result of
errors had been calculated, in response to which the Chief Financial




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

Officer reported that the final amendment to the claim had been
calculated at around £18k. The Committee expressed surprise that this
amount appeared small compared to the scale of the problems that had
been identified, in response to which it was reported that this was due to
the nature of the errors, many of which did not have a direct financial
impact. The Committee noted that Members dealt with a number of
cases relating to errors in benefits payment as part of their case-load,
and emphasised that the Council should be getting things right first time,
every time. It was reported that a lot of information that could prevent
errors being made was freely available to officers and should be used to
cross-reference in a systematic way, for example in relation to single
person discount claims. Mr Biggadike reported that a full review of the
single person discount had been completed and the Chief Financial
Officer reported that all discounts had been reviewed in February 2009,
and that this had now been introduced as an annual exercise.

The Chair noted that the report showed some improvement in relation to
three of the five performance indicators, but that further improvement
was necessary, particularly in relation to claims amended. Officers
provided assurance that action was being taken to address the issues
identified, and it was anticipated that next year's Grant Report would
show that the problems identified this year had been addressed.

Taking into account the concerns raised by the Committee and the
responses provided by officers it was:

RESOLVED
i) That the management responses contained in the action plan
be agreed.
ii) The progress against the action plan be reviewed by the

Committee in 6 months.

PRAC146.

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2009/10

Paul Dossett, Grant Thornton, presented the audit plan for 2009/10, and
reported that from 2009/10 the Audit Commission had introduced an
approach whereby an indicative audit fee was agreed before the year
began and that a more detailed audit plan was then compiled, including
the audit of the accounts work and the Use of Resources audit. The
report set out the issues that had arisen since the indicative fee had
been agreed by the Committee, of which data quality was a key area. As
a result of the issues relating to data quality it was reported that a
significant increase in audit work on data quality would be required to
ensure that robust arrangements were in place. As a result of the issues
identified during the year, the fee for 2009/10 had increased from £505k
to £515k. It was reported that the indicative fee for Haringey had been
above the Audit Commission’s scale fee as a result of Use of Resources
issues; it was anticipated that the indicative fee for 2010/11 would
demonstrate a reduction in the previous year's fee, but this would
depend on the outcome of the Use of Resources audit.




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

The Committee expressed concern at the increase in fee set out in the
report, and asked how much of the workload generated by the issues
identified had been over and above the expectations of the audit
workload anticipated at the start of the year. Mr Dossett explained that
the Audit Commission established a scale fee, and expected auditors to
set a fee based on the scale fee on the basis that areas of higher risk led
to higher fees. It was reported that Haringey was an authority with a
relatively high risk in relation to Use of Resources, which had led to the
initial indicative fee being higher than the scale fee. It was reported that
auditors had to justify the fees they had set to the Audit Commission,
and that the Audit Commission would look at the level of risk. It was
hoped that it would be possible for the fee for 2010/11 to be reduced.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the fee for
previous years, Mr Dossett reported that the fees for 2007/08 and
2008/09 had been the same, but that there had been a 4-5% increase
from 2008/09 to 2009/10. The Committee requested information on the
additional work carried out in order to justify the increase on the
indicative audit fee for 2009/10 that had been agreed.

The Chair asked what significant issues the auditor anticipated as a
result of the transition to IFRS accounting, in response to which Mr
Dossett advised that while 2010/11 would be the first year in which IFRS
would be introduced, the Council would be required to provide
comparative data for 2009/10. Grant Thornton were working with the
Council to assist with preparation for the transition to IFRS. The Chair
emphasised the need for the Committee to be provided with a
breakdown of the additional work that justified the increase in fee. In
response to a question from the Chair regarding the proposed increase
in fee for 2009/10 to £515k, the Chief Financial Officer reported that the
issues identified had increased the audit work and so the proposed
increase was understandable.

RESOLVED

That, subject to the Committee being provided with evidence of the
additional work as a result of which an increased fee had been
proposed, the proposed audit plan and fees for 2009/10 be approved.

PRAC147.

TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES IN HARINGEY - FOLLOW UP
REPORT

Paul Hughes, Grant Thornton, presented the Tackling Health Inequalities
in Haringey report, which was a follow up report to an issue considered
by the Committee in June 2008. The report set out how the Council and
PCT were working together on Health Inequalities, and reported
progress against the action plan. It was reported that 8 of the 11
recommendations in the action plan had been implemented by the
deadline, and that a further follow up would be carried out to check that
the outstanding actions had been implemented, although the initial
deadlines for these had already expired. The Chair noted that Health
Inequalities was of concern to every individual, and that the Overview




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

and Scrutiny Committee was increasing its involvement in this area. It
was noted that this was a follow up report to a report that had been
considered by the Committee in 2008, and that it was essential for all the
actions in the action plan that had been agreed at the time to be
implemented.

The Committee expressed concern that some of the actions had not
been implemented after two years, and questioned the effectiveness of
an action plan if it was not being followed. It was noted that partnership
working could lead to some issues with progress, and that all the auditor
could do was to monitor the progress made, and highlight where this
was unsatisfactory. The Committee requested that the responsible
officer attend the meeting of the Audit Committee on 25 March 2010 to
explain the reasons for the progress made, and it was noted that this
would be the Joint Director of Public Health.

RESOLVED
That the Joint Director of Public Health attend the meeting of the Audit

Committee on 25 March 2010 to explain the progress made in the area
of Health Inequalities.

PRAC148.

JAR ACTION PLAN UPDATE

Mark Gwynne, JAR Programme Manager, presented the report on
progress in delivery of the Safeguarding Plan up to the month of
December. It was reported that progress was being made and that there
was an emphasis on quality of work. The milestones were largely based
on building sound foundations to allow further improvements, with a key
emphasis on staff stability and increasing capacity. Ofsted had carried
out a follow up visit in January 2010 and would provide a progress
update later in February 2010, although this would not affect the
Council’s CAA rating for the current year.

The Committee expressed concern that only one in four initial
assessments were being completed within the target of 7 days, and that
only four in ten core assessments were being completed within 35 days.
Mr Gwynne reported that although the targets were not yet being met, a
far larger proportion of assessments were now being completed just
outside of target time and that risk management of assessments was
much more robust than previously, so that all cases were risk assessed
and reviewed regularly, ensuring that priority cases were dealt with in a
timely manner.

The Committee noted that staffing issues had been identified as a key
problem in the past, and expressed concern that despite an increase in
resources available and management attention, progress was still not
being seen to be made. The Committee expressed concern that lives
could be put at risk by any delays in assessments, and that the progress
reported demonstrated that there were still issues to be addressed. The
Committee noted that it was useful to know that a high proportion of
assessments were being completed just outside the target timescales,




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

and felt that it might have provided some reassurance for this to be
included within the report. The Committee also noted that no information
had been provided on how many social workers who had been in post
15 months ago were still employed with the Council, and how many had
moved on.

Mr Gwynne reported that information on the number of assessments
being completed within 10 days would be provided to Committee
Members outside the meeting. While the Service was working to meet
the 7 day target, it was reported that the focus was on getting things
right. The Committee was assured that all cases were being risk
assessed and that at-risk cases were being assessed within the target
timeframe. It was reported that the focus had to be on the children
involved and not on performance indicators.

The Committee discussed the need for all staff in Children’s Services to
be fully trained to perform their roles to a high quality. It was reported
that investment in training and qualifications for staff had increased, and
that there had been active recruitment for social worker positions, with
some staff turnover. Enhanced training had been introduced within the
Council and Local Safeguarding Children’s Board.

The Chair questioned the use of the phrase ‘wherever possible’ in the
priority expressing commitment to provide support and protection to the
most vulnerable people in the community. It was reported that the
intention was to protect everybody, but that no 100% assurance that this
would be possible could be provided. The Chair expressed concern that
it should be in the mission statement that all people would be
safeguarded from abuse and neglect. The Chair asked about the
safeguarding plan steering group, whether minutes of its meetings and
follow up actions were produced, and who was monitoring its work. Mr
Gwynne reported that the steering group, members of which included
the Chief Executive of the Council, the Chief Executive of NHS Haringey
and the Borough Commander, met fortnightly and that minutes were
produced and progress reported to the Chief Executive’s Management
Board and the Children’s Trust Executive Performance Management
Group. The steering group was chaired by the Director of the Children
and Young People’s Service. In response to a question from the
Committee, it was reported that elected Members saw the minutes of the
steering group at the Children’s Trust Executive Performance
Management Group.

The Chair asked why the full safeguarding plan had not been included in
the report to the Committee for better understanding of the subject. It
was reported that the full list of milestones was included in the report, but
that that the full text of the safeguarding plan would also be made
available to the Committee. The Chair asked whether Mr Gwynne felt
that the list of milestones would enable progress that would assure
elected Members that they were fully meeting their responsibilities and
duties in relation to safeguarding to the best of their abilities, in response
to which Mr Gwynne confirmed that the milestones flowed from the JAR
action plan updated with the recommendations made by Ofsted in June




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

2009 and that it was felt both internally and by Ofsted to be the right
things that are being focused on and to be progressing at a suitable
pace. It was felt that it would be for the Director of the Children and
Young People’s Services to provide his opinion on whether these
milestones would enable Members to fulfil their duties in relation to
safeguarding, and the Committee expressed regret that the Director had
not been able to attend the meeting. The Chair noted that there had
been 7 themes reported in February 2009, and that there were now 5, in
response to which Mr Gwynne confirmed that 2 of the original themes
had now been included within the remaining 5 enabling greater focus
and easier communication of the key messages.

The Chair referred to the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter, considered
by the Committee in July 2009, in which the Audit Commission had
raised the issue of teenage pregnancy rates. It had been recorded and
confirmed by the Chief Executive that teenage pregnancy rates would be
addressed in the action plan, yet the Chair noted that none of the
milestones in the report referred to this issue, and asked why. Mr
Gwynne reported that the Safeguarding Plan, as the refreshed JAR
action plan, focused solely on safeguarding issues, and that the issue of
teenage pregnancy rates was addressed by other action plans within the
Council and partnership bodies. The Chair expressed concern that there
seemed to be a lack of co-ordination within the Council in respect of this
issue.

In response to a question from the Chair regarding the approach to risk
management, Mr Gwynne reported that the Council’s standard risk
management approach had been adopted and that risks were monitored
on a monthly basis and reported to CEMB. The Chair asked whether the
Council was asking for increased funding from Government in response
to the increased demand on safeguarding services, in response to which
Mr Gwynne reported that some additional funding had been received,
and that further bids had been submitted. It was reported that significant
work was being done in the area of early intervention and prevention,
which should in time reduce the demand on Children’s Services as more
cases would be picked up and addressed before reaching the referral
stage. The Chair noted that the Council was being asked to take on a
greater responsibility within limited resources, and that additional funds
would be required from Government. The Chief Financial Officer
reported that the Children and Young People’s Service had received
additional funding for one-off improvements but that it had been
indicated that there would be no increase in funding on an ongoing
basis, further to a request from the Leader in response to the Council’s
grant settlement from the Government. The Chair noted that it was
important that the Council not be penalised for the increasing
responsibility it was taking on, in response to which the Chief Financial
Officer advised that the Council had to manage its responsibilities within
the resources available, and that safeguarding was a key priority within
this.

The Chair asked whether the Chief Financial officer felt that the report
provided an accurate picture of progress on the JAR action plan, in




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

response to which the Chief Financial officer confirmed that this was the
case.

Clir Butcher moved an amendment to the recommendations of the
report, which was seconded by Clir Dobbie. In discussion of the
amendment, it was noted that Cabinet Members were not routinely
invited to Audit Committee to speak on reports relating to their portfolio,
although Cabinet Members could be invited to attend the Committee to
address specific issues. The Committee agreed that the Cabinet
Member should be asked to attend the next meeting of the Audit
Committee to discuss progress against the JAR action plan. It was also
noted that it was not normal procedure for Cabinet Members to sign off
reports for Audit Committee. The amended recommendation was agreed
by the Committee and it was:

RESOLVED

That the Committee note with concern the performance indicators on the
safeguarding plan and request the Cabinet Member responsible to
attend to answer questions at the next Audit Committee to explain the
limited progress.

PRAC149.

DATA QUALITY - UPDATE REPORT

Wayne Longshaw, Assistant Chief Executive, Policy, Performance,
Partnership and Communication, presented the report on the work being
done to improve data quality across the council. It was reported that a
series of workshops were being held with managers to improve data
quality and to progress the data quality strategy.

The Committee asked for information on the outcome of the data quality
audits completed during 2009, and asked on what basis it was being
judged that good progress had been made overall. Mr Longshaw
reported that in the most recent data quality audit carried out in
Children’s Services, a data sample of 300 cases had been looked at to
give an indication of whether progress was being made. It was reported
that the progress of the department had been positive, and that no major
concerns had been identified as a result of the audit. It was also reported
that no data quality concerns had been raised by Ofsted inspectors
during their most recent visit. Mr Longshaw reported that the Council
was working with the auditors and that an independent assessment and
testing of data quality would be carried out. It was anticipated that the
CAA rating in the area of data quality would improve, but that the
outcome of the assessment would not be known until later in the year.

In response to a question from the Committee, Mr Longshaw reported
that sampling was being undertaken and that this was being focused on
the areas where it was recognised that there was a particular risk, in
Children’s Services and Benefits. Members welcomed the practice of
random sampling and not just reliance on processes, and encouraged
that more sampling be undertaken. The Committee requested
information on the outcome of the 300 data samples from Children’s




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

Services, referred to earlier, so that the Cabinet member responsible
could talk the Committee through the findings and to clarify the issues. It
was also suggested that information on sampling undertaken in Benefits
would be useful. The Committee felt that data quality was an issue that it
would be appropriate for the Chief Executive to advise the Committee
on. The Committee requested that a further update on data quality
issues in Children’s Services and Benefits be provided to the Committee
at the next meeting in March.

The Chair thanked Mr Longshaw for his report, and emphasised the
importance of the Committee considering the financial and non-financial
performance of the Council, in accordance with the terms of reference of
the Audit Committee. The Chair asked the Chief Financial Officer if he
was satisfied that the data quality strategy and action plan to address the
issues raised, including in Children and Young People’s Services,
Housing, Council Tax and Benefits and Local taxation would improve the
Council’'s CAA rating, in response to which the Chief Financial Officer
confirmed that this was the case.

Taking into account the points raised by the Committee, it was:
RESOLVED

i) That the report and progress being made in respect of data
quality be noted.

ii) That a further update report on data quality progress in
Children’s Services and Benefits be presented at the next
meeting of the Audit Committee.

PRAC150.

HOUSING BENEFITS 3RD QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT ON
COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY

lan Biggadike, Benefits and Local Taxation, presented the report on the
Counter Fraud performance of the Benefits and Local Taxation Service
from 1 October to 31 December 2009. Mr Biggadike reported that the
number of sanctions for this quarter had been 23. Overall performance in
relation to sanctions was below target, but it was reported that there was
a focus on increasing prosecution rates; there had been 16 successful
prosecutions in the year to date, a significant increase on the previous
year, and 18 further cases had been identified for prosecution. It was
reported that it was unlikely that the overall target for sanctions would be
met, but the number of sanctions would increase when the data-
matching exercise was resumed. Mr Biggadike reported that the initial
pilot of a scheme to identify fraudulent employment details had led to
168 claims being cancelled, resulting in a potential saving of £700k. In
response to a question from the Committee, Mr Biggadike confirmed that
the cases chosen for the pilot scheme had been identified as those with
a high risk of fraud.

It was reported that £731k in overpaid benefits had been identified, and
a further £7k in administrative penalties. Due to a national software error,
no accurate figure for the amount recovered for the quarter could be




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

provided, but this information would be provided once the error had been
corrected. It was reported that the Fraud Investigation Team had been
part of a successful bid to procure an integrated Intelligence and Case
Management IT system, which would facilitate the sharing of intelligence
across directorates. In relation to the National Fraud Initiative, it was
reported that 3 key areas for action had been identified, which were in
and out of borough payroll cases, undeclared students and alcohol
licence holders. The Committee welcomed the results, but expressed
concern that cross-referencing of information from licence applications,
etc, might lead to people being deterred from applying for licences and
result in licensable activities being carried out by people without valid
licences. The Chief Financial Officer acknowledged the concerns raised
by the Committee, but advised Members that the Council was required
by law to ensure that licence holders were not also claiming benefits to
which they were not entitled.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the subsidy for
recovered payments, the Chief Financial Officer advised that there was a
subsidy of 40% available from the Government in addition to the amount
recovered by the Council, so in theory it would be possible to recover
140% of the amount overpaid in total, were 100% of the original
overpayment recovered, although this was extremely unlikely as the
income recovery is between 50% and 60%. The Committee asked why
alcohol licence holders had been identified as a key area as part of the
NFI, and it was reported by Steve Thomas, Benefits and Local Taxation,
that this had been identified as a new area where a significant amount of
undeclared income had been identified. In response to a question from
the Committee, it was confirmed that checks were made as to whether
licence holders were in fact working before any action was taken and
that for any individual identified by the NFI, evidence was required for
any prosecution to be commenced. Paul Dossett, Grant Thornton,
advised that the Audit Commission was actively promoting the national
fraud initiative and was proposing to roll out the initiative to all its
suppliers. The Chair noted that the Council was required to pursue the
Counter-Fraud strategy, and that a balance had to be reached between
meeting the targets for identifying fraud and not penalising Haringey
residents unfairly.

RESOLVED

That the report and work being carried out by the Benefits and Local
Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud activity be noted.

PRAC151.

IMPLEMENTATION OF INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (IFRS) - PROGRESS REPORT

Graham Oliver, Corporate Finance, presented the report on the progress
made in respect of the implementation of International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the actions proposed in order to secure
full implementation. It was reported that the Council was working closely
with Grant Thornton and other London Boroughs on this issue.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding PFI, the Chief




Page 11

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

Financial Officer confirmed that the way in which PFl was accounted
was a major change as part of the introduction of IFRS, but that this
would have no impact on Haringey as PFl had been brought onto the
balance sheet two years previously. The Committee asked about the
issue of group accounts, in response to which Mr Oliver reported that
there were potentially complex issues to resolve in relation to accounting
systems to reflect the debt relating to Alexandra Palace and Park. Paul
Dossett, Grant Thornton, reported that following the introduction of group
accounts in the Health sector, the Charity Commission had taken the
view that accounts of charities should not be consolidated, and that this
position would have to be considered in looking at the presentation of
the accounts relating to the Alexandra Park and Palace Charitable Trust.
It was reported that a significant amount of work was still required in
order to address issues relating to bottom line impact.

The Chair asked the Chief Financial Officer if he was happy that the
training being provided to staff in preparation for the IFRS compliance
was satisfactory, in response to which the Chief Financial Officer
reported that the training was, in his view, satisfactory.

RESOLVED

That the progress to date and proposed actions to ensure full IFRS
implementation be noted.

PRAC152.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT (TMSS) AND
INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2010/11 TO 2012/13

The Committee was provided with a supplementary note in relation to
the item on Treasury Management. The Chief Financial Officer
presented the report and supplementary note on the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement 2010/11 to 2012/13 to the Committee
for scrutiny prior to its adoption by the Cabinet and the Council and
following its agreement by the General Purposes Committee. It was
reported that the CIPFA Code of Practice had very recently been revised
and that this had resulted in a change in the way in which the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement was approved, as a result of which the
Audit Committee would now have responsibility for scrutiny of the
Statement prior to its consideration by Cabinet and Council. It was
confirmed that the Council’s Constitution would be amended to reflect
this change. The General Purposes Committee received reports on
Treasury Management issues on a quarterly basis and had made
recommendations and amendments to the Treasury Management policy.

The Committee was notified that the Council’s Treasury Management
Advisors, Arlingclose, had advised that local authorities were now
required to have regard to the ratings issued by the three main agencies,
Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s, in relation to determining the
institutions on the Council’s counterparty list for approved lending. It was
reported that this had not led to any change in the counterparty list.
Arlingclose had provided a list of possible foreign financial institutions
who could be considered for inclusion in the counterparty list in future,
but it was reported that officers were still undertaking due diligence in




Page 12

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

relation to this list and so no recommendations to change the list were
being made at this time. It was reported that this situation would remain
under review, and progress would be reported to the General Purposes
Committee and the Council. The Committee was advised that an
increase in the maximum total investment in Money Market Funds from
£10m to £45m was proposed in the Strategy Statement, subject to a
maximum exposure in any one fund to £15m.

Committee Members requested additional training in order to enable
them to fulfil the new responsibility of the Audit Committee in scrutinising
the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and to make sure that it
did not become a ‘rubber-stamping’ exercise. The Committee asked for
clarification of the section of the report which mentioned maximum
exposure to any one institution (or group) of £10m, in response to which
the Chief Financial Officer advised that this was in relation to foreign
institutions only, and would be in conjunction with a requirement for a
higher minimum credit rating than for UK institutions. The Committee
expressed concern regarding the possibility of investing in foreign
institutions, and the Chief Financial Officer confirmed that the report was
setting out the criteria that would need to be looked at before investment
in any foreign institution was considered, and that no recommendation to
invest in foreign banks was being made at this time. Officers would be
carrying out due diligence in respect of the foreign banks suggested by
Arlingclose, and would report their recommendations back to the
relevant Committees. The Chief Financial Officer reported that any
recommendation in relation to a foreign bank would be based on a
number of factors being investigated in detail, and not just the credit
rating. It was suggested by Committee Members that the Council
needed to be increasingly risk-averse as a consequence of the impact of
the Icelandic banks collapse in 2009. It was reported that the General
Purposes Committee had asked the Council to explore the possibility of
investing in mutuals and to report back on this issue.

The Committee asked for clear information on the process by which
changes in relation to the credit ratings required by the policy were
determined, and were not clear as to how the changes in the Council’s
acceptable risk thresholds were agreed. The Committee also asked
about the expertise of officers involved in due diligence relating to
foreign institutions, and the way in which this work was undertaken. The
Committee further asked about the possibility of internal borrowing, and
whether this had been considered by the Council. The Chief Financial
Officer reported that in respect of the process by which the Council’s
appetite for risk was revised, an immediate assessment (on the same
day) would be carried out by officers as soon as changes in credit
ratings were reported, and that the Chief Financial Officer would then
have responsibility for signing off any action required as a result.
Discussions would also take place with Arlingclose. There would then be
a report to the General Purposes Committee and to Full Council if any
change to the Treasury Management Policy was being recommended as
a result. In response to a question from the Committee regarding the
speed with which any change could be implemented, it was reported that
in the event of a downgrade in credit rating, the Council would cease




Page 13

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

lending to that institution with immediate effect and that no further
investment would take place until a full review could be carried out. The
Chief Financial Officer stated that the due diligence work to be carried
out by officers, would review each individual bank against the criteria set
out in the Treasury Management Strategy Statement. The Chief
Financial Officer confirmed that internal borrowing was included in the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and that officers would
ensure that this information was clearly set out. It was reported that the
Council was already undertaking internal borrowing.

The Chair questioned the information in Annex 4 to the Treasury
Management Strategy Statement attached to the report, where it was
indicated that there was instant access to AAA rated money market
funds and that the maximum maturity term for bonds was 6 years. In
response, the Chief Financial Officer advised that 6 years was the
maximum term that bonds could be invested for theoretically, although it
had been agreed that it was unlikely the Council would invest for more
than 1 year in practice. In relation to the access to funds invested in
money markets, it was confirmed that these were held in reserve and
were not committed, in order to facilitate immediate recall of cash and to
meet the Council’s responsibilities in relation to liquidity. The Chair
asked that the Committee’s concerns regarding investment in foreign
institutions be noted and taken into consideration, and suggested that
when looking at these institutions a criterion should be whether they are
part of a Government credit guarantee scheme.

That Committee emphasised that training on the responsibilities of
scrutinising the Treasury Management Strategy Statement for Audit
Committee and General Purposes Committee Members must be
prioritised.

RESOLVED

i) That, taking into account the comments made by the
Committee in relation to the need for Member training and the
need to exercise caution regarding consideration of
investment in foreign banks, the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy 2010/11 to
2012/13 be noted.

ii) That the changes to the Council’s Constitution in relation to
the reporting arrangements for the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement be noted.

PRAC153.

INTERNAL AUDIT 3RD QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT

The Head of Audit and Risk Management, Anne Woods, presented the
report on the work undertaken during the third quarter by the Internal
Audit Service in completing the annual audit plan and any responsive
fraud investigation work, and the work the Council’s personnel division
has undertaken in supporting disciplinary action taken across all
departments by respective council managers. It was reported that this




Page 14

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

was the second quarterly update report where all priority 1
recommendations had been implemented. Further to a request at the
previous Committee meeting, a detailed follow up report on the Decent
Homes Standards report had been provided. The Chair expressed
satisfaction with the performance outlined in the report, and that the
backlog of recommendations had been cleared. The Chair noted that, of
the recommendations arising from the Decent Homes Standard audit,
two priority 1 recommendations had been partially implemented and a
revised deadline for completion agreed.

RESOLVED

i) That the audit coverage and progress during the third quarter
2009/10 be noted.

ii) That the progress and responses received in respect of
outstanding audit recommendations be noted.

iii) That the actions taken during quarter 3 to address the
outstanding recommendations be confirmed as appropriate.

PRAC154.

INTERNAL AUDIT - CIPFA BENCHMARKING

The Head of Audit and Risk Management, Anne Woods, presented the
report on the results of the CIPFA benchmarking exercise completed in
2009/10. It was reported that 18 other London Boroughs submitted
participated in this exercise and that Haringey had the second highest
turnover value of all London authorities who participated in the
benchmarking exercise. It was noted that a number of local authorities
had moved to a corporate anti-fraud team model within Audit since
2008/09.

In response to a question from the Committee regarding the average
cost per chargeable day, it was reported that Haringey's was
comparatively high as the exercise covered a number of outer London
Boroughs, whose costs were significantly lower than those for more
central Boroughs.

RESOLVED

That the content of the report be noted.

PRAC155.

REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Head of Audit and Risk Management, Anne Woods, presented the
report on the level of compliance with the IPF Toolkit in relation to local
authority Audit Committees and their effectiveness. It was reported that
the IPF Toolkit was considered to be best practice, although there were
some areas in which it differed from the CIPFA guidance on Audit
Committee effectiveness. The Chair confirmed that he had looked into
the report in detail, and that 95% of the requirements of the IPF Toolkit
had been fully complied with and that the Grant Thornton Use of




Page 15

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

MONDAY,

1 FEBRUARY 2010

Resources report had confirmed that they were happy with the
effectiveness of the Committee.

The Committee suggested that Members be given further opportunity to
liasise with the Head of Audit and Risk Management outside of
Committee meetings, and it was suggested that this be explored further
following the election in May. The Committee also discussed the size of
agendas for the Committee, and suggested that the possibility of
increasing the number of meetings per year be explored, and that a clear
timetable of the items to be taken at each meeting be produced in order
to assist with agenda management. The Chair accepted the points
raised by the Committee, and noted that the number of meetings per
year had already increased from 4 to 6. As it was essential for the
Committee to consider both non financial and financial aspects of the
Council’'s operations, the Committee’s workload had increased. The
Committee asked about the areas in which non-compliance had been
identified, in response to which the Chair advised that he felt to the best
of his understanding, as well as the advice of the Section 151 Officer,
that these had been adequately addressed in the responses provided in
the report.

RESOLVED

i) That the outcome of the assessment against and current level
of compliance with the IPF Toolkit be noted.

ii) That the following issues be explored further with the aim of
improving the effectiveness of the Committee: increasing the
opportunities for interaction between Committee Members and
the Head of Audit and Risk Management, the possibility of
increasing the number of Committee meetings annually, that a
clear timetable of items for each meeting throughout the year
be produced to assist with agenda management.

iii) That the assessment being undertaken on an annual basis
from 2009/10, the item to be included on the annual work and
agenda plan which is presented to the Committee at the start
of the municipal year, be agreed.

PRAC156.

ANTI MONEY LAUNDERING REGULATIONS AND COUNCIL POLICY

This item was deferred to the next meeting of the Committee.

PRAC157.

QUARTER 3 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE AND REVISED
CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
This item was deferred to the next meeting of the Committee.

PRAC158.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

There were no new items of urgent business.




Page 16

MINUTES OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 FEBRUARY 2010

PRAC159.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday, 25 March 2010 at 19:30hrs.

The meeting closed at 22:05hrs.

COUNCILLOR GMMH RAHMAN KHAN

Chair




Page 17 Agenda Item 6

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [NO.]

Audit Committee On 25 March 2010

Report Title: Anti-money laundering regulations and Council policy

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

N h—
A AV o¥

oy % %5
%k % . /
LD TP NP S

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report
1.1To advise the Audit Committee of the updated Corporate Anti-money laundering
policy.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that the Council fully complies
with anti-money laundering regulations where appropriate, to reduce risks and
improve controls.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Audit Committee notes the requirements of the various regulations on local
authorities and that the Council has complied with these to date.

3.2 That the Audit Committee approves the updated Corporate Anti-money laundering
policy.

3.3 That the Audit Committee approves the inclusion of the policy as an appendix to the
Council's existing corporate anti-fraud strategy to ensure that all elements of fraud
policy and strategy are held together and allow it to be publicised more effectively.




Page 18

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1The Audit Committee is responsible for Anti-fraud and Corruption arrangements as part
of its Terms of Reference. In order to provide assurance that the corporate anti-money
laundering policy is consistent with relevant professional guidance and other statutory
and best practice requirements, it is reviewed on a regular basis, with approval for the
final anti-money laundering policy resting with the Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The Council needs to ensure that there are appropriate arrangements and processes
in place for the monitoring and reporting of any instances of suspected money
laundering operations. The Council’s corporate Anti-money laundering policy form part
of the assurances to satisfy the relevant requirements.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
notes that the processes and procedures adopted all follow published best practice
guidance. Accordingly, there are no direct legal implications arising out of the
recommendations in the report.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The Chief Financial Officer notes the recommendations and agrees that the proposed
approach to the anti-money laundering regulations should meet the Council’s
obligations and minimise the risk of this type of activity occurring within the
organisation. It also ensures that staff are aware of their responsibility and who they
should contact should they suspect money laundering transactions are taking place.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how the Council deals with suspected instances of money
laundering across all areas of the council, which have an impact on various parts of
the community. Improvements in managing risks and controls and reducing the
opportunity for money laundering will therefore improve services the Council
provides to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation has been undertaken with relevant departments to ensure that all

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2



Page 19

corporate, statutory and best practice requirements are incorporated into the
corporate Anti-money laundering policy.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. Investigations into
allegations of suspected money laundering and reporting these to relevant
authorities are undertaken using existing available resources within Internal Audit
and relevant service departments where applicable. The costs are contained within
revenue budgets which are monitored on a monthly basis.

13. Use of appendices
13.1 Appendix A — Anti-money laundering policy

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1 List of background documents. The following documents were used in production of
this report:
¢ Money Laundering Regulations 2007
» CIPFA guidance 2009 — Combating financial crime, further guidance on anti-
money laundering for public service organisations

15. Background

15.1 As part of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy's (CIPFA) 2006
Code of Practice, and the requirements of the Council's Whistle-blowing policy,
Haringey Council needs to ensure that there are appropriate processes in place for the
reporting and investigation of allegations of fraud and corruption.

15.2 The Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) includes the requirements to have
appropriate arrangements in place which are designed to promote and ensure probity.
It is therefore important to ensure that the Council can demonstrate compliance with
the CAA and best practice requirements.

15.3 The Council responded to the Money Laundering Regulations 2007 by updating its
Money Laundering procedure and guidance, which was written in conjunction with
relevant Proceeds of Crime and Data Protection guidance.

15.4 Following the introduction of the Money Laundering Regulations 2007, CIPFA
produced further guidance in 2009 on Anti-money laundering for Public Service
Organisations. Therefore, it is now considered an opportune time to review the
Council’s existing policy and ensure that it complies fully with the 2007 Regulations and
CIPFA's best practice guidance

16.Money Laundering Regulations 2007

16.1 The Money Laundering Regulations 2007 implemented the main preventative measure
of the Third Directive, namely requiring risk based customer due diligence measures.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



16.2

17.

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

Page 20

The Third Directive and the Money Laundering Regulations 2007 apply to a defined set
of relevant financial services. Most of the Council’'s business does not fall within the
classification of “relevant” financial services. It is mainly those services involving
accountancy, audit, legal, and property transactions which could be carrying out
relevant business. The following are examples of the type of transactions identified
above:

treasury management in accepting deposits/investments;

legal services' involvement with financial or property transactions;
collection or refunding of money from the council’s debtors;

loans and mortgage deals;

formation and management of companies or trusts; and,

dealing in transactions involving a total cash payment in excess of £10,000.

CIPFA 2009 Guidance on combating financial crime

CIPFA’s guidance has reviewed the 2007 Money Laundering Regulations, which
specify a list of ‘relevant persons’ to whom the regulations apply (Regulation 3 of the
2007 Regulations). Public authorities are not included on the list of relevant persons,
therefore CIPFA guidance is that public authorities are not subject to the requirements
of the 2007 Regulations.

However, an exception exists under Regulation 49(1) of the 2007 Regulations, which
does place certain obligations on specific public authorities. The regulations states that
public authorities must, if they know or suspect, or have reasonable grounds for
knowing or suspecting, that a person has engaged in money laundering or terrorist
financing, as soon as reasonably practicable inform the Serious Organised Crime
Agency (SOCA).

In response to the 2007 Regulations, CIPFA's guidance states that there is substantial
reputational risk for an authority which does not have policies and procedures in place
to deal with instances of money laundering. CIPFA recognises that the vast majority of
local authorities’ business activities fall outside the scope of the 2007 Regulations, but
maintains that Councils should be vigilant in this area to allow for any instances of
money laundering to be identified and reported appropriately.

CIPFA recommends, as a minimum that local authorities:

» Make those staff most likely to be exposed to or suspicious of terrorist financing or
money laundering aware of any requirements placed on the authority, its staff and
on them as individuals;

s Provide targeted training to those staff considered to be the most likely to
encounter the financing of terrorism and money laundering;

* To make arrangements for a nominated officer to receive and manage the
concerns of staff, to make internal enquiries, to advise staff who feel they should
make a report, and to co-ordinate suspicious activity reports to the SOCA; and

» To establish appropriate internal procedures which are both proportionate and cost
effective.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



Page 21

17. Haringey’s approach and policy

17.1 Haringey's approach to date has been to put in place arrangements within the Council
that comply with the regulations and reflect good practice. In this way the Council
is seen to be acting prudently and to the proper professional standards that certain
officers will need to follow. In respect of legal issues, the Law Society requires the
Council to have anti-money laundering policies and guidance in place and to complete
regular returns in respect of money laundering. In respect of financial issues, the 2009
CIPFA guidance on combating financial is the key publication.

17.2 The Money Laundering Regulations 2007, for the first time, required firms to vary
identification and monitoring of their customer on a risk sensitive basis. Firms are
allowed to reduce the level of customer identification in specified lower risk situations,
for example, dealing with public bodies.

17.3 The Council’s policy and procedures relating to money laundering includes a section on
due diligence (see appendix A). In most cases, the business undertaken will be where
the client is another public or statutory body, and therefore the risk assessment
indicates that no further due diligence about the status of the client is needed.

17.4 However, for other third party clients or politically exposed persons, there needs to be
formal and recorded due diligence checks. In these rare circumstances, guidance on
performing the due diligence checks will be provided by the Head of Audit and Risk
Management, in their role as the Council’'s Money Laundering Reporting Officer, in
consultation with relevant officers from legal and corporate finance where appropriate.

17.5 Therefore, a record must be maintained, including details of the customer due
diligence, which needs to be kept for five years after the end of the business
relationship and records of transactions, which also need to be kept for five years.

17.6 The Council's policy has been circulated to all relevant staff and training has been
provided to those staff who are most likely to deal with the transactions detailed in
paragraph 16.2. It is recommended that the Council's existing policy is incorporated
into the corporate anti-fraud policy and strategy to ensure all elements of fraud and
corruption are dealt with effectively and appropriately. These procedures will be made
available on the Council’s intranet site and regular reminders will be provided to all
relevant staff.

17.7 In addition, as part of the Council’s annual internal audit programme, testing of the key
financial systems includes checks in relation to money laundering to ensure that risks
are being appropriately managed.

17.8 Although local authorities are unlikely to be a prime target for money laundering, the
size and scope of services is such that it is not possible to discount entirely the
risks surrounding money laundering. The Council’'s approach is designed to mitigate
and minimise these risks.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5



Page 22

Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

1. What is money laundering?

Money laundering is the term used for several offences involving the proceeds of
crime, or terrorism. This includes possessing, or in any way dealing with, or
concealing, or converting the proceeds of any crime, as well as funds likely to be
used for terrorism, as well as the proceeds of terrorism. Money laundering

is generally used to describe the activities of organised criminals converting the
proceeds of crime into legitimate activities, with the intention of hiding their true
sources of income.

The current Money Laundering legislation covers all proceeds of crime, both money
and property, regardless of how small the value. In reality, it involves a suspicion
that someone is benefiting financially from dishonest activities. Therefore, the money
laundering aspect would be the attempt to do legitimate business with the Council
using assets and/or monies derived from the proceeds of crime or terrorism.

This guidance sets out the legal and regulatory requirements relating to money
laundering, as they affect both the Council and you personally.

2. What laws exist to control money laundering?

In recent years, new laws have been passed which significantly shift the burden for
identifying acts of money laundering from Police and Government agencies to
organisations and their employees. The principal legislation and regulation relating
to money laundering are the Proceeds of Crime Act 2002 (POCA), the Terrorism Act
2000 (TA), and the Money Laundering Regulations 2007.

There are three primary offences to take account of:

« ‘concealing’ is where someone knows, or suspects, a case of money
laundering, but conceals or disguises its existence;

« ‘arranging’ is where someone involves himself or herself in an arrangement to
assist money laundering; and,

« ‘acquisition’, ‘use’, or ‘possession’ is where someone seeks to benefit from
money laundering by acquiring, using, or possessing the property concerned.

There are also two third party offences to take account of:

» ‘failing to disclose a primary offence’ is where someone becomes aware or
suspects money laundering, but fails to take action in reporting it; and,

« ‘tipping off’ is where someone informs a person who is, or is suspected of
being, involved in money laundering, in such a way as to reduce the likelihood of
being investigated, or prejudicing an investigation.

These money laundering offences may be committed by the Council itself, or by any

of the Members and employees (including permanent, agency and temporary staff)
working within it.

FI/A&RM/Palicies & Procedures/Money Laundering/January 2010 Page 1 of 4



Page 23

Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

3. What is the Council’s response to money laundering?

Local authorities have a responsibility to ensure the proper conduct of

public business. The consequences of the Council or any of its Members or
employees facing prosecution under the money laundering legislation would be very
serious and reflect poorly not only on the Council, but on the public service as a
whole.

Although local authorities are unlikely to be a prime target for money laundering, the
size and scope of services is such that it is not possible to discount entirely the
risks surrounding money laundering. In order to mitigate this risk, this policy and
guidance, including reporting arrangements, has been produced.

Management should ensure that arrangements are in place to prevent the Council
and its Members and employees being exposed to money laundering in those
services where there is a potential risk. They should also ensure that those
Members and employees who may become exposed to money laundering are made
fully aware of this guidance and are suitably trained.

It should be noted that the professional bodies of some employees (e.g. accountants
and solicitors) have issued guidance on personal obligations and responsibilities
relating to money laundering, and those employees should familiarise themselves
with that guidance.

4. What are the implications for staff who become involved?

Examples of possible situations involving exposure to money laundering are found in
the appendix to this document. However, it cannot be stressed too strongly that it

is every Member and employee’s responsibility to be vigilant, and to be aware of the
requirement to report actual or suspected cases of money laundering.

While it is unlikely that a Member or employee would commit one of the three
primary offences, a failure to disclose a suspicion of money laundering is a serious
offence in itself, and there are only very limited grounds in law for not reporting a
suspicion.

Depending on the severity of the suspected offence, the Magistrates’ Court can
issue fines of up to £5,000, or sentences of up to 6 months in prison (or both), and,
in the Crown Court, fines are unlimited, and sentences of up to 14 years may be
handed out.

FI/A&RM/Policies & Procedures/Money Laundering/January 2010 Page 2 of 4



Page 24

Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

5. How do we ensure ‘due diligence’?

The Money Laundering Regulations 2007 require the identification and monitoring of
clients on a risk sensitive basis. Where relevant business is undertaken, the

clients need to be subject to some form of risk based due diligence. Most of the
Council's business is not defined in the regulations as being relevant; it is mainly
those services involving accountancy, audit, legal, and property transactions which
could be carrying out relevant business.

In most cases, the business undertaken will be where the client is another public or
statutory body, and therefore the risk assessment indicates that no further due
diligence about the status of the client is needed. However, for other third party
clients or politically exposed persons (see attached appendix for definition) there
needs to be formal and recorded due diligence checks.

A record will be maintained, by Corporate Finance, including details of the customer
due diligence, which needs to be kept for five years after the end of the

business relationship together with a record of the transactions also kept for five
years. In these rare circumstances, guidance on performing the due diligence
checks can be obtained from the Head of Audit and Risk Management.

6. What should | do if | suspect a case of money laundering?

If you have any questions or doubts about an individual, company, or transaction
that you have been dealing with, then it is important to seek advice from the Head of
Audit and Risk Management. This approach means that the information can be
considered at the time the transaction or the business takes place.

Section 2 of this guidance states that failure to take action or to report activities is an
offence under the Regulations. However, failure to do so is only an offence if the
suspicion relates, in the event, to an actual crime. Therefore, a common sense
approach needs to be taken, in order to ensure that officers’ time is not wasted.

The Council has nominated the Head of Audit and Risk Management within the
Corporate Resources Directorate as the officer responsible for dealing with any
suspicions of money laundering. You should therefore report any suspicious
transactions or concerns to the Head of Audit and Risk Management in writing. The
matter would then be discussed with you and a decision made whether to make a
formal report to the Serious Organised Crime Agency.

FI/A&RM/Policies & Procedures/Money Laundering/January 2010 Page 3 of 4



Page 25

Appendix A

PROCEEDS OF CRIME AND ANTI-MONEY LAUNDERING POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

A. Examples of possible situations involving exposure to money laundering

1. There may be situations where funds come into the Council from an unfamiliar
source. In particular, if the Council is forming a new business relationship, or is
considering undertaking a significant one-off transaction, it would be prudent to
identify fully the parties involved. This will be especially true if the parties
concerned are not physically present, or may be acting for absent third parties.

2. Transactions involving the handling of the proceeds of asset disposals, e.g. land
sales, can be especially vulnerable, and may demand further enquiry. Caution
should be exercised in respect of:

« unusual arrangements; offshore funds being used;

« transactions involving a third party who is not known to the Council, or where
the identity of a party is difficult to establish or is undisclosed;

« where an intermediary is involved, or where the ultimate ownership of a
company is hidden; and,

« situations where a party is evasive as to the source of funds.

3. Members or employees having direct contact with the public or businesses may
become suspicious where the nature of the goods or the amounts of the cash
seems inconsistent with what might, in the circumstances, be regarded as
normal.

4. Cashiers may be asked, in the normal course of their work, to accept payments
in unusually amounts of cash for the settlement of debts. As a guide, sums in the
region of £10,000 and above would be regarded as a sum of cash that should be
reported.

5. Circumstances which might arouse particular suspicion are where cash is
tendered which exceeds significantly the amount of the debt, or the debt is paid
twice (or more) and the person or business requests subsequently a refund from
the Council of the balance.

B. Politically Exposed Persons
The Regulations define politically exposed persons as a person “...who is or has, at
any time in the preceding year been entrusted with a prominent public function by a

state other than the United Kingdom, a European Community institution or an
international body” or a family member or known close associate of such a person.

FI/A&RM/Policies & Procedures/Money Laundering/January 2010 Page 4 of 4



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



eI Agenda ltem 7

Haringey Council
Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 25 March 2010

Report Title: Risk Management update Quarter 3 2009/10 and Updated Corporate
Risk Management Policy and Strategy

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To inform the Audit Committee of the current position on risk management
implementation across the Council.

1.2 To provide an updated Corporate Risk Management Policy and Strategy for review
and approval.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by ensuring that the Council’s risk
management framework is in place and operating effectively. Internal audit reviews
key risk registers, the controls in place to manage the identified risks.
Recommendations for improvement are made, where appropriate.

2.2 Risk management forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources
assessment and will continue to be part of the CAA from 2009 onwards. The reports
to both managers and the Audit Committee on the implementation of the Council’s risk
management policy and strategy ensure that the requirements of the CAA
assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations

3.1 The Audit Committee is recommended to note the implementation of the risk
management strategy across the Council.

3.2 The Audit Committee reviews and approves the updated corporate Risk Management




Page 28

Policy and Strategy.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s Risk Management
Policy and Strategy as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, and
provide information on its implementation across the Council, the corporate Policy
progress reports are provided on a regular basis for review and approval by the Audit
Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the
implementation of the Council’s risk management framework throughout the authority.
This report focuses on the work undertaken during the third quarter of 2009/10 to
ensure the risk management framework is complied with.

6.2 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Council’s Risk Management
Policy and Strategy as part of its Terms of Reference. An annual review of the Policy
is completed in order to ensure that it complies with best practice and current
operational requirements.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of the is report,
and advises that there are no direct legal implications arising out of the report or the
recommendations.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The CFO notes that the Council is fully compliant with the strategy, with all risk
registers now fully integrated into the Council's performance management system
(Covalent). All registers have been reviewed and are up to date for Quarter 3 and
automatic reminders are sent to ensure the registers are reviewed according to the
agreed timetable. Further, as outlined in section 17, the risk management policy and
strategy has ensured a much more robust and integrated approach to risk across the
auihority.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 29

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks are managed across all areas of the Council, which
have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements in managing risks
and controls will therefore improve services the Council provides to all sections of
the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation is undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant Directors
and Directors in the production of risk registers and internal audit reports. Their
comments are included in the final report which is circulated in accordance with the
agreed internal audit reporting protocol.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work within
internal audit to implement the Council's risk management framework is part of the
contract with Deloitte and Touche which was awarded following a competitive
tendering exercise in compliance with EU regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of
this contract and managing the corporate risk management policy are contained and
managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget. Service
departments manage risks as part of the routine work to achieve their business
plans and costs are contained within their revenue budgets.

13. Use of appendices

13.1  Appendix 1 — Update on risk registers Quarter 3 2009/10
Appendix 2 — Updated Risk Management Policy and Strategy 2010.

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1The Council's Risk Management strategy is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that
it reflects current operational requirements and best practice. The previous version was
approved by the Audit Committee at its meeting on 23 April 2009.

15.2 The Chair of the Audit Committee requested that a report on risk management and
compliance with the Council’s strategy be presented to the Committee on a quarterly

Report Template: Formal Bodies 3



Page 30

basis. The review and testing of risk registers formed part of the 2009/10 annual audit
plan which was approved at the Audit Committee meeting on 23 April 2009. This is an
ongoing process to ensure the key controls to manage identified risks are effective and
operate as intended.

15.2During 2009/10, the risk registers for all business units, departments and the corporate
register were all integrated into the Council's performance management system
(Covalent). Training for system users was provided when their risk registers were
loaded onto the system and all risk registers have been managed using Covalent from
quarter 3 2009/10, which was in accordance with the planned timetable.

16. Risk Registers

16.1 As stated above, all risk registers are now managed electronically at business unit,
department and corporate level. Appendix 1 shows the latest position for all Business
Units and Directorates as at 31 December 2009. Risk registers for business units and
directorates are up to date and reviewed in accordance with the Council's risk
management strategy. During 2009/10, a number of organisational changes have taken
place across the Council. Within Urban Environment, the Enforcement Business Unit is
now contained within Frontline Services Business Unit. Within PPP&C, Neighbourhood
Management Business Unit is now contained within Safer Communities Business Unit.
The risk registers for Enforcement and Neighbourhood Management have been
incorporated into the new Business Unit structure and will be reported within this for
2009/10.

16.3The risk registers have been reviewed in accordance with the planned programme of
audit work. The electronic Covalent system replicates the previous format for the
council’s risk registers, but provides Business Unit Managers with a more effective and
flexible reporting and monitoring process than the previous manual process. The
electronic system is able to produce a variety of reports and information to suit the
managers’ requirements. The electronic system allows managers to view and sort their
current risks individually, or by risk rating; RAG status; or actions due.

16.5Covalent automatically sends email reminders to the business unit representatives
when updates are due and the system will provide an audit trail to allow for monitoring
and follow up by Iinternal Audit. Internal Audit will also provide resources (as part of the
annual audit plan) to assist business units on an ongoing basis and to ensure that all
actions and updates are being done in accordance with the relevant timescales. All
business units and directorates have reviewed their risk registers in accordance with the
corporate policy and strategy for the third quarter.

16.6 The corporate risk register is reviewed on a quarterly basis by the Chief Executive's
Management Board and reported annually to the Audit Committee.

17. Risk Management Policy and Strategy

17.1 In addition to risk registers, the corporate risk management policy and strategy has
brought together ali key processes involving risk, including health and safety, business

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 31

continuity planning, emergency planning and project management. A corporate Risk
and Emergency Planning Steering Group is in place, with representatives from all
directorates, which reviews key risk issues on a regular basis and ensures
implementation of the risk management strategy across the council.

17.2 Key documentation, including the Pre-Business Plan Review and Business Plan
.emplates have been revised to take account of the revised risk management strategy
and ensure that risk management processes are embedded across all key functions
and processes. The Business Planning process for 2010/11 will ensure that all key
service and business plan objectives are appropriately linked to the business unit and
departmental risk registers.

17.3 The risk management strategy and policy has now been updated to reflect the
implementation of the electronic performance management system and is attached at
Appendix 2 for review and approval. No other changes to the strategy have been made.

Rennrt Template: Formal Bodies 5



Page 32



Page 33

zJo [ adeg

600¢ Jequads(g SHIOMISN S,UsIpiiy) ngd SdAD €z
6002 Jeqwiada(g yswdojaasqg g pvoddng ssauisng ng SdAD 22
6002 19qwasa( uoIsSN|oU| '@ SPJEPUEB]S |00YIS ng SdAD 1z
600¢ J8quiadsg Saljitue '@ uaipjiyp nd SdAD 0z
6002 Joquadaq 90In19g s,8/doad BunoA 9 uaipyiyn 1deg (SdAD)
0INBS s,81doad Buno, g ualpjiyn 61
010¢ Aenuer saoineg Apadold ayelodio) ng e} gl
6002 Jaqwaoaq awainodold djesodio) ng o) /1
600¢ Jeqwisda(d juswiabeuey Ysiy g upny ng =18} gl
6002 Jaqwiadsaq aoueul4 ajelodio) ng e Gl
600¢ J8quiadeg uonexe| [Bd00T g sjjsuag ng =18 Vi
6002 loqwada( S9OIAIDG JBWOISN) ng N Te) €l
010z Aenuer S3VINBG 1] ng O 43
600¢ Jequiede(d saoInag [efe ng =18} b
010z Aenuer $92IN0s9Y 8jelodio) 1daq (40D) sodinosay ejelodio) 0L
6002 19qwa29( buiuiea x uswdojanag jeuonesiueblp ng ao-3o 6
600z leqwiada( poddng Jaquiapy 3 Aoeioowa( |edo] ng ao-3o 8
6002 Jaquiaoag S92IN0SaY uewWNH ng ao-3an /
6002 Jaqwaoseq yawdojena(g jeuonesiuebip ydag Juswdojanaq jeuonesiuebiQ - 39 9
0L0z Aenuer douellopad 3 Adljod ng Oddd - 30 G
0l0z Aenuer suoledluNWwwoy ng Oddd - 30 14
600¢ Jequiaoa(g ssijlunwwioy Jsjeg ng Jddd - 30 €
010z Aenuep uoledIuNWWoD) ydaq uonesiunwwo) 3 sdiysiauyed
9 sdiysisuped adsuewopad Adjod aouewiIopad Adljod - 39 Z
oL0z Aenuer J1a)s1bay ajelodio) | sjesodio) diN3D - sjesodio) L
ajepdn
jud2al Jsow jo ajeq opiL J91s1b6ay ysiy |9AaT] juswedaq

v xipuad-” ;

Krewiwing ajepdn 193159y YSIN - 01/600Z € 191eny poday ssaiboud




Page 34

7 Jo 7 a%eg

6002 Jaquads( wawdojanaq Aoljod g buluueld ng an| z¢
6002 JoquiaoaQ SSOIAISG SUIjjuoi] ng an le
oioz Aenuer saoinag buisnoH Ajunwwo) g oibajens ng an 0c
010z Atenuer JUSWUOHAUT ueqIn e (3N) uswiuonauz ueqin 62
600¢ J8quiada(d salelqi] g bujuies ‘ainyn) nd SO0V 8¢
600¢ 1equada(g S80IAIBG UOIEDIOY ngd SO0V LZ
600¢ J12quiads(d S30IM3S }INPY ng SO0V 9¢
600¢ l8quiads( Absjeng g buiuoissiwwoy ng SOV G2
6002 12oqwassg $80IA18S Ajunwiwo) @ ainjind synpy 1daqg (SD9OV) seoineg
Ajunwwo) g aiyn) synpy 144
ajepdn
Juadal }sow jo ajeq api] 191sibay ysiy |9A9T] jusunedaq |

v xipuaddy

Krewwing ayepdn 1215169y )sSiy - 01/600Z € 1auienp Joday ssaiboid




Page 35

—aON 3orough of Haringey
The Management of Risk
Corporate Policy and Strategy
Version 6.1

January 2010



Page 36

Contents

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

1.

6

7

BACKGROUND

INTRODUCTION

WHAT IS RISK?

WHAT IS AN ACCEPTABLE RISK?

WHAT IS RISK MANAGEMENT?

WHO IS HESPONSIBLE FOR RISK MANAGEMENT?

RISK MANAGEMENT - THE FRAMEWORK

8 HOW ARE RISKS REVIEWED AND REPORTED

APPENDIX A - RISK REGISTERS

APPENDIX B - PROJECT RISKS

APPENDIX C - BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLANS

APPENDIX D - PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 1 0of 13



Page 37

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Haringey is committed to developing a Risk Management Strategy, framework and the
necessary supporting processes as part of the Council’s on-going improvement
programme. This will help to improve and strengthen corporate governance and front-
line service delivery throughout the Council. The aim is to minimise the incidence and
impact of risk taking activity, improve decision making and increase opportunities for
innovation.

Tha Council undertakes that this policy will promote and ensure that:

1.

10,

11

The management of risk is linked to performance improvement and the
achievement of its priorities and service objectives.

Members, Chief Executive’s Management Board (CEMB) and senior
management own, lead and support on risk management.

Ownership and accountability are clearly assigned for the management of risks
throughout the Council.

There is a commitment to embedding risk management into the Council’s
~ulture and organisational processes at all levels including strategic,
programme, project and operational.

All Members and officers acknowledge and embrace the importance of risk
management as a process, by which key risks and opportunities are identified,
evaluated, managed and contribute towards good corporate governance.

Effective monitoring and reporting mechanisms are in place to continuously
review the Council’s exposure to, and management of, risks and opportunities.

Open and inclusive processes are established and maintained by involving all
those associated with the planning and delivery of services, including
stakeholders and partners.

Best practice systems for managing risk are used throughout the Council,
including mechanisms for monitoring and reviewing effectiveness against
agreed standards and targets.

Accountability to stakeholders is fully demonstrated through periodic progress
‘gports and an annual statement on the effectiveness of and the added value
(benefits) from the Council’s risk management strategy, framework and
processes.

The Council’s approach is regularly benchmarked against high performing
public and private sector organisations.

The Risk Management Strategy is reviewed and updated annually in line with the
Council’s developing needs and requirements.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 ~ January 2010 Page 1



Page 38

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 1t is now recognised that all organisations face a range of risks which may affect
the achievement of their objectives. Risk management is therefore an essential part
of securing the ‘health’ of an organisation. Risk management is an important
element in the running of any business: ensuring that threats to corporate
objectives and service delivery are minimised; and that business opportunities are
exploited to maximise resources or revenue.

1.2 Risk management is part of the overall arrangements for securing effective
corporate governance. Corporate governance can be described as the systems
which local authorities use to direct and control their operations and relate to their
communities.

1.3 Good corporate governance can provide the authority’s various communities,
partners and other organisations, with confidence that the council maintains the
highest possible standards in delivering their services. It is impossible for any
organisation to achieve effective corporate governance arrangements without an
effective risk management framework.

1.4 The council also has to comply with various statutory requirements which include
issues relating to corporate governance or risk management. The Accounts and
Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 require local authorities to review,
at least once a year, systems they have in place to control and manage the
services they provide. From 2007/08, the Council must publish an Annual
Governance Statement, which represents the end results of its annual review, with
its financial statements.

1.5 The Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) is the external review process which is
designed to evaluate local authorities’ performance over a number of areas. Risk
management is included within the annual ‘Use of Resources’ assessment and is a
key part of the assessment criteria that is integral to the CAA.

1.6 Other key statutory issues for the council in relation to risk management include the
requirements of the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 and the Health and Safety at
Work Act 1974 and its related legislation. Internally, the council has developed
various business planning, performance and project management frameworks,
including business continuity and emergency planning - which all require risk
management to be considered.

1.7 Everyone within the council has a role to play in managing risk. In order to put this
in context and provide an explanation of how the various statutory and local
requirements should be met, this corporate policy and strategy has been
developed. This builds on the Council’s previous risk management strategies to
indicate where the various statutory and key corporate requirements fit in.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 2



Page 39

2 INTRODUCTION

2.1This strategy provides an overview of Haringey’s risk management position and
what the council needs to do to move towards achieving the highest ratings in the
relevant CAA assessments. It updates the previous risk management strategy
(April 2009) and clarifies the various roles, responsibilities and governance
structures.

2.2Haringey Council, via statutory requirements and corporately set objectives, must
balance the demands of service users and tax payers; involve communities in
service provision; deliver, commission and regulate services; and enter into
strategic and local partnerships, often involving complex funding arrangements.

2.3Balancing all of these, sometimes conflicting, objectives means that the council
needs a framework which ensures that a pro-active approach is taken and risks
are considered before decisions are taken by the appropriate body.

2.4The aim of this strategy is to ensure that risks are identified at the right time to
enable good decisions to be made, including:

reducing the impact and/or number of risks which could prevent the council
achieving its objectives;

ensuring that the council takes advantage of opportunities to improve its
performance; and

e working with organisations within the Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP),
and other key external partners, to maximise opportunities available.

2.5Risk management can make a difference and enhance the performance of the
council by:
¢ ldentifying and preventing the bad things from happening; and
¢ Ensuring that all the good things we want to do actually happen.

2.6The aim of this strategy is to ensure that everyone responsible for managing and
taking decisions is aware not only of the key risk management functions, but also
their responsibilities in relation to them.

2.7From the departments’ and business unit managers’ perspectives, the emphasis
should be to achieve their objectives and deliver their services. Risk management
should be used to facilitate this in the most effective way possible. By using a
systematic approach, managers will ensure that they consider all the options
available to them, and be in a better position to anticipate and respond to
changing social, environmental and legislative requirements.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 3



3

Page 40

WHAT IS RISK?

3.1 For a public body such as Haringey Council, risk can be defined as:

Anything that poses a threat to the achievement of our objectives,
programmes or service delivery to the residents, businesses and communities
of Haringey.

3.2 Risks can come from inside or outside the council, and may include financial loss

or gain, physical damage to people or buildings, client dissatisfaction, unfavourable
publicity, failure of equipment, or fraud. Failing to take advantage of opportunities
may also have risks for the Council, for example not bidding for external funding, or
not publicising successes.

3.3 Taking advantage of new opportunities, for example working with the voluntary

sector to deliver services, or working as part of the Haringey Strategic Partnership
can also mean the Council has to deal with different types of risks. However, not
taking advantage of these opportunities may leave the Council facing bigger risks
in the future.

Iherefore, some risks should not necessarily always be avoided. However, this
means the Council should always carefully think through decisions which may
cause losses of confidence, finance, or reputation. If risks are identified and
managed effectively, they can allow the council to take opportunities for improving
services.

3.5 Risks can be classified according to how they may affect the council as it delivers

its services:

e Corporate (strategic) risks - risks which may affect the council’s ability to
achieve its plans.

« Reputational risks - risks that may undermine the confidence that the council’s
partners, customers, staff and the public have in it, e.g. adverse news articles.

« Service (operational) risks — risks which may prevent the council delivering its
core services, e.g. lack of staff, damage to buildings, equipment failure.

« Financial risks - risks which may cause a breakdown in the council’s financial
systems e.g. fraud. Alternatively, risks arising from the credit crunch and
economic downturn, e.g. on investments, debt management, etc.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 January 2010 Page 4



4

Page 41

WHAT IS AN ACCEPTABLE RISK?

4.1 As a general principle, the Council will seek to eliminate and control all those risks
which:

have a high potential for incidents to occur;

would have a substantial adverse financial or reputational impact;

would cause loss of public confidence in the Council and/or its partner
organisations; or

may stop the Council from carrying out its statutory functions or achieving its
strategic objectives.

4.2 The Council recognises that it is impossible to eliminate all risks, especially those
which it has no control over e.g. the UK economy, changes to legislation, climate
and weather influences, or external power failure. This is not an exhaustive list, but
provided for illustrative purposes only.

4.3 The Council will always try to reduce or eliminate risks wherever possible, but it
needs to strike the right balance between how much it costs to manage or
eliminate risks and taking no action. For example, the costs of eliminating risks in a
~vstem may be more than the amount of money the Council may lose if the system
were to fail. In these circumstances, the Council would want to ensure that there
were sensible precautions taken to manage the risks, but that these were balanced
against what it would cost if the system were to break down.

4.4 Systems that the Council puts in place should therefore be flexible enough to
encourage innovation and imaginative use of its limited resources, subject to any
legal requirements, in order to deliver better services to its residents.

4.5 All projects and change programmes carry with them some risk of failure. The
willingness to take advantage of opportunities or new innovation, in a managed
way, is a sign of an ambitious organisation. It is important that risks associated
with opportunities and innovation are identified and effectively managed, to ensure
that the strategic objectives of the Council are achieved.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 5



Page 42

5 WHAT IS RISK MANAGEMENT?

5.1 There is no such thing as a risk-free environment, but many risks can be avoided,
reduced or eliminated through good risk management. Good risk management
also takes advantage of opportunities while analysing and dealing with risks.

5.2 Risk management is something that managers do every day as part of their normal
work, although it may not always be written down, and managers may not use a
formal procedure to make their final decision. Risk management can be explained
as a tool for managers to use so that they are able to identify, evaluate and
manage both risks and opportunities in a logical and consistent way.

5.3 Good risk management is forward looking and helps to improve business decisions
and manage performance. It is not only about avoiding or minimising losses, but
also about dealing positively with opportunities.

5.4 |n addition to fulfiling statutory requirements, it should be recognised that there are
many benefits to making sure that risk management is considered and applied at

all levels in the Council, including:

Allowing managers to focus on the issues that really matter;

Spending less management time on operational issues;

Fewer surprises;

Managers are focused on doing the right things, in the right way;

Better chance of achieving business objectives;

Better chance that new developments can be delivered on time, in accordance
with the planned programme and within budget; and

e More informed risk taking and decision making.

5.5 Risk management should be considered as a continuous process, which evolves
as the Council gains more understanding of the risks and opportunities facing it
and how to manage these effectively.

5.6 Risk management consists of a number of elements, which should be considered
and applied regularly during the course of the year, as part of the Council’s cycle of
performance management and improvement processes:

« Understanding the Council’s, department’s, or business unit’s objectives;
e Identifying and assessing the risks facing it;

e Assessing the actions in place to manage the risks;

e Taking action to improve, monitor and learn from experiences.

U Source: "Embedding Risk Management into the Culture of your Organisation’ The Institute of Internal Auditors — UK and
i A Ocrober 2003,

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 - January 2010 Page 6



Page 43

6 WHO IS RESPONSIBLE FOR RISK MANAGEMENT?

6.1 Directors and senior managers are responsible for managing their services. They
are therefore responsible for identifying, assessing and managing the risks
associated with planning, delivering and monitoring each of their services.

6.2The following diagram illustrates the key processes in the council’s overall
approach to the provision of its services. The assessment and management of risk
is essential to all aspects of this approach and is shown as an overarching aspect
of service delivery.

Figure1

________ , SERVICE STRATEGIES o

e . | BUSINESS/SERVICEPLANNING | _ >

| 2
]

! »

! ’ 3

' : Db g

' Business Budget/ Stakeholders/ Health & Safety ;)"

3 Continuity / Funding Clients Issues 8.

' E . Plannin

: merg. Planning Qz)

E DELIVERY OF EFFICIENT AND S

EFFECTIVE SERVICE A R %’

| 3

! PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT =

f AND REPORTING ARRANGEMENTS DR, Q.

s -

: 2]

! MEASUREMENT OF T URR— =

! PERFORMANCE

. e
Nis Customer/Client CAA - UoR/ Benchmarking
Local Pls  Satisfaction Other assessment

REPORTS TO MEMBERS

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 7



Page 44

6.2 Additionally, the Chief Financial Officer has a specific statutory responsibility, under
section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, to ensure that the Council
maintains high standards in managing its financial systems and that procedures
comply with all relevant legislation and local procedures.

6.4 The Chief Executive’s Management Board (CEMB) is responsible for approving the
Council’s risk management strategy at officer level and for ensuring that this is
reviewed and updated on a regular basis. CEMB is also responsible for reviewing
and approving the corporate risk register, business continuity plan and health and
safety policy on a regular basis.

6.5 The Council’s Audit Committee has responsibility for approving the risk
management strategy at member level and is also responsible for reviewing, on an
annual basis, the implementation of risk management across the Council. Risk
management is included as part of the portfolio for the Cabinet Member for
Resources.

6.6 The Council has a statutory responsibility to “assess the risk of an emergency
occurring” under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004. This responsibility is undertaken
in partnership with other agencies (e.g. the Emergency Services), and the resulting
Community Risk Register is signed off at the Local Resilience Forum.

6.7 The Council also has a responsibility to ensure that the strategy covers bodies
working in partnership with the Council. It is critical that both the risk appetite and
risk management arrangements for all parties are discussed and clearly
understood before a partnership is created. In particular, a risk management
strategy has been implemented for the Haringey Strategic Partnership and risk
registers are in place for each of the partnership theme boards.

6.8 Figure 1 above sets out the various areas across the council where managers need
to consider the risks in relation to their business, and how these should be
addressed. In practice, the council has various corporate systems and processes
which should be completed in order to ensure that risks are appropriately
considered. These are set out below in Table 1 below:

Table 1
Area/Process Action required/Response
Business/Service Planning Risk Register(s) to be completed

Project & Programme Management Haringey Project Management
Framework to be followed

Business Continuity/Disaster Business Continuity Plan(s) to be
Recovery completed

Health and Safety Risk Assessment(s) to be completed
Performance Management National (LAA) and local indicators to

be monitored

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 - January 2010 Page 8



Page 45

7 RISK MANAGEMENT - THE FRAMEWORK

7.1 Our vision is that all significant risks which may prevent the Council from achieving
its objectives and all appropriate opportunities are identified, assessed and cost
effectively managed, as part of the whole Council performance management
process.

7.2 The key objectives of the framework are to ensure that the Council has a
consistent approach and basis for measuring, controlling, monitoring, follow-up
and reporting of risk that is based on what the Council, not any individual, judges
to be acceptable levels of risk.

7.3 The framework demonstrates how the management of risk is embedded in the
various business processes across the council, including business planning,
financial planning, business continuity, performance management and project
management.

7.4 Table 2 below provides a summary of the council’s business planning cycle and

how the business processes operate within this.

ble 2
| Timing Activity Completed by Key Contact
ol Finalise Business BU Head Policy and
Plans Performance
Team
April, June Review and update | BU Head/ DMT/ | Head of Audit &
September, of risk register CEMB Risk Mgmt/Policy
December & Performance
Team
April and Review and update | BU Head/ DMT/ | Emergency
September of Business CEMB Planning and
Continuity Plan Business
Continuity
Manager
September Complete Pre- BU Head Policy and
Business Plan Performance
Review Team
April - March | Collate and monitor | BU Head Policy and
performance Performance
Indicators Team
April - March | Submission of Project Lead Project
Project Management Management
Highlight reports Office
April Undertake risk BU Head/ DMT Health & Safety
assessments Manager

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010

Page 9



Page 46

7.5 Education, training & awareness is achieved by:

Facilitated workshops, training sessions and meetings with Members, managers
and staff at various levels.

A developing framework of standards, practical guidance notes and briefings.
Regular meetings with managers and staff to heighten awareness and share
views, ideas and experiences.

7.6 From April 2009, the Council has implemented Covalent as its corporate

performance management framework. This electronic interactive database is used
for the following:

Corporate, departmental and business unit risk registers that will be updated on
a continuous basis. These will be based on identifying an “analysis gap”
between “where we are now” and where we want to be over an agreed
timeframe.

High level risk actions that form part of Managers’ performance management
dashboards.

A database of risk data and information for analysis and reporting.

The identification of control areas that need to underpin the Strategic and
Annual Internal Audit Plans.

Further integration with outcomes from value for money reviews; outstanding
high risk audit recommendations; corporate health and safety risks; business
continuity management; Civil Contingencies Act;, Crime and Disorder; and
Equalities.

Effective links between risk management, performance management and
business planning.

7.7 Previous sections of this strategy have listed the areas where the council requires

managers to complete corporate processes. Table 3 below details the appendices
which set out how the framework operates in practice for each of these areas:

Table 3

Area Appendix

Completion of Risk Registers A

Project & Programme Management B
W‘Business Continuity Plans C
‘;eﬁormance Management Framework D

(Overview)

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 - January 2010

Page 10



Page 47

8 HOW ARE RISKS REVIEWED AND REPORTED?

8.1The council has various means of measuring and recording risks. The reporting of each

of these areas, together with the links between each process, is set out below.

8.2Risk registers are subject to regular review and update on a quarterly basis by business

units, departments and CEMB. The timing for the quarterly review coincides with and
forms part of the annual business planning process. Key risks are escalated from
business unit registers to departmental registers and ultimately on to the corporate
register where the realisation of the risk may impact on the ability to achieve corporate
or statutory objectives.

8.3The Corporate Business Continuity Plan (BCP) is reviewed on a quarterly basis, and

subject to test on an annual basis. The Emergency Planning and Business Continuity
Planning team maintain the corporate plan, incorporating lessons from incidents and
exercises. Business Unit BCP’s should be reviewed twice a year in line with the
business planning cycle (in September and April). Reports are provided to CEMB and
members detailing the implementation and management of the council’s BCP’s. Key
BCP risks are included on business unit, departmental and the corporate risk register
as appropriate.

J.4Tiie council’s project management framework requires risks affecting each project to

be reviewed prior to the submission of each project highlight report (normally monthly)
and reported to the relevant project and programme board. Reports to CEMB and
imiinbers are provided on a regular basis as part of the reporting cycle. Projects which
carry significant risks to the achievement of business unit or departmental objectives
should be included in business unit or departmental risk registers, with escalation to the
corporate risk register in cases where the failure of the project may impact on the ability
to achieve corporate or statutory objectives.

8.5Health and safety risks are addressed based on the Health and Safety Executive’s

‘Sensible Risk Management’ strategy, which the council has adopted. Managers at all
levels are required to ensure that key assessment processes e.g. display screen
assessments and safe working practices are completed on a regular basis. Reports to
CEMB and members detailing compliance with the council’s policies are provided on a
regular basis.

8.6Performance management information, including statutory and local performance

indicators, is provided on a regular basis to CEMB and members. The council uses a
‘scorecard’ to highlight key risk areas.

8.7 The Council has to produce an Annual Governance Statement every year, which is an

Assessment of the systems the Council has in place to control and manage the services
they provide. This risk management strategy and framework will provide assurance to
CEMB and members that risks are being properly managed.

Management of Risk Corporate Policy& Strategy v6.1 — January 2010 Page 11



Page 48



Page 49

APPENDIX A
The completion of risk registers

1. Identification of risks

1.1Risk registers should allow Business Unit Heads, Directorate Managers and
members of CEMB to identify and manage those risks which are the most
important in making sure that the council delivers its services effectively.

1.2The first stage of the process is to identify the risks (including opportunities)
facing the Business Unit/Directorate/Council. In line with the CIPFA/SOLACE
guidance, Haringey’'s risk management framework is linked to business
objectives. These business objectives are identified by departments and
business units as part of the annual business planning process.

1.3The council has a corporate risk register which identifies the most significant
risks facing it. Each department has its own risk register which identifies the
key high level risks which could impact on the directorate or the council as a
whole. All business units within the council also have their own risk registers
which focus on the risks affecting each individual service, although some of
the risks may have an impact on whether the department or the Council
meets its objectives.

2. Assessment of risks
2 1 When all the relevant risks have been identified, a numerical scoring system
.3 used to determine which are the key risks to the department or business
unit. Risks are scored using two factors:
» Likelihood. An assessment is made of how likely the risk is to occur in
practice; and
e Impact. An assessment is made on if the risk did occur, what would be
the impact on the department, business unit, or system.

2.2Managers decide on the likelihood and impact of each of the risks identified
for their department or business unit as they are in the best position to be able
to assess the likelihood and impact of each of the risks on their specific
departments.

2.3In order to ensure a consistent approach across the Council, specific criteria
have been agreed for the likelihood and impact scores. The Impact and
Likelihood Scales are attached at Appendix A1, which also provides further
detail on when the relevant managers should take action, or further action, to
manage risks effectively and consistently.

2.4The impact and likelihood of individual risks may change over time, therefore
" is important to review the assessments which have been made on a reguiar
basis.

«.0oihe identified control in place to manage each risk should either reduce the
likelihood that a risk will occur, or the impact if it were it to occur. If the score
i= still at an unacceptably high level having considered the controls in place,
~.itional actions may be required in order to reduce the risk level further.

2.4The Council's objective is to make sure that the most cost-effective controls
~= in place for each risk, and that managers have considered the cost against
uie benefit of the control. This may mean that certain risks have a high residual
score because the cost of reducing the risk may be higher than the potential
cost, if the risk actually happens.

Page 1 of 4



Page 50

APPENDIX A
The completion of risk registers

2.5The risk registers therefore contain the following:

e service delivery objectives;

e key risks and which officer is responsible for managing those risks;

e controls in place to manage the risks, and who is responsible for those
controls;

e risk scores; and

e any further actions required, and who is responsible, together with a
timescale for completion.

3. Assurances on the effectiveness of key controls

3.1 The Council wants to ensure that the controls which managers say are in
place to manage the key risks, are both in place and working effectively. The
annual programme of internal audit work includes resources to test the key
controls specified within the risk registers, based on the level of risk involved.

4 Monitoring of risks

4.15etting up the risk registers is only one part of the risk management process.
In order to achieve real benefits from implementing risk management, it is
important that the risk registers are reviewed and kept up to date on a
quarterly basis, in accordance with the corporate risk management strategy.

4.2% e Chief Executive’s Management Board (CEMB) will review and update the
corporate risk register on a quarterly basis. The update may take the form of
new risks, changes to or additional controls, and changes to risk scores. Key
triggers for significant changes to risk registers will be new or changing
regulations, implementation of new departmental or corporate projects, high
staff turnover, changes in the external environment, and Internal Audit
reviews. :

4.3The Audit Committee will, on an annual basis, review the corporate risks
identified and confirm their acceptance of both the risks which have been
identified, and the actions in place to manage them.

4.4Using the framework, a consistent methodology for measuring and scoring
risks is applied throughout the Council. What is an acceptable level of risk for
the Council, and what managers need to do to deal appropriately with risks
at various levels, is detailed at Appendix A1.

Page 2 of 4



Page 51

APPENDIX A

The completion of risk registers

APPENDIX A1 - Impact and Likelihood Scales

To be used as a guide in assessing risk ratings:

Descriptor

Impact Guide

No impact

Financial loss up to £5,000 or no
impact outside single objective or no
adverse publicity

Financial loss up to £10,000 or no
impact outside single objective or no
adverse publicity

Financial loss up to £50,000 or minor
regulatory consequence or some
impact on other objectives

Financial loss up to £100,000 or
unpact on other objectives or local
adverse publicity or strong regulatory
criticism

Financial loss up to £300,000 or
impact on many other processes or
local adverse publicity or regulatory
sanctions (such as intervention, public
interest reports)

Financial loss up to £500,000 or
impact on strategic leve! objectives or
national adverse publicity or strong
regulatory sanctions

Financial loss up to £1 million or
impact at strategic level or national
adverse publicity or Central
Government take over administration

loss above £1 million or
level or

Financial
major impact at strategic
closure/transfer of business

Likelihood Guide

<1% likely to occur in next 12 months

1%-5% likely to occur in next 12
months

5%-10% likely to occur in next 12
months
10%-20% likely to occur in next 12
months
20%-30% likely to occur in next 12
months
30%-40% likely to occur in next 12
months
40%-60% likely to occur in next 12
months
60%-80% likely to occur in next 12
months
>80% likely to occur in next 12
months

Page 3 of 4



Page 52

APPENDIX A
The completion of risk registers

Measuring what is an acceptable risk

|18

27 |

24

Impact

WilihscrlO|O | N O]

.- = e TR
PR LT e e
o 2t i Ve e
o A g
e g g ¥

i, cPai s g b

3

Likelihood

Risk Score

Value

Action required

12 or less

Up to
£50k

Acceptable level of risk.

No further action is required to reduce risks, but managers should
ensure that the relevant controls are operating effectively.

However, departmental managers should review the controls for low
risk areas carefully, to ensure there are not too many controls in place.

14 - 30

£5k -
£300k

Implementation of additional controls is required.

The costs and benefits of additional controls should be considered.
The relevant departmental management team may then agree that no
further action should be taken. This decision must be recorded on the
risk register.

32 or more

£50k —
£1m

Implementation of additional controls is required.
If the Business Unit, or Department does not want to introduce any
more controls, they must seek approval from CEMB. Any agreement
from CEMB must be recorded on the risk register.

If the impact of the risk is considered significant (impact score of 5 or
6) and/or the likelihood of the risk happening is thought to be high
(likelihood score of 9), the relevant departmental management team
must review them and agree the approach to manage them.

If the impact of the risk is considered substantial, major or catastrophic
(impact score of 7, 8 or 9), CEMB must review them and agree the
approach to manage them.

Page 4 of 4




Page 53

Appendix B

Project and Programme Management

Projects are one-off activities which bring about change. Projects tend to be

risky for two reasons, because:

1. the organisation has limited, if any, experience of undertaking the work
before; and

2. the impact of change cannot always be predicted from the outset.

To minimise risk to work done in a project environment project managers
follow Haringey’s Project Management Framework (PMF). The PMF outlines:
set project management processes;

roles and responsibilities;

guidance on governance; and

the monitoring structure, sign-off procedures, and quality assurance
provided by the Programme Management Office.

It also contains standard templates for all key documents and guidance on
how they should be completed.

¢ € o

The Council also has a Corporate Programme Management Office (PMO) to
" sure compliance with the PMF and to manage risk at a programme level.

The Risk Management Cycle

All risks within the project environment, whether programme or project level,
are handled according to the standard risk management cycle. See diagram
below:

Aisk Analysis

Idenhfy the risks | Evaluata the risks & Identlfy suitahle
responses to risks §
O§< ‘{3 i{‘ Qt;en {Mftt r '

-isk Management at Programme vs. Project level
Programme-level risks are those risks which affect the intended benefits of a
programme. There are two main types of programme level risks:
a) those risks which affect all or a number of projects within the programme;
and
, those risks which so substantially affect the benefits of a key project that
they put the programme benefits at risk.

.~se risks are held by the Corporate PMO in the Programme Risk and lssue
Log. The Corporate PMO manages the log by:
» Horizon scanning for risk;
* Holding and updating the log, whether risks are raised inside or outside
the PMQO;

Page 1 of 2



Page 54

Appendix B

= Circulating the log to the Programme Boards and through the Chairs of
the Boards to CEMB and other key stakeholders to ensure that there is an
awareness of risks; and

» Monitoring whether risk owners are undertaking management action as
assigned.

Project-level risks are those risks which affect the intended outputs or
benefits of the project. Project managers are responsible for managing and
logging project level risks. Project managers may delegate the management
of risk to appropriate risk ‘owners’, but they retain accountability for the
management of risk. Project managers are expected to keep unwanted
outcomes to an acceptable minimum.

Project managers should review the project risk log every time they submit a
Project Highlight Report. A full risk review of the project should be
undertaken at the end of every project stage.

Link with Corporate Risk Management Processes

The steps in project and programme risk management are as follows:

1 Risks which are identified at project level are logged by the project
manager in the project risk log, and if this places the directorate’s
objectives at risk, it should also be logged on the Corporate Risk Register
for the Business Unit.

2. Corporate PMO receive a copy of each project’s risk log as part of the
monthly Project Highlight Report.

3. Corporate PMO assess whether the risks are deemed significant at
programme level. If they are, the risk is logged in the Programme Risk
Log. The Programme Risk Log is circulated to all project managers,
sponsors, and the senior management team on a monthly basis.

4. Programme-level risks may also be picked up by Corporate PMO and
other stakeholders through horizon-scanning. [f they are also significant
at the project level they may be devolved down to the project manager for
monitoring within the project environment too. This process is shown in
the diagram below:

~Corporate Risk Log
Programme: : ,
Level Riske.
Risks can be escalated By
up or devolved down by M
Project Board / Team or . "';%Wf
Corporate PMO -
" Carporate Risk Log

®  Project Level Risk

Page 2 of 2



Page 55
APPENDIX C

Business Continuity Plans

1. Overview

1.1Business Continuity Plans allow Business Unit Heads, Departmental
Managers and members of CEMB to manage threats or incidents that have
the potential to disrupt the delivery of services or the conduct of Council
business.

1.2By focusing on the impact of disruptive events, BCM identifies the critical
services and function the organisation depends on, and what is required for
the organisation to continue to meet its obligations to its many stakeholders.
This allows the organisation to:
o Take steps to protect its people, premises, IT, supply chain, reputation etc
¢ Plan to respond effectively to disruptive events and challenges

1.3Business Continuity Management is a cyclical process, and is designed to
manage and control risks which can be described as “low probability, high
impact” events. It involves four stages:

Understanding the organisation

Determining the Business Continuity Strategy

Developing and implementing the BCM Plans

Exercising maintaining and reviewing

3

1.4.1t requires both leadership and ownership from senior management, and
understanding and support throughout the organisation. For this reason,
Business Continuity Management is a mainstream activity, that is required of
all Business Units.

2 Roles and responsibilities
2.1 The Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Team are responsible for :
¢ maintaining the corporate Business Continuity Plan, and advising CEMB of
key Business Continuity risks, and mitigation strategies.
¢ providing advice and training to Business Units to support their Business
Continuity planning.
¢ Providing a programme of exercising to validate corporate and Business
Unit plans.

2.2 Heads of Business Units are responsible for:

¢ Considering the risk of business continuity disruption in their Risk Register
Ensuring Business Continuity Plans are in place and reviewed twice a year.
Providing data to the Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Team
to inform the corporate Business Continuity strategy.

...ch Directorate should appoint a Tier 2 lead on Business Continuity who will:
Lead on and champion Business Continuity within the Directorate
Represent the Directorate on the corporate Business Continuity
Management team in the event of an incident requiring a corporate
response.

o«

Page | of 4



Page 56
APPENDIX C

3 Understanding the organisation
3.1There are two aspects to this stage of Business Continuity Planning:
¢ |dentification and assessment of Business Continuity risks
¢ Analysis of the criticality of services and functions, and the resources
required to support them.

3.2Business continuity risks are identified by the Emergency Planning and
Business Continuity Team, based on the Community Risk Register compiled
in conjunction with the Emergency Services. Other Business Continuity Risks
are identified by the IT Services.

3.3Guidance on the likelihood of these risks occurring is provided centrally to
Business Units, who must then consider the impact of these risks on their
own operations and services. Business Units are expected to enter into their
Risk Register any individual BC risks that are of particular significance to
them, or a generic BC risk if no individual risk is significant.

3.4Analysis of the criticality of services and functions of a Business Unit is
undertaken on the basis of the length of time the service could cease to
function for, before a “Level 5” impact was felt on the Council Risk
Management Framework Impact scale (see Appendix B1). Since this
prioritisation of services will determine the order in which the Council recovers
its services in the event of an incident, these priorities should be agreed with
the responsible Cabinet Member.

3.5Each service is also required to identify and report to the Emergency Planning
and Business Continuity Team annually on the resources they would require
to maintain their service, considering:
s People

Premises / workspace

Resources

Suppliers

IT

Vehicles

¢ & & & o

4 Determining the Business Continuity Strategy

4.1The Councils Business Continuity Strategy operates at two levels: local
strategies developed by Business Units and services managers, and the
corporate strategy for dealing with larger events.

4.2Each Business Unit is required to identify local actions they can take to
maintain services in an incident. These can include remote working,
temporary suspension of non-key functions, supplier management strategies
etc. Business Units should also consider what actions they can take to
improve the resilience of their operations - for example by changing
operational processes, identifying alternative suppliers of goods and services,
identifying changes to the configuration of premises or infrastructure.

4.3Corporate Business Continuity strategy focuses primarily on larger disruption
of access to premises, and major workforce disruption. This strategy is
developed based on an analysis of the data provided by the Business Units
(see 2.5).

Page 2 of 4



Page 57

APPENDIX C

4.4This plan is linked to the IT Disaster Recovery Plan, and provides the priority
order for recovery of IT Services in aftermath of an incident affecting IT
Services.

5 Developing the Business Continuity Plans

5.1The Business Continuity Response is again split into corporate and local
actions. The Corporate Business Continuity Plan sets out the incident
management framework for the Council as a whole, roles and responsibilities,
notification and escalation processes.

5.2Business Unit or service Business Continuity Plans are produced according to
a corporate template, and include local notification and incident management
arrangements and checklists, along with the recovery requirements and
actions plans for restoration of services.

5.3Every Business Unit must have a Business Continuity Plan or plans covering
every aspect of their service.

5.4Business Units are also required to verify the Business Continuity
arrangements of their key suppliers and partners.

6 Exercising, maintaining and reviewing

A 1 The Corporate Business Continuity Plan is reviewed on a quarterly basis, and
exercised annually. The Emergency Planning and Business Continuity
Planning team maintain the plan, incorporating lessons from incidents and
exercises.

6.2Business Unit plans are required to be reviewed twice a year (in September
and April). These reviews should take account of lessons from incidents and
exercises, and organisational and operational changes that have occurred
since the last review.

6.3In addition, the Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Plan will audit a
number of Business Unit plans each year on a risk basis.

6.4 Business Units plans will be exercised at least every three years, based on a
corporate programme developed by the Emergency Planning and Business
Continuity Team.

Page 3 of 4



Page 58

tJo t 23ed

‘pasioud 8 10U |IM SBDIAISS 8S8Y} Uyl — [1oUno) sy} o} feussiul Ajaund st Juspiour ayy j1 ajdwiexs 10} — painbai sy esuodsai
AousBiswe ou §| “Aousbiaws ue U olignd 8y1 JO SPaBU S]EIPSLUILLI 8y} O} puodsas 0} papaau S82IAI8S 8siIoud [iIM IDUNOY) 8y |

“MSU Yjesy SNouss e Je 8q ||om Aell PaisiA
JOU 8J8M OUM S1UaI|D ‘papuadsns SEm SIyj JI — SB8OIAIBG aJe)) sWoH ‘sidwexa Jo4 "pajosye Ajeleipswiw
s1 oljgnd ayj JO aJejleM 8y} 81aym asou} aie A1oBs1ed siyl ol jjey 1By} Seoies AJuo sy ‘jelsushb uj

‘Aobajes

SIY} 01Ul Jje} os|e Aew ‘puadsp S82IAISS JBUJ0 AUBLL YOIUm UO ‘|| 8Xl] S8DIAIeS
‘AioBa1e0 S1yy ol jje} lem Aew ongnd syl 01 8|qISIA AUsA aJe UYoiym SadInIeS

"$80UaNbasuU0D SNOWSS JNoYIM

‘sAep may e 1o} pakejep aq ueo Buisues|o 19841
‘gidwiexs 104 ‘jeonud-swil Aj@leipawiwil Jou g
‘uswsie Buioey-ognd B yum $801Au8s aq 01 Alayi]

019
uswdojensp Abajelis
‘UOIBYNSUOD “MJOM
108foud aqg o1 A1y

ﬂ

A

wisonRuo Auoejn

poas buonys 10 Andignd asianpe B20] 10 saAoalqo

19410 uo oedul 10 000‘00L3 ©1 dn ssof jeIdURULY "9°] j1oedW| G [9AST], B 8ARY uondnisip 891AJ8S pinom jujod 1eum 1y

buipioooe
‘Aoud si8yy o1 sexoq 8ssyj ul S82IAIBS JO S}oadse J0 | S80IAI8S [ENPIAIpUI 1S
(shep (sinoy (sinoy
(+>oom ) € UIYUM I8A0D3Y) $2 UIYIIM I18A0038Y) ¥ Ulylim J18A009Y) (s1e1pOWIWY)
Ajoud mot Aioud winipsiy Awioud ubiy S90IAIBG [BoNUYD) | asuodsay Aouablewg

¢own A1anooai 1961e) 8y} pUB ‘JUSPIOUL UB JO JUBAS 9y} ul ‘AIInuiuo) sseuisng Joj senuoud InoA ase jJeym

O XIaN3ddVv

apIND uonesiiuold 991A2S 11 g XIANIddY




Page 59

APPENDIX D

Performance Management Framework

An overview

Haringey has a clear vision with strong political and managerial leadership. The vision is

reflected in Haringey’s Community Strategy which sets out the ambitions for the borough

and the outcomes we want to achieve. It provides the framework for all our plans and
puts the community at the heart of everything we do. We have established a golden
thread that links the Community Strategy to our Council Plan, business plans and
performance appraisal of our staff.

The diagram below shows our approach to performance management and how all the
component parts fit together.

Haringey’s Performance Management Approach

Sustainable Community Strategy
Council Plan

Local Area Agreement

Financial Strategy

Key Strategic Plans

Business Plans

Needs analyses

Horizon Scanning

Setting Objectives

Poiicy
!

e & & & 5 5 5

v

b Setting Targets:

£

. far Improvement

Commissioning

%

Performance

f Delivering: | Reviewings
L services: t Performance:

e LAA

s Council and HSP
Performance Framework

& S * Annual Residents Survey /

Sy Place Survey

Strategy

%, %
e 0 )
S, Management g + Complaints & Member
. Enquires analysis
% o Pre Business Plan Reviews

* Finance & Performance

¥ Services

Reports
s Performance appraisals
+ Service Reviews «  Staff Survey
+ Programme
Management
e Scrutiny

Page 1 of 3



Page 60

APPENDIX D

Three-year targets for improvement are set out in our Council Plan, business plans and in
the Council’s Financial Strategy. Stretch targets have been agreed between Haringey
and the Government in our Local Area Agreement (LAA). Our Local area agreement
focuses specifically on addressing the big issues identified by the local community. We
negotiated thirteen stretch targets in line with our priorities as part of our first LAA and
have signed off a new LAA covering the period 2008/09 to 2010/11 including 35 key
improvement targets and a number of local targets.

Performance against objectives and targets is reviewed through a number of well-
established mechanisms. The Community Strategy and progress against national and
local improvement targets in our Local Area Agreement is monitored through a
performance management framework developed for the Haringey Strategic Partnership
(HSP). Regular performance review is undertaken by the HSP thematic partnership
boards. The HSP main board and the executive Performance Management Group receive
quarterly updates on areas key to both the delivery of the Community Strategy and the
Local Area Agreement.

Progress against the business plans is reviewed mid-year through the Pre-business Plan
Review (PBPR) process. The review is reported to Scrutiny and Cabinet Members and
feeds into budget planning ensuring that resources are directed to priorities. Business
Plans are reviewed at year end and at this stage, 3 year targets are set in line with best
performance in comparable authorities.

Every month, Management Board and Cabinet Members receive a report (with a
performance appendix) that tracks performance against a basket of key national and local
indicators and expenditure against budget. The report focuses on reviewing performance
against council priorities. In addition there are quarterly performance discussions at
Cabinet Advisory Board. These discussion focus on seeking solutions and for areas
where targets are not being met.

We have a well established performance appraisal scheme which ensures that our staff
are clear about their contribution towards the council’s objectives and that they have the
necessary skills to deliver quality services. In 2007 the Council’s Performance Appraisal
system was updated with the introduction of a revised competency framework and
management standards and upward appraisal feedback were introduced in 2008. The
council has long recognised the importance of the organisational cuiture and people’s
behaviours as a major determinant of our ability to meet aims and aspirations.

The views of our residents are important to us and we consider them as key indicators of
our performance. Every year we commission an independent residents survey which
tracks perceptions over time and against other London authorities. This information
informs our business and other strategic plans. Every eighteen months we aiso carry out
an independent staff survey which shapes the way we manage and develop our staff. We
arc ~Iso an accredited Investor in People employer.

~~mplaints and Members' Enquires are key in identifying problem areas and in learning
from our mistakes in order to improve services.

Page 2 of 3



Page 61

APPENDIX D

Where we feel that performance can be improved we take action to do so. Some of the
mechanisms we use include: service reviews, Business Process Re-design and Scrutiny

Reviews led by Overview and Scrutiny Members. To ensure that key projects are
delivered within time and budget we use our project management framework which is

based on Prince2.

An outline of the monthly performance review process is set out below.

Monthly Performance Review Process

Who?

» Directorate
Performance Teams

+« Service Finance
leads

Directorate dashboard
~ztor

Policy & Performance Team

Chief Executive

» Director ' 3

«  Chief Financial Officer Hold combined monthly

« ACE POD Budget, Performance & HR
e ACE PPP&C officer review meetings

Corporate Finance

Uirectors office/support
co-ordinate responses

from Heads of Service/
“reactors

Policy & Performance
sorate Finance

Process

;
| Prepare Directorate Dashboard

|4
: Submit monthly dash
| board to Policy &

‘ Performance Team

/ (Richard Hutton)

L

4

l

! Collate combined packs

. (finance, performance and
] HR) for monthly officer

- meeting

7

7
| Collate & circulate
r-i actions arising

H

L{éend responses
{ to actions arising |

' from meetings |

7

] 1

‘ Prepare monthly summary
| Finance & Performance
Report for CEMB & Cabinet

|

Page 3 of 3



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63 Agenda Item 8

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Audit Committee On 24" March 2010

Report Title JAR Action Plan Update

Report of Peter Lewis, Director, Children & Young People’s Service

Signed :
e <N o e e

Contact Officer : Mark Gwynne, JAR Programme Manager

Wards(s) affected: All Report for. Non-Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report
1.1.  This report provides an update on progress with delivery of the Safeguarding
Plan, as requested by the Committee, and an update on the findings of the
Ofsted follow-up inspection.

1.2. Audit Committee note:
o Progress made against the milestones and performance indicators for the
Safeguarding Plan; and
e The good progress and good capacity to improve that has been developed
in relation to safeguarding and as recognised by Ofsted.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member
2.1. N/A

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1. The Haringey Community Strategy 2007-2016 in particular the ‘Safer for all’
key outcome. In response to the JAR Action Plan we have strengthened our




Page 64

3.2.
3.3.

3.4.
3.5.

3.6.

commitment to provide support and protection to the most vuinerable people in
our community through the following priority: We will ‘Safeguard children and
adults from abuse and neglect wherever possible and deal with it
appropriately and effectively if it does occur’ — Community Strategy
Update, March 2009

The Council Plan 2007-2010 priority of ‘Encouraging lifetime well-being at
home, work, play and learning’

The Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-20.

Haringey Strategic Plan (NHS) 2008-2013

Priority Actions for Health: arising from the Safeguarding Plan for Haringey
Plan 2009

Safer for all, Haringey’s Community Safety Partnership Strategy 2008-2011

41.

4.2.

. Recommendations

To note progress in delivery of the milestones (contained within Appendix 1)
and performance (contained in Appendix 2).

To note the good progress made in improving safeguarding, as evidenced by
Ofsted and contained in Appendix 3.

. Reason for recommendation(s)

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

At the previous meeting the committee were advised of the programme
management arrangements, establishment for the Safeguarding Plan and the
role of the Steering Group within the governance arrangements for ensuring
the improvements are delivered at an appropriate pace and in accordance with
the plan.

Further progress has been made since the last meeting in continuing to deliver
the actions in a timely and appropriate manner. In the meantime the Ofsted
report has also been published which acknowledges the “extensive and
consistent evidence of good progress overall and good capacity for further
improvement”.

The committee were advised at the last meeting of the focus that has been
placed on improvements to the quality of assessments rather than focus simply
on the timeliness. The Ofsted report recognises the “significant improvements
in the quality of practice and management”.

Whilst these improvements are clear and evident within the service, much
remains to be done. The plan is being refreshed in light of the Ofsted findings
and will be re-focused to enable the Council to achieve its’ ambition of being
amongst the best by 2012.

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 65

6. Other options considered
6.1.N/A

7. Summary

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

The Safeguarding Plan was developed following the June 2009 follow-up
inspection providing a streamlined plan focused around 5 themes to deliver
significant improvements in a short period of time. Following publication of the
Ofsted report last month, the plan is being refreshed to provide actions that will
enable further improvement enabling Haringey to be amongst the best by 2012.
This refreshed plan will retain the five themes.

The Safeguarding Plan will continue to be actively managed on a fortnightly
basis by the Safeguarding Plan Steering Group, whilst reviewing some of the
other reporting channels to ensure that time and effort is spent on delivering
improvements rather than reporting on progress.

For this report, progress has been reported against the milestones /
achievements of the Safeguarding Plan. The programme milestone progress
report (Appendix 1) and performance indicator report (Appendix 2) give a
progress update on delivery of this plan.

Key milestone issues arising since the last report are:

¢ Induction training has been delayed, but will be on track by June

o Critical incident training has not been completed but guidance is in
development.

Performance reporting continues to be drawn from the Covalent system, which

identifies the following issue:

e Although priority performance indicators (NI 59 & 60 — Initial and Core
Assessments) are showing an upward trend the rate of progress has not
been as fast as originally planned. Whilst some progress has been made in
timeliness, Ofsted identified that “significant improvement has been
achieved in the quality of assessments”.

In the light of progress in delivering the milestones within the Safeguarding
Plan and the improvements that have been evidenced, by Ofsted, within the
service, we now have greater confidence in our ability to safeguard the children
and young people of Haringey.

8.1.

Chief Financial Officer Comments

The Council in forming its 2009-10 Budget Strategy recognised the need to
address the issues which had been identified in Children’s safeguarding by the
Joint Area Review. It made available one-off provision for an additional £4.2m

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 66

which has been earmarked for the actions set out in the attached Safeguarding
Plan. Confirmation has been received from the Government about the extent to
which they are prepared to provide additional resources which is consistent
with and reflected in the assumptions set out above.

8.2. To the extent that the actions in the Safeguarding Plan have on-going resource
implications, they have been reflected in the Council's 2010-11 Budget
proposals that are currently being considered.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments
9.1. No legal comments.

10. Head of Procurement Comments
10.1. N/A

11. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments
11.1. N/A

12. Consultation
12.1. N/A

13. Service Financial Comments

13.1. Meetings were held between all Area for Improvement Lead Officers and the
Head of Finance. Based on these meetings an update of the allocations
necessary across the themes was undertaken.

13.2. The revised analysis reflects the fact that as additional support has been
engaged this has been deployed across various themes.

14. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

14.1. Appendix 1: Safeguarding Plan — Milestone Progress Report, December 2009
14.2. Appendix 2: Performance Indicator Report, November 2009
14.3. Appendix 3: Ofsted Follow-Up Inspection Report, February 2010

15.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

15.1. JAR Report (December 2008)

15.2. Annual Performance Assessment (December 2008)
15.3. JAR Monitoring Visit Report (July 2009)

15.4. Ofsted Follow-Up Inspection Report (February 2010)

Report Template: Formal Bodies | 4




9DURUIBA0D
pue diystapea

SIMaT J212d

PaAIYDY - 6002 22d

600¢ NON 0€

600¢ 3P0 10

juswdojanap ul pabebus sisuned

SIMa7 49194

"PaASIYOY - 6002 93a

600C PO T€

6002 bny 10

paaJbe yoeoidde
SuoJ3edIUNWWOD

s,U31pNIYD

pue Abajeuls
juiof sniL

SIMaT J912d

PaA3IYdY - 6002 dos

600z das o€

600¢ INC TO

sabessaw Aax UO pasnd0y
9o10ead  buipienbajes  DAI3D9Y0
pue 3jes oajowoud 03 ubiedwed
uoljediunwwod  diystaulded-ssouad
jualsisuod e youne| pue dojaaaq

SIMa7 49194

paAdIYdy - 600 dos

@

600¢ das 0¢

600¢ INC TO

swisjueydaw adueulanob
o3jul Yoeqpasy uonedpniied
‘aouepusnpe 9jeldoadde  ybnoayy

dSH Ppue gDS1 ‘sniL s,uatpjiyd
ul 9jod |ny e Aejd siusuyed AS)

SIMaT
19194

9|doad bunoA g

uaJpjiyo s,Asbuliey
||e J0J Ajljigisuodsau

paJeys jo a4nynd
e 9122.D 10T

awayl

pest
2U03S3[IW

9)0N ssaiboid

snjels

@?jeag ang

ojeQ yels
pauue|d

S2U03}S3|IN

pea
uonoy

uoiPy

Page 67

Aabuliey

paA3Iyde awodINo
paJisep pue pa3a|dwod uoiPYy

pa3a|dwod
9 03 »oeJ} uo pue ssaiboud uj uolPy

S9NSss| ssaJppe 03
paJinbau joddns ou 3ng deJ3 uo JoN

]| &

L

SaNss| ssaJppe 03] palinbad
Joddns »oeJa} uo jou / paAaiyoe jJoN

®

sneIs uoidy

0T0Z Y24ew 10 :uo pajeltauan

110d3Yy 3U03S3d|IN ue]d buipienbajes "1 xipuaddy



Page 68

padojaaap sassadoud bujuueld

[93d yedes ‘PRASIYIY - 600C AON 9_ 600C AON 0E£| 600Z 30 T0(ssauisng pue swuwelbold >Iom
pajo|dwod
_9_ sdnoibgns Jo ERIETEIEN Jjo
[9ad yedes P2ARIYOY - 600C 3P0 6002 0 TE| 6007 doS TO|sw.aL pue diysiaquiawl JO MIIAY
paaJsbe ainnays dnosb-gns (c0'z uonpe
[924 yeles PaAdIYDY - 6002 3P0 @ 600Z 120 TE| 6007 dos T0|pue  sjuswsbuelle  3JUBUISAOD) 99s 0s|e) 90571
90URUIBA0D uewpeg ay3 Jo bupiom
pue diysiopesa’ [93d yeles paA3IYdy - 6002 das Q 6002 dos 0g| 600¢ Bny 10 paaJbe saniold gJsT|  weyeln ano4dwI €0°T
pea’ ajeq yejls peaT
awaylL auoISOIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels ajeq ana pauue|ld S9U03S3IN uonOY uondy
sbunesw
wes) ybnoayy uopeuIWIsSSIp
_9 1o} padojanap sabessawl
[93d yedes PaA3IYIY - 600C 3P0 600C 0O TE| 600¢C 0O TO|pue  sjedajew  uopedUNWWOD
sbunsaw Jjeis ybnoiyy
o uoleuIWIasSSIp 10y padojanap
[9ad yedes PaASIYIY - 600T 3P0 600C O TE| 600C IO TO|lomawel) pue s|elPleN YOS
& SYDS Jo sbuipuyy
[93d yedes P2ARIYIY - 600C 3P0 600C 0 TE| 600T 20 TO|2LdIUNWWOD 03 Py  SjusAg
pajuswa|dwi swwesboid SMOINTY 95EJ
SIMa7 4932d P3aA3IYDY - 600Z 3120 _9 600Z 224 TE€| 600¢ BNy T0O|suonesunwwod buipJenbajes SnowLas Jo sbuipuy
: : T : ay3 23L2IUNWWOod
padojanap pJeog uaJp|iyd
30URUIBA0D 9 SYDS ||le Jo sbuipuiy Jtaylabol| uewpeg buipienbajes
pue diysiopesn [93d yeJes paAdIYdy - 600C Bny 600¢ BNy 1¢ 600¢ INC TO|Bulnd  uejd uomoe  aysodwo)d| weyels [e207 20T
pea] ajeq Heis peo]
awaylL SUOISIIN 90N ssa.4bo.d snjels ?jeq ana pouueld S9U03S3|IN uondY uonoy
paaJbe sjuawyiwwod
& |epueuLy Buissedwoous
SIMa7 J33ed joeJ] uo - 0T0C qod 0T0C JeW TE| 6002 0 T€[Iuswaalbe diysiaupled
juswaaube diysisuyied yeup Jjo
peaT ajeq yejls peaT
awaylL auoIsOIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels ?jeq ana pauue|d S9U01S3IN uonOY uondy




wea) Juswssasse Aduabe
-I3Inw 10y padojeAsp  |esodoud
Isliym paysiiqelss ygy 4oy ndul

Page 69

As1ung el 'PRA3IYDY - 600C 2°2d 600¢ AON 0€ 6002 INC TO|Y3edYy [ejudw jsijedads pajedipag
oW A]3ualsSISU0d aJe spiepuels
wnwiuiw  aJnsus 03} pasosdul
9 S| SJUDWISSISSEe 240D pue |eniul ul
As1ung el PaA3IYIY - 600C PO 600¢C PO 1€ 600¢ INC TO|SIsAjeue pue uoijewdojul jo Ayjend
onoadun sassaooud
9 JUDWISSASSe J0j ude} mw_mume_u. mwgcwm%mmw_mmuw ww_m
Aa1ino e PaASIYOY - 600 dos 600z doS 0£| 600z INC T0|3eUl 2nsus 03 paynuap! Aydeded 18419551 UIOR33
pliys buiaoaduwi
4vD |izeag AQ 901AJBS jO
2o1peld po0DH|  Ad4InD MJep PaA3IYdY - 600 das 0_ 6002 das o¢ 6002 INC TO|yam pajeabajul sAemyied |ellasoy Jouea|3| Ajijenb aunsu3 90T
pea’ ojeq Jels pea’
awayL su0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjeils ?jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3IN uonoy uopPy
pasiuebio
Q buiuiesy pue 9jdoad  jueaAgal
weyjog uosi|y ‘POASIYIY - 600C 224 600C °2d T€| 600C AON 10|03 pa3ediunwiwiod >doMauwield |020304d 4vD
paaJbe swweuboud cowMM._ :me_zwshwgo
weyjog uosiy PaAlIYIY - 600C PO g_ 600C 0 TE€| 600¢ doS TO|pue ssjedsawiy  uoiejuswd|dul paseq % )
douednsse Ajljenb
uonuaAINUI paaube weylog 4vD juswadwi
Alde3| weyyog uosiy PaA3IYOY - 600 das g_ 600Z dos 0£| 600z Bbny TO|XM40mawel) aduelnsse Ajljenb 4yDd uosl|y pue 2216y 0T
pea’ ajeq yejls pea’
awYyL 2U0ISBIN 9]0N ssa.4b60.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01Sd|IN uonoY uonpy
paujwJialap
isnoqQ uer ‘PaAIYIY - 6002 22d g_ 6002 22A TE| 600z 22@ TO|wsiueyoaw pue 3PAd  buidoday
isnoq uer 'PAAdIYIY - 600¢C 29d _g_ 600 22d TE| 600C 224 10 paysiignd Abajens paysiignd pue
pa19|dwod padojanap Abajedis
UOIIUDAIDIUT Q_ uolje}|Nsuod pue  juswdo|aAsSp Hoddns Ajlwed
Ale3 isnoQ ue( ‘PRASIYIY - 600C 224 600¢ AON 0€ 6002 In[ T0|ABajens Moddns Ajlwed | 3snoQ uer diysiauyed $0°T
pea’ ajeq yejls peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpPy




Uulyym pajosjyad bupiom pajeabajul

Page 70

sel|3 sue( PaA3IYIY - 600C 3P0 600C 0 T€| 600¢ dos 70|03ul  indul  @dljod pue  SHN
padojaAap splepueis pasiAal pue
uosdwoy | 9 paypne sJop|oj PaSN Ul udJap[iyd
Auuad paA3IYdy - 6002 das 600C doS 0g| 600C daS TO|8 UOI304d P[IYD SIONSIA Yi|eaH diysssupied
DINIDS 9suodsay 3sdi4 pajesbajul dibajeays
ue Jo juawdojaAsp  yoddns 3y3 ssouaoe bupjiom
9 pue poday bupdop pajesbajul auy pajesbajul Joyany
UIYYIM suoioe Jo AJIDAIRp J0jluow Joj sapunjioddo
2o1deld pood sel|3 sue( PaA3IYdY - 600C 0 600C 0 TE€| 600Z Bny 10|03} dn 38s dnoJo uopejusws|dwi| sel|3 auer AJuapI 60°T
pea7 ajeq yels pea
awayL suoIsaNIN 910N ssa.1b0.d sniels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO03S3|IN uonoy uonpy
S9)NUIW JUSIDJU0D
@_ / sueid aied jo Ajenb ybnoayy
AS44nD) Muep ‘pPaA3IYIY - 600C 224 6002 22d TE| 6002 3P0 T0|pajelisuowap sjuswanoidwi
S90U3J9ju0d ‘e Indul
Jo Ajyjenb abpn[ pue ‘01 sajiAul
9 jo ssauajelidoadde abus|jeys
. 9dUdIRJU0D
As.41no e PaASIYIY - 600C 224 600C 0 T€| 600¢ das 10|03 paysiiqeiss swisiueyosy U0ID210.4d
40S71 Aq pa3o9||0d |lzelg PIIYD 3e bupjiom
IokeId Po0D| Ad.IND e *PaAdIYIY - 600¢C 22d g_ 6002 0 TE| 6002 BNy TO|S90uUa4aju0d Je dduepUSIR UO el Jouea|g 9AI3094)3 80T
ed aje e ed
awYyL SU03 m_u o_.h 910N ssa.4b0.d sniels 9jeq ana _uuom__h“_nu_m S9UO03IS3|IN :ﬂ_a"“_< uopy
Bupjew
uoispap ul susebeuew  wedy /
Q SJ19)40M |e1dos poddns 03 pabebus
As.4ano e paA3IYdy - 6002 das 600¢C 90 T¢ 600¢C INL TO|[S43310Mm |eros juspuadapur
s|joued ||e o) paysi|qeiss aoualayal
g_ JO SWU9} Jedd yum paysliqeiss
AS4UND e paAn3Iydy - 600C bny 600z bny 1€ 600 INC TO|[Idued  saounosaJs  bBuipsenbajes
4Je3S 03 pajesiunwwod Buryew uolisipap
pue  S3JIAIDS  |BSU9AIUN  pue pue spjoysaiyl
@_ pajabaey ‘Isijedads ssouoe sjesado |1Izeag ul sjuswaAoldw]
2ojoeld poo| AS.InD den PaA3IYIY - 600C 3P0 600¢C 10 T¢ 600Z IN[ TO|0} padojoAsp  spjoysaiyl  Jed|d Joues|q 9AlIRQ L0'T
peaT ojeq yejs pea’
awaylL 2U0ISBIN 9)0N ssa.4boid snjels ?jeq ana pauued SOU03SO|IN uonoY uonpy




SDIAIDS |BSJIDAIUN
/ pa3abuey

03Ul Yoeqg IDIAIBS
Jsijerdads Jayjo

10 24eD |BID0S WOy
Buiaow uaupjiyo
lo4 |euoissajoud

Page 71

sapuabe
weuyjog uosily ‘PaASIYDY - 600Z 22a 6002 990 €| 6007 320 T0|I1e SSoJoE pajuBWa|dWl SBINPSI0IJ pesr e mom“w el
sapuabe| weyyog 03 saJinpaooud
20130814 POOO | Weylog uosl)y pPaA3IYdy - 600Z das 9 6007 doS 0| 600z unf TO|lueAs;2d AQ poalbe  saunpadodd uosl||y Juaw|dwi ZT1°T
pea’ ajeq yejls peaT
awayL auoISOIN 9)0N ssa.dboud snjels ?jeq ang pauue|d CEITLS CET[N] uonOY uoPy
|[enuew ay3
o 03 sajepdn Ajsyienb jo swwesboud |enuew
AsapieQ |ayoey P2ARIYIY - 600C 3P0 600C 0 TE| 6002 3P0 T0|buljjos e ysiigeiss 03 pabebus yeis aunpaooud aued
B[20S S,udJp|Iyd
AsapieQ |ayoey P2ARIYIY - 600C 3P0 LA 6002 20 TE| 600 0 TO| 44eis 03 payoune| |enuew pajepdn et Umw_>8_u_m.ﬂu
pajepdn UOISJISA dUljUO AspieQ| youne| pue a3epdn
do10eId PO0D | A3]eQ [PYdoRY P2ARIYIY - 600C 3P0 _9 600C PO T€ 600¢ INC TO|pue pa339|dwod [enueW 0} SUOISIADY [aydey ‘asIney TT'T
pea’ ajeq yejls pea’
awayL auoIsaIN 9)ON ssa.4boid sniels ?jeq ang pauue|ld CETL CET[N] uonOY uopPy
uosdwoy | uonewuJojul buiqis
Auuad PaA3IYOY - 600 3P0 _9 600C 0 TE€| 600¢ dos 10|40 uoisnpul Joj paaibe piepuels
juswaAosduwi
uosdwoy | Q 21eJ3suowap 0} padojanap Buuued
Auuad PaA3IYdY- 600C IP0 6002 0 T€| 6007 dos To|sueid 1oy  swuwelboid  upny 18 40 b__m:c
sjuswanoiduy 2y Joj plepueis
uosdwoy | _9_ Joj uejd uonoe dojpAsp pue sisnd] [uosdwoyy 9|geydadde
20130814 pPO0S) Auuad pPaA3IYdy - 600 das 600z das o¢ 6002 INC TO|le ssoJoe 2o130eld JULIND MIIADY Auuad ue aAdIYdY OT'T
peaT ajeq yejls pea’
awlaYyL auoIsOIN 9)0N ssa.4boid sniels ?jeq ang pauue|d CEITL CET [N uonOY uoPy
s|esodo.id
peaT ajeq yejls peaT
awayL auoIsOIN 9)ON ssa.dboid sniels ?jeq ang pauue|d CETL CET[N] uonOY uoPy




@

papuedxa awayds

0] diys.aaued

Page 72

AspieQ |ayoey PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO 600¢ das o€ 6002 INC TO|22ulely  2jenpelb  >iom  |edOS ay3 sso.oe
buiyyeis paydune| ubiedwed JusawinNioal Bunoa JJeys poob ujejal
pue AyoedeD | AspjeQ |ayoey paA3IYdy - 6002 das 9 6007 das 0¢ 600C INC TO|pue  paynpuapl Jayjo  Asbuuen Menls pue JnJioay ST°'1
pea7 ajeq yels pea7
awayL suoIsaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjeils ?jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3IN uonoy uoipPy
"S|9A3| JUBWIYSI|gRISD Inoge SJ9XJ0M |RIDOS 03 uoisiAIadns
apew bHuieq suejd wua] Jsbuo| pue ade|d g_ apinoid pue sased>  xo|dwod
|izeag Jouea|3|ul Ajoeded eajx3 'paAdIYdy - 0T0C uer 0T0Z 4Bl TE| 6007 doS TO|uo axe3 03 paseasoul Aydede)
palI3udp!I S92IN0S cwEwumMﬂmw
Q pue  paynuspl  s|PAd|  bBuiyjels U:mu |euoissaj0.d
|izeag Jouea|3 paAdI1ydy - 600C 120 6002 120 TE| 6007 bny TO|pue spaau Ajpeded wiaay J49buo N _m_u.Om w3
buiyels paljiauapl syuswalinbal ao1nosaJ |izeag Joys |euonippe
pue Ajpede)| |1zeag Joues|3 PaA3IYdY - 600 das g_ 600z bny 1€ 6002 INC TO|pue spasau Ajpeded wJad)} MOYs Joues|3 20NpoJU] HT'T
pea7 ajeq yels pea7
awayL suoIsaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjeils ?jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3IN uonoy uoipPy
pado|anap ssao0.d soueuajuiew
'dU||peap dun( J0) JOA0DI3J 03 J0adXxd T buiobuo pue pappe pue passasse
|Ins ybnoyz ‘padoy ueyl 4amoj|s si ssalboud VA pasu Jo SELE] 91elidoudde
Asjleg ueg|jussald 3y Hoed3 uo 0N - 0T0Z 9°d 0TO0C 41BN TE 0TO0Z ue( T0|‘paxoayd Ajljenb ssjus Alojoaliq
sisAjeue
deb pue !so2IAI9S ||@ AQ pajielap
uoisinoud yoddns punuaied
jua.aund !suoiuaniaul pue
9 sowwelbosd oddns bHupuaied
9AII09D JO 3Sl] JO juswdolaAsp
buimojioy  pasjdwod  suojjuajul
A3jleg uer ‘PIASIYIY - 600¢C 2°d 6007 224 TE| 600z dos 10|buluoissiwwod juoddns bHunuaded
9|ge|leAR SBWO23IN0
sisAjeue deb e pue uoisinoad
s pue e}
JuUa4INd !9Seq DDUBPIAD JO SMIIADI IS39IAIBS 5ALOSS
g_ buimojoy  pasjdwod  suojjuajul o wn_no w>wU
A3jleg uer ‘PIAIYIY - 600 d2d 6002294 TE€| 6007 doS TO|bulUOISSIWIWOD  3OUBOIA d1I3SBWOg 1 U>Lou_umL_W
S901AI9S AQ papinold Adewwns m.c_co_mm_EEo.u
d13deldd pooo As|ieg uer ‘POASIYIY - 600C 224 g_ 6002 224 T€| 600Z BNy TO|yam BSiepdn sauo3dallp bunsixy| As|leg ueg €11
pea’ ojeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpPy




ue|d Jo ysaijod 0ju| pasy
0} payiuapl suofpe jusawanosdwil

Page 73

11491300 @ pue auldseq yum  asedwod
alqqaa ‘PRASIYIY - 600C AON 600 22d T€| 600¢ doS 10|03 INO palIed AdAINS uolsiAladng
ab.uor sylodad buiasixa ojul
aunsuyD ‘POASIYIY - 600C AON Q 600C AON 0€| 600¢ das 10 |pajelbajul uolsialadns jo Buipioday
pajuswsa|dwi sisbeuew
9 aul| juody J10J sswwesboud
AspieQ |ayoey ‘PRASIYIY - 600C AON 600C AON 0€| 600Z doS TQ|juswdo|aAsp  paJojie}  |enplAlpul
uoisingadns Ajijenb Jaalop
_9 0} Ajjge siebeuew  ysigeiss e1S 18D [210S
AapieQ [pyoey 'PRASIYIY - 600C AON 600C doS 0| 600 BNV 10|03  P[BY  S9I3UdD  JUDBWISSISSY 104 mucwEmmcmtm
pajepdn |enuew 2ju0J3d3|d uoisiaiadns
bulyels 9 pue 99juesenb uolsiatadns |izeag EYNRETIE]
pue AyoedeD | AspjeQ |ayoey paA3IYdy - 6002 das 6007 doS 0g| 600¢C BNy TO|aul Ajlied 031 pspuaule saulleping Jouea|q a24nsu3 o1'T
ed aje e ed
awYyL sU03 m_uo_.h 9]0N ssa.4b0.d sniels 9jeq ana _uuom__h“_nu_m S9UO03S3|IN :ﬂ_a"“_< uonpy
aul|aseq 6007 aung anoge
uuind alng "PaA3IYDY - 60 AON _9 6002 AON 0| 6007 Bny TO|pasealoul siaquuinu JaxJom yjjeaH
3sod ul yjeis pue paj|ly
uuing alng "POASIYDY - 600C AON @ 600C AON 0| 600¢ bny TQ|sapuedcen  bBuipienbajes  yijesH
3sod ul siabeuew
AspieQ [pyoey ‘POASIYIY - 600C AON _9 600Z 224 T€| 600T d3S T [3I0M |eID0S pUB SIDXIOM [BID0S MIN
suejlije|paed
pue sasinN |00YdS ‘SJ0USIA YiesH
uosdwoy| 9 JO SpROPIOM JO MIIADJL 3|qeus 0}
Auuad paAdIYdy - 600 dos 6002 BNy T€| 600Z Bny TO|paysiiqeisa wsiueydsw Bullojuo
Bbuiobuo s| Juswyinidal jo 3sod ul jjeis
uuing alnc|awwelbold buljjoy Hded3 uQ - 0T0T 994 & 0T0Z 1B TE| 600C BNY TO|puUe p3||ly SIIDULRDRA SISHIOM Y3|esH
AsbuiieH SHN Ag panoidde
uuind alng ‘pPaAdIYOY - 0T uer _9 0Toz uer T€| 600 Bny TOo|pue padojaasp ueld  924n0sSaY Lers
pajo|dwod Aduabe uo aouelad
uosdwoy| 9 sueplijeipaed pue SasJnN |00YdS pue sapuedeA Jo
Auuad pandIydy - 600T dos 600C 0 TE| 6002 Bny T0|sI0NSIA yyeaH jo Bupjlewyouag Jdsquinu ay3 adnpaJ
ed e e ed
awaylL 0:3%0___‘.,“ 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels ?jeq ana m.wn.._:“_w_m S9UO01S3|IN ..__M_uu._< uonpPy




Page 74

pea’ 9jeq yejs pea’
awdYyL 2U0IS3IN 910N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d S9UO01Sd|IN uonPY uonpy
ue|d Jo ysaijod 0ju| pasy
0} paliauUap! suojjoe jusawasosdwil
g_ pue  auleseq yam  aaedwod
juels aneq PaA3IYIY - 600C 0 6002 2924a T€| 6007 doS 10|03 INO palIed ASAINS uolIsiAIdNS
uoisiatadns
10J S21npado.d bunesado
ejs aojjo0d
g_ pJepuels yum doue|dwod 104 mucw_rc“wmcm.rm
juels aaeq PaA31YDY - 600C 3P0 600C AON 0E| 600 das 10|a24nsua 03 padojonap awuwelbold voisinadns
buiyyeis sypodaJ Jayjo ojul jueln EIYRCETIE]
pue Ajpede) juels aaeq PaA31YDY - 600C 3P0 Q_ 6002 AON 0E| 6002 das 10|paiesbazul uoisiaiadns jo HBuijodey aneq 24nsu3 8T'T
pea’ 9jeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d S9UO01Sd|IIN uonoY uonpPy
ue|d Jo ysaijod 0ju| pasy
0] paliauUap! suojoe juswasosdwi
g_ pue  aujaseq yum  auedwod
uuind alng ‘PaAIYIY - 600 22d 6002 22d 1E| 6007 dos 10|01 1IN0 pawued AdAINs uoisiAladng
uoisiatadns
uosdwoy | g_ buipiebau sanljigisuodsaul
Auuad PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO 600C AON 0E£| 600¢ doS 10| 9[04 ul paulely sidbeuely yjjeaH
uosdwoy | BuipJ102a4 9sed ojul
Auuad panlaIydy - 600¢C das 0_ 600Z AON 0E| 600z das 10|paiesbajul uoisiaiadns jo buioday
uosdwoy | 0_ uoisialadns sdo Inoge dnoudo e15 yyjes
Auuad pPaAdIYdY - 600C dos d 6007 d9S 0| 600z doS TQ|20ud||20X3 [EdIUl]D YIUM UOISSNnIsIq 104 muc%wEm%c_th
padojanap uoisiaiadns
buiyels uosdwoy | 9 swuwesbosd Jpne pue paasbe uuind CYNRETIE]
pue Ajpede) Auudd pPaA31IYdY - 600 das 600Z d3S 0£| 6007 bny TO|uoisiaiadns 1oy paepueis 3sndl SHN alng 24nsuy /1°'1
pea7 aljeq yels pea7
awayL suoIsalIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjeils ?jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3IN uonoy uoipPy
g_ pajuawsa|dwi 30afoad (Asbuliey
AspieQ [pyoey PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO d 600Z AON 0€| 6007 doS 10|/ >do0isiael) osbueyd jo sqnH
peaT ojeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpPy




(18Ppdn 95dS)
papianoad 9q 03 Ajnf pus 03 dduepuane
pue sajep swuweuaboid [n4 ‘0102 AInC
JO pua Aq pa3a|dwod 8 03 MOU dUOIS3|IW
pue QTOC UdlelN Ul }jels S0IAIBS S)Npy
/ SdAD M3u UYum 1ojid ‘[4dy Ul [1PUNOD
yum bupdeis ‘11/0T0Z Ul sisujed ssodoe
jnojjod 03 sudwn ‘soed ul swwesboud
yelgd 010¢ AInt Aq buuen jo aseyd

Page 75

|e13iul Y3 JO uo133|dwod MO||e 0} papudIXd awuwe.boud chrmwwm_oLh
AspieQ |ayoey [dulswil "}ded} uo JON - OTO0Z g°d 0T0Z INC TE| 6002 PO TO|puspe  Jjeys  djeudoidde |y mc_Emmmemm.
buiyels padojaasp swuwelboid buluiedy Asplep| @400 >u_.\_mmm-_u_3:._
pue Ajpeded| ASpieQ |ayoey ‘POASIYDY - 600C AON 0_ 600Z AON 0S| 600C J1e TO|buipienbajes 2400  Aduabe-3in 1ayoey e dojoAaq 02'T
pea’ 9jeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpPy
(38Pdn
9SdS) "0T0T IHdy pus Ag pea3s|dwod aq
0]} |enuew 3juapidul |eoild diysdaued pue
padojaAap bujaq |020304d juspidUl |BIIFID
‘Bujuiesy JIDVIN UIyIm pajedodaooul ag ued . swea) Aleuldidsip-13nw ssoJoe
SIyy moy je bBupyoo| pue sswuwns a3y} Aq pue suonesjuebio uiyym |Ppow
2oe(d ul 9 ||IM Ing pjuswaldwl usaq jou buyolig-a@ 3uspoUI |POIMD B UOo
juelo aAeq|sey bujuiel] ‘pandIydy 10N - 0TOZ uer 0T0Z 4dv 0€| 600 daS T0|44e3s uledy pue jusws|dwi ‘23.6y
pajuswa|dwi
juelds aAeq PaA3IYIY - 600C IP0 _g_ 6002 224 TE€| 600¢ d3S T0|IIDVIW Buisn asiiaxa Adusbe-nniy
pauolssIwwod
pue paydJeasal AJOIsly  |eIDOS
9 pue 2o10eud  dAREIJIOYINER  pue
92130e4d paJ3Uad plIYd ul duepinb
AspieQ [pyoey 'PRASIYIY - 0TOCT uer 0TOZC uer 1¢ 6002 INC TO|Yyum papiaodd pue pauled) Jjeis
suolIs|o9p Jo bulpiodad ayy pue
9 Buleys uopjewJojul  ‘jusuwssasse
M3YD eIAJAS ‘POASIYIY - 600C 224 600¢ 224 1€ 600¢ INC TO XS4 U0 paulel) jeis >Iom |eldos Buiuen
abenbue| uowwod Aduabe-ninw
buiyseis 9 JO 9Sn pue sp|oysaJyy ul paujesy |1zeag Jo swweuboud
pue Ajpeded| ASpieQ |ayoey ‘POASIYIY - 0TOC uer 0T0Z uer 1€ 6002 INC TO|diystaulied ayj ssoJoe suauonioeldd Joues|3 juswd|dwi 6T T
peaT ojeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpPy




01

Page 76

jJuswabeuey 60 aung |1zeag 4O 3WN|oA 3y}
Sduewlojlad| POOH sawef 'PRAIIYIY - 600C AON Q 600C 0 TE| 6002 Bny 10|03 Adenuer woly puewsap ysi|qeis3 Joued|a| bulysiqgeis3 €2'1
pea’ ajeq yejls pea’
awdYyL 2U0ISBIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d S9U01SO|IN uonPY uonPy
abior SJ03ed1puUl dduewJopad Jo
aunsHUyD PaA3IYydVY- 600C 10 9 6002 0 TE| 6007 doS TO| 3PNE |eUISIXS WO SUOIIOR MIIASY
wea)] aouewload ayj JO MJom ay)
abuor o jpne 03 SIVIAIRS 2jedodio) yim
aunRsuyd paAaIYdy - 600 dos 600¢ doS 0| 600z dos 10 |paaibe awwelbold jpne |eulajul
21607
abuor 9 240D yiim uonpunfuod ul syodad
aunsHyD PaA3IYIY - 600C 3P0 6002 0 TE| 600Z BNy TO|I >omawely jo Adeindde M3IAY e3ep 40 ANjIGeIel
Juswabeuey ab.or padojansp |1zeag pue Ajljenb
2dURWIO0HDd aunRsHUyYd paAn3Iydy - 600Z dos 9 600z dos 0| 600 Bny T0|awuwesbosd 3pne Ajenb ejeq Joues|g| auyy bunnsuz zz'1
pea’ ojeq Jels pea’
awYyL suoIsaNIN 910N ssa.4bo.d sniels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO03S3|IN uonoy uopy
41| SY00]| |eJidjad Ajilenb e jeym
MayD eIAJAS ‘pPaA3IYIY - 600C 224 9 6002 22d TE| 6002 0 £Z| uo souepinb ajeatd asuodsay 3sdi4
pJepueis 9|qeidadde ue
_9_ jJo9W sjedtajad SHN Jo Ayjenb auyy
S|slueq uiysng ‘PRASIYIY - 600C AON 600¢ d9S 0| 600z dos TQ|a4nsua djay 03 pajusws|dwl sjooL
uonesiuebio
9 yoea uiyyim paaube Hpne
lizeig Joues|q paAaIYdy - 600 dos 600C doS 0| 600C BNV TO|3|l4 9Sed 1oy >Jomdwedy |enuuy
pado|anap
diysisuped osyj3 ssosoe  dd13oeuad
9 buipienbajes Jo 9ouewlopad
|lzedg Joues|3 'PRASIYIY - 0TOT uer 600¢ 2=4 T¢ 600¢ INf TO|pPue Ajjenb 10J sainses
diysiauned
ayy ssoJoe pajuswa|dw
_9 S9|l} 9SED JO JUBWISSASSe dAle}I|enb
|lzedg Joues|3 'PRASIYIY - 0TOCT uer 600¢ 9=4 T¢ 600¢ Inf TO|pue  bujdwes jo swwesbold
Juswabeuey JJB3S 0] pajediunwwod pue |izeag| 9o130e4d jo Ajjjenb
DUBWIOMI]| Ad4unD ddep PaAIYydY - 600Z 10 @ 600Z 0 1€ 6002 INC TO|padojaAap sa|l} 9sed J0j spdepuels Jouea|g 9yl aInssy 1Z°T
pea’ ajeq yejls peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued SOU03SO|IN uonoY uonpy




Page 77

I

AspieQ |ayoey 'POASIYDY - 600C AON - 600C AON 0| 600Z Bny TQ|uoleWIOjUl 0} SS320B DIU0JIIR|T
slauyed sassano.d
SSOJde paleys pue pajdd||od 2q 03 juswabeuew
uonewWJIojUl d|geud 03 paysiiqeisd 9ouewJopad
swsiueyoaw  pue pauiuapl pue bujuueid
@_ aJe uoljew.ojul Qouewogad ssauisng pajeabajul
buueys 03 susudeq  buunsus ‘diysJauyed
Juswabeuey souepinb  pue sjooojoldd bBuieys |izeag 3y3 sso.oe
2oURW.IOLMLDd i1snoQ uer *P3aA3IYDY - 600¢C 224 6002 AON 0E 6002 INC TO|uonewJaoul ysignd-al pue MaIADY Joues|g ‘buidojana@ sZ'1
ed aje e ed
[awYyL wcoum_uw_._‘.h 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ang _wwm__h“_w_m S9UO01Sd|IN ..__M_uu._< uonpy
pleog
AsbunieHq SHN @ dnois uejd uoiy
uosdwoy L @ ¥Vl uiyesH ybnodyy paysiqelss
Auuad paA3IYdy - 6002 das 600¢ das o€ 6002 InC T0|bunodal Sdouew.0I9d SHN
uosdwoy | pajjely pue padojaAap pJeoqysep
Auuad panlaIydy - 600¢C das Q_ 600z das o€ 6002 INC TO|2douew.oyiad buipienbajes
swed}
Buluoissiwwod pue dduewdopad
9 woJly dAI13RIUDSAIdDI apnjul
uosdwoy | 0] pamdalnal  dnods  Louednssy
Auuad paAdIYdy - 600 dos 600¢ BNy 1¢ 6002 INC TO|ANEND g0ST jo diysisquaw SHN panoldwl Aujgedes
pieog HSHN 03 juswabeuew
jJuswabeuely uosdwoy | Q_ pajuasald pue poalbe dJomawedd|uosdwoy] | souewdopad sisny
QouewW.JI04ad Auudd pPaA3IYdY - 600 das 600z bny 1€ 6002 IN{ TO|2ouUeanssy buipaenbajes Auudd| Japinoad SHN $2'T
ed 9je e ed
awayL SU03 m_u o_.h 9]j0N ssa4boud snjeils ?jeq ang _uuom__h“_nu_m S9UO01S3IN :ﬂ_a"“_< uonpPy
196pnq pue buiyels o3 uone|al
poOH sawer ‘POASIYIY - 600C 224 g_ 600Z 22 TE€| 600 doS TO|uUl SisAjeue deg e 3 euspun
22130eud
poob pue suolepuUSWWO0d3
9 |euonneu jsuiebe pasAjeue pue puewap
pOOH sawer paAaIYdy - 600 dos 600Z 224 T€| 600Z doS T0|P3l413USP! SPLO|3SED pue SPeo|}IoM 2Jmny BunRseds.oy
uonpIpald Joj siseq e apiaoad pue sa2IAIDS
pOoOH sawer paAaIYdy - 600 dos g_ 6002 0 TE€| 600C Bny 10|03 pasn ejep JdYjo pue |eJLIOISIH 104 puewsp
ed aje e ed
awdYyL wcoum_uw_._‘.h 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana _wwm__h“_w_m S9UO01S3|IN ..__M_uu._< uonpPy




4!

Page 78

9 suonesiuebio ay Jojluow aoueutanob
9OUBRUIDA0D pue ssasse M oym Aduabe SIM3T asod.und
pue diysiopesa’ SIMa7 J83ad PaA3IYIVY - 600C PO 600z d3S 0£| 6002 BNy TO|yoes ul payiIuspl SI pes| Joluss v 1333 (404 ) doj2AaQ T10°C
pea’ ojeq yejs pea’
awYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d S9UO01Sd|IN uonPY uonpy
padojanap
AS44nD) Muep ‘pPaA3IYIY - 600C 224 9 6007 224 TE| 6002 dos 10|sue|d dUeRWIO0Dd wea]
‘9jelidoadde se
saljiwe
Swiea) Jaypnj SSOJOe papuadlIxXa 89 MOU ||IM ue uaJpIIYD
yoeoudde siy] ‘pado|sAsp usaq aAey s9|l _9 ul _>>Uco_ meﬁ_V.r_c
AS4UND MJB|\ |S0UBPIAS WEed] ‘PAaAdIYdY - 0T0C 9°d 6002 22d TE| 6002 dos 10 padojaAap S3|14 9DUSPIAT wed] 1 10 aﬂm‘_wcm\,%
9DIAIDS JO SpeaH yiym pasiuebuo pue co_um.uEEBE
juswabeuey abuor _@_ sbupeaw  MIIADY  SdURWIOISd |1zeag |e207]
QouewW.JI04lad aunsuyd PaA3IYdY - 600 das 600Z d3S 0£| 600z dos T0O|AlyIuo jo awwelbold Joues|3 buinosdwi 92T
pea7 ajeq yels pea7
awYyL suoIsaNIN 910N ssa.4bo.d sniels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO03S3|IN uonoy uopy
ue|d 321AIBS
/ ssauisng suonesiuebio AJsAIRP
9 ulyym  pajedodsooul  SDUO0ISI|IW
juelds aAeq PaASIYIY - 600C IP0 600C 0 TE€| 6007 doS T0|ueld uoiPY pajeipt  adljod ||y
ue|d a01AI9S
/ ssauisng suonesiuebio AJSAIRP
uosdwoy| 9 ulyym  pajedodiodoul  sauolsajiwl
Auuad PaA3IYIY - 600C IP0 600C 0 TE| 6007 doS TO|ueld UOIDY  pajeldd  yjeay (v
ue|d 901AI9S
/ ssauisng suonesiuebuo AlaAlRp
_9_ ulyym  pajedodtodul  Sau03SI|IW
|lzeJg Joues|3 paAaIYdy - 6002 das 600C 0 TE| 600¢ daS TO|ue|d UOIPY paje|al d4ed [BIDOS ||V
uaxepapun sypne jo ajdwes
|lzeJg Joues|3 ‘POASIYIY - 600C 224 _9 600C AON 0€| 600Z doS TQ|wopued - Jipne plodaJ Aduabe-3np
3Je1s SHWVYD pue AsbulieH
ur HS0O ‘10d 404 pue  HNAWN
pue uolbuUnNUM 1B jeis Jyy J0oj
paysiigeisa jou Jo uejd uoi3dayold
PlIly> e sey piys ey buimoys
peaT ojeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpPy




¢l

Page 79

‘3O
ubis Joj ‘dnoss juswsbeuely SouUBWLIO0LD] S2wWo023n0 aAlebau
9AIINd3X3 IsniL S,uaJp|iyd Yaien & sniL 40 pooylial
isnoQ uer|Joj epusbe uQ "}oesy uQo - 0TOT 9od 0T0Z JelW TE| 0T0C g4 TO|s,ua4plilyd Aq panoidde AbBajens ay3 bupnpau
ADoje.1s U] S9DINIDS
, sijelpads pue
0 ep 3y} 03Ul ‘§ORGPID) SHN oY uﬂwmﬂ \._memhc:
isnoQ ue( ‘POASIYIY - 0TOC uer 0TOZ Uef TE| 600C 0 TO|‘paielodiodul UOINQIUIUOD JBUMEed 10 3|04 mz._u
‘pa39|dwod N0 13s 03 Abajeuls
uonuUaAIUI Abajedys  JO  UOISIBA  |eulq ‘papua g_ EYNR=AUEY N
Alle3 ISNoQ Ue[|UOlIE}NSUOD "PIABIYIY - OT0C g°d 0T0Z 9@4 82| 600¢ BNV 10 padojaaap AbBajelis| 3snoq uer| [e20] dojaAaq v0'C
pea’ 9jeq yejs pea’
awayL su0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjeils ?jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3IN uonoy uonpPy
ue|d UOIPY YV[ Y3 JO AJdAIIp
ul paAjoAul buideq ul  pajsalaul
SIMD7 J932d ZT0Z Unf 0E| 0TO0Z 4el T0|sdnoib aanejuasaidal yym abebug
ue|d
& uoPe YY[ JO AIDAIIBP Ul PIAJOAUI
SIMa7 J83ad )joed} uo - 0T0C 9o4 0T0Z JelW T€| 600¢ doS 10|29 pnoys sdnolb moy aulwialeg 101095
saibajenys Adejunjoa ay3
pue sue|d ‘saijod jo juswdo|aAap pue 3jdoad bunoA
9OURUIDA0D & ul paAjoAaul  9q 03} 9|doad SIMT JO JUDWIDA|OAU]
pue diysiapea SIMa7 J939d )oed3 uQ - 0T0C 9°4 0T0Z 4Bl TE| 6007 BNy TO|BUNOA Jo0j Sswsiueydaw ysijqeis3 1939d 9sealdu] €0°¢
pea’ 9jeq yejs pea’
awYyL 2U0ISBIN 9]0N ssa.4bo.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01Sd|IN uonoY uonpy
€0'T d051
90URUIDA0D Q_ uoipe yim aul ul pajuswadwi| uewpeg 2y3 Jo Bupjiom
pue diystapea |99d yedes ‘POASIYDY - 600C AON 0TO0Z unf 0E| 600Z AON TO|siuswabueuse Bupliom gdST MIN weyedls anosdwi 20'2
pea7 ajeq yels pea7
awayL su0ISaIIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjeils ?jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3IN uonoy uoipPy
panoidde pue
SIMa7 183ad PaA3IYIY - 600¢C 22d g_ 0TO0C 4B TE 600¢ INC TO|padojaAap  sjodojoud  diysiaulled diysiauyied
buipienbajes 03 uonead mz._u ssoJoe
ul sjuswabuelse 9oueulanob sjuswabuedse
peaT ojeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpPy




14!

A

uonejuswa|duwi
9o10ead 3seq 9|geus 03} [-M4 uo

95N Wo1SAS JUDLIND
3si|ige3s 03 swes)

Page 80

sassadodd uo1dd10ld PlIYD SII Jo Aapleo Hoddns IMm4 /
a2110e.1d PO09) | ASPiEQ [PydeY "PaASIYIY - 0TOZ Uer 6002 0 TE| 6002 INC TO|M3IAa) 1oy padopasp ued 1afoid|  [2ydeY| SDI Ysiiqelsd £0°Z
swayl T m_u mm_.wh 930N ssa4b60.4d sneis o3eq ang wwwm__.ﬂﬂu_m S2U03SaIN :ﬂ.wuw"“_< uoipPy
‘yaJe yagz uo oAl ob
[IM 4yD pue oAl auob sey aJed ul uaJpiyd
10} (d3ad) ue|d UOIEINPT |RPUOSIDd 'SNSUDD
NID Joj pasu sbuiuesp ejep |euonippe
0] SNp pue 0S JO X99M B J0j S2uUeIsul
ue jnNOYIM sSn dAed| [[IM ydiym speubdn
IM4 B JO 9snedaq Ae|ap 39am Z e 3q ||IM &
949Ul "UORRINSUOD 10j POILINJIID 3G [IM
SW0y MAN “IMd UO Siy3 Buipjing Jels o3
ApeaJ pue Uayelapun usaq sey ,aq 031, UO SanIoLINY [0 JBYI0 YUM
uonejnsuo) ‘paddew usaq sey uoljisod uolPUN[UOD Ul PaMBIASL  WSISAS 10M |ed0s
ASpieQ [pyoey (st se, juaun) Pesy ug - 0T0Z god 0TOZ INC TE| 0TOZ uer T0[oyl Jo sued uonoaloid plyd UON ul ﬂ%ﬁwmwwﬂ
Aopieo Pyoey ‘MO[2q 995 "}oe4} UQ - 0TOT g°4 4 070z 4dv 0g| 6007 10 10 pajuswajdw ueld 309[old - mmummmm_w%mﬂm
padojanap pue I-)}Jomawel
Moy dom  pue  sitejdwaxa uo sassas0.d
% pajejad  uoposjodd  plyd 4oy ASpieO SDI ua4Ind
22130814 PO0D | A3PjRQ [2YdRY PoARIYIV- 600Z 100 6002 0 T€| 600z InC T0|ueld 10afoad pue 9jqe) Bwiy PIsIASY|  [9U2RY| DU MAIADY 90°C
swayl wcoum_uwm__vh 910N ssa4b0.4d smels o?jeqg ang o_aumwn..__h\_m”_m S2uU03ISaINW ..__Nm_umu._< uondy
Spasu |euonippe
BuiAyuap!
ul abejs 3s414 ayj se
‘3]qeJaulnA aq 03
J19pIsuod Asyj jeyy
‘ludy ul Buuuibaq & uaJp|iyd Aue 1oy
SUOISSOS SJ0SSasSsy Ypm ‘jludy up bBujuieay 4vD e a)epspun
J0) PaLIIUSPI  MOU  SUOISSIS  SAISUDIUI [IIM S|oOYdS pue
UoRUAAISIU] SJOW JOJ SJSUIBJ] PUB SNURQUOD SUOISSIS sbumes Aspieo| sesus) s,usspiyd
Aue3|weyog uosiy|Buluiesy MI Woedd uo - 0T0Z 9ed 0TOZ INC TE| 600T 994 TO|puUR S|OOYDS [|B SSOoIde IN0-||oY|  [aydey| AsbBulieH |1V 50°C
swayl wcoum_uwm__vh 910N ssa4b0.4d smels o?jeqg ang o_aumwn..__h\_m”_m S2uU03ISaINW ..__Nm_umu._< uonPy




Sl

Page 81

A3jleg uer 0T0Z 41BN TE| 0TO0Z W TO paaJbe yoeoiadde Bujuoissiwuwio) Asuow 1oy
padofanap e oy
(sioupted pue  saoIAIDS  jnpe o n_E_Mu moE_. 5 4
9 yum) yoeoudde  HBuluolssiwwiod _ } ui
Aajieg uer “jpea} UQ - 600Z 200 0T0Z 9°4 82| 600Z 10 T0|pue Bupstiom pajesbelu] LAIM AIoM SRINISS
: : Moy aAoadwi 03
pa19|dwod Buluoissiwwod pue
9|doad BunoA pue uaJpiyd Bupdom pajesbajul
9 9|geJau|nAa  pue buipienbajes jo J0J yoeoudde
2o1deld poos wi uig pandIydy - 600T das 010z das o€ 6002 INC TO|IudWsSsassy spaaN d1bajelis julor| Asjleg ueg buidojaAs@ 60°¢
pea7 ajeq yels pea7
awYyL suoIsaNIN 9]0N ssa.4bo0.d sniels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO03S3|IN uonoy uonpy
AspieQ |ayoey 0TOC JelN TE| 0TOC 4B 10 uonejuawa|dwi oy paalbe ueld
‘pleog 1T Saljiwed
W uaJdp|iyy pue sbunssw  Apybiuyiol
ybnoayy pasojiuow p3fold salwed W
uaJ4p|IyD Ul SI9X.0M |BID0S SSOJJR N0 ||0J 0} & (p4emio4 AsbulieH 99IAIDS
S)00q 39N 9seyds.and 03 UOIS[DBP - SSWOIIN0 pue o0ddns M4 ‘LI 9JIAIBS dARD 5 mc:w.>_ 5
aAnisod yyum parajdwod aseyd jopid - adeid ‘11 93jedodiod yim) pajusws|duwil ul Mumum u.\_oam:m
AspieQ |ayoey |ur uejd 3oafold *}ded3 uQ - 0TOCT 9°d 0T0Z 1Bl TE| 600Z d3S 10 |pue pasinop ueld M3N ’ pue anoldul
pajo|dwod 03 Abojouyoa}
Aduapiye pue SS9UDAIDRYYD ajiqow Buipnjoul
g_ asiwixew 0} ABojouydal Aspieo ABojouyday
2o1joeld pooD | AsjeQ [ayoey 'POASIYDY - 600C AON 600 doS 0| 6007 4dv TQ|J0 3sn  uo  Apnis  |euJaix3 [ayoey M3U 35N 80°¢
peaT ojeq yejs pea’
awdYyL 2U0ISBIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d SOU01SO|IN uonoY uonPy
wes] yjesH ated ul
AspieQ |ayoey jdeJd} uo - 0T0C q=d4 & 0T0Z 4dv 0€| 600T 3P0 TO|UaJP|IYD 03} papuaIXd I-Md JO asn
I-M4d Buisn
9 U] 92U3PIUOD JIBY] PlING 03 SIIOM
AspieQ [pyoey 'PRASIYIY - 600C 224 0T0Z 1dv 0€| 600¢ d3S T0|[eID0S UMM p|ay SaAleniul |edipoeld
pajuswa|dw ‘uopyeinbyuod
(Buisuesp ejep '6'9) WBISAS 24n3ny
9 I-4OMawedd U0 Uu0I3d0dd PlIUD Jo uonejuswsaldwi
A3pieQ |ayoey ‘PIASIYIY - 600¢C 2°d 6002 292a 1€| 600 Bny 10404 Sjuswanoisdwi Ajyenb ejeQ JModdns pue
peaT ojeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels ?jeq ana pauued SOU03SO|IN uonoY uonpy




91

Page 82

ed e e ed
awdYyL 0:3%@..& 9J0N ssadboid snjels ?jeq ana _auwn..__h\_m_nu_m S9U01SO|IN ..__M_uu._< uonPy
pajuswa|dwi swwesboid
AspieQ |ayoey ‘@A0(e 23S ded] uo - 0T0C q=d & 0T0Z JelW TE| 6002 320 10 |buluien juswssesse Asid
*ABMISPUN UBAIIDP 03 ABM BAIIDD4D IS0W
3y3 pue AsbuiieH J1oj 3 buisiienixajuod uo
SuoISID9 |00 JUDWISSISSY Sy Aousabe sapuabe
-B}INIW 40 uonejuswa|dw] a4 sopJleudegq || Jo Jje3s 4oy
ypum aoejd bupjel (991wwod gns pJeog & win|naand buluresy
s,uaipiyy bHuipienbajes |e207  SJUS|OIA 9402 uoi3d3304d
buiyeis onsswog W juawdojpaag uonesiuebuQ) pajuswa|dwi swwesboid Aspieo|  plys ay3 dojonsp
pue AyoedeD| ASpeQ |ayoey|suolssndosiq  dedy uQ - 0T0C 9°d 0T0Z JelW TE| 6002 320 T0|buluren 9OUB|OIA disswiod [ayoey dayundg 11°¢
ed aje e ed
awdyL sU03 m_uo_.h 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snels 9jeq ana _uuom__h“_nu_m S9UO03S3|IN :ﬂ_a"“_< uopy
"SOIIAIDS
Isijepads pue
pa3abaey 0] |edtajal
10} spjoysaiyy
jo Buipuejsispun
& juiof e pue
S9DIAIDS |BSIDAIUN
JO suoneladxs Jo
39S Jesd e dojaasp
JayoeajpesH BCJc%D__o“_ S19049S
| Buipsenbajes
As11n9 e oed} uQ - 0T0C 924 0T0Z 4dv 0€| 6007 doS T0|Yyoed yum yo paubis juswaa.by ars1 o
Asuung e ‘PRARIYIY - 600C 22d o 600z doS 0g| 600 d3S 10 paydune| spiepuels ybno.yy ‘sbumas
Asauno pue sjooyds
do1oeld PO0D|  ASLIND dlep PaA3IYIY - 600C PO Q_ 600 d3S 0| 600Z o4 TO| paa.ibe pue padojansp splepuels Hde UM XIOM 0T°C
ed aje e ed
awlyL SU03 m_uo_.h 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snels 9jeq ana _uuom__h“_nu_m S9UO03S3|IN :ﬂ_a"“_< uopy
paysi|igeiss Asuow
Joj anjea panosdwi bujesysuowsp
10} WsS|ueyddwW pue  payiauapl
A3jleg uer 0T0Z unf 0E| 0TO0Z 4dv TO|spaau joddns pue bBupinosay
ed e e ed
awdYyL 0:3%@..& 9)ON ssa.dboid snjels ?jeq ana _auwn..__h\_m_nu_m SOU03SO|IN ..__M_uu._< uonpy




L1

20e|d ul swwelboud Juswdojonag
'S9JUl) S,uaJpliyD yim padeys |odojoud

<

Bulieys uonew.ojul

so.jua)

Page 83

snoqg uef|isndl s,uaJpliyy HPedy ug - 0T0C 9eod 0TO0Z 4dv 0€| 0TOZ Ue( TO[3|qeus 03 paysi|qeIss WSs|UeYIDW S,UBJp|IYD UM
Juswabeuey padojaASp S943UdD S,UdIP|IYd YHUM Bulieys uopew.ojul
90UBWIO04IDd 3snoQ uer ‘paAdIYIY - 0T0C uer 0_ 0TOZ uer T€| 600z das T0|buleys uopewdojul Joj |02030.dd| ISnoq uer anoadwi €1°C
pea’ ojeq yejs pea’
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9J0N ssa.dboid snjels ?jeq ana pauue|d S9U01SO|IN uoiPY uonPy
ueid
BunoA Jenas 0T0Z unr o€ 0T0Z 4dy 10| Buluiesy diysisujied-ssoldd dojaaaq
‘buuiesy Aouabe-pinw
pue 3jbuis ul sanunjioddo 3juswdo|aAsp
pue sdeb Ajijuspl 03} pajen|eAs pue QT
|ludy Bulinp pauaniad pue painglasip 9q 03
(g0s71 Aq Jjo paubis aq 03 pue pa3d|dwod &
ubisep) sadieuuonnssnd 0T/6007 JIedA
93} JO pud ayj Je padNPUOd 3q ||IM SdIINP diysiauped
TT UOROSS yim ddueldwod JO MIINDY ay3 ssoJoe buipienbajes
BunoA penis|jenuuy g3S7 YLl Mdedy uo - 0T0Z 9q°d 0T0Z 1dv 0€| 0T0Z 924 TO|ul spaau Bululely |euoilippe MaIAY
‘awwelboud siabeuely
wea] pue aull juold4 03 poddns DAMD
3y} 03 pajull mou s swuweuabosd syl
‘ueld juswdojaASQ |euosidd e ysl|qeiss
pue spasu uoddns pue buiules| JidY}
AJjnnuapi 03 susbeuew ajeipawwl JISy3y pue
wayl yym buppom ale oym sayoeod yjim
papinoJdd ud3Qq ||B dARY DDIAIDS JO SpeIH g_
Ainda@ pue siabeuel wea] -abueyd
Buibeuew pue buipes| ul SdOUSPPUOD
buipjing pue oo1poeud  3seq  bBuueys
je pawie s| yoiym - swwesbold jdoddns siabeuew wea) Buiuen
193d DAMD dU3 Ul pI||0Jud dJe JVIAIRS Sal|lwey pue uaJp|iyd 404 padNpoJ3ul iy
BunoA Henis|(jo speaH MaN PaAdIYdY - O0TO0Z 9od 0T0Z 1l TE| O0TO0Z uer TO|awayds bHuuojusw pue joddnsg 10 mrm_cm_wﬂw\wmm
‘pauue|d se buissauboud s| pue pue buipienbajes
S9A[9SWaY} siebeuew ayy AQq paAISdad ||9M pue uoisiaiadns
usaq sey slyl 'mojaq 33s - dn 39S u33q siabeuew ‘Juswabeuew
sey joddns pue buiyoeod jo swwelboid e g_ 94ed |epos Joj swweaboud dydads ul spasau bujuieny
buiyels pue siabeuel wea] J10j paaibe ussq aAey e buipnppul padojaasp awwesboud bunoA| diysiaujied-ssoad
pue Ajpeded| BunoA Henis|sapualadwo) “paAlIydy - 0T0C 9°4 0T0Z 4B TE 0TOZ uer 10 |Aduajadwod |elabeuely Menis 9sAleuy 21'¢C
peaT ojeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9)ON ssa.dboid snjels ?jeq ana pauued SOU03SO|IN uonoY uonpy




Page 84

81

pauiauapi JuswaAoldwi

buipienbajes
EYYICETIE]
pue ao1peud

|99d ye.es ZToz uer 1€| TTOZ29Q TO|40) sSease pue 3Juued| SUOSSIT poob paosuapind
sey jeyy gos ue
9OURUIDA0D 199d Yyees TTOZ AON 0E| TT0Z ddS 10 20e|d S9xe3 M3IAY uewpeg| woJj malnaJ Jaad
pue diysiopesa’ [92d Yyedes TT0C 41BN T€ TTOC uUer 10 M3IADJ 193d J0oj payiuapl gDST|  Weyel| e uoISS|WWo) 10°€
pea’ 9jeq yejs peaT
[awYyL 2U0IS3IN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonPY uonpy
pajuawsa|dwi bupiom
& juiof ul sisbeuew dduewsopad
AS44no) Yuep yoesy uQ - 0T0C god 0TOZ unf 0E| 600C AON TO|3Hoddns 03 Swuwesboid IO
pado|anap
_9_ swuwesboid 4om pue payauspl
|lzelg Joues|3 ‘PIASIYIY - 600C 224 6002 AON 0€| 600Z daS T0|42y32b0) >om 0} sapiunyoddQ
o paysliqeisa a3 mmewww%%wmmm
|izeag Jouea|3 ‘PAARIYDY - 600C AON 600C AON 0E| 600 das 10|stobeuew souewioad Jo MIO0MIDN ucwEwmmcmE
jJuswabeuely uayenapun Ajpeded juswabeuew |izeag 2ouewolad
90URWIOLLD| [1Zzeig J0oued|3 ‘PIARIYDY - 600C AON 9 6002 120 TE| 6002 994 T0|2oupwaoad Jo sIsAjeuy Joues|g 2oueyu sT1'¢
pea7 oljeq Mels pea7
awayL suoIsaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjeils ?jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3IN uonoy uonpPy
siobeuew
9_ yym uoppounfuod  ul  pado|sAdp
|izeag Joues|3 ‘PaAIYDY - 0TOC uer 0T0Z 4B TE 0T0Z uer Tojueld jJuswaAocsdwl  SdURWIOLDd
_g_ Jojeoipul yoea (60°c 295 os|e)
|Izeig Joues|q paASIYdY - 0TOT uer 0TO0Z JeW TE| 0TOZ uer 10404 paysiiqeiss siabiey ajeldoiddy Juswulene jienb
paJinbau doj yoddns
juswanoldwi  Jo  2aubop By 03 sJojedipul
jJuswabeueyy 9 dUIWL.IDISp 03 pa3a|dwod s.ao3edipul |1zeag 9ouewJopad
2ouURWLIOMLD| [1Zelg Joued|] ‘PaAIYDY - 0TOC uer 0T0Z 924 82! 600Z AON TO|oouewdoyad A3y Jo  SisAleuy Jouea|g| A3 asAleuy $1°C
pea7 oljeq Mels pea7
awyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpy




61

Page 85

pajeabajul
juels aaeq )oedy uQ - 0T0C uer & 0T0Z 22 1€| 6007 dos 10|sainpadoid pue S955920.d
1IVD Al9A1309449 Bupjiom
Sdil  pue yjeay ‘juswssasse g pue pasnpoJjul
_9_ |edJajad |1DuUNod Jo weay Aseuldidsip juels weay Adeuldidsip
d1deldd pooo juelds aAeQ ‘PRA3IYIY - 600C NON 6002 294 T€| 600¢ doS TO|-BINW  23ea1d> 0}  JUBWIBIbY aAeQ -INW SO0°€
pea’ ojeq yejs pea’
awdYyL 2U0IS3IN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ang pauue|d S9UO01Sd|IN uonoY uonpy
pa3a|dwod ao130e.d w.um_w_m‘__u%wmm
AspieQ [pyoey ZT0T 4Bl TE| 0TOZ UN[f T0|3S9g 399W 03 JudWdo|PASp [-M4 paquIa Ucm. 1oddns
swea) Aapleo 03 padojaAap
do10eId Po0D | A3]eQ [YdorY ZT0T 4Bl TE| O0TOZ Unf TO|ASY |lB 0} papudixd I-Md4 JO 3asn [ayoey I-M4d ¥0°€
pea7 ojeq Jels pea7
awayL suoIsaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjeils ?jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3IN uonoy uoipPy
uonejuaws|dwi yuoddns
AS44no) Yuep yoesy uQ - 0T0C god & TT0Z Unf 0€| 600z dos 10|01 padojpasp swwesboisd abuey)d
pajuawa|dwi
AS44no) Yuep )oed3 uQ - 0T0C 9°4 & TT0Z Unft 0| 600z dos To|pue panoisdde saunpadosd MmaN
saJinpadoud bunsixa
As.41no e )det} uoQ - 0T0C 94 & TT0Z Unf 0E| 600C d9S 10|40 MdIARS  Ojul  3}jing  Bujuiesn
paiiauspl L01oeud 3sq,,
2o130eld poo| AS.InD dien )joed} up - 0T0C 9o4 & TT0Z Unf 0€| 600 doS TO|sa4npadold  ul 2oipeld  3sag 48D da| bunusws|dwi £0°¢
peaT 9jeq yejs pea’
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ang pauue|d S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpy
9o130e4d poob jo uonrediiuapl
3y31 pue suoi3dadsul / SMaIADJ JBY10
woJj sjesodoid uonejuswsaldwi ul Ajlenuue
SIMa7 J83ad 070z das 0¢ 0TO0Z INC TO|buipa3y 104 paysi|geiss wsiueydssy SEINETEYRS]
. suoljepuswwodal
SIMa7 J83ad PaASIYIY - 600C 224 _9 0T0Z 94 82| 600Z o4 TO| UDemapun aduel|dwod Jo MIIADY MBIABI 1330
suoljepuswWWodal pue bujwe ayy
9OURUIDA0D) 9 buiwen ypm doue| dwod SIMIT yum soueldwod
pue diys.iapea SIMa7 J932d PoA31IYdY - 600C AON 6002 22A TE| 6007 doS 10|40 M3IASL Joj padojaAdp SS220.d 1939d 2Jnsu3j zo's
pea’ ojeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpPy




0¢C

*J9qUIDAON
90UIS  suo(padsul  padunouueun  WoJ4
sbuipuly yyum pasAjeue Jayuni buidq si
19sejep oyl 92130ead wJojul 03 pasn uadq
sey Y1 J49yio Jo uoppdadsul pasunouueun
o  J9n0 wouy payiauapl s.10308y

4

Buiyed Jua|@oxa
J9AI9p 03 padinbau
9ouewlopad

Jo sisAjeue

Page 86

jJuswabeuely suipjey |As) ayy Jo 600z JoquaAoN ul padedaud paje|dwod sanoyne|  suipey pajieap Jaymny
90URWIOLIDd 9112uer|SisAjeue 3yl "Pedy uQ - 0T0C 9god 1T0Z 994 8¢ 0T0Z uer 10|, Allwey, Jo duew.0413d JO SISA|eUy apouer M epdpUN 80°E
pea7 aljeq Mels pea7
awayL suoIsaNIN 9]j0N ssa4bo.d snjeils ?jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3IN uonoy uoipPy
pa3a|dwod syoeljuod
*JX91U0D |RUOIIRU BY3 UIY}IM paJojdxad & do ojul ao130ead poob buipienbajes
uuind alnc|buieq si siIyL HPesy uo - 0T0T 9od 0T0C INC TE 070z uer 10|buneiodioour ojur Apnis Ayjiqisesd
. mn_wmo uonepieAal Buip.enbajes
IX33U0D |_UOIIRU BY) UIYIIM palojdxa & pue bBuisuadl mau ‘|esieadde ojul 01 sabexul| axew
uuind alnc|buieg SI siyL "dedy uQ - 0TOC 9god 0T0C IN[ T€E 0TOZ uef T0|}INg sjuswalinbal  Buipienbajes 01 549 JO .wmw__ou
juswdojanag |eAoy ay3 pue
buiyels *]X23U0D |BUOIIRU BY3 UIYIIM padojdxa & |PUOISSDJ0ld |BNUIIUOD Sd9 03Ul uuind Adaueaq uopuon
pue Ajpede) uuind alnc|buideg SI siyL "dedy uQ - 0TOC 9od 0T0C INf T€E 0TOZ uef T0|}INg sjuswalinbal  Buipienbajes alnt YIM HIOM £0°E
pea7 oljeq Mels pea7
awayL su0ISaNIN 9]j0N ssa4boud snjeils ?jeq ang pauued S9UO01S3IN uonoy uoipPy
USLBAJOAUL sapuabe Aloiniels
AS44nD) Yuep 2102 4B T€ TT0C 4dv 10 |404 s|esodoud jusws|dwi .mmo'_um Ajpedes
S955920.d 9seaJldul 03
buiyyeis uo1D3304d plIyYD 404 oddns 103095 JUSWIAA|OAU] 103235
pue Ajpede)| Asuing e 0T0C 224 1¢ 0TOZ INC TO|PAIYL Joj |enusjod  3ebnsasul 4®D dd| PJIYL M3IASY 90°€E
peaT ojeq yejs pea’
awYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpy
|jeuonesado wea}
Adeujdidsip-ninw pue  sainpadsoud
juels aAed TT0C 1BW TE| 0T0Z 29Q TO|pajelbajul mau Ul paulely jeis
pa3e20|-02
juels aneq yoedy uQ - 0T0C uer & 0T0Z 22 1E€| 6007 doS T0|4BIS pue pabuelie UOIIRPOWLIOIDY
peaT ojeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpPy




Page 87

IC

'0T0Z Yodew ul porad Buliojiuow 3s.i)
dU} Meis |IM ddAD 3y pue diysisuped

4

diystauped ayy

suipjdey|ayy ssosoe o2oe|d ul 2Je  salnseawl ssoJdoe pajuswsaldwi syuswabuelie
9]J9uUe[|2dURWIODd HOey uQ - O0T0C 9god 1T0Z 4dv 0E€| 0TOZ uer T0|luswsbeuew aduew.oyiad 3snqoy
"0T0C Adenugad

ul papodas ssasboid JO MIIADY PIISIO sue|d AiaAlap pue s3abie] pajiyoid
suipjdey [aya buimojjos paysalsad aq [IM Ueld UOIDY & yam pauiuapl jJuswaAoduwi
onLuer|buipienbajes syl "yded3 uQ - 0T0C 994 1T0C {€ TE 0TOZ uer TO|40J saojedipul 2ouewdopad A

peaT ojeq yejs peaT
awdYyL 2U0ISIIN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauued S9UO01S3|IN uonoY uonpPy




Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 89

‘douewJuoad Jno uo payedw sey ‘yeis paulienb Ajgeyns
Buiinioaa saiNdp panunuod ypm Jayiaboy ‘siyl rsiesA
OM) snolAaid By3l uey} JOW 9%(0SG ||BJ9A0 SI Ydlym ‘90iA4es
93U} 0] paJJajad S9sed JO awn|oA ybiy e 2gq 03 SanNUPUOd 343yl

SIIMAIPY JUdLIN)

‘sjuswaAoJdw| SNOINED SWOS MOYS 03

Buruuibaqg adae spuaJ] Juadad - e paAlIe 3q [|IM dduew.oad
24NNy JO aJ4nSeawl 23eJ4nNdde dJow e Jayealay) eyl adxs
9M '9DIAISS BU3 Ul MJom bBulpueisino ||e ylm |esp 0} XI0M
3y} anunuod am se Jood aq ||IMm Sduewdload jeyy ajedppue
9M ‘sjuswssasse bulpue)sino ‘s|edsawi] Jo 3N0 JO Jdqwinu e
Jo uonedwod ayj pue ptepueis ybiy e 03 si parsjdwod buiaq
sjuswssasse jo Ajjenb ayj jeyy bulnsus uo snd0j pasealdu]
ue bBulpnpoul Sanss| JO Jaquunu B JO }NSaJ e S| d|edsawli}
ul pa|dwod sjuswssasse 2400 jo abejusouad mo| Byl
09 IN — @dueuw.o}idd judiin) jo uolnjeue|dxy

‘sjuswiaAoldw| SNOINED SWOS MOYS 03

Bujuuibaq aae spuaJ] Juddad - e paAlIe 3] [|IM dduew.oad
94niny JO aJ4nSeawl 23eJnNdde dJoW e Ja)ealay) eyl oadxs
9M "9DIAISS BU3 ul MJom bBulpueisino ||e ylIm |esp 0} 3I0M
3y} anunuod am se Jood aq ||IMm dduewdlojad jeyy ajedppue
9M ‘sjuswssasse bulpuelsino ‘s|edsawil Jo 3N0 JO Jdqwinu e
Jo uone|dwod ayj pue ptepuels ybiy e 03 si parsjdwod buiaq
sjuswssasse Jo Ajyjenb ayj jeyy bulnsus uo sSnd0j paseatdul
ue bBuipnjpul Sanss| JO Jaquunu B JO }NSaJ e S| d|edsawl}
ul pa3|dwod sjusawssasse [eniul Jo abejusosad Mol Byl
6S IN — @2ueuw.0419d jualin) jo uoneuejdxy

%¢€9

%S ¢y

%L EY

%¥ St

JUSWIOUBWIWOD I3y}
Jo sAep bBupdom g€ uiyym ino
paled 2J9m jeyl aJ4ed |eIDoS
S,uaJpliyd  Joj  sjuswISsasse

2400 40 abejuadiad 09 IN

%¢€S

%T71°9¢

%¥ 1Y

%6°vE

|eduajad Jo sAep bupjiom
£ UIYYM INO paLlied aied |e|dos
S,UaJpiyd  JOj  SJUBWSSISSE

leniul 0 abejuaniad 6S IN

Alejuswwio)

1obae]

smels

anjea

0T/600C

puaiy

0T0¢C
uer

600¢

R uondidsap IN| apod IN

60/800¢C

JUDWISSISSY B |elld}oy T

Aabuuey

OT'CO0'/LT UO poje.lausd

110d3Yy S.0jedIipu ddueuwiojidd ue|d buipienbajes 'z xipuaddy




Page 90

*9su0dsay 3s414 uey) Jayied ssaoo04d 4y 9yl ybnoayy buiob
aJe sased ajelldoidde jeyl 24nsus 03 J0JeUIPJO0D 4¥D Y3 Yim
syull buiaoadwil uo BuiNUIIUOD S| HJOAN JUSLUSSISSE 10J IDIAIDS
9Ul 03 paJdajod g pInoys eym ul AdUa3SISU0d d|geus pue
Ajuepp o3 buidiay si yoiym acejd ul S| JuswWINd0p Sploysadyl v

%8S

%6°'¢CS

%€'SL

%€'€9

JUSWISSasSe |eniul 0}

uo bujob aued |eIDOS S,udlp|Iyd

0}

s|edtsjad  Jo  2bejusduad

89 IN

'SUOI}PPUBWILIOIDI puR SBWO003IN0
9jelidousdde  yym  udeuDpUN  SjuUdWSSasse  Jo  Ajllenb
9yl ul JuswaAoidwi ue udaq Sey 349y} 3Byl MOYS JOqUIDAON
2ouls siabeuew J0lUS AQ Pa3dNpuUOd S}ipne G9T Yy} wody pue
IO\ [B1D0S juspuadapul ue Ag uddepspun S)ipne jusddy

*9oe|d Ul Je Jauojjijoeld J01UsS pue Jabeue wea]
92Ul AjjuaJind pue asuodsal jJO ADUD3ISISUOD B 2INSUD 0} wWed|
Bujuaa.10S pajedipap e paleald dARY I\ “S|eJdlajad 03 asuodsad
|eliul 23S0y dJow B 2INSud 03} sanbed|od yjeaH pue
30110d Yl Yum sbuipoaw »aam B SaWil € MOU aJe aJ4ayy pue
‘asuodsay 3sdi4 ueyl Jayied ssaoodd 4yD ay3y ybnoayy buiob
2Je sased ajeldosdde jey] 24nsua 03 J0JRUIPJO0D 4¥D Y3 Yim
syull buiaoadwil uo BuiNUIIUOD S| HJOAN JUSLUSSISSE 10J IDIAIDS
9Ul 03 paJdajod g pInoys eym ul Adua3SISuod d|geus pue
Ajuuep o3 buidjay si yoiym acejd ul S| JuSWINI0P Sploysadyl v

2dI1dkId IS99

*94n3oNnJa3s
juswabeuew jusuewJtad e 9)E3UD 0} pPIdBU B Sulewal
9J9y3 0s yje3s Adusbe ujewad g Ing ||e JSASMOY - 3|qeis AJIBA
S| wead)} juswabeuew sy} pue s2de|d ul mou aJe siabeuew
IV ‘pouad uonodnpul aAlsuayaldwod e Jaye d4om dn buppid
Jo sobeis Aldes AJSA SUj 3B pue SDIAISS 9Y3 Ul MOU dJe S}NJdaJ
uedldWY 9yl pue peojesed ||y e uo bupey Ajbuisesudul
aJe (MSON) sJoy4om |eppos paylienb Amau jo dnouab ayl

Atejuswwio)

yobie]

snjels

anjea

0T/600TC

puaiy

0T0¢C
uer

600¢
oY/

60/800¢C

uondidsap IN

apoo IN




Page 91

19W aAey pjnom am dn papunod Sl JI "% 9°69 J& MOU dJe am
pue uonidalip b ayy Ul Ajipeasls paAoldwll sey Souew0)lad

%0,

"
A4

%9°69

%9°69

%L°69

%95

Jo yabua| :uaJp|iyo Jae paxoo|
Jo sjuswade|ld Jo  Ajjgeis

€9 IN

"9DIAJIDS SjuUBWAdR|d BYI YIIM uosiel] poob pue s,0¥] 03
S9Sed> Mau JO uojfiedofe Ales uo siseydws ue yym buinuijuod
S| Jojedlpul siyy jo bBupojyuow 9sSo|) ) JO) SuoseaJs Ised
|ENPIAIPUI DJB 343Y) 9|eISSWI} JO N0 SIe SMIIASJ dJdYym pue
poob AJaA sulewsad Jojedipul siyl 3suiebe souewloyad |[easaAQ

%086

%9°C6

%9°C6

%796

%9°56

sa|edsawy
paJinbaJ UIYIIM pPIMIIADI D19M
UdIYM S3sed aded Ul uadpliyd

99 IN

*UlIM [eSp 0} pey SABY 9M S9Sed ay3 Jo Auew
ul sanIxa|dwod |eba| aJow 99 03 WIS 0S|e aJ4ay3l Ing ‘240J9q
ueyj 93eJ U9)Sey e Je SISPJQ Judwde|d 03 spiemoy bBuirow
9Je UuaJp|lyd uesW SMPNOD dY} Ul SILISAWI} 03} uoludINe
J93ea4b Inq ‘3sed ayj ul sAe|ap pasned sey Siyj pue ‘pauieiqo
S| J9pJQ juUSWIe|d B |I3UN PIasidApe g jouued ualp|iyd
‘saljiwe) SAndope yim Saydjew SASIYdE 0} WNIHOSU0)
uopndopy uopuol YMON 9yi ul sanbed|od yym  A|pso|d
YJOM S\ "SJUSAS uondope |euoljeu pue |ed0| 3B pue ssaud ay)
ul pajijoid ase ualdpjiyd aoe|d 03 pley - AJpignd jo apew bulaq
S| 9sn ||nj pue ‘sajjiwey puly 03 apew buiaq sJe S3I044e jesasn

SIIMAIPY JUdLIN)

"%G/ SI 103edipul siy) 1oj 196.4e)
9yl "Adenuer uj pajdope aiam uaup|iyd oN ‘uejd syl a9 p|noys
uopndope 3eyj uoiIsPBP Y3 JO syuow gT ulyum uopdope oy
paoe|d a1om 9soy3 Jo G pue ‘pajdope uaaq aAey uaJp|Iyd 0T
‘Je9A sIy3 Jej 0S "a4ed Yjim paladadaajul 8g pinoys sabejuaouad
pue ‘mo| AjpwaJixe a4e J03edIpul SIY} Joj sJaqwinu dYyj|

JduUewW.0)1dd jJua.lin) jo uoljeuejdxsy

%SL

%08S

%08S

%08S

%08

uonndope Joj pase|d aq
pinoys pjiys ay3 eyl uoisiosp
Aousbe ue bBuimojjoj uonydope
10)  uUJp|IYD U4y p00|
Jo sjyuswade|d Jo ssaulPwIl

T9 IN

"0 9T dA0qe S90D

2oueuwrioyidd j1 pa4obbri) aq Ajuo [jim pay -poob oq 03}
%9I Mojoq dduew.iojidd siopisuod asuepinb jeuorjeN
"(%TT1°TT) 60 |11dy 2ouls sjuswaoe|d

9Jow JO € pey aAey ualp|iyd om} AIXIS '0T0Z Alenuer Jo pus
9yl 03 Syjuow 7T dy3 uo paseq s| uonisod ajep 03 JeaA ayl

%TT

%86°€T

*

%86°€T

%ST'¢CT

%69°vT

saAow jJo
Jaquinu :uaJpjiyd Jaye payoo|
Jo sjuswade|ld Jo  Ajjgels

¢9 IN

Atejuswiwio)

1obie]

snmejls

anjea

0T/600C

puail

0T0¢C
uer

600¢
oY/

60/800¢C

uondidsap IN

apoo IN

(ajeasawiil 1aA0 bulob ased auo *6-9) anss| ajbuis e Aq pajdeduwil Ajised 2.104919Y3 21e pue Sased JO SIdquINU [[ews 03 d3e[d.J siojedipul buimojjos ay3 jo Ajriofew ay g

24eD uj ua.pjiyd pue uondopy ‘T




Page 92

S| 949y} pue Ajlioyoejsiyes buissaiboid S| MJom eyl 24nsud 0}
(powad aeaA-z sy ajedpniue 031) aJow Jo syjuow 8T Joj ue|d
uoidajoldd pjiyo e 03 303[gns ussqg SABY OYM UJP[IYD 3SOY3
Jo Buiipne Jayyiny 9)exnapun ||IM 3JIAJISS U0I3D3304d PlIUD 9yl

SIIIAIPY JudlIn)

%S & %Z'ST y %0 %6T %Lt
"W9ISAS aJ4ed ayj ojul paAow ueld e 03 30a[gns buiaq paddols
OUM UJIp|IYd JO 979 3IeYl SMoYs sisAjeuy -poriad yjuow
XIS B ]1SEe3| Je J9A0 pPamMdIAaJ 9q 03 pasu sabuey) *Alejuswiwiod
Alyauow 03 J|9SU SPUd| UdIYm Joledipul ue 3jou S| SIylL 9J0W JO SiedA
3VUBW.I0JI3d Jud.lin) jJo uojeuejdxy Z bunse| sue|d uonda304d plIyd 9 IN
0% T Sem 3 sunoqybiau |ed13S13e1S JNO 10J pue ‘ofTT SeM
3} uopuoT Joj ‘9% ET sem 60/800¢ J0J pue|bu] Joj abeiaae ayl
‘ue|d e 03 }3[qns uaaqg A|snoiaald pey asoyj . . . aw jusanbasgns
J0 €€ pue ‘ueid e 03 303[gNs apew u33q SA_Y UIP|IYD 9HT %0T . %y ET ‘g %¥’ST %S¢ %9’S |0 pu02d3s e 10} ue|d U0ID330.1d
‘91ep 03 JedA BY3 Ul "siseq A|yiuow e uo A|qedapisuod AJeA |[IM plIyD Jo p3fgns ayy buiwoodaq
sobejuadiad ‘mo| 93Inb aue Jojedipul Siy3y 104 sidquinu dyj sy uaJpjiyo Jjo abejuaoiad G9 IN
"W3SAS ay3 JO sjuswd|d
Buimalaal ay3y ojuo aunssaud swos buiind si suejd o3 33[gns
Huiwodaq uaJp|Iyd Mau Jo siaqwinu Yyl ul seadoul buinuiauod
SUL 'S|edSSwWi} UIYYIM P[BY dDJe SMIIADL SJow Jeyy aJnsud
0} W33ISAS Mau e padnpoJiul sey JIAISS UO0I13R304d PIIUD 9yl . . .
soniAnoY Jussng| %0007 e %86 s %8Y6 | %EV6 | %00T
*Adenuer
Ul 9le| VJ9M SMIIADJL ON "pPlIoy udaq Apuanbasgns aaey s9|edsawl} padinbad uiyym
SM3IABJ || 931ep 03 JedA 3y] ul 91e| Ud3q dABY SMIIADI dD 6 pOM3IADL  DJ9M  UDIYM SSed
2dUBWLI0IBd JuUdLin) Jo uoneue|dxy uoi3dajold pliyo jo abejusdasd /9 IN
yobie] snjels anjea
Alejusawiwio) pua.il o10c 600¢ 60/800¢C uondiidsap IN| 9pod IN
0T/600¢C uer 29a

(a1easawiil 1on0 buiob ased auo '6-29) anssi ajbuis e Aq paydeduwl Ajised 91043.49Y) d4e pue sased JO sidquinu [jews 03 d3e[ad siojedipul buimojjoy ay3 jo Ajiofew ayy

uondagoid PIYD "€

%0/ 40 39b6.e3 uno

juswade|d

Atejuswwio)

yobie]

snjels

anjea

0T/600TC

puaiy

0T0¢C
uer

600¢
oY/

60/800¢C

uondidsap IN

apoo IN




Page 93

S0IAIBS (SHIWVYD)
@ qT me,_mmmw_uw,_ abueu siy3 4oy e3ep oN €T |ejusw  juldss|ope
) 40 SSSUSAIDRYT TS IN
SRS || =nieA 0T0Z | 6002
Atejuswiwio) puaiy 60/800¢C uondiidsap IN| 9pod IN
01/600¢ uer 23d
SHIWYD ‘v
"%7T°6 Sem 3}l sunoqybiau |eansiieis
Jno Joj pue ‘o8 SEM ) UOpuo] Joj ‘%9 sem 60/800C
104 J03eolpul siyy Joj abedsAe pue|bul syl ‘%/'f paAsIyde
aM ‘60/8007 Je9A 3yl Ul '9%¢G SI JeaA ayjy Joj 319biaey unQ
adI1edd 1sog
“juswaAoJdwl pauleIsns pue dInb 03 J|9s)l Spus|
jeyy buiyzswos jou si siyl :30916au jo Aiobajed e yum ueid
e 03 309[gns uaJp|iys jo abejusdiad ybiy e s| auayy ruoipayold
Jo |9A9] Jaybly e 03 possalboud oAey plnoys waisAs
9JeD 9y} O3jUl paAOW dABY OYM B3SOyl ‘pasead aAey sueid
uoi3d9lodd plIYd wWoym Joj ualpjiydo syl 21ebnssaul [Im M
‘9pew s| J9pJo aJed
e |1nun wa3sAs uoi3dajodd pliyd Syj ul wayj uieiad o3 s Adijod
ay3 se ‘bupjew Jno Jo jou 3|geiawil 1Unod e ul dn ybned aq
ued ue|d e 03 303[gns pue a4ed Ul Y30q 94 OYM Ud4p|Iyd 3soy L
")1OM3Sed ul YLIp ou
S el 0T0Z | 600z
Atejuswwio) puaJyL 60/800¢C uondiidsap IN| 9pod IN
01/600¢ uer 23d




asJop buiyen

abueyd oN

Buinosduwit

SpuaJ] WJa] Moys

sisAjeuy pajie}aQg :SJUBWISSISSY |ellu] — 6S IN

Aluo eieq

umouun

A0

Buruiepn

IS~

e
™~

H3Y

smeis Id

Page 94

‘J4e3s Aouabe gz pue yjeis jusuewsad Aq paj|u
G ‘sysod Jusbeuew 9'q aJe aisyy poddns R buipienbajes ug
'Jje1s Aousbe AQ paj|l} 8 pue Jjeis Jo Jaquuisaw jusuewtad ‘yauow ayj Jo pus ayj je
e Aq p9||i4 T ‘sysod Jabeuew /'/ aie a43y) asuodsay 1sdi4 Ul poddng pue buipienbajes pue
asuodsay 1sd14 ul juedea sysod
'padnpaJ sey asuodsay 3s4i4 ul s3sod papuny jo _ Jobeuew weay Joluss pue
Jaquinu ay3 sIy} Jo 3nsal e se ‘Ajjuadad jJow ddueuld pue YH ﬂ 0 0 T Jabeuew wesd) Jo Jaquinu ayL 605071
‘J4e1s Aouabe Aq paj|uy
aJe sysod 9°0¢ 9U3l Jo ST Moddns @ buipienbajes ul ‘jjeis
Aouabe Ag pI||i4 a4e s3sod G 9z ayl JO Gz dsuodsay 3sdi4 Ul | ‘yjuow ay3 Jo pud
w 0 0 0 9Y3} 3 juedeA s)}sod SIDIAIDS
‘paonpaJ sey asuodsay 3sdi4 ul sysod papuny jo uoddng pue buipienbajes pue
Jaquinu ay3 SIy} Jo }nsad e se ‘Ajjuadad jJow ddueuld pue YH dsuodsay 3sli4 Jo Jaquinu dyL 80501
19bae) snjels anjea
Atejuswwio ua. 0102 600c uondiinsa apod
3 2 AT puaiy uer 2eq | 60/800¢ 1Rd1osap IN| 3pod IN

sapueden buiyjels s




‘abed Buimojjoy ay} uo sydelb ay} ul umoys si aouewopad Siy |

%0SY | ¥8 | %LEV | 29 | %Sy | 6V | %LEV | LE | %8ES | €V | %Y6S | Y€ | SAEBP GE UIUIM pajaldWIOD SUBSWISSOSSE BI0J JO JSqUINN

14" 44" 801 ¢l 08 yAS] yjuow sy} ul pa1a|dwod SjUBWSSISSE 8109 JO JaquinN

ajeosawi] Ul paja|dwio) SJUBWISSASSY 3109 - 09IN

Page 95

shep 0| Ul ‘yuow sy}

%66 | 25 | %v'L6 | VL | %08 | Lv | %988 | 65 | %LE6 | VL | %VBL | LT | | poeduion pue popiEls SIUGLISSOSSE [BHILI O JBGUINN

sAep J ul ‘yuow ay)

%8'OL | €v | %C88 | L9 | %EEB | Sv | %G6L | € | %ET8 | SO | %LWI | TT | | pojediion pue peLiEls SIUGLISSOSSE [BRILI O JOQUINN

JUoW 8y} Ul pale)s usag pey Yalym

99 9L s 44 6. ve yjuow ay} Ul paje|dwod SjUSWSSaSSE [BIlUI JO JaquINN

%L'ES | 69 | %99V | 18 | %88E | 6S | %8TE | 85 | %L6E | L8 | WSLC | 9¢ | sAep 0l ulyum paje|dwod SJUSWISSISSE [eNiul JO JSqUINN

%S VY | ¥S | %VlY | €L | %6VE | €5 | %09C | 9V | %CSE | LL | %l€C | L€ sAep / ulyym paje|dwiod sjuslSSasSE [eniul Jo JaquiNN

0cl VLl csl Ll) 6l¢ LEL Yiuow sy} ul pajo|dwiod SjUsWISSaSSE [eIul JO JaqUINN

ajeosawi] ul paja|dwion SJUBWISSISSY [eIHU] - 6GIN

% ‘'ON % ‘ON % ‘ON % ‘ON % ‘ON % ‘ON

01-9°4 oj-uer 60-23d 60-AON 60-31°0 60-das




Page 96

% 994

sAep QL ul ‘yjuow

ay} ul pajejdwod pue

pape)s sjuswssosse
[B1HUI JO JBqUINN B

sAep 7 ul ‘yuow
ay} ui pajajdwos pue
paME}S SjuBWISSOSSE

[eniul Jo JequinN O

% uer % 998d % AON % PO

ajeasaw ul ‘yjuow ayj} ui payajdwos pue pajie}s sjeu| %

% dos

%0

%0¢

%0¥

%09

%08

%001

% 994

sAep Q| ulyIm
kum_QEoo sjuswussasse
[ENUI JO JequinN B

shep / uiypm
pale|dwod sjuswssasse
[BI}UI JO JOqWINN @

% uer % 93d % AON % 300

ajeasawiy ul pajajdwod sjusWSSIsse [enRiul %,

9% deg

%0

%01

%0¢

%0¢€

%0y

%08

%09




Page 97

CareQualit gy o "x*
Q Commission e Ofsted

raising standards
improving lives

Inspection of progress made in the provision
of safeguarding services in the London
Borough of Haringey

Care Quality Commission
HM Inspectorate of Constabulary
Ofsted

Age group: All
Published: 23 February 2010




Page 98

© Crown copyright 2010

Website: www.ofsted.gov.uk

This document may be reproduced in whole or in part for non-commercial purposes, provided
that the information quoted is reproduced without adaptation and the source and date of
publication are stated.

Further copies of this report are obtainable from the local council or at www.ofsted.gov.uk



Page 99

Inspection of progress made in the provision of safeguarding services

Contents

About the inspection

Evidence

Context

Overall judgement on progress since December 2008 and June 2009
Summary of key findings

Priorities for further improvement

Key findings

The effectiveness of arrangements for the referral, assessment,
protection and planning for children in need.

¢ Development of preventative strategies

e Support supervision and performance management of social
workers and other front line personnel

e The effectiveness of partnership working, and the capacity of
the partnership for further improvement.

11

13

15




Page 100

Inspection of progress made in the provision of safeguarding services 2

About the inspection

1. This second inspection of progress made in the provision of safeguarding
services was carried out by Ofsted, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) and Her
Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary at the request of the Secretary of State
for Children, Schools and Families. The Secretary of State asked the
inspectorates to provide a judgement on the progress made in relation to
specific areas of weakness and priorities for further improvement identified in
the special joint area review of safeguarding carried out in November 2008 and
the June 2009 inspection of progress. These two inspections judged
safeguarding services to be inadequate and making limited progress
respectively. The inspection team used a three point scale (limited, satisfactory
and good) to evaluate the evidence and judge progress made in the following
areas:

®  The effectiveness of arrangements for the referral, assessment,
protection and planning for children in need.

®  The development of preventative strategies.

®  Support, supervision and performance management of social workers
and other front line personnel.

®  The effectiveness of partnership working and the capacity of the
partnership for further improvement.

2. The inspection also took account of actions planned and taken by the
council and its partners in response to the joint area review action plan
submitted to Ofsted and the Department for Children, Schools and Families in
March 2009. In addition, inspectors evaluated and judged progress against the
relevant sections of the children and young people’s plan, the safeguarding
plan, the findings of serious case reviews and the improvement plan produced
by health bodies in May 2009 in response to the review of involvement and
action taken by health in relation to the case of Baby Peter.

Evidence

3.  Prior to the commencement of fieldwork, inspectors took into account
findings from the most recent and relevant inspection reports published by
Ofsted and its partner inspectorates and commissions. Inspectors also
considered evidence provided by the local authority and its partners which
included the police and each of the four NHS Trusts: the Haringey Teaching
Primary Care Trust (known as NHS Haringey), Great Ormond Street Hospital for
Children NHS Trust, the North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust and

the Whittington Hospital NHS Trust.

4. During fieldwork, inspectors scrutinised a sample of 10 randomly selected
case files relating to children and young people receiving safeguarding or child



Page 101

protection services. The evidence from ‘whistle blowing’ referrals to Ofsted
about services in Haringey was also evaluated. The council’s screening, referral
and assessment teams, known as First Response, were visited where a further
selection of cases were selected at random, scrutinised and, where necessary,
discussed with key social work staff and managers. Inspectors also gathered
evidence from children and young people, parents and carers, elected
members, senior officers, service managers and other key staff, front line social
workers, healthcare professionals from the four NHS Trusts that were central to
the May 2009 CQC report, educational professionals, the police and
representatives from the community and voluntary sector.

Context

5. The report of the June 2009 inspection of progress made in the provision
of safeguarding services in Haringey reported upon the significant changes that
had occurred within the senior management and in the political leadership of
the council since the November 2008 joint area review. It also highlighted the
considerable and complex challenges facing the council and its partners before
they could begin to provide assurance that the children service’s strategic and
operational management and front line staff had sufficient capacity to
consistently deliver services to the required standards.

6. Although some progress was evident in some important areas, complex
and critical challenges remained in addressing serious capacity issues, the
quality of front line social work practice and decision making and to improve the
robustness of quality assurance processes. Professional relationships across the
partnership were building, but evidence of mistrust and an absence of shared
understanding were apparent. It was on these fundamental issues that the
priorities for further improvement were focused. This report specifically sets out
the inspection team’s findings and judgements about the extent of the progress
made in relation to each of them.

Overall judgement on progress since the inspections of November
2008 and June 2009

7. This inspection has found extensive and consistent evidence of good
progress overall and good capacity for further improvement. There was also
evidence that the leadership and management of services are sufficiently robust
to deliver the necessary improvements that still have to be made. There have
been significant improvements in the quality of practice and management,
partnership working, capacity (which includes volume and capability of the
workforce), quality assurance and performance management processes. The
council and its partners have achieved much since the special Joint Area Review
of November 2008. A new Leader and Cabinet Member for Children and Young
People were appointed and many of the current management team took up
post early in 2009. They began to identify, tackle and make an impact on the
significant problems that existed. There has been a marked acceleration of
progress to build upon the foundations which had been laid at the time of the



Page 102

June 2009 inspection. There is an increased level of confidence and morale in
the area that is enabling managers and staff to look forward with greater
enthusiasm and commitment.

8. There is clear evidence that the partnership is very aware of the areas for
improvement that still have to be addressed within individual services and
corporately across the partnership. There is evidence that these are being
planned for in appropriately measured ways in the knowledge that a significant
amount of time has passed since the death of Baby Peter in August 2007.
Members, managers and staff are realistic that their perceptions of good
progress do not equate simplistically to the achievement of good standards of
management and practice. However, there was consistent evidence of largely
satisfactory standards being achieved throughout much of the service. There is
both recognition and acceptance that much remains to be done to achieve
better outcomes for children and the high standards of service that the
partnership has set for itself. The developing culture of continuous
improvement is being used to challenge achievement across the partnership
and to stimulate and shape the next phase of the progress plan and to guard
against complacency. Performance management, close supervision and
evaluation of service impact are explicitly required by partners’ plans and there
is evidence to confirm that this rigorous approach is becoming increasingly
established across the partnership.

Summary of key findings

9. The council and its partners have made good progress in improving the
effectiveness of arrangements for the referral, assessment, protection and
planning for children in need. Effective screening has resulted in better
managed and reduced caseloads. Improved assessments, case recording and
more effective child protection planning, including better multi-agency working,
are improving the capacity of the council to safeguard and protect children.
The introduction of the police’s child risk assessment matrix has improved
information sharing across agencies and the recording, management oversight
and review of individual cases. However, medical practitioners are under-
represented at child protection conferences. Improved management
arrangements across the partnership are identifying shortfalls in practice and
there is good understanding of what needs to be done to improve.

10. The council and its partners have made good progress in developing a
range of preventative services underpinned by a comprehensive strategy. The
Children’s Trust area partnerships and local children’s networks provide
planning and delivery mechanisms to ensure that the needs of vulnerable
children are identified and met. Work is underway to strengthen the
engagement of the voluntary sector in this process. However, recent Ofsted
inspections have found safeguarding knowledge and practice in a number of
early years and childcare providers to be weak. The recent formalisation of
thresholds for access to social care services and the revision and
implementation of the common assessment framework are providing further



Page 103

support to those providing early intervention and preventative services.
However, partners recognise that the revised framework is at an early stage of
implementation and more work is required to ensure that it becomes
consistently used in accordance with the policy.

11. The council has made satisfactory progress in strengthening the support,
supervision and performance management arrangements in front line social
care services. Individual supervision sessions between managers and
practitioners are established and have been further strengthened by the
requirements of the recently implemented supervision policy, although annual
performance appraisal arrangements are yet to be implemented consistently
across the service. Management development, the replacement of weaker
managers and accessibility of line and senior managers have increased social
workers’, managers’ and councillors’ confidence in the service. Case decisions
are now recorded on children’s files although the quality of the entries is not
consistent and too often lacks clarity in describing the action that is required.
Similar progress has been seen in health trusts where there are clear policies in
place for supervision of health visitors and school nurses. Performance
management is now increasingly well established across the partnership.
Council members are actively engaged in performance management and have
also been closely involved in supporting service improvements across the
partnership. Improvements have been made to Frameworki, the computer
based recording and information system, which are significantly improving the
efficiency and effectiveness of key elements of child protection practice.

12. Progress in developing effective partnership working and the capacity of
the partnership for further improvement is good. Improved workforce planning
coupled with a much greater confidence across the partnership has reduced
turnover and increased the rate of recruitment of competent staff in social care
and health and there have been further increases in police front line and
support service staffing. There is greater stability within management grades
and there are good development opportunities. Multi-disciplinary working,
including that of the increasingly effective Haringey Safeguarding Children
Board and the Children’s Trust, is firmly established on the basis of increasingly
mutual trust and shared objectives and plans. There is clear evidence of
problems being tackled to good effect across the partnership. Better analysis of
need and increased ability to plan services to meet priorities and improved
services and outcomes for children are demonstrating the emergence of good
capacity for further improvement. The disaffection among staff evident at the
time of the June 2009 inspection has largely dissipated. It has been replaced by
a workforce that is looking forward with confidence and a clearer sense of
professional accountability. There is recognition across the partnership that
much remains to be done, for example the continued roll out of learning from
the serious case reviews, the involvement of children and young people in the
Haringey Safeguarding Children Board and the further development of
commissioning arrangements.



Page 104

Priorities for further improvement
13. Priorities for further improvement:

= Secure further and consistent improvements in the timeliness of initial
and core assessments.

= Ensure children and young people’s case records contain chronologies
and details of analysis of need.

= Ensure that all initial child protection conferences are held within 15
working days.

= Improve the involvement of children and young people in both initial and
review child protection conferences.

= Improve medical attendance at case conferences.

» Ensure that the inadequacies identified by Ofsted inspections of
childminders and childcare provision are addressed.

= Develop performance measures to evaluate the effectiveness of the
common assessment framework.

» Ensure the implementation of annual performance appraisal
arrangements for all social work staff.

» Ensure management decisions on case files are documented to enable
the impact of the resulting action to be measured.

» Disseminate the learning from serious case reviews to childminders and
all childcare providers.

Key findings

The effectiveness of arrangements for the referral, assessment,
protection and planning for children in need

14. The council and its partners have made good progress in improving the
effectiveness of arrangements for the referral, assessment, protection and
planning for children in need. Following the inspection in June 2009, the council
and its partners have taken robust and well targeted action to tackle shortfalls
in practice. Many children and families are now beginning to receive a more
timely and competent service, although it is recognised that further work is
needed to make this consistent.

15. An effective initial screening system for referrals to the children’s social
care service, together with the introduction of threshold criteria in October
2009, are starting to have a positive impact on the management of the high
volume of cases handled by front line duty teams. Screening is well managed



Page 105

and referrals are prioritised in a timely way. Referrals which do not reach the
social care service threshold for initial assessment are redirected to other
services or towards the common assessment framework process so that the
child’s needs can be identified. Where application of the threshold criteria is
unclear or challenged a senior manager can be accessed to clarify and resolve
issues. Consequently, the volume of referrals which require a social work
intervention has been appropriately reduced.

16. The introduction of clear thresholds has been well received by key
agencies, including the voluntary and community sector. Referral processes
have been improving steadily in the last six months. Greater consistency is still
required in feeding back to referrers the details of actions taken or proposed.
However health visitors, North Middlesex University Hospital NHS Trust and
some schools and education managers have good tracking systems in place.
Effective action has also been taken by health and children’s social care services
to improve the quality of health referrals and a standard referral form,
accessible electronically but initially faxed to the first response team, has been
introduced. With one exception, the health trusts follow up referrals with a
telephone call. Liaison between the police and children’s social care services at
the point of referral is also more structured and systematic. A single,
comprehensive assessment process for all referrals to police child abuse
investigation teams, called the child risk assessment matrix, has been
introduced throughout the Metropolitan Police Service. Although recently
implemented in Haringey, benefits in terms of improved recording, information
sharing, oversight and review are already evident. Plans are well advanced to
create a multi-agency team from April 2010 to build upon the progress that has
been made to manage and prioritise more effectively the very large numbers of
referrals of domestic abuse. This will be co-located with the First Response
Team within children’s social care and will involve staff from the education
welfare service, the borough police public protection service, and health.

17. The timeliness of initial assessments and core assessments is improving
steadily and is the subject of rigorous oversight. This remains an area for
development requiring concerted management action despite a significant
reduction in the number of cases that are currently awaiting an initial
assessment. There are now only 14 of these. The causes of delays are well
understood and close management scrutiny of each individual case is
identifying any increase in the level of risk that requires immediate action.
Recent referrals examined by inspectors show good improvement in timely and
appropriate responses to child protection concerns. Daytime services are
supported by an effective out-of-hours team. Continuity of case plans is assured
by good practice in exchanging information, effective collaboration with partner
agencies, ready access to social work managers and, where necessary, to the
council’s solicitors for consultation and guidance, and links to the Frameworki
electronic record system.

18. Significant improvement has been achieved in the quality of assessments.
This area of practice has been specifically targeted by managers and more



Page 106

recent cases demonstrate good involvement of the child or young person and
other agencies leading to consistent identification of risk factors. However,
some case records still lack documented case chronologies and details of
analysis. Three of the ten files selected at random in advance of the inspection
raised concerns about the quality of practice, but neither these, nor any of the
cases subsequently examined during this inspection, including the whistle
blowing cases, raised critical safeguarding concerns and no children were
judged to be at immediate risk of significant harm. The introduction of the
safeguarding panel to oversee complex cases and to ensure that case plans are
supported is valued by staff and provides an additional quality check on
casework.

19. More than 94% of child protection review conferences are undertaken
within statutory timescales, although the timeliness of initial child protection
conferences is more variable and currently stands at 43%, a figure significantly
lower than that found in comparator councils. Too few medical consultants and
general practitioners (GPs) attend case conferences, although there is a policy
that written submissions must be made where attendance is not possible. All
282 child protection cases are allocated to qualified and experienced social
workers and the quality of child protection plans is being closely monitored by
senior managers. Recent plans demonstrate a sharper focus on identifying risk.
Separate Frameworki report formats for core assessments, section 47
investigations and the initial child protection conference have been combined, a
progressive step that has been very well received by practitioners and
managers. The bringing together of these documents has resulted in significant
improvements to timeliness, report quality and case management of these
critical stages in the child protection process.

20. Participation of key agencies in reviews, assessments and child protection
planning is increasing, and notification arrangements for meetings have become
more systematic and timely. The introduction of the child risk assessment
matrix has been well received and is resulting in identifiable early improvements
to the timeliness and quality of police information to child protection
conferences and core groups meetings. Police are present at all initial child
protection conferences although attendance at reviews is determined on a case
by case assessment of need. This improvement follows an increase in staffing
levels and improved planning and preparation. Care planning is improving
across health partners following a recent review and proposals for a common
information technology system across providers are being considered. Robust
action has been taken in the council’s legal services team to implement the
learning from serious case reviews and this has improved the quality of service.
The attendance of the council’s solicitors at child protection conferences
coupled with improved legal planning meetings is impacting well upon decision
making in complex cases and on the quality of council applications to the court.
However, children and young people rarely attend child protection conferences
and the council recognises this is an area for improvement.



Page 107

21. Progress on improving case recording in children’s social care services is
satisfactory. Most case records are up to date and relevant. Management of
cases is improving and management decisions are now systematically recorded
on files. There has been a concerted effort by the police to move from paper to
electronic records. Police record-keeping is more robust following the
implementation of the child risk assessment matrix and the rationalisation of
recording through the crime recording information system. Great Ormond
Street Hospital in Haringey has made good progress in ensuring improved case
recording by health visitors and school nurses. The council and NHS London are
undertaking a project to improve access by health partners (including GPs) to
information on children with a child protection plan. There are four different
electronic case recording systems in place in GP practices in Haringey. However,
the use of different systems causes significant difficulty in a minority of
practices where patient records cannot be transferred electronically if the
transfer necessitates communicating with a different system. This means that
some confidential information still has to be transferred in paper form. NHS
Haringey is involved in a national pilot designed to allow practices to transfer
patient notes electronically which, if successful, would be implemented
nationally from the end of 2010. School-based records are recognised as being
too inconsistent and action is planned to introduce a consistent process
supported by a standard recording format for child protection conferences and
reviews.

22. Auditing arrangements introduced in 2009 are comprehensive and
thorough at single-agency and multi-agency levels, including Haringey
Safeguarding Children Board. Audits are well targeted and a consistent
framework is in use across health and social care which is enabling evaluations
of practice improvement. Independent audits from an external consultant have
been commissioned by a members’ panel since shortly after the death of Baby
Peter to provide an additional check on the integrity of data that councillors
receive from all sources. Early findings from internal and external audits confirm
a steady trend of improvement in health and social care where practice has
previously been judged to be inadequate. However there are still areas for
improvement, for example in health where 23% of health visitor and school
nurse records were found by an internal audit to be below standard. The
Metropolitan Police Service has supplemented its performance management
arrangements with the introduction of a rolling programme of inspection and
review health checks for all of the Metropolitan Police Service child abuse
investigation teams. However, the Haringey child abuse investigation team has
been the subject of management scrutiny over the last year and for this reason,
together with the timing of this inspection of progress, it has not yet been
inspected under the new programme.

23. Information systems for managers are much improved. Managers in social
care receive weekly detailed management information to enable effective case
tracking. Many children under three years of age with child protection plans
have a named senior manager as a ‘safeguarding champion’. There is an
ambition to extend this initiative to all children with a child protection plan in



Page 108

10

this age range. This has resulted in social workers feeling well supported in
complex cases and has also served to increase confidence in senior managers
who are seen to be taking direct and supportive interest in complex cases.
Tracking of cases in the police child abuse investigation team has also improved
through the use of one electronic access point for all referrals and the use of
the crime recording information system as a single point of reference for
collated information and up-to-date chronologies. NHS Haringey has introduced
a scorecard for hospital trusts in Haringey and GPs. These are being developed
to ensure that quality data are captured. The data inform the Health Leadership
Safeguarding Children Steering Group in developing good practice.

24. Progress in reducing caseloads in the children’s social care service is good.
Some social workers’ caseloads have reduced by up to 50% as a result of
concerted and well focused managerial action and increased administrative
support. Individual social worker caseloads of between 14 and 17 children and
young people within the children’s social care service First Response Teams are
now at acceptable and nationally comparable levels. This is enabling social
workers and managers to focus more effectively on the timeliness and quality
of assessments. There are still some delays in transferring cases from First
Response to longer term teams, but these are much reduced and are kept
under close scrutiny. The quality of information recorded on the files being
transferred has improved steadily.

25. Good progress has been made across the partnership in improving the
knowledge of safeguarding and child protection procedures. The recently
published Haringey Safeguarding Children Board Handbook for Child Protection
has been well received. Ten thousand copies have been disseminated to staff
across agencies reinforcing the message that safeguarding is everyone’s
responsibility. However, the high demand for the handbook, which is currently
being reprinted, means that some groups of staff have not yet received their
own copies although it is accessible on line. The groups still requiring copies
include: front line staff in the youth service, some areas of early years
provision, for example childminders and private, voluntary and independent
childcare providers, and voluntary and community organisations. Pan-London
child protection procedures and local guidance are also available on line,
regularly updated and well accessed by staff. Practice standards are on display
in children’s social care offices and all relevant police personnel have immediate
access to child protection procedures.

26. Robust procedures are in place to monitor compliance with safeguarding
requirements in schools and Ofsted inspectors consistently report safeguarding
to be a strength. However, seven of the 25 inspections of childminders and
childcare provision in the last six months have identified inadequacies in
safeguarding. Partners recognise that a cultural change is needed amongst
some early years and childcare providers so that they fulfil their responsibilities
for keeping children safe and contribute appropriately to the preventative
agenda by being sufficiently confident and knowledgeable of procedures to
refer safeguarding concerns appropriately. While robust actions are being taken



Page 109

11

to bring about improvements, for example, the accreditation scheme for
childcare providers and targeting childminders for the ‘Making a Difference’
training course, it is too early to see their impact.

Development of preventative strategies

27. Progress in the development of local preventative strategies, in the use of
the common assessment framework and in the effectiveness of policies relating
to the eligibility for access to services is good. Partners have made good
progress since the Joint Area Review in 2008 and the subsequent inspection of
progress. Both inspections identified the range of family support and
preventative services that were in place or developing, but also found that the
services lacked a coherent strategy to target and co-ordinate them effectively.

28. Haringey Children’s Trust has now developed a comprehensive
preventative strategy which is in the final stage of extensive consultation before
formal implementation on 1 April 2010. The children and young people’s plan
sets out the priorities for delivering the strategy which is based on the needs
analysis undertaken for the plan and a range of other data, including local
information from each of the three geographical networks in Haringey. It has
also taken account of the learning from serious case reviews. An ‘annual
vulnerable children’s conversation’ is being re-introduced although few have
taken place so far. There is some scepticism about their purpose and value,
based upon previous experience of a similar initiative some time ago. However
in the conversations which have taken place recently, multi-agency teams have
visited and held discussions with staff in children’s centres, schools and other
settings to share information and good practice. Importantly, they have also
sought to identify the most vulnerable children to inform local service planning
and prioritisation. The preventative strategy is well linked to other more specific
plans and strategies, for example those focusing upon family support,
homelessness, disabled children, early years, mental health, substance misuse,
and the health of children.

29. Children’s Trust area partnerships have been recently established in each
of the three geographical areas in the borough to provide strategic leadership
to deliver the children and young people’s plan and to agree local priorities.
Each area has identified its own additional priority based on local need. The
north network is focusing on a community with high levels of deprivation, the
west on domestic abuse and the south on transition points for children. The
learning from these will inform future planning.

30. Local children’s networks, each led by a co-ordinator, have been created in
each of the three areas to develop and deliver multi-agency services. Three co-
located teams, currently largely based on educational support services, are
being developed and will be extended over time to encompass a wide range of
partners. For example, health visitors have been assigned to each network
although they are not yet co-located with network teams. The teams are
receiving common training to strengthen practice and learning and they are



Page 110

12

being supported to plan and co-ordinate activities to meet the identified range
of children’s needs more effectively.

31. Managers and staff across the partnership speak about the significant
improvements in the quality of multi-agency relationships. Trust has been
established to a significant extent which, in turn, has stimulated improvements
in collaborative working demonstrated by improved attendance and planning at
different forums and by examples of effective child-centred joint working. For
example, agencies working with homelessness and domestic violence link with
the education welfare service to ensure that disruptions to children’s education
are minimised when families are relocated. Similarly, the police work effectively
with integrated youth services to successfully deflect young people from gang-
related activity.

32. Haringey introduced the common assessment framework very quickly in
January 2007. However, it was inappropriately seen as a referral process by the
limited number of agencies, in particular the schools, which were involved at
that stage. Partners have subsequently made significant and appropriate
revisions to the process and the guidance, most importantly in emphasising the
framework’s primary purpose as an ongoing assessment tool to be used by staff
and agencies in delivering support to children and families. However, partners
recognise that the revised version is at an early stage of implementation and
more worKk is required to ensure that it becomes consistently used in
accordance with the policy.

33. Knowledge of the common assessment framework is being reinforced
through extensive multi-agency training programmes, including training for the
trainers, which are running on different dates through to August 2010. This
ensures that learning is being disseminated more effectively across staff groups
and agencies. For example, three special educational needs co-ordinators, one
from each network area are members of the common assessment framework
central panel, and are able to learn more about the process and disseminate
this learning in their schools.

34. The link between the early intervention framework and making appropriate
referrals to social care has strengthened. Common assessment framework staff
are now co-located with the First Response Team and this has improved
understanding about thresholds. There is evidence of cases being appropriately
moved between social workers and staff involved in delivering preventative and
early intervention services to children. While parents are now contributing more
consistently to their assessments, children are not participating to the same
extent. Performance measures to monitor the effectiveness of the process are
not yet in place. Partners also recognise the need to engage the voluntary
sector in the common assessment framework more and are working
collaboratively with the local voluntary sector umbrella organisation to achieve
this. Common assessment framework co-ordinators are also visiting individual
organisations.



Page 111

13

35. The implementation of the thresholds policy and guidance has already
started to help agencies to understand their own responsibilities better, to have
a more consistent understanding of the role of the common assessment
framework, and to know when to make referrals to social care, all of which
have strengthened arrangements to safeguard children.

Support, supervision and performance management of social workers
and other frontline personnel

36. The council has made satisfactory progress in strengthening the support,
supervision and performance management arrangements in front line social
care services. Comprehensive supervision training for team managers has been
well received and is impacting on practice, although not consistently. All
managers have been assessed for their ability to conduct supervision and the
developmental needs that were identified have been, or are currently being,
addressed. Management capacity has been enhanced by the introduction of the
practice manager role. Practice managers who have been drawn from the ranks
of senior practitioners, have also had training in supervision.

37. Social worker supervision files provide very recent evidence that the new
supervision policy is being implemented. However, aspects of the new policy,
such as individual supervision sessions, are more long standing and established.
Front line staff have good access to managers outside of planned formal
meetings. Confidence in management decisions has improved as weaker
managers have been replaced, often as a result of more rigorous supervision
aligned to better performance management, and current managers have
become more confident in their roles. The frequency of supervision is being
audited by senior managers. In December 2009, a good proportion (80%) of
social workers received formal supervision, and managers are monitoring the
reasons for supervision not taking place. Social workers are clear that the
quality of supervision is also improving although the rate of improvement is not
uniform. The revised supervision policy requires an annual appraisal of staff,
but this provision has yet to be implemented formally. Amongst health partners,
there is good progress in providing appropriate safeguarding training to staff
across the commissioner and provider trusts. Supervision arrangements have
improved across the health community and are satisfactory for school nurses
and health visitors. The profile of safeguarding in the supervision and appraisal
of GPs has been raised along with awareness of the subject. Plans are in place
locally to include the role of the GP in safeguarding and child protection as a
formal and integral part of their contracts.

38. Good progress has been made on recording decisions on case files and
supervision files. The majority of case files have evidence of management
decisions, although there is variability in quality of recording with actions to be
taken and anticipated outcomes not always clear. Supervision files also contain
records of management decision-making. Evidence of management decisions
on case files is subject to regular audit.



Page 112

14

39. Good progress has been made in improving the Frameworki electronic
case recording system. Social workers report notable improvements to the
quality of child protection documents which are both shorter and less repetitive.
They are in a format which enables them to be easier to use in work with
service users. Financial request forms, which are also located in the same
computer based system, have been upgraded and are more focused, easier to
use and assess. These steps are improving efficiency and have created capacity
by reducing the excessive and often unproductive time previously spent on
servicing case records. Support provided by information technology (IT)
consultants is welcomed by social work staff and is also contributing to effective
use of the computer based systems.

40. Performance management is robust with the partnership focusing upon
ensuring that risk is identified and managed in a timely way in all cases. There
is demonstrable evidence of the impact of performance management upon the
quality of outcomes for children and young people and, notably, in identifying
weakness in practitioners and front line managers. For example, Great Ormond
Street Hospital in Haringey carried out an audit of quality of practice on 30
health visitors and school nurses assessment files in October 2009 and again in
January 2010. The results of the first audit were shared with staff and
demonstrable improvements to the key elements of safeguarding practice were
seen by the time of the second audit.

41. Performance management reporting lines within council services are
established. These include the regular and programmed management audit of
cases, the council leader and lead member commissioned monthly audit of the
quality of initial and core assessments and the longitudinal study of the quality
which is undertaken by the member led safeguarding policy and practice panel.
The Health Leadership Safeguarding Children Steering Group performance
manages the joint health action plan which incorporates all of the actions
arising from the Joint Area Review, serious case reviews and the CQC
investigation report (published in May 2009). The Health Leadership
Safeguarding Children Steering Group also has a function concerning the
resolution of performance management problems outlined in its terms of
reference. Health partners meet on a regular basis and safeguarding is a
standing item on their agenda. Any serious safeguarding incident is reviewed by
the NHS Haringey lead for children and safeguarding and significant learning
from the episode is identified so that practice across health trusts can be
improved. NHS Haringey has recently introduced a scorecard for hospital trusts
in Haringey and GPs, which is reviewed by the Health Leadership Safeguarding
Children Steering Group. Whilst this is an innovative development, the collection
and analysis of performance data from all four trusts has not been wholly
implemented.



Page 113

15

The effectiveness of partnership working, and the capacity of the
partnership for further improvement.

42. Good progress has been made in securing much strengthened partnership
arrangements and building capacity for further improvement.

43. Recruitment processes remain sound, but improvements have been made
to strengthen them further. Improved workforce planning coupled with
systematic support and management arrangements have resulted in a decline
in the turnover of social workers from 13.9% to 10.1% in the year to December
2009 against a social worker establishment of 202 posts. This performance
reflects good progress in a year when the children’s social care service has shed
a significant number of poorly performing staff. Recruitment of qualified staff
from other local authorities and the USA, successfully encouraging competent
and motivated agency staff to become Haringey post holders, and the
qualification of a number of Haringey social work trainees have increased the
permanent social work complement by 21. This figure will be swelled further by
an additional 14 social workers who have been appointed, but have not yet
taken up post. This has enabled the borough to reduce its reliance on agency
staff, although those who have successfully satisfied the requirements of a
competency based assessment process will be retained as supernumerary social
workers and managers. This will ensure that the momentum in building the
capacity of the workforce is maintained.

44. There has also been a net increase in the number of health visitors in post
following successful recruitment campaigns at a time of a national shortage of
trained staff. The number of health visitors in post rose to 25.6 whole time
equivalents by December 2009 with four more posts offered to candidates yet
to take up post. There has also been an increase in the establishment to 34
health visitor posts and there are currently 8.4 full time equivalent vacancies. A
review of the work of health visitors to increase their capacity has resulted in a
more innovative approach, with some functions being transferred to general
practitioners, health visitor assistants and administrators. Great Ormond Street
Hospital in Haringey has developed further posts to augment health visitor
numbers including sponsorship arrangements. These steps have demonstrably
assisted the service in maintaining key elements of the universal offer at a time
of constrained staff resources. There are still pressures on the service, although
caseloads have been reduced to levels of comparator trusts. Monitoring of
health visitor vacancies is carried out on a fortnightly basis by senior managers
and through the health action plan.

45. Benchmarking exercises of community paediatrics, health visiting, school
nurses and speech and language therapy were completed in June 2009. As a
consequence, a further £1.4 million of funding has been provided for the
recruitment of an additional consultant paediatrician, the costs of increasing
health visitor salaries together with additional funding for new posts. Training of
staff across health partners is much improved, with roll out to GPs in hand and



Page 114

16

monitoring systems in place. School nurses and health visitors have access to a
range of training courses ranging from small groups to large conferences.

46. There have been further increases to the establishment of the Haringey
police child abuse investigation team with an additional Detective Sergeant’s
post and Police Conference Liaison Officer’s post, the creation of the post of
Researcher, and further administrative support. The impact of these posts is
particularly apparent in the police conference liaison process, with greatly
improved planning, preparation and supervision. A small number of temporary
vacancies are being actively managed, although the current temporary absence
of one Detective Sergeant during the development of the First Response Multi-
Agency Team, will require ongoing monitoring. This will ensure that a
judgement is made about the viability of releasing an officer from the child
abuse investigation team, following its full implementation in April 2010.

47. The increased confidence being displayed across the partnership is
supporting managers in adopting a more systematic and professional approach
to recruitment whereby vacancies are being covered by competent agency staff
rather than compromise recruitment standards. Social worker vacancy levels
are at, or approaching, zero and exceed the performance of comparator
authorities. The net reduction in health visitor and school nurse vacancy and
turnover rates means the performance of Great Ormond Street Hospital in
Haringey is approaching that of its comparators.

48. There has been significant progress in achieving stability at all tiers of
management within social care and health. Senior management in social care
services has remained constant since the June 2009 inspection and middle
management has been consolidated with interim staff being successfully
confirmed in posts and new managers being recruited. It is from this stability
that confidence has grown and capacity has been built, with clear evidence of
progress in achieving professional relationships which actively safeguard
children. For example, there is good partnership working between health and
education to identify a significant number of children attending GP surgeries
and hospital accident and emergency departments who fail to provide
information about their school or education. This example and other similar
examples are allowing services to identify and where necessary to provide help
more effectively to children and young people in vulnerable situations who may
require safeguarding. There is also confidence that any future resignations of
managers will no longer be experienced as a threat to the progress of the
service as sufficient corporate strength has been built to enable continuity.

49. Those new to management are developed and supervised closely and
there is clear evidence that weakness and developmental need are identified
and responded to. Formal leadership training and opportunities for advanced
study to masters’ degree level are established developmental opportunities.
Trust at all levels has increased and has become an integral element of
management development. The four NHS Trust chief executives are each
occupying substantive posts and the named and designated nurse and doctor



Page 115

17

posts have been filled in each trust throughout 2009. NHS Haringey has also
created and appointed to two new senior posts: a lead GP for safeguarding and
a named nurse for primary care. The number of established health visitors and
community paediatricians has increased and currently no vacancies exist in the
team leader posts in the health visiting team.

50. While it is acknowledged across the partnership that some disaffected staff
remain in post, the majority of staff can describe and provide evidence of the
benefit of effective and visible management at all tiers of the organisations.
Managers are continuing to demonstrate leadership and rigour in their
approach. Problems are identified and prioritised for action and the significant
progress on the action plans that has been made by the council and its partners
is demonstrable evidence of capacity for improvement. Longer serving
members of staff assert that the bullying culture, which they described
previously, has been eradicated. They attribute this to the accessibility of
managers through a combination of formal supervision and ‘on the floor’
presence which has created a positive sense of direction accompanied by a
culture of greater openness with a clearer sense of professional accountability.

51. Good progress has been made in ensuring that plans made in response to
the 2008 Joint Area Review, the 2009 inspection of progress and the CQC
investigation report have been implemented. Appropriate modifications have
been made to timescales in the plans (for example to the development and
implementation of the preventative strategy) and these have been agreed
following professional discussions arising from systematic scoping of the issues.
The four NHS Trusts which commission and provide services in Haringey have
made good progress and all actions in the health action plan are either on
target or achieved.

52. Police activity is being progressed and delivered on a force-wide basis
under a specific Modernisation Project. This has incorporated all police actions
from the two Haringey inspections, as well as those from Lord Laming’s report
on The Protection of Children in England. Thirty areas for improvement,
together with dedicated lead responsibility for each, have been identified, and
governance and oversight are provided through a project board, chaired by the
Detective Superintendent from the relevant Serious Crime Directorate. The
Haringey Borough Detective Inspector with responsibility for safeguarding, who
reports directly to the Borough Commander, is a member of the project board.
In addition, the Detective Chief Inspector with responsibility for the Haringey
child abuse investigation team attends the Haringey Safeguarding Children
Board’s meetings, as well as the Borough Commander. This structure ensures
effective monitoring of progress and that borough police activity, where
appropriate, and activity under the modernisation project, is co-ordinated.

53. Partner agencies are integral to the planning and commissioning of
services, processes which have been recently strengthened by key
appointments. Improved systems for sharing information and data support
these processes. There is an increasing body of evidence demonstrating the



Page 116

18

impact of commissioning (including re-commissioning) and decommissioning of
services in increasing the value for money and effectiveness of services. Work is
underway to roll out these practices to improve service provision and value for
money in residential care and independent fostering. The partnership
recognises fully that despite some significant improvement more remains to be
done.

54. The Haringey Safeguarding Children Board has made good progress in
establishing its professional role. It has grown in confidence and has benefited
from the higher levels of attendance and an accompanying growth in
professional trust which is openly acknowledged as having been built over the
last year, with an acceleration of progress over the last six months. The Board’s
plan is soundly based on a clear assessment of what needs to be done to
ensure that its professional and community leadership roles are discharged to
maximum effect. Its membership continues to be appropriate and is well led by
an experienced chair. There is an acknowledgement that its next stage of
development should ensure the involvement of children and young people. The
Board is perceived by those working in the field and by local members to be a
critical friend that is becoming increasingly effective in holding the partnership
and its politicians to account for its actions and quality of practice through its
audit processes.

55. The learning from the four serious case reviews conducted by Haringey
has been disseminated effectively across police, health, all children’s social care
services and schools, but not as yet to childminders and private, voluntary and
independent childcare providers. Those who have benefited from the training
are knowledgeable about the detail of the lessons learned and are largely able
to identify what they need to change in their own areas of work.

56. The Children’s Trust has continued to progress satisfactorily after a later
start than many other local areas. It is increasingly central to the effective
commissioning and implementation of the children and young people’s plan and
like the Haringey Safeguarding Children Board, its capacity and impact have
increased as trusting relationships have been built across a wide and relevant
membership. The voluntary and third sectors are now integrally involved and
work is underway to increase their capacities.



Page 117 Agenda ltem 9

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee 25 March 2010

Report Title: Data Quality Update

Report of: Wayne Longshaw - Asst Chief Exec. PPP&C
P g

7 1) (* - /
Signed : {'ﬁ\}.’ i A—>

Contact Officer : Eve Pelekanos — Head of Policy and Performance
Telephone 020 8489 2508

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose of the report

1.1.To provide an update on work being done to improve data quality across the
council in particular in the Children’s and Benefits and Local Taxation service.

2. State links with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

2.1.The Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) considers how the council is
delivering its priorities for local people and how well we are delivering outcomes
with partners for the area. Data Quality is assessed as part of the Use of
Resources and part of the managing performance judgement under the
Organisational Assessment. It feeds into the Council priority Driving Change
Improving Quality.

3. Recommendations

3.1.To note the report, findings in relation to recent audits and the progress being
made in respect of data quality.




Page 118

4. Summary

4.1.The OFSTED review of Children’s Services in December 2008 highlighted data
quality weakness linked to operational practice within the service. These
weaknesses were subsequently reflected in the Comprehensive Area
Assessment 2009. In addition the data quality audit undertaken by Grant
Thornton last summer identified further data quality issues in Benefits and Local
Taxation.

4.2.Since then a number of steps have been taken to improve data quality in these
two areas:

Children and Families service

e Auditing of referrals, initial and core assessment indicators with a sample 300
cases reviewed. This audit identified improvement in the quality of recording and
completion of assessment records over time.

e Off-line social work audits found improvements in the quality of assessments with
appropriate outcomes.

Benefits and Local Taxation
Series of actions taken to improve accuracy and data quality including:

¢ New quality and performance software implemented — ensures that identified
errors are feedback and corrected

e Compliance team established to carry out data quality checks of assessments

e Workshops held with staff and team leaders to understand accuracy issues and
identify solutions

e Ongoing testing of identified risk areas i.e. new claim start dates, single persons
discount and earned income calculations

e Focussed ongoing training and development activity for benefits staff

4.3.Work continues in other areas across the council to ensure data is robust with an
ongoing programme of audits (Appendix 2)

5. Chief Financial Officer Comments

5.1. The Chief Financial Officer notes the positive improvements that have been
made to the data quality particularly in the two key areas of Children’s and
Benefits and Local Taxation service.

5.2.Accurate and reliable data is crucial to support a real understanding of how the
business operates and what is driving costs; this in turn will enable informed
decisions on where to focus and direct resources to ensure the best outcomes
for clients.

5.3.Costs associated with data quality will be contained within existing budget
resources.




Page 119

6. Head of Legal Services Comments

6.1 Itis in the interests of the Council to present an accurate and robust picture of
its work and to monitor improvements specifically in areas identified for
improvement. Improvements in data quality will assist in protecting the Council
from adverse criticism and from possible legal challenges.

7. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

7.1.Equalities are a central thread throughout the Council’s performance framework
and many of the performance indicators have equalities implications. Ensuring
data is robust and accurate is in the interest of all groups as is producing reliable
information, fit for purpose and used to support decision making.

8. Consultation

8.1. Data quality is everyone’s responsibility but specific roles and responsibilities
have been set out and communicated to staff in our Data Quality Strategy and
Performance Management Framework. Staff and Team Leader workshops have
been held in the Benefits service to engage staff and address data quality issues
and improvements in Children’s services have been supported by a programme
of training and development both on the IT system but also social work practice
based training.

9. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

9.1. Appendix 1: Summary findings from the 300 case sample audited in
Children’s Services

9.2. Appendix 2: Performance Information Audit Schedule for 2010/11

9.3. The Data Quality Strategy and related papers are published on Harinet and
can be accessed at:

http://www.haringey.gov.uk/data quality

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

10.1. Inspection of progress made in the provision of safeguarding services in
Haringey- Ofsted report January 2010

10.2. Grant Thornton Use of Resources Report 2009
10.3. Data Quality Strategy




Page 120

13. Background

13.1 The Use of Resources Report 2009 assessed the council as performing
adequately in all areas of the “governing the business” theme, with the
exception of a score of 1 (inadequate) for “use of data”. This reflects the
findings of the joint area review, the Ofsted review of safeguarding children and
mixed results from the auditors spot-checking work.

13.2 The report identified weaknesses in data quality management and reporting in
relation to child protection, in particular reducing the need for manual checking
and manipulation in performance reporting. It also made recommendations
around developing data quality checking mechanisms to minimise the high level
of errors associated with housing and council tax benefit claims, both of these
areas were classed as high priority actions.

13.3 This report details an update on the work in respect of data quality in the
Children and Families and the Benefit and Local Taxation Services and
highlights findings from recent audits undertaken.

13.4 The Council’s Policy and Performance team routinely carry out performance
information audits. The programme and schedule for 2010/11 can be found on
the Data Quality page on Harinet along with the Data Quality Strategy, Action
Plan and other related papers.

14. Audit update in Children’s Service

14.1 In October to December 09 the corporate performance team undertook an
audit of 3 children’s social care indicators covering data for the period April 2009
to September/October 2009:

o NI 68 Percentage of referrals to children’s social care going on to initial
assessment. - measured as number of initial assessments as a percentage of
number of referrals.

¢ NI 59 Percentage of initial assessments for children’s social care carried out
within 7 working days of referral.

e NI 60 Percentage of core assessments for children’s social care carried out
within 35 working days

14.2 The audit focussed on compliance with the indicator definitions and the records
available to support the figures reported for the given months.

14.3 300 cases were sampled over the period and detailed findings have been fed
back to the service. The scale of the errors found was not material and therefore
the numbers reported for the indicators were found to be substantially accurate.
Appendix 1 summarises the findings and highlights some areas of concern along
with the service response.

14.4 Although the audit found some discrepancies and raised some areas of
concern, notable improvements were evidenced in the quality of the recording
and completion of the assessment records as the audit progressed to later
months. For example in the period April to July, there were backlogs and



Page 121

emphasis was clearly on improving the quality. The timeliness of assessments

and performance on these indicators is now improving.

14.5 In addition to the corporate data quality audits of the indicators, the service

commissioned some off line management audits to assess the quality of

practice. Of the 165 audits undertaken since November ‘09 and conducted by
senior managers, there has been an improvement in the quality of assessments
with appropriate outcomes and recommendations.

14.6 The service have a performance management strategy which sets out the

contribution of practice standards; team performance plans; team evidence files:
case file audits; the Members Safeguarding Panel; and the work of the Local
Safeguarding Children’s Board Quality Assurance Sub-group to improve
performance management. There is a refreshed and re-focused monthly
performance management group bringing together Heads of Service and their
deputies, all Child Protection advisors, the performance team and other key
players with weekly performance information presented to the Chief Executive
and used by operational managers in the service.

14.7 The recent inspection of progress made in the provision of safeguarding

services confirmed the good progress in improving the effectiveness of
arrangements for referral, assessment, protection and planning for children in
need. It stated that the council has made satisfactory progress in strengthening
the support, supervision and performance management arrangements in front
line social care services.

14.8 The report also found that performance management is now increasingly well

established across the Partnership and that good progress has been made on
recording decisions on case files and supervision files. It found that although the
majority of case files have evidence of management decisions, there is variability
in quality of recording and actions taken and anticipated outcomes are not
always clear. This is consistent with the findings of the corporate performance
information audit.

15. Data quality work undertaken in Benefits and Local Taxation Service.

15.1 There has been much focused work around improving data quality in the BLT

service over the last few months. Some of the tasks undertaken include:

Implemented new Quality and Performance monitoring software — Since
June 2009 the service have been using a software tool that records and
monitors work processes that have been completed. The system records cases
where quality checks have been undertaken and provides the feedback loop to
ensure that identified errors are fed back and corrected by officers.

A Compliance Team established of four experienced assessment officers to
carry out data quality checks of assessments. They are checking 4% of all
assessments made each month, in line with best practice; and reviewing
assessments on a risk based approach carried out last year for the three main
errors types; new claim start dates, single person discounts and earned income
calculations.



Page 122

Staff workshops held with benefits staff to focus on data quality discussions
of issues and suggested solutions. The workshops were well attended and
were well received by staff. Service managers are reviewing the suggestions
and will feed back to staff about their implementation.

Team Leader workshops held to discuss the error rate, and agree how best to
improve it. The team leaders highlighted what they see as the three key areas
for improvement (performance monitoring, managing capability, and being a
point of reference for staff). A follow-up workshop will identify specific actions
to address these issues. Changes have also been made to Team Leader in-
trays removing 90% of the work that was previously routed that way. This will
enable them to focus and deal exclusively on managing their staff both in terms
of quality and productivity.

Testing on key risk areas has recently been introduced and the service is now
targeting training to address quality issues. One of the big areas highlighted in
the 2008/09 audit was around Housing Benefit start dates. A recent start date
test exercise proved highly effective and enabled the service to identify poor
performers as well as recognise staff that had high degrees of accuracy. From
May ’09 to date there were 107 start dates errors identified in the quality
assurance samples but following testing and training the number of errors has
reduced dramatically from a monthly average of 11.5 start date errors to 3.

Data Quality Champions have been identified as those scoring high in the start
date test and these have been appointed to give guidance to colleagues and
sign off the work of poor performers.

Training and Development has been enhanced across the board with the
following now in place:

o New starters revised training strategy with extended 6 week training
period for new staff (previously 3 weeks)

o New training needs strategy with needs assessment underway to deliver
on-going training on evidence based need rather than officer self
assessment.

o A new Recruitment strategy to ensure that the service have the right
people with the right skills in the right jobs. The service is introducing
testing in numeracy and literacy as part of the initial recruitment process
for all new starters.

o Quick guide laminated desk aids given to staff in key areas of
assessment and hyperlinks to Benefits policy and procedures have been
added to the new IWorld software application (V6) which can assist staff
when assessing claims.

o Regular feedback and updates on data quality once a month from the
Head of Service and feedback from the Team Leaders to the Training



Page 123

Team recording how many work items have been checked, the most
frequent type of errors and which staff have the most errors.

o Data Quality Board has been established as the team to oversee the
implementation of the improvement plan. Led by Head of BLT the team
includes members of the BLT performance team, the Head of Policy and
Performance and two members of the Service Improvement Team.

16. Other Developments on Data Quality

16.1 Work continues in other areas across the council to ensure that data is robust
and fit for purpose with many services implementing quality assurance
frameworks.

16.2 The corporate performance team has agreed a new schedule of performance
information audits for 2010/11. This is a risk based programme and will include
re-auditing areas of high risk to ensure progress is being made with any
recommendations being implemented. Appendix 2 details the programme of
audits for 2010/11.

16.3 The team have recently finished sample checking records for three
worklessness indicators that are included in our Local Area Agreement and have
a substantial financial reward grant attached to them.

16.4 The corporate team are also working with Internal audit to facilitate an
assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal controls
on the National performance indicators. These audits assess the financial and
non-financial risks and in addition provide assurance that these controls will
assist in the effective achievement of the Council’s objectives.

16.5 Internal audit have recently completed three audits on National Indicators;

« NI 117 Young people not in education, employment or training and
« NI 140 Effective Treatment for Drug Users
« NI 131 Delayed Transfers of Care

16.6 These are cross-cutting indicators where the council is not the lead agency or
the body who return the figures but they can help in providing assurance that our
organisation is working with reliable data and working with partners to ensure the
quality of partnership data.

16.7 Finally changes have been made on Framework | to make it simpler to use and
address the key concerns of primary system users in a structured and
programmed manner. There has been an extensive programme of improvements
which has included the re-engineering of the finance module and simplifying the
finance workflow for social workers; changes to the recording of child protection
assessments as well as changes to how legal documents are recorded and
saved making sure they are easier to locate.



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125

Summary of Performance Information Audit Findings
December 2009 Appendix 1

The Corporate performance team undertook an audit of 3 children’s social
care indicators covering data for the period April 2009 to September/October
2009:

e NI 68 Percentage of referrals to children’s social care going on to initial
assessment. — measured as number of initial assessments as a percentage
of number of referrals.

e NI 59 Percentage of initial assessments for children’s social care carried out
within 7 working days of referral.

e NI 60 Percentage of core assessments for children’s social care carried out
within 35 working days

The audit focussed on compliance with the indicator definitions and the records
available to support the figures reported for the given months.

Around 300 cases were sampled over the period and detailed findings have been fed
back to the service- Mark Gurrey and Christine Jorge for clarification and agreement.
Once clarification is received, this report will be finalised and circulated as agreed.
The key findings will be presented to the finance and performance meeting on
Monday 21 December.

The scale of the errors found was not material and therefore the numbers reported
for the indicators were found to be substantially accurate.

There were a number of cases with errors on each of the indicators tested. The main
concerns were around:

o Cases without sufficient recorded evidence to support their inclusion in the
indicator calculation e.g. initial assessments appearing as an episode in
Framework | but not existing as a record and counted in the indicator.

e The process and consistency with which some cases are excluded from
the calculations e.g. abandoned, opened in error or counted as
assessment with no further action

e Some issues around Corelogic reports and manual processing including
using wrong trigger dates and the count of days in which Core
Assessments are completed. Framework | reporting was an issue raised in
the last audit as part of the 08/09 Use of Resources Assessment. /n the
year to date there are 9 cases where a core assessment was completed in
between 35 and 42 days and were counted in time.

e Some inconsistencies with dates/ chronology and records on the system
either incomplete or not following the standard workflow sequence.

o Cases where no apparent record of transferring case files to another local
authority.

This audit was carried out as part of the programme of performance information
audits set out in the council’s data quality strategy. It will be repeated in the next
cycle to ensure continued progress is made.

The service responded to this audit. Their responses are in the comment boxes on
this page — they further commented that 'fundamentally, any concerns about data
quality are either explainable in terms of reporting difficulties with FWi or as a



Page 126

consequence of reasonable differences in judgement exercised by different
managers'.



AR R

i
L

i F*;‘“ i
f |

i

g

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 129 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Audit Committee On 25" March 2010

Report Title: Grant Thornton — Review of partnership working in Haringey

Report of: Assistant Chief Executive, Policy, Performance and Communications

/74

P

Signed : PNEA //i;v{l__}\‘

Contact Officer : Wayne Longshaw, 020 8489 2683

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-Key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1.To present the findings of a review of partnership working undertaken by Grant
Thornton.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

2.1. The report directly links to the Sustainable Community Strategy as the
overarching strategy for the Haringey Strategic Partnership. The
recommendations in the report will help to strengthen partnership working and
thus delivery of priority outcomes and the Local Area Agreement.

3. Recommendations

3.1. That the audit committee note the report and the twelve management actions
contained in the action plan.

4. Reason for recommendation(s)
4.1.Grant Thornton undertook an audit of partnership working and has identified
areas that will help strengthen partnership working. These are summarised in the
action plan at the back of the report.




Page 130

. Summary

5.1.Grant Thornton have undertaking an audit which looked at the relationship
between the Council, the PCT and other local strategic partners and focused
specifically on the quality of partnership working and shared governance
arrangements. The audit was carried out between November 2009 and February
2010.

5.2.The audit included a detailed focus, known as a “tracer”, on a specific area. The
aim being to establish whether partnership working practice in this area reflects
wider arrangements and best practice across the Local Strategic Partnership
(LSP).

5.3.The review will provide supporting evidence for the 2009/10 Comprehensive Area
Assessment process, including the Use of Resources (UoR) for both the Council
and the PCT. The review report is attached as an appendix.

Background

6.1The Audit of partnership working was undertaken in response to a national study
and toolkit for local strategic partnerships (LSPs) recently published by the Audit
Commission, Working Better Together. The study concluded that most LSPs are
evolving and maturing, but that there is a wide variation in the quality of
partnerships, and their ability to deliver intended outcomes. The review makes
use of the methodology set out in this study.

6.21n undertaking this audit, Grant Thomnton is seeking to achieve the following:
* to assess whether partners are working together effectively to maximise value
from combined resources;
* to stimulate improvements to partnership working practice within client
organisations; and
* to provide supporting evidence for the 2009/10 Comprehensive Area
Assessment process, including UoR conclusion.

6.3 Effective partnership working is a theme throughout the new CAA framework, and
as such the review will provide supporting evidence for the 2009/10 CAA process,
including the UoR for both the Council and the PCT.

Council response

7.1 The council and partners had undertaken its own review of the HSP working
arrangements and has co-ordinated its approach with Grant Thornton. Many of
the recommendations in the action plan area already being taken forward. The
council and partners will work towards completing the actions through 2010/11.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 2




Page 131

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1The review was jointly funded and is contained within the 2009/10 audit plans of
the Council and the local Primary Care Trust, Haringey NHS.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments
9.1 There are no specific legal implications in the report.

10. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
Grant Thornton Partnership Working in Haringey.

Report Template: Formal Bodies



Page 132

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 133

o Grant Thornton

Partnership working in Haringey

16 March 2010



Page 134

Contents

9

Executive Summary

The Haringey Strategic Partnership

The LSP's Long-Term Goals

Leading the LSP and Creating a Culture of Working Together
Meetings and Messages

The Benefits of Collaboration

Getting Things Done

Common Frameworks

Shared Systems

10 Looking Forward

Appendices

A Action Plan

B Methodology

Page

14

16

19

22

24

26

28

30



Page 135

Use of Resources 2009/10

1 Executive Summary

1.1

1.2

Context

As part of the 2009/10 audit plans for Haringey Council ('the Council') and
Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust (‘the tPCT") we agreed to undertake a review
of Partnership working to inform our Use of Resources assessment.

Our approach was to build on our understanding from the 2008/09
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) and Use of Resources (UoR) processes by
reviewing relevant documents and interviewing key members of the Haringey
Strategic Partnership (HSP) and the chairs of each theme board. We also sent a
survey out to 90 HSP and theme board members, receiving responses from 34
people. We considered this to be a statistically relevant response rate. Finally, we
attended an HSP Board meeting as observers. Please see Appendix B for more
details on our methodology.

Whilst undertaking our review we learnt that the Leader of the Council had
commissioned a similar piece of work from the Interim Deputy Chief Executive.
We refer to this as the "Performance Management Group (PMG) review' within this
report. As soon as we became aware of the PMG review we utilised the findings to
steer the direction of our work. The focus became for us to provide additional
challenge to the HSP and to focus on the function of the theme boards and the
utilisation of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) by the HSP.

Key messages

Setting "red flag" issues to one side, CAA identifies positive outcomes delivered in
partnership. There are good examples of working together to solve problems,
mostly where a problem is "bigget" than single organisations (swine flu, teen
pregnancy, sexually transmitted diseases for example). The challenge, therefore, is
around finessing structures, addressing known weaknesses and developing a bolder
shared vision.

The partnership is resilient; it has coped with significant external stress and scrutiny,
changes to personnel and challenging discussions. This has been achieved through a
combination of generally effective structures and good interpersonal relationships.
The adversity faced in the past 18 months has led to renewed focus regarding
partnership working and this was reflected on positively in the recent joint
inspectorates' report on safeguarding.

However, performance management systems have risked becoming stymied, as
there has been little differential in the reports received by the theme boards and the
board / PMG. There has been a sense of disconnect between HSP leadership and
local / front-line service delivery. Joint resource management is rudimentary in
terms of tangible outcomes outside the Area Based Grant (ABG) / Performance
Reward Grant (PRG) debate, and the scope for achieving significant efficiencies
through collaboration between HSP partners is only now starting to be explored
seriously. This is vital as it is one of the pivotal ways of addressing the stresses of
the 2011/12 and beyond funding reduction. The Partnership is self-awate in this
respect and recognises the need to shift up a gear. Partners are setting a clear agenda
for development and improvement.

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1



Page 136

Use of Resources 2009/10

1.3

The theme boards are operating at differing levels of maturity and effectiveness,
with performance against LAA targets varying widely across the boards. The latest
data available shows that overall across the LAA targets 24.3% are rated as 'red,
with the Enterprise Board for example having 57% rated as 'red’ and data awaited
for all its other targets (see section 2.5.7 below). This performance should, however,
be set in the context of an 18 month recession. In addition, in our view the number
of members on the theme boards is too high in some cases. Further monitoring and
review of the theme boards is needed as part of the continuing PMG review.

The JNSA has to date had inconsistent impact across the partnership. Partners are
aware of it, but have not all been able to make effective use of it, particularly at the
Better Places and Integrated Housing theme boards. There is scope for Phase 2 to
more directly influence and inform all the theme boards' work, and for it to
continue to feed into specific commissioning activity.

High-priority actions
Please see Appendix A for our Action Plan with management responses to the
action points below:

The HSP Board needs to be free to focus on strategic issues. The theme boards
should be managing the more operational matters, for example, recycling targets.

The HSP is data-rich, and there are specific examples of information being shared
effectively, but the volume and distribution of data makes it difficult to access
efficiently. Interviewees have spoken of needing a "helicopter view", which the
PMG has recognised.

It is agreed that the proposed secretariat to address this issue needs to be more
outward-looking, helping to ensure that the ABG continues to be invested wisely.

The PMG's proposal to form an HSP Business Group should be implemented.
This group should be tasked with monitoring financial information and influencing
mainstream resource allocation across the partnership. The starting point for
steering is knowledge about the resources available. That said, any resource
mapping undertaken must be proportional and cost-effective

Senior managers’ events across the partnership should be maintained as they
provide the opportunity to build a culture of partnership working below the PMG
level.

The Council currently demonstrates community leadership in line with it being
democratically accountable. The impression given by some is that more leadership
is needed from non-Council other partners, as all need to be 'Leaders of place.' The
HSP should continue to work to ensure balanced input from all parties. For
example, the police have recently started to work with the Council to better ensure
that CCTV provides value for money. Activity data is available but historically this
has not been analysed to link with outcomes. We understand that five or six
outcomes are being agreed so that data can be coded accordingly.

There is scope for phase 2 of the JSNA to better inform the work of all the theme
boards. The biggest three theme boards (Wellbeing, Children's Trust and Safer
Communities) have utilised phase 1 effectively, along with their own strategic needs
assessments. The Enterprise board utilises its own recession dashboard. However
the JSNA could more effectively feed into the work of the Better Places and
Integrated Housing boards. Overall responsibility should be agreed for the effective
dissemination of the JSNA data to all the theme boards.

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 2



Page 137

Use of Resources 2009/10

1.4

1.5

The recent PMG review did not look at the theme boards in detail. Their link to
the newly proposed Executive Board will need to be considered. The PMG has
recognised that once in place the Executive Board may wish to carry out a piece of
work reviewing the structure of the theme boards and whether they are appropriate
to the needs of Haringey. We would agree this review needs to be completed, with
an emphasis on both LAA targets and other demonstrable outcomes being achieved
by each board.

In out view chairs of theme boatds should not also chair any of the board's sub-
groups, as this could represent a conflict and result in a lack of appropriate scrutiny
of chairs' performance.

The development of a commissioning framework was agreed and adopted in April
2009 and the practical application has been tested by the Compact toolkit. This will
continue to help align Voluntary & Community Services (VCS) activity to
commissioning opportunities. However, the Haringey Association of Community
and Voluntary Organisations (HAVCO) perceives that the interests of third sector
representatives are best reflected around health and wellbeing, but that there is
room for improvement in the other theme areas.

Six individuals from the Community Link Forum (CLF) are voted to represent the
CLF on the HSP Board. We would recommend that the HSP build 'community
empowerment' into the HCLF project to ensure that the community representatives
receive the capacity building support that some of them require. Also, the fact that
individuals are voted for rather than organisations means that some major VCS
delivery partners could not be actively involved. There is a perception from some
quarters that CLE attendees are not able to fully represent the relevant delivery
agencies. Where the board perceives there is a deficit of expertise, we would
recommend that it consider using the allowed option to co-opt members who are
not elected through the CLF. In addition, the CLF is perhaps being under-utilised.
For example, the tPCT would find it useful to utilise the CLF more to make contact
with excluded groups.

It is recognised that engagement from the private sector needs to improve, and that
perhaps looking outside the borough is an option. The issue is partly due to a lack
of large private sector employers in area, although there is some involvement from
Shopping City in Wood Green. Engagement is being sought through other media
e.g. business breakfasts. Networks with smaller businesses are needed too.

Use of this report
This report has been prepared for the Council and the tPCT, and should not be
relied upon by any third parties.

Acknowledgements

We would like to thank the HSP Performance Management Group, the theme
board chaits, the Council's Interim Deputy Chief Executive, the Council's Assistant
Chief Executive, Policy, Performance & Communications, the PCT's Associate
Director of Communications, Stakeholder and Engagement and the other Council
and tPCT officers who contributed to this report.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
16 March 2010

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 3



Page 138

Use of Resources 2009/10

2 The Haringey Strategic Partnership

2.1 National context
In April 2009 The Audit Commission issued its report "Working Better Together? Managing
local strategic partnerships' (LSPs). In summary, this report stated that:

e LSPs must bring a complex network of local agencies together to achieve common
goals

e LSPs work through leadership, culture, and relationship management
e Standards and systems must support LSPs' layered roles

e CAA will assess whether local public bodies and their partnerships are contributing to
outcomes

The report concludes that most LSPs are evolving and maturing, but that there is a wide
variation in the quality of partnerships, and their ability to deliver intended outcomes. In
some cases local and national partners still need to recognise the key dynamics that support
partnership working. Too few LSPs take an area-wide approach to performance and
resource management. Some LSPs have well developed performance arrangements, but less
developed resource management.

Most LSPs have progress to make on their improvement journey if they are to deliver
sustainable community strategy and Local Area Agreement (LAA) outcomes. LSPs that have
good, shared systems for performance management (with performance reporting, resource
allocation, and risk management) will find it easier to show that they are on track to achieve
agreed outcomes than those that do not.

We have based the methodology of our review on the Audit Commission's report and
resultant self-assessment questions for improving partnership working.

2.2 Context for the area

'Haringey is a densely populated borough in north London with a population of over
225,000 people. It is also one of the most diverse with a significant proportion of people
from ethnic minority backgrounds and over 160 different languages are spoken in the
borough.

Haringey is the eighteenth most deprived borough in the country; although it is also has
areas of greater affluence making Haringey one of the most unequal boroughs in terms of
wealth. Crime levels are reducing but remain high. There is also a high level of people
moving in and out of the borough and shortages in affordable housing. There are large
numbers of people living in temporary accommodation and a lower than average number of
owner occupiers. Unemployment is high in Haringey and average wages are lower than
elsewhere in London, but above those nationally. There is also a higher than average
number of people with no qualifications. There are large differences in the health of people
between the west and east of the borough. There are high levels of alcohol misuse, teenage
pregnancy and infant mortality. Life expectancy is improving and is on track to meet the

2010 target but is still below the national average.'
(Haringey CAA, December 2009)



Page 139

Use of Resources 2009/10

2.3 External assessment of the area

The 2008/09 Comprehensive Area Assessment gave Haringey a red flag for Safeguarding
Children, indicating significant concerns and that action is needed in this area. Having said
that, the CAA was positive with regards partnership working in general across the borough.

The CAA reported progress against the HSP's agreed priorities as follows:

People at the Heart of Change

e Local partners work well to help build a community where local people get on well
together

e [ocal partners are making Haringey cleaner and greener

e Local partners have a lot more to do to make sure there is enough housing for local

people

An environmentally sustainable future
e Local partners are making good progress in meeting current environmental needs
without damaging the ability of future generations to meet theirs
e Local partners are raising awareness and involvement of local people in these issues

e Some good progress is being made in limiting the impact of public services on the
environment

e Recycling is being improved with 25 per cent of household waste recycled and
composted but the target of 28 per cent was not met

Economic vitality and prosperity is shared by all

e Regeneration schemes are being targeted to reduce the gap between the east and the
west of the borough

e Local partners understand their challenges in relation to worklessness and are working
to tackle these

e Local partners are working well to support young people who are out of work and to
increase their levels of skills

e Local partners are working to tackle poverty in Haringey and have agreed a plan to do
this

Safer for all

e The safeguarding of children is a key risk for local partners and has been red flagged

e The fostering agency and private fostering arrangements are good, but looked after
children continue to experience too many changes of placement

e An independent inspection of adult social care services in January 2009 found that the
safeguarding of vulnerable adults was adequate

e Opverall crime in Haringey is reducing. However local people are still concerned about
the levels of crime

Healthier people with a better quality of life
e Local partners are making some progress in improving the health of local people.
However there are still some key challenges

e Local partners are working with local people to help them manage their own health

e More needs to be done to improve the health of children. Local partners have a good
understanding of the challenges and are taking action to address these

e The number of teenage pregnancies remains a key concern. Local partners are
prioritising this issue and taking action to address it

e Local partners put extra money into sexual health services last year and met its target for
local people aged 15 — 24 accepting a test/screen for Chlamydia



Page 140

Use of Resources 2009/10

e Significant challenges remain in reducing alcohol harm. Local partners have a good
understanding of these challenges and have agreed an action plan

People and customer focused

e Local partners have made some progress in meeting their aim for local people to have
high quality, customer focused services

e Greater opportunities are being provided for local people to get involved in decision
making

e Local partners are working well with voluntary and community organisations overall

2.4 Structure of the partnership

The HSP Board represents the strategic layer of the partnership structure. There are 35
representatives on the HSP Board from organisations across the borough. The HSP Board
is chaired effectively by the Leader of the Council.

Below the HSP Board at an executive level there is a Performance Management Group
(PMG) consisting of 8 members from the Council, tPCT, Fire, Police, College of North
East London (CONEL), Job Centre and Haringey Association of Community and
Voluntary Organisations (HAVCO). As the PMG evolves into an Executive, it is being
considered that the current chair be rotated in order that the Leader of the Council can
contribute fully rather than managing both meetings.

Below the PMG at an operational level there are six Theme Boards, responsible for service
management and delivery.

At the January 2010 HSP Board the PMG presented some of its findings from the recent
PMG away day. Changes to the structure of the partnership were proposed as follows:

Standing Conference

It was proposed that this should become the new format for HSP meetings. In addition to
the existing core membership the Area Assembly Chairs would become members of the
HSP and other ‘topic specific’ participants would be invited to attend where appropriate.

Executive Board
It was proposed that this should replace the existing PMG and would have increased
delegated authority to drive delivery and to shape, prioritise and direct resources.

In addition to formal meetings the Executive Board’s Work Programme would include
problem solving sessions and ‘time out’ to explore/commission new pieces of work and
ideas.

The PMG has agreed that the existing membership should be extended once the Executive
Board is formed by inviting a representative from the private sector to sit on the Board. It
was agreed that London First should be approached with a view to identifying a suitable
candidate for this position.

The theme boards have not yet been reviewed by the PMG and their link to the Executive
Board will need to be considered. The PMG has recognised that once in place the Executive
Board may wish to carry out a piece of work reviewing the structure of the theme boards
and whether they were appropriate to the needs of Haringey.



Page 141

Use of Resources 2009/10

HSP Business Group

The PMG has also discussed the need for a Partnership Business Manager to manage
governance issues and Chair a new HSP Business Group that would support the Executive.
This proposal has not yet been taken to the HSP Board. However, the HSP Board accepted
proposals for the PMG to submit a further report to the HSP in March setting out finalised
proposals, which come into effect as of April 2010. It is expected that the HSP Business
Group idea will be included at this time.

The Business Group would consist of the Lead Officers from each of the theme boards and
would develop new practice and policy on behalf of the Executive Board. It would also be
responsible for taking an overview of the resources available across the Partnership, which
will be essential in the current economic climate.

2.5 Story of the theme boards

There are six theme boards under the HSP, each being responsible for its corresponding
LAA targets. These boards have been in place since 2002 / 2003 and ate all at different
stages of development.

Each theme board has a nominated scrutiny lead at member level, with activity aligned to
theme boards. In 2009/10 specific scrutiny reviews are being undertaken in each of the
theme board areas with the exception of the Integrated Housing Board, which already has a
report going direct to the Overview & Scrutiny Committee (OSC). Examples include ' What
can be done to improve the support given to carers?' (Wellbeing) and ' What actions are
being taken / considered to encourage sustainable travel and to reduce traffic congestion?'
(Better Places).

Each theme board has CLF representatives. This mechanism is beneficial to HSP partners
as well as the VCS as it provides consistency and accountability across the Boards and
ensures community engagement.

2.5.1 Enterprise

The Enterprise Board is Chaired by the Chief Executive of the Council, with the Vice Chair
being the Cabinet Member for Environment & Conservation. It has approximately 18
members from across the Council, the tPCT, CONEL, HAVCO, the LSC, Jobcentre Plus,
Business Link, the North London Chamber of Commerce, economic development bodies
and local VCS groups amongst others.

The atmosphere of meetings is perceived to be very professional. It is generally agreed that
getting private sector involvement on the Board is problematic, partly due to there being
few large local employers who would have a vested interest. The HSP has started holding
Business Breakfasts in order to better gather the views of the private sector. It has been
suggested that forums could be formed that would better interact with the local business
community to identify milestones for business development and enterprise. There is also
scope for having the meeting Chaired by a different partner, moving the Council from its
current 'driving' role to that of an enabler. There is an opportunity here for improved
involvement and engagement of local businesses, both small and large within and outside of
the borough.

There is good engagement from community representatives who are active and ask
questions. The community representatives on the Enterprise Board have also led
presentations at the meetings and played an active role in the finalisation of the Enterprise
Prospectus, the Board’s commissioning document. At the end of each session there is half
an hour to discuss a particular topic so that the Board is not just papers led. This allows
everybody to contribute.



Page 142

Use of Resources 2009/10

2.5.2 Wellbeing

The Wellbeing Board is Chaired by the Chair of the tPCT, with the Vice Chair being the
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care and Wellbeing. There is an agreed approach that
these two roles are rotated on an annual basis (i.e. next year the Chair will be the Cabinet
Member). It has approximately 23 members from across the Council, the tPCT, local NHS
Trusts, the Mental Health Trust, local VCS groups, CONEL, Middlesex University,
HAVCO and the Probation service amongst others. The Wellbeing Board receives the
second highest level of ABG (approximately £5m).

Our perception is that the Board has become more effective but is still evolving. It is quite
mature as it heavily involves health and social care who historically have always worked
together. The current chair had been the Vice Chair for many years then put himself
forward as the chair as he had concerns over how the Board was progressing. The
atmosphere of meetings is now felt to be positive and discussions relevant.

The rotating chair agreement shows a level of maturity. However, we have also been told
that the chair can rotate quite regularly throughout the year (due to unavailability) which
does not help progress / the exetcise of control. Some feedback received implies the
agendas have been too heavy and that there is too much information to disseminate,
although the atmosphere does remain good. The current chair is keen to introduce
exception reporting to avoid receiving too much data. An impression has been given that
the Community Link Forum (CLF) representatives can be dominated over by the bigger
agencies and are therefore prevented from making as much of an impression as they could.

There are protocols in place for data sharing with regards adults and more recently children.
Partners recognise that health is a shared responsibility. There is good engagement with the
Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) and successful, open commissioning. 63 wellbeing
projects have been commissioned with VCS organisations. This is approximately a quarter
of the theme board's commissioning. The theme board had significant input into the
Sustainable Community Strategy (SCS) and as a result this includes significant health targets.

The issue of taking responsibility for costs between the Council and the tPCT does not
appear to be a problem in Haringey. In addition to the Wellbeing board there is a quarterly
meeting between the Leader and top team members from Children & Young People's
Services (CYPS), Adult Social Services (ASS) and the tPCT, and the Leader meets with the
tPCT chair on a monthly basis.

Last year there were good results around older people and delayed discharges as a result of
close partnership working.

2.5.3 Safer Communities

The Safer Communities Executive Board (SCEB) is chaired by the Cabinet Member for
Safer Communities and Enforcement, with the Vice Chair being the police Chief
Superintendent. In the past this board was chaired by the Council's Chief Executive as she
had experience of this from elsewhere. There is an intention for the chair to rotate to being
the Chief Superintendent in the coming year, depending on events after the local elections
in May. It has approximately 19 members from across the Council, Homes for Haringey, the
tPCT, the Fire Service, the Mental Health Trust, the Probation service and local community
groups amongst others.



Page 143

Use of Resources 2009/10

The SCEB has evolved from the Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership (CDRP). Since
then the police, probation, fire and voluntary sector have all come to the table to avoid
duplication of work and to add value to the board. Our perception is that the SCEB is
strong and that the police presence contributes towards this. There is real commitment and
passion from the chair. However, the perception is that meetings can tend to be too long
and there is sometimes a parochial bias. It is felt that the pace of meetings needs to be
faster, as members are committed and tend to have already read the papers. They therefore
want to use the meeting to move the discussion forward.

Attendance is good, with agencies encouraged to send a mandated substitute when a
member cannot attend. Representatives from Health are becoming more involved, and have
made a positive contribution to the anti-social behaviour sub-group. The chair tries to get
each partner to contribute to agendas, and there is a different topic on the agenda at each
meeting. There are local area meetings which feed into zonal groups which feed into the
SCEB. The chair and the police superintendent are both very keen to avoid duplication, and
for example are looking at the 'Diamond district theory' which places focus on issues in
particular local areas. To increase the effectiveness of this and all theme boards it is
suggested that theme board chairs should not also chair any of the sub-groups as this could
represent a conflict.

There is an information sharing protocol in place - this was achieved before other boards
and the Council as a whole. This is particularly useful for the police and the Council
working together. The Head of Community Safety commissioned somebody to come and
look at how the board functions which we are told led to limited recommendations that are
being implemented. There are examples of joint commissioning by the SCEB and it is our
understanding that the SCEB is good at actively commissioning what it feels is needed,
rather than just seeing what programmes are already being offered by the VCS for example.

2.5.4 Children's Trust

The Children's Trust is chaired by the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Children and
Young People, with the Vice Chair being the police Chief Superintendent. It is the biggest
theme board with approximately 29 members across the Council, the tPCT), local NHS
Trusts, Great Ormond Street hospital, local schools, the local Safeguarding Children Board,
the Mental Health Trust, the Probation service, HAVCO and local community groups
amongst others. The Children's Trust receives the highest level of ABG funding
(approximately £11m).

The Children's Trust was established in March 2009, as the new Cabinet Member wanted a
fresh approach after Baby Peter, and DCSF guidance recommended an expanded board, for
example including a local GP with responsibility for child safety. The evolving board is
mature and established as it is a statutory function. Due to the context of the past 18
months, the Trust has had to face major challenges. Our impression is that it has met the
challenges robustly, and that there is improving dialogue between partners. The atmosphere
of meetings is understood to be improving, although there may be room for further
progress as some described the mood of meetings as 'defensive’.

It is unusual for a police representative to hold the Vice Chair position, but our
understanding is that this has worked well for Haringey. The more linear style can be
appropriate and effective for safeguarding issues.



Page 144

Use of Resources 2009/10

The chair recognises the increased need for partnership working. In the past she feels that
members hadn't felt very involved, and that the approach was too top down with no
feedback being given to members when they raised an issue. Attendance was not good in
the past. This was the rationale behind forming the Trust as members would have more
buy-in. There is now diverse voluntary sector representation and the impression given is
that the Trust is more effective than its previous incarnation. The Chair also invited an
opposition councillor to join the Trust. This is the only theme board where this is the case.

The boatd is still evolving, with its own executive performance group, JAR action plan
being implemented and a specific safeguarding working group. The performance
management group meets between Trust meetings and filters the reports / creates exception
reports to go to the Trust meeting. In past below the board there was a plethora of meetings
happening with no coherent reporting mechanism. There are now three area partnerships in
line with the Children's networks. These are very focussed on delivery and the priorities
within each area. The chair of each of these area partnerships sits on the main Trust board
and reports upwards. There are some other borough wide forums, including one for
workforce development which encourages people to view themselves as working for the
children of Haringey, regardless of who their employer is.

The Trust reviewed itself after 6 months to measure whether people are finding it effective.
It has started holding the meetings at different locations, for example at a children's centre
or at the sixth form college. A protocol for data sharing has recently been adopted. The
chair identified that joint commissioning is the under-developed atrea in the Trust.

2.5.5 Better places

The Better Places Board is chaired by the Cabinet Member for Environment &
Conservation, with the Vice Chair being from the Community Local Forum. It is the
smallest theme board with approximately 15 members across the Council, the tPCT, the Lee
Valley Regional Authority, London Remade, the Environment Agency, the Fire Service,
Transport for London, HAVCO and local community groups amongst others.

The current chair has been in post for 3-4 years. Attendance is ad hoc, with statutory bodies
having a relatively poor attendance record in comparison to the local community groups.
The perceived weakness of this board is that some bodies do not send representatives with
any mandate to make decisions or contribute. The chair tries to keep meetings informal to
encourage everybody to participate. He feels that attendance is improving, with more
involvement now from local faith groups for example. He also feels that the atmosphere is
improving and that members do not come along with separate agendas anymore. However,
there are still problems with engagement and getting partners to realise they are all jointly
responsible for meeting the LAA targets.

The impression given is that this board is not as mature as others. Haringey feels it is
needed but the governance in this area is not so strong, and its general direction is perceived
to be a bit "woolly". Having said that, it has a clear action plan in place to meet its LAA
targets. The chair ensures that a traffic light system is applied, and only 'red' targets are
discussed. Because it is focussed on long term targets it feels quite established. The chair
meets with the officer team at the Council prior to meetings to filter the information
presented, enabling the agenda to remain topical and interesting. The chair wants the board
to become less Council-led. He would like to see the NHS / colleges / faith groups 'owning'
individual LAA targets and for them to tell the Council how they should be working to meet
them.



Page 145

Use of Resources 2009/10

The board has devised a Commissioning prospectus initiative. The CLF helped to promote
the 'greenest borough' funding programme, requesting project ideas from the VCS to help
the Board meet its objectives. Bodies are encouraged to come up with an initiative that
tackles one of the National Indicators. The board has to date provided £120k to support
four bids. In order to be successful the bids needed to show how they were sustainable i.e.
how they will continue once the first yeat's funding ceases. Partners lead this process,
especially the CLF bodies who vet the bids they receive and then monitor progress. The
chair has secured the same level of funding for the initiative for the coming year.

2.5.6 Integrated housing

The Integrated Housing Board (IHB) is chaired by the Cabinet Member for Housing
Services, with the Vice Chair being from a Housing Association. It has approximately 17
members across the Council, Homes for Haringey, Housing Associations, the tPCT,
HAVCO and local community groups amongst others.

The current chair has been in place for 19 months. It is our impression that this board is at
an carlier stage of development, and that partners ate still "working through the
relationship". Thete is a good general understanding that housing is crucial for all areas of
concern - health, economic wellbeing, homelessness etc. The board is getting better but
there has been a cultural issue because the Council has historically been the housing
provider. The homelessness strategy has been effective and has helped encourage partners
to work together. The chair does feel that attendees co-operate well.

Agendas are manageable because the remit of this board is quite specific. The performance
data provided for the board's LAA targets used to be poot, but now the IHB targets are
reported separately allowing for much better monitoring (the chair instigated this change).

The chair believes that the arrival of a new Assistant Director of Housing at the Council has
been a great benefit, and that prior to that the board was ineffective. He expressed
disappointment at the commitment of external partners, in particular the Housing
Associations (HAs). Attendance of the three HAs on the board is erratic, and when
members cannot attend they do not generally send a replacement. The chair has also seen
no evidence that the three HAs feed back to the other 57 HAs in the borough. It is our
impression that the chair could consider exerting his influence over members to encourage
them to attend, as this would increase engagement.

There are some interesting topics coming up that the chair hopes will better engage
members - NFI work in housing which has been going on for past 6 months; Homes for
Haringey have completed a door knocking exercise and will be presenting on the outcomes
of this; all HfH staff were recently brought together for the first time at a conference held at
Alexandra Palace to motivate them. The Chair plans to invite all 60 HAs to these upcoming
meetings in an attempt to improve engagement. They will be able to participate even if they
can't vote.

2.5.7 Performance of the theme boards against their LAA targets
There are a total of 77 targets to be considered: 35 'designated' improvement targets
encompassing Haringey's key priority areas for 2008/09 - 2010/11; 10 mandatoty education
attainment targets; 29 local indicators for areas where local priorities were not reflected
among the 198 national indicator options, including 16 stretch targets; and 5 safeguarding
indicators which were added in the refresh from April 2009 (these are therefore not
included in the analysis below).



Page 146

Use of Resources 2009/10

The relative performance of each theme board is shown below, as per the latest data
available to us. For designated and stretch targets this data is from the performance update
to November 2009 presented to the HSP Board on 21st January 2010. For other targets it is
from the LAA outturn report for 2008/09.

10



Page 147

Use of Resources 2009/10

Table 1 - Performance by number

Theme Board Number of Data
targets awaited

Enterprise 7

Wellbeing 14

Safer 10

Communities

Children's Trust | 26

Better Places 7

Integrated 6

Housing

PMG 4

Total 74 24

Table 2 - Performance by %

Theme Board Total Amber % Data
awaited %

Enterprise 100.0% 42.9%

Wellbeing 100.0% 14.3% 21.4%

Safer 100.0% 10.0% 30.0%
Communities

Children's Trust 100.0% 11.5% 15.4%
Better Places 100.0% 57.1%
Integrated 100.0% 16.7% 66.7%
Housing

6.
PMG 100.0% 75.0%
Total 100.0% 32.4%




Page 148

Use of Resources 2009/10

The tables above shows that according to the data available, the theme boards' effectiveness
in achieving their targets can be ranked as follows. This is based on the % of targets rated as
either green or amber.

Wellbeing

Safer Communities
Children's Trust
Integrated Housing
Better Places

PMG

N,k b=

Enterprise

2.6 Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)

The JSNA was completed ahead of schedule in Autumn 2008. It has been used as part of
the partnership's overall strategic assessment which informs priority setting and
commissioning. In particular it had a significant impact on the tPCT's strategic plan, and it
contributed directly to development of the 10 priority outcomes for the tPCT. It has also
fed into world class commissioning activity. The JSNA naturally fed into the work of the
Wellbeing theme board.

The JSNA, alongside other needs assessments, underpins the Children's Strategic Plan
launched in September 2009. The chair of the Children's Trust informed us that the Plan
used the same data set as the JSNA. Then the Children’s Trust broke the data down into the
three children’s areas of the borough so that it could be discussed at the first area meetings.
This led to a more local needs assessment in order to identify where best to locate projects
and therefore how best to use limited resources.

The SCEB received a JSNA presentation. This raised the awareness of the board regarding
the Health Inequalities agenda and crime patterns. The chair of the SCEB informed us that
it had led to useful discussions around the drivers of crime.

The JSNA Phase 2 is neatly complete and this yeat's needs assessments have influenced
strategic direction and developments. For example:

e The mental health needs assessment was presented to the Well Being Partnership
Board and will influence the development of NHS Haringey’s polysystems;

e The sexual health needs assessment will enable a review and update of the sexual
health strategy;

e NHS Haringey’s Neighbourhood Development Plans facilitated the development
of the Locality Commissioning plans; and

e The Safer Communities Strategic Audit was presented to the Safer Communities
Executive Board

The JSNA is also being reviewed within the LSP strategic commissioning framework. Needs
assessment is the first part of the commissioning cycle, and so the JSNA is being considered
alongside other subject-specific needs assessments, feeding into the development of
commissioning intentions for each thematic board. Commissioners sit on both the JSNA
steering group and the HSP commissioning group which will aid dissemination of the JSNA
data.

12



Page 149

Use of Resources 2009/10

Our impression is that the JSNA has been influential at the HSP level, but not always
further down at the theme board level. We are unaware of it having any impact within the
Enterprise, Integrated Housing or Better Places theme boards, but there should be scope
for it to do so. For example, green spaces and parks have an impact on obesity, and housing
has an impact on mental health. The next stages of the J[SNA will be crucial i.e. the four key
themes of mental health, sexual health, vulnerable children & young people, and population
change and growth and its impact on services should feed into all the theme boards’ work
more directly.

13



Page 150

Use of Resources 2009/10

3 The LSP's Long-Term Goals

'Effective collaboration requires common goals, agreement on how to achieve them, and
shared information about success and failure. It is usually voluntary and takes time to
mature. Successful longer-term partnerships have used an overarching vision (now
expressed as the SCS) to underpin partners’ commitment to joint working that delivers
benefits to local people and leads to action.

A strong evidence base should support the links between the SCS and the LAA. Over two-
thirds (70 per cent) of the LAA targets agreed in 2008 were consistent with local SCS
priorities. The remaining 30 per cent were evidence of the tensions between locally and
nationally driven priorities.'

"Working together? Managing local strategic partnerships' - The Audit Commission, April 2009

3.1 How well does the sustainable community strategy (SCS)
reflect LSP members’' ambition and priorities? How well is the
long-term SCS embodied in the shorter-term local area
agreement (LAA)?

The prioritisation process has been rigorous, based on a good understanding of

local need (per the CAA). Our survey results show general agreement that priorities
reflect an even balance of the interests of all participants in the HSP.

The main benefit to participation in the HSP (excepting corporate social
responsibility) for the fire service, the police, Job Centre Plus etc. is the opportunity
to contribute to the tackling of the root causes of bigger issues. For example: the
fire service contributed to the alcohol harm reduction strategy, and have worked
with the Youth Offending Team; the police have been engaged in actions to address
mental health problems.

The SCS and LAA are effectively aligned. Clear links have been developed between
LAA local and national indicators, and SCS priorities. The LAA is an effective
expression of the SCS.

3.2 How well do partners share performance and other
information to enable the LSP to track need and progress
across all SCS priorities?

The area is data-rich, and there are specific examples of information being shared
effectively, but the volume and distribution of data makes it difficult to access
efficiently. Interviewees have spoken of needing a "helicopter view".

The focus on delivery of outcomes may have become stifled by the performance
management process. The value of exception reporting is diminished by the volume
of accompanying information. The ability to deliver is affected by the maturity of
the corresponding theme board.

14



Page 151

Use of Resources 2009/10

Historically the same reports have appeared at theme boards and at PMG / HSP
level with little added value or additional debate. The PMG support the concept of a
secretatiat to address this, increasing the focus of performance reporting and shared
information. This would be consistent with the majority of LSPs and would be
funded from the ABG.

15



Page 152

Use of Resources 2009/10

4 Leading the LSP and Creating a Culture of
Working Together

"Local authority chief executives play a crucial role in the strategic and executive levels of
management and governance. They must develop partnership culture and negotiate
commitment from others.

LSPs cannot make an impact across their objectives without partners’ senior level
commitment to joint decision-making and action.

Another potential balancing mechanism is in the choice of members and chairs of executive
and theme groups. Councils in some LSPs share leadership by appointing cabinet members
to theme groups, but not necessarily to chair them.

An important message to local stakeholders is that LSPs are democratically accountable to
local people through councillors’ roles.'

'Working together? Managing local strategic partnerships' - The Audit Commission, April 2009

4.1 How well are elected members engaged at board and theme

group levels?

Partners tell a story of improving engagement with elected members. The HSP and
PMG are chaired by the Leader, Councillor Kober.

All theme groups are either chaired or vice chaired by Councillors. There is a
general recognition that this makes a positive contribution to proceedings, but
chairmanship skills have proved to be variable. Further details of this are included
in section 2.5 Story of the Theme Boards above.

There is potential for separation of duties to be enhanced. If an elected member
chairs a theme board, he or she should not also chair any sub-groups, as this
represents a conflict. It is unlikely that he or she will effectively challenge their own
performance as chair of the theme board or vice versa. It should be clear that
members are accountable for the performance of the theme boards on which they
Sit.

Survey results show narrow agreement that members play a positive role within
HSP structure.

4.2 How well do elected members on overview and scrutiny

challenge your LSP and partners’ performance?

The chair of the OSC is an observer of the HSP. The OSC has regular discussions
around outcomes that are either at risk or where there is good practice and there are
lessons to be learned. Examples include actions to reduce teenage pregnancy.

16



Page 153

Use of Resources 2009/10

4.3

4.4

Each theme board has a nominated scrutiny lead at member level, with activity
aligned to theme boards. In 2009/10 specific scrutiny reviews are being undertaken
in each of the theme board areas with the exception of the Integrated Housing
Board, which already has a report going direct to the OSC. Examples include ' What
can be done to improve the support given to carers?' (Wellbeing) and ' What actions
are being taken / considered to encourage sustainable travel and to reduce traffic
congestion?' (Better Places).

Overview and scrutiny of LSPs can demonstrate accountability and improve
performance. The Audit Commission "Working better together?' report includes a
guide called "Messages for councils” overview and scrutiny functions', which has
examples of best practice and questions to improve the role of overview and
scrutiny in LSPs. We would recommend the nominated scrutiny leads explore these
questions, if they have not done so already.

How well do chief executives and other senior managers work

together to achieve the LSP's vision?

The PMG is the main forum for collaboration. It is characterised as collegiate,
occasionally "robust", but constructive. The partnership is resilient in that it has
coped with changes in key personnel, and has had difficult discussions (e.g.
allocation of ABG) without disagreements preventing progress. The survey results
show strong agreement that strategic leadership is effective.

The capacity of the PMG is restricted by the volume of paperwork, but a clear
approach to addressing this is in place.

Below the PMG there is an opportunity for more networking of senior managers
and a need for departmental silos to be broken down and collaboration encouraged
at all levels of the partnership organisations. Senior managers’ events are the
opportunity to nurture these contacts with the objective of building a culture of
partnership working.

How well does your LSP board provide strategic leadership?
How well does the board work to develop effective joint

working and trust at all levels between LSP partners?

Feedback suggests that there is limited strategic leadership from the HSP board. It is
seen mote as a "rubber-stamp", being the main opportunity for partners to meet
and share information to inform future partnership activity and priorities and to test
out ideas.

The PMG represents the main decision-making body, providing effective
leadership. The PMG acts as an Executive Board with the power to make strategic
decisions. The recent PMG away-day highlighted the need to develop this role.

As with the PMG, there is a "collegiate" atmosphere at the HSP Board, with all
partners being given the opportunity to speak. At the meeting we witnessed a
healthy number of questions raised or comments made by a wide variety of
attendees from different sectors.

17



Page 154

Use of Resources 2009/10

4.5

How well does the LSP core team support LAA delivery?

There are clear arrangements in place for monitoring performance against LAA
targets, involving a quarterly performance review, a six-monthly review of the wider
action plan and annual evaluation of the strategy. The HSP core team is currently an
administrative function, however plans are in place to develop a more flexible
secretariat approach.

There is a recognition that the proposed secretariat needs to be more outward-
looking, as this will ensure that the ABG is invested wisely.

18



Page 155

Use of Resources 2009/10

5 Meetings and Messages

'LSPs should consider the right meeting style for each forum or board. Strategic forums
nationally commonly have between 30 and 100 members. This makes them too large for
detailed executive decision-making but not for developing the strategic vision, encouraging
joint working, and reviewing progress.

LSPs should consider the following:

* private and voluntary sector organisations proposing vice chairs, to avoid the dominance
of local authority and health representatives;

* agendas that ensure balance between different strategic activities;

* forum meetings being organised as consultative conferences;and

* a strategic board that can link the inclusive community forum and the performance-
focused executive.

LSPs need to avoid performance reports appropriate for the executive layer crowding-out
wider discussion.

LSPs should review the extent to which the style of meetings and other arrangements
support or hinder joint working. They should also be clear about the extent to which money
spent on partnership branding and websites adds value.'

"Working together? Managing local strategic partnerships' - The Audit Commission, April 2009

5.1 How well do your LSP meetings reflect a culture of

partnership and mutual respect?

The atmosphere at meetings is generally characterised as positive and collaborative.
The HSP is perceived to be less council-centric than other LSPs, and there is a
willingness to devolve key positions and accountabilities to other partners e.g. Paul
Head (CONEL) is currently vice-chair and the rotation of the chair of the PMG is
under consideration. The Borough Commander of the fire service chaired the group
responsible for developing the HSP's CAA submission. These are characteristic of a
balanced, flexible, collegiate partnership.

The Council currently demonstrates community leadership in line with it being
democratically accountable. The impression given by some is that more leadership is
needed from other partners, as all need to be 'Leaders of place' without the Council
dominating. The HSP should continue to work to ensure balanced input from all
parties. For example, the police have recently started to work with the Council to
better ensure that CCTV provides value for money. Activity data is available but
historically this has not been analysed to link with outcomes. We understand that
five or six outcomes are being agreed so that data can be coded accordingly.

The HSP code of corporate governance underlines the need for HSP leadership to
set the tone by creating a "climate of openness, support and respect”. The HSP
Terms of Reference set out clear expectations of participants.

Our survey results show clear agreement that a culture of partnership and respect is

in place.

19



Page 156

Use of Resources 2009/10

5.2

5.3

5.4

How was the chair of your LSP chosen?

The chair (the Leader of the Council) was chosen by mutual consent, and there is
agreement that this role is undertaken effectively. The chair is considered to be 'a
partner of equals’. The Leader has also chaired the PMG. The PMG are currently
considering the rotation of the chair, demonstrating balance and objectivity within
the partnership. There is a consensus within the PMG that they should hold
themselves to account to the HSP Board.

How well does strategic/board membership reflect local
diversity? How well does the strategic board agenda reflect
the different interests of public sector, private sector and

third sector representatives?

The ethnic/gender mix across the HSP is perceived to be broadly representative of
the wider workforce and community. The gender mix at a senior level is good, but
at this level there is less ethnic diversity. However, it is not clear that this presents
significant issues in the context of a good understanding of / responsiveness to
local needs & demographics.

Dialogue with the VCS is improving supported by the compact and third sector
mapping exercise. The development of a commissioning framework was agreed and
adopted in April 2009 and the practical application has been tested by the Compact
toolkit. This will continue to help align VCS activity to commissioning
opportunities. However, HAVCO perceives that the interests of third sector
representatives are best reflected around health and wellbeing, but that there is
room for improvement in the other theme areas.

There is now a delivery plan in place to monitor the principles of the Community
Engagement Framework. There is a desire for partners to pool their engagement
processes, as realistically partners are all asking the same questions of community
representatives. This is at an embryonic stage but the end aim does have value.

It is recognised that private sector engagement needs to be encouraged, and that
perhaps looking outside the borough is an option. The issue is partly due to a lack
of large private sector employers in area, although there is some involvement from
Shopping City in Wood Green, and it is understood that networks with smaller
businesses are also important. Engagement is being sought through other media e.g.
business breakfasts.

How well is LSP activity and LAA performance communicated

to partners and to the wider community?
There is a recognised need to improve links between the HSP leadership and area
assemblies, and develop connections with front-line service delivery.

The CLF is maintained by HAVCO. It includes 250 bodies, with six individuals
being voted to represent the CLF on the HSP Board. The fact that individuals are
voted for rather than organisations means that some major delivery partners could
not be actively involved. There is a perception from some quarters that this is
tokenistic and that CLF attendees are not able to fully represent the relevant
delivery agencies. The CLF is perhaps being under-utilised. For example, the tPCT
would find it useful to utilise the CLI to make contact with excluded groups.

20



Page 157

Use of Resources 2009/10

Some LSPs have developed a distinct brand, or identity, to reinforce and make a
public statement about local joint working. The Audit Commission found that
although some of the LSPs they looked at had websites, none of them (by
December 2008) had evaluated whether the resources spent on communications
and branding supported a sense of place or created further confusion about local
public services.

There have been some attempts by the HSP to communicate with the public (e.g.
LAA leaflet), but overall communication with the public / public awareness of the
HSP and partnership successes is not strong. This may be compounded by a lack of
branding, although the HSP has a clear rationale for this and the lack of a separate
website for example is a conscious decision.

21



Page 158

Use of Resources 2009/10

6 The Benefits of Collaboration

"Partnerships create synergies: the LSP’s contribution to local outcomes should be greater
than members’ separate activity. Many synergies are soft because they rely on the intangible
elements of partnership working. They develop from the trust that comes from
commitment to common goals and mutual respect..

LSPs can:

* act as the catalyst to encourage partners to co-locate frontline and back office activities;
* encourage partners to develop information systems to support decision-making across a
service network; and

* help partners manage resources to secure performance improvement.

The opportunity for joint commissioning is one of the synergies that should arise from local
joint working. Statutory partners involved in established theme groups (children and young
people, community safety, health, supporting people), are likely to have experience of two-
way or three-way joint commissioning arrangements.'

'Working together? Managing local strategic partnerships' - The Audit Commission, April 2009

6.1 How does your LSP board ensure that the contributions of
different partners build towards the agreed common goals in
the SCS and the LAA?

The HSP board has done this through developing a governance & performance
management infrastructure, ensuring appropriate level of representation at meetings.

Strategic planning within individual member organisations does take place in the
context of SCS/LAA targets, although there is no single mechanism for imprinting
this on organisational plans. There is evidence that this happens for the Council
Plan and business planning process, and the NHS Haringey Strategic Plan makes
reference to the SCS/LAA targets. Similartly the police ate focused on delivering
LAA outcomes.

Our survey shows general agreement that the right people attend meetings, although
there are some concerns around accountability at different levels.

6.2 How well does your LSP facilitate networking between

partners?
We are not aware of any specific networking activity outside the HSP structure. Our
survey does not show agreement that this happens.

Relationships between partners currently develop organically through participation
in the PMG/HSP board/theme boards.

There is potential for a partnership development programme, in particular focussing
on the middle-tier who it is crucial to reach.

22



Page 159

Use of Resources 2009/10

6.3

How well do partners work together to exploit the potential

efficiency gains from joint working?

There is a sense that the scope for efficiency is limited or would have low value in
some areas due to sector specialism of, for example, HR / Payroll systems and
needs. In this context not all members are 'partners of equals'. In reality, the feeling
is that it would make more practical sense for the Council to look at efficiency gains
from working with other London Boroughs, for example Enfield or Camden.

The most significant opportunities are around asset management / co-location but
current examples of co-location, whilst improving outcomes, do not always appear
to be saving any money. In practice terms it has, however, worked well for
Jobcentre Plus as there is less stigma attached to going into a children’s centre than
a Jobcentre, whilst also providing much needed desk space to a core service.
Another positive example is the criminal justice function within Shopping City.
Significant savings could be possible if the tPCT is able to utilise some of the
Council’s buildings, as for example this would lead to energy costs being reduced.

Strategic commissioning between the Council, the Barnet, Enfield & Haringey
Mental Health Trust and the tPCT is a potential burgeoning area. Discussions have
already been held regarding joint commissioning with the VCS for mental health
services. The development of a commissioning framework was agreed and adopted
in April 2009 and the practical application has been tested by the Compact toolkit.
This will continue to help align VCS activity to commissioning opportunities.

The Council has been in discussions with the tPCT regarding potential shared
services. The recent PWC work on support services at the Council has provided a
useful quantum for this. For example, at the tPCT the HR function has followed the
provider arm, but there may be scope for the Council providing payroll services.

23



Page 160

Use of Resources 2009/10

7 Getting Things Done

'Steering mechanisms influence partners’ allocation of resources for achieving objectives.
These mechanisms have developed unevenly across LSPs. The LAA focus on performance
has encouraged executive-level performance sub-groups to coordinate partners’ activity.
Finance sub-groups, to monitor financial information and influence resource allocation,
however, are less common.

LSPs without performance or finance sub-groups should review whether they have effective
arrangements to steer performance and allocate resources across the partnership. Finance
groups can develop rules to cover the use of area based grant (ABG) and performance
reward grant (PRG). But this is a small part (commonly less than 2 per cent) of mainstream
public service revenue spending.

One of the biggest challenges for LSPs is how they influence and steer the use of partners’
mainstream resources. The starting point for steering is knowledge about the resources
available. Only 14 per cent of the single-tier and county LSPs have mapped resoutces in
their areas. But resource mapping must be proportional and cost-effective. One case study
LSP abandoned its first mapping exercise, as it was too ambitious: another decided not to
repeat the exercise.'

'Working together? Managing local strategic partnerships' - The Audit Commission, April 2009

71

7.2

How well is performance management steered by your LSP?
Performance management processes are clear, but there are questions around
current effectiveness and a lack of accountability. There are clear plans to address
this, through the establishment of a secretariat and differentiation of internal
performance reports to meet needs of different groups / increase the capacity for
strategic management within the PMG.

Historically there has been limited tailoring of performance reporting, with the same
reports circulated to the board, executive and operational levels. There is a
recognised need to introduce more focus at different levels. This will be a role of
the new secretariat.

There is an apparent lack of accountability of thematic boatds to the PMG / HSP
and there is scope for the HSP to further challenge the performance of the theme
boards and to hold them mote to account.

How well is financial management steered by your LSP? How
well does the LSP board and its executive groups influence
mainstream resources to achieve local outcomes?

There is a clear and effective process for allocation of ABG to theme boards which
was first adopted for 2008/09. The debate around allocation of resource has
matured and developed through this process. There is a clear overview of PRG
achievement.

24



Page 161

Use of Resources 2009/10

7.3

There is a good understanding between the Council and the tPCT of total budgets
and areas of discretionary spend. There is a pragmatic, if rudimentary understanding
of wider availability of resources across the partnership, for example to the fire
service, Job Centre Plus and the police force.

Partners contribute according to their means.

Our survey results show overall disagreement that joint resource management is
effective.

The PMG has discussed plans to set up an HSP Business Group. This would
consist of the Lead Officers from each of the Theme Boards and would develop
new practice and policy on behalf of the Executive Board. It would also be
responsible for taking an overview of the resources available across the Partnership,
which will be essential in the current economic climate.

Are partners aligning their internal planning, monitoring and

evaluation processes to focus on LAA and SCS priorities?
The CAA found good alignment between the LAA and SCS. Alignment is also
implicit in that (a) shared prioritisation is effective and (b) strategic planning by
member organisations takes place with regard to the SCS.

Strategy guidance agreed by the PMG will help partners ensure that their plans are
aligned with the SCS and LAA. However, there is no overarching framework for
systematic organisational planning. This is partly because, for example, fire and
police planning frameworks are mandated by pan-London bodies.

Internal planning and monitoring arrangements are very focused on LAA targets
within the Council and tPCT, with the tPCT updating its strategic plan with this in
mind. This is less direct for other partners but reference is still made. The Council
has an overview of the tPCT’s planning in general and the two bodies try to align
their target setting so that there is consistency, for example through the LAA
refresh and by the Council having input to the NHS strategic planning process.
There is sharing of outcomes data as part of the NHS Strategic Plan and scorecards
that have been developed jointly, for example on infant mortality.

All partners have a very clear view of the resources they are responsible for within
the LAA framework e.g. ABG and PRG.

25



Page 162

Use of Resources 2009/10

8 Common Frameworks

"The layered approach to partnership governance and management recognises that partners
have their own governance arrangements and stakeholders. The original LSP guidance was
clear that partners remain accountable to their own stakeholders.

Performance information frameworks provide a focus for standardisation across LSP
partners. Shared data and common approaches to performance help to join-up theme group
activity.

LSPs that know their support costs can make informed decisions about value for money.
They are also in a stronger position to agree about different partners’ contributions, in cash
or kind, to the LSP support team’s work.

Pooled budgets allow partners to bring funds together to achieve economies of scale
(particularly administration costs) from resources that would be too small to make a
difference by themselves. The pooled budget manager can use the combined resources to
commission services or goods. But pooled fund arrangements are subject to constraints
reflecting different government department's rules.

LSPs will have a mixture of pooling and aligning. Whether partners choose pooling or
aligning, they should be clear about the standards that govern resource and performance
matters, and should be clear why they have chosen a particular financial arrangement.’

"Working together? Managing local strategic partnerships' - The Audit Commission, April 2009

8.1 Does your LSP have an agreed performance management
framework that recognises and builds on the strategic,

executive and operational roles?

Both the Council and HSP performance reports monitor performance against the
Council and Sustainable Community Strategy priorities. Performance is also
monitored against agreed targets which for the Council are reviewed and set at year
end as part of the business planning process.

The Council and HSP reports focus on outcomes at risk, i.e. of not being achieved.
The reports set out action taken to address underperformance.

At the HSP there are focussed discussions around outcomes that are either at risk or
where there is good practice and there are lessons to be learned. Examples include
actions to reduce teenage pregnancy (this was also discussed at Overview &
Scrutiny), action taken to deal with Chlamydia, improving recycling and the Drug &
Alcohol strategy.

8.2 Is there an agreed data quality policy and action plan with
clear ownership?
The Council has agreed a data quality policy, which refers to risks associated with
using and sharing data within partnerships, and sets out a range of mitigating
actions. There are also protocols in place to address data sharing for specific areas
e.g. ctime, health and adults but not yet children's services.

26



Page 163

Use of Resources 2009/10

8.3

8.4

The Council's data quality strategy and policy apply to the partnership data.
However, interview and survey responses suggest that the strategy is not well known
or understood across the partnership, and there are residual concerns in some areas
around, for example, the data protection act and arrangements for sharing personal
data between organisations.

How well does your LSP work to keep its evidence base up-to-

date?
There is effective consultation to understand local need. This is feeding into the
refresh of CAA.

Partners are aware of the existence of, for example, the JSNA, but have not all been
able to make effective use of it. This is possibly a symptom of the weight of the
information currently provided to partners, something the PMG is making steps to
change. Having said that, the development of the JSNA is now successfully feeding
into specific joint commissioning activity, and the PMG have approved the
purchase of a shared data platform currently being procured for implementation in
the Spring of 2010. This will allow the development of an electronic data
observatory for the HSP.

See also section 9.2 below regarding shared performance systems.

How well do your LSP partners understand the costs of
maintaining the LSP? How well have LSP partners made
decisions about aligning or pooling of budgets?

The level of understanding of costs of participation varies across the partnership.
For the most part, costs of participation are absorbed within salary budgets.

There are limited examples of pooled budgets in place. One example is that
CONEL has pooled resources with the Council on the Haringey Plan to tackle
redundancy. There is a strategic willingness to explore this, but there is also an
awareness that 'tribalism' at an operational level could be a barrier.

27



Page 164

Use of Resources 2009/10

9 Shared Systems

'Overview and scrutiny enables councils to hold LSPs to account for local action and local
public spending. The LGPIH Act 2007 and the Police and Justice Act 2006 give councils
power to scrutinise the activities of LAA named partners.

Overview and scrutiny of an LSP can:

* focus on one-off activities or events;

* review systems and risks;

* assess performance in different themes; and

* review performance data from LSPs and partners.

LSPs provide an opportunity for statutory partners to benchmark their performance against
one another. Some LSPs use performance information from other areas to help them
interpret local performance.'

"Working together? Managing local strategic partnerships' - The Audit Commission, April 2009

9.1 How does the LSP ensure there is accountability, through its

member organisations, for its actions?

The HSP Terms of Reference set out arrangements for accountability, but there are
some reservations around effectiveness within the current performance
management arrangements.

It is generally felt that people who attend meetings have a mandate within their
respective organisations. The duty of partners to co-operate is included within their
roles and responsibilities, and HSP board meetings generate action points that
partners are held to account over.

However, survey results only show narrow agreement that accountability is clear.

9.2 How far do the LSP and its partners have a shared
performance system that extends across the partnership
layers?

Covalent is the Council’s performance management system and the mechanism for
collecting and reporting performance data on a timely basis. The tPCT has direct
access to input and update the performance data for which it is the lead. Staff at the
tPCT can also update action plans as required, and they have viewing access to a
number of indicators where they have an interest in performance although
permissions are limited in terms of them amending data or changing targets. Health
staff have been trained and can also update risks which they own, for example some
related to the Joint Area Review action plan.

28



Page 165

Use of Resources 2009/10

9.3

9.4

Other partners do not enter data directly on Covalent but performance leads from
the Council's Community Safety team receive weekly scorecards and update the
figures on Covalent each month. This enables the corporate team to report on
performance across the Council's priorities and to present up to date and relevant
performance information including indicators on which other partners lead. The
same applies for Homes for Haringey whereby the client team update Covalent
monthly and scorecards reflect the status (red, amber or green) of performance
against target. The system is also used to report comparative performance by
including benchmarking data in performance reports.

The PMG receives quarterly updates on performance and progress against
objectives and targets under the SCS and LAA. Progtress is regularly reviewed and
shared through a number of well-established mechanisms. for example there is a
performance manager’s forum which meets bi-monthly with both Council and
health partners attending. Through these meetings it is possible to address specific
performance issues and upgrades / developments with Covalent as well as data
quality.

As part of the Council's approach to data quality it catties out audits of the national
indicators including some cross-cutting indicators where the Council is not the lead.

How developed is joint commissioning in the LSP?

There is scope for increasing joint commissioning and procurement, with the joint
commissioning framework being piloted within the enterprise board. Some joint
commissioning is occurring in health and social care. However, our survey shows
strong disagreement that in general this takes place effectively.

In the first year of the LAA there was no strategic joint commissioning framework
in place. It was in place by the second year but the majority of spend was already
committed. For 2009/10 again many plans and budgets had already been agreed
therefore there has been limited scope to apply the framework, unless spending has
been de-commissioned or new grants have become available. However, some
examples have been noted within the SCEB.

Have the LSP and its partners used benchmarking to assess

the effectiveness of the LSP?

The HSP benchmarked itself against eight other LSPs in September 2009. The
benchmarking looked at structures and performance management arrangements,
going into detail around how often the top and delivery boards meet, and what they
consider. It also looked at the number of theme boards and how often they report
upwards.

Prior to undertaking the benchmarking best practice guidance was reviewed,
including "Working better together?' and the Improvement and Development
Agency website. The approach was then to review available online documentation,
performance reports and Audit Commission case studies.

The main findings of the review were that the frequency of HSP Board, PMG and
theme board meetings (currently quarterly) may need to increase to enable more
rigorous performance challenge, but also to ensure that performance management
does not ‘ctowd’ out the agenda.

29



Page 166

Use of Resources 2009/10

10 Looking Forward

10.1 What are the priorities for improvement following the review?

The PMG has established a clear set of "next steps":

Haringey - the people, the place, the partnership

Integration with zonal working - developing a closer connection to communities
and front-line services

Partnership practice and achievement to be showcased around the borough

Performance management framework to be clarified and simplified - to include
development of a secretariat
PMG to develop role as an executive body

Our survey yielded various responses to the question 'How would you improve the
effectiveness of the LSP?' These are listed below for the consideration of the PMG:

More joint commissioning

Reducing duplication in the sub groups

Becoming more strategic at meetings of the Board

More outward facing

Setting fewer targets and ensuring delivery of those set

More joined up working and ownership

Look at the 'golden thread' issues and revise the SCS with this in mind

Involve partners in more decisions

The approach to effectiveness has been one of continuous improvement. As we gel
together as partners the better our performance becomes

There needs to be much more communication between the LSP and staff who are
working in front line services

Its current framework is effective as duly elected VCS reps on the LSP are
continuing to inform and enable VCS voice at LSP level

Would have forums that strongly reflect the key strategic priorities that in my case
interact with the business community and identify milestones for business
development and enterprise

Ensure it was not just a sign-off board but involved the community better in the
decision making

Quarterly email newsletter, which any Haringey organisation or resident can sign up
to receive - open information as a start!

Possibly an annual open SCP event, showcasing progress, inviting input of ideas,
suggestions - and chance for council and other statutory and voluntary/community
sector elected reps to be questioned

Introduce strategic commissioning across the whole LSP. It is currently being
piloted

We could do with a more targetted use of the ABG to fewer priorities, currently
spread too thin on too many initiatives

30



Page 167

Use of Resources 2009/10

e The LSP should strengthen its partnership with the local voluntary and community
sector as is the case with national organisations with more resources to deliver on
the LAA outcomes

e Not sure how many actual decisions it makes - guess it sets strategic direction,
though

e To create a platform where all partners are equal
e To ensure that LSP resources are given to partners that contribute to LAAs
e All members should take an interest in other members activities

31



Page 168

v e
29s ‘dnoiny ssaursng 9yl JO UVONONPOFIUT
91 SUIPNOUT PFeOg ANNIIXY]
o) pue 2ouaxyu0Y) drysiopea| “A[osi paisoAur
9ATINDIXY] Surpuelg oy jo Jewroy pasodoxd oy | 2q 01 saNUNUOd DY P Y} 23nsud 03 Furd[ey ‘GUROO[-prEMINO
JOIYD) 1ULISISSY | 109w 01 pajofred aq [ sired Juouodwod | oJ0w 9q 01 SPAU 1BMEIDIINDS SIUT, "JSH 2P JO SSIU2ANIAIIO o)
010g 3snsny 31 pue JSH oU3 JO Sumiazas oy, | oaordwr 01 1emrelarn9s € jo uonewsoy oy pasodord seq ONJ oYL | S ¢
OADINDIXY] *.qNyY, 2UO UT 391[3250)
JOIYD) JULISISSY UONBWIOJUT 9 [[¢ SUTIq [[IA YOTyM
010T 3290120 ‘po913e uoaq sey wirojie[d BlEep MoU Y
*dnos3s dryszoumred “pasIu80291 sty HNJ
[oea 01 papraoid eiep SUNWEaNs | o YT ¢, MTA 393dodraY, B SUIPIaU JO Uayods DALY SOIMITAFIIU]
T[4 UOTUA SFOMIWIEJ JUSWISeUrW | "APUSDGJO  $S900¢ 01 JMONJIP I SOYeW ©Iep JO UOANJIASIP
oourwroyrod PasiAdr & paorde sey dnoin) | pue own[oA I Ing ‘APANOJJO  pareys Sudq  UONTWIOJUT
010z T3dy JuswoSeuL 20UBWIONd] JSH YL | Jo so[dwexs ogwads ore oxoyl pue ‘gu-eiep sI JSH oYL | ¢ 'z
- dnoxoy ssoursngy, mou v 4q parzoddns
PIEOY 2ANNDIXH, UE dW023q [[IM DA
"SANSST 9139181 VO JUISND0] ,20T2IJUOY)
dryszopea] Surpuelg, B 9Wwo029q 01 preoy
QATINDOXY dSH ‘0107 1+dy woxy payuowodur *s3037e) SurAoar ‘ordurexs
JOTYD) JULISISSY 9q 03 SND0J MU € Sy JSH Y.L, | 707 ‘s1o1ew [euonerado srow o3 Jurdeurws 9q PoyYs Spreoq Wt
0102 (rdy Pa913y | 9y, "SINSST J130ILIIS UO SND0F 03 293F 9q O3 spadu preod JSH YL, | ¢ ‘T

S[re1ap
vonejudwardury

asuodsar JuswaSeue

UOTIEPUIWIWIOIY

ue[] UORIY Y

01/600¢ S@21n0s3Yy jo asn



Page 169

dnoi3 Surroans YNS[
010T A

“UONEPUIWWOIF

STyd ssappe [ dnozoy sonrunwwon)
FOTYI[EI], & 9w09q 03 dnord
Surroas YNS/[ 2y jo uvorsuedxo oy,

"Spreoq dway}
o [[e 01 vIep YNS[ 9 JO UONBUTWISSIP 9ANDIJJO I} FOJ PIodide
oq pnoys Amqisuodsor [[eF0A(Q) 'SpPFeoq SUISNO[ Paleisolu] pue
SB[ 79139¢ O} JO YFOM OU} OIUT PI) A[9ANDIJJo 230w PMOd YNS[
S} JOAIMO] "PFEOqUSEP UOISSIIIT UMO SIT SISIAN preoq asurdiour]
SUT, "SIUDWISSISSE SPIIU J[391eH)S UMO JO) (P Suofe ‘A[9ANd9539
1 oseyd paspypn 0ABY (SONIUNWIWIOT) JOJeg PUE ISNILT, S UIPIYD
‘BUIOQPA\) SPFEOq WAl 993U 1$933Iq YT, ‘SPILOq WA I [[e
JO YJOM U3 WIOJUT F9139q 03 YNS[ 9 Jo ¢ aseyd 103 odods st a3oy(T,

9¢ L

syouared JSH IV
3uro3u(

"paoIdy

"AJSuTpI000€ POp0Od 9 TED LIEP 1B} OS PIdIde Sulq
9J€ SOW0DINO XIS JO AL JeY) PUEISIOPUN 9\ ‘SIWOIINO I YU OF
Pasi[eue Uoaq J0U Sey SIy} A[[Ed1I0ISIY INg I[qe[lEAt ST BIEP AIATIOY
“fouows 305 onfea sopraord A 17D JBYI 2INSUD 19139 O} [IPUNOY) I3
PIM YJoM O} PaIFeIs APuoadar daey 2o1j0d ot ‘oidwrexs ¥o,] "sonyed
e woj ndur padue[eq 2INSUD 01 JFOM O) dNUNUOD PNoys JSH
SU T, “SUNTUTOp [PUNOY) 9} INOyIm 90e[d JO SIOPEI, 9q 01 pasu
e st ‘syomared 39RO WOIJ Popadu ST dIysIopea] 9Jow et SI JWOS
£q woArd worssardwr oy ], *9[qEIUNODIE A[[EONEID0WIP FUDq IT PIM
surl ur drgsFopes] ATUnwwod $NLNSUOWDIP APUIIIND [PUNOT) YT,

'S 9

T22d0O 3° Pv°H
3urodu()

pooIsy

“TPAS] DN o Mopq Suryrom drysromred
jo 2ymmd e ppnq 01 Lrumzoddo oy opraoxd Loyr se paurerurews
oq prnoys drysrouared o3 SSOIOE  SJUIAD SIOSEUBW  JOIUDG

14 S

“OATINDOXH

JOIYD) JUEISISSY
‘010T Ay

S[reIop

uonewowdduy

pooIsy

asuodsar yuswaSeue

2A122339-1502 pue [euonsodoid aq 1snwr voyeIzopun Surddews
90Jn0sa3 Aue ‘pres ey, 9[qE[lEAE SIIINOSIF oY) INOQE IIPIMOUY
ST Surre9s 303 Jutod Funrels oyJ, ‘diysiomred oy ssOIOE VONELIO[E
90JN0SOT  WEORSUTeW  SUPUINJUI  pUE  UOPPWIOJUl  [B[DUBUY
Supojuow  Ym  payselr oq pmnoys dnoid sy, paruswodur

aq pmoys dnoiny ssoursng JSH Ue wioj 01 Jesodoid s O Y1,

UONEPUIWIWIOIY

L v

01/600¢ S@21n0s3Yy jo asn



Page 170

"SEOTE QWD) FOUI0 Y} UT JUIWRA0FdWT FOJ WOOT ST 9793 Jetp)
ng ‘Suq[EM pue [I[EIY PUNOJE PIIII[JOF 1S9q dIE SIANEIUIsIIdox
301098 P} JO $ISIINUT 213 18} $2A1039d (ODAVH) SUONESIUESIO)
Arequno pue AUNWWOT) JO UONEDOSSY ASULIEL] 9} I9AIMOL]
‘santuniyoddo Surgorsstwod 03 £11a1n08 (SO A) S991AT2G ATunuwon)

ODAVH “Buruorsstuwod ut aedonyed 01 wo | 29 Areiunjo A udie djPy 031 SNURUOD [ SIY T, 3003 10edwo) 9yl Aq

SATIINDIXT] JOIYD) dmbo rom0q 031 suonesUESIO J01098 | paisal uaaq sey uopedsrdde [eonoerd oy pue g0z [Fdy ur paidope
urodu()y pargp 3xoddns 031 pooide sey ODAVH | PUE Po9ide seM JJOMIWEI] SUTUOISSTUWOD € Jo juowdo[oadp ayJ, | €°S 01

SATINDIXE JOIYD) -oouewizoyIad sireyd Jo Aupnios aerrdordde jo Yoy

fAndoq waiuy "SPFe0Oq WY} JO | © U NS PUE 1JIFUOD & JU2sa3dox p[nod sy se ‘sdnois-qns s preoq
0102 LN — ady MI1A9F 913 JO 13ed Se PIJOPISU0D 9q O, | 23 JO AUE Jreyd OS[E 10U P[NOYS SPFLOq WD JO SIEYD MIA Jno u] | [ 6

"PFeoq OB AQ PIAIIYDE SUIDQ SIWODINO I[QEIISUOWIP

o pue s1081e1 Yy yroq uo siseydwo ue s ‘panodwiod

9q 01 SPI2U MOIJADJ SI} 9933k p[nom 2)\ ‘A9SUmIE[] JO Spasu o3 O}

aerrdordde ore Lo Fopoym puUE SPFEOQ SWAT Y} JO SFNIONIIS I

SuIMOTADX YFoM JO 2291d € Ino A11ed 01 USIM ABW PIEOE QARNIIXG]

JATINDIXE JOIYD) otp 20e[d Ur o0UO JBY) PISIUS0I9F Sey DN OUI, ‘PIOPISU0D

fndo(q wiraiuy 9q 01 paau [Ia preog 2anNndaxy pasodord Apmou oy 01 Yurl JPYT,
0102 LN — pady Po933y | ‘[re39p UT SPIEOq SWIYI Y} 1€ JOO[ J0U PIP MIIAIT DHAJ U091 oYL, | §'C '8

S[reIop

uonewowdduy

asuodsar yuswaSeue

UONEPUIWIWIOIY

01/600¢ S@21n0s3Yy jo asn




Page 171

SATINDOXY

FD IUTISISSY
A [ woxg

A [ wo3J preog 9ANNIIXH pPuane

01 1SI1,] UOPUO'| WOJJ 2ARLIUIsordoy
*30199s 91eATId 1AM 05EFUD

01 Aem 159 U0 9siape 03 payoeordde
Suraq ApuaIND ST ISIL] BOPUOTT

"00}
POPooU OTE $ISSOUISI] FO[[EWS URIM SYTOMION] "SISTISeIIq $SIUISN(
“3'2 BIpawW FOU10 YSNOFY) 1YSNos Jurq ST IUIWIILIU "TUIIIL) POOA
ur £ Surddoyg worj JUSWIAJOAUT SWOS SI XY} YSnOyIe ‘eare
ur szofodwd 10109s yearrd o3xel Jo yoe[ € 03 onp Apred st onsst oy,
‘vondo ue st y3nosoq a3 aprsino Surjoor sdeyrad 1eyy pue vaordur
01 SPa9u 70309s 91eArrd 9U) WOIJ JUSWTEIUD Jeyd PISIUZ0IF ST 1]

]

¢l

ODAVH
SAINDIXE JOIYD)
3urodu()

S[reIop

uonewowdduy

130ddns £yessooou o
opraord 01 ODAVH swoddns JSH 94T,

asuodsar yuswaSeue

*sdnoI3 papn[OX YIIM 10LITOD IYEW 03 9FOW [0 23 IS[HN
01 [NJasn 31 puly pnom [ oyt O[dwexs 10,1 “pasyrn-ropun surq
sdeygad s1 IO o ‘UONIPPE U “TD 91 YSNOI) Paldde 10U o3k
oym syoquow 1do-0d 01 vondo pamofe oy 3ursn JOPISUOd Ir JLY)
PUSWITWIOD9F PINOM 2/ OsNIadXd JO J1DIIP © ST 9391 $9A1079d preoq
o1 9\ "SIUITE AJOAT[OP JULADI[RF 9 1Uasa3dor ANy 01 S[qe J0U
978 sa9puane 1) Jeyl sivgenb owos woiy uvondaorad e st ozoy
“paAjoAUT A[9ANOE 9q 10U pnod siomred LIoATPp DA Jolew oswos
JEY) SUBSW SUONESIUESIO UL} JOUIET JOJ PIIOA OTE S[ENPIAIPUT 1B}
10€3 oy ‘osTy -armbar woy jo swos 1eyy 1roddns Suipmq Loeded
oU} 9419293 soAneIUasardor Arunuwwod oyl eyl dnsud 03 199loxd
JIDOH 2y owr juowromodwo Arunwwod, pimq JSH 2yl ey
PUSWIWIOd23 PNoM )\ ‘PIeogd JSH 9 U0 JTD oy 1uasardor o3
pa1oa o3e (D) WNIO,] JUI[ AUNWwo) 93 WOIJ S[ENPIAIPUT XIg

UONEPUIWIWIOIY

V'S

01/600¢ S@21n0s3Yy jo asn

11




Page 172

Use of Resources 2009/10

B Methodology

Our approach as outlined in our October 2009 specification was as follows:

e Consolidate learning from year one of the CAA and UoR processes, as well as our
review of arrangements for tackling health inequalities;

e Distribute an anonymous electronic questionnaire to named members of all HSP

groups and sub-groups. This was sent out to 90 members and we received responses from

34 people.

e Undertake reviews of key documents. This process began with publicly available

documents and those already held as a result of our work in other areas. Where necessary

we issued partners with further requests for information;

e Undertake interviews with key personnel, initially with members of the Haringey

Strategic Partnership's Performance Management Group (PMG). We undertook further

interviews as necessary and by agreement, ultimately speaking to the following people:

Performance Management Group

Organisation PMG member

LBH Dr Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive

LBH Cllr. Claire Kober, Leader of the Council
PCT Tracey Baldwin, Chief Executive

Fire John Brown, Borough Commander Haringey
Police Dave Grant, Chief Superintendent

College of NE London Paul Head, Principal of CONEL (Vice-Chair)
Job Centre Rose Diamond

HAVCO Naeem Sheikh

Theme Board Chairs

Name Theme Board

Dr Ita O'Donovan, LBH CE

Enterprise

ClIr Canver, Cabinet Member for
Safer Communities and Enforcement

Safer Communities Executive

Cllr Reith, Deputy Leader and
Cabinet Member for Children and
Young People

Children's Trust

Cllr Haley, Cabinet Member for
Environment & Conservation

Better Places

Cllr Bevan, Cabinet Member for Integrated Housing
Housing Services
Richard Sumray, PCT Chair Wellbeing




Use of Resources 2009/10

Page 173

Other

Name Role

Adrienne Roberts, LBH Interim Deputy CE

Wayne Longshaw, LBH Assistant CE, Policy, Performance &
Communications

Duncan Stroud, PCT

Associate Director of Communications, Stakeholder
and Engagement

e By agreement with partners, we will attend HSP meetings in the capacity of observers.
We attended the HSP Board meeting on 21st January 2010.




Page 174

Use of Resources 2009/10

o Grant Thornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd (Grant Thornton
International'). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a wotldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication



Page 175 Agenda Iltem 11

Haringey Council
Agenda ltem
Audit Committee On 25 March 2010
Report title: Review of Leasehold Service Charges
Report of: Chief Financial Officer
Ward(s) affected: All Report for: Non-Decision

1. Purpose

1.1To inform the committee of the outcomes of a Grant Thornton review of leasehold
service charges.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Committee considers the report on leasehold service charges from Grant
Thornton and notes that the Council’s response in the form of an agreed action plan will
be brought to the next Audit Committee.

Report authorised by: Gerald Almeroth — Chief Financial Officer

Contact officer: Graham Oliver — Head of Finance — Accounting, Control & Income
Telephone 020 8489 3725

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The attached report from Grant Thornton sets out their findings following a review of
leasehold service charges within Haringey. A number of recommendations are made
and are contained within section 5 of the auditors report.




Page 176

3.2 A full management response and action plan to these recommendations will be
brought to the next meeting of the Audit Committee.

4. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable)

4.1 None.

5. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
The following background Papers were used in the preparation of this report:

None

6. Background

6.1 A review has been carried out by Grant Thornton into the leasehold service
charges made on Right to Buy properties and a final report from the auditors is
attached.

7. Findings

7.1 Section 4 of the report sets out the findings of the auditors following their
review and conclusions and recommendations are contained within section 5.

7.2 In compiling the final report Grant Thornton have discussed their findings with
the Director of Urban Environment and Homes for Haringey and taken on
board comments made. The Council accepts the report and is in the process
of pulling together an action plan to address the recommendations highlighted.
This action plan will be brought to the next meeting of this Committee for final
approval and subsequent monitoring of implementation.

7.3 Members are asked to consider the findings of the report and make comments
before the compilation of the improvement action plan.

8. Recommendation
8.1  That the Committee considers the report on leasehold service charges from

Grant Thornton and notes that the Council's response in the form of an agreed
action plan will be brought to the next Audit Committee.




Page 177

o Grant Thornton

London Borough of Haringey

Review of Leasehold Service Charges

16 March 2010



Page 178

Review of Leasehold Service Charges

Contents

1  Executive Summary

2 Introduction and Context
3  Approach

4  Findings

5 Conclusions and Recommendations

Appendices

A Staff Interviewed
B Documents Reviewed

C Estimated and Actual Service Charge Breakdown

© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved

Page

17



Page 179

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 1

1 Executtve Summary

1.1 Introduction

Homes for Haringey, an Arms Length Management Organisation established in 2006
manages homes on behalf of the London Borough of Haringey ("the Council").
Leaseholders of these properties pay annual service charges for the management and
maintenance of their property.

This report provides an overview and assessment of the Council's arrangements for
levying service charges for day-to-day management and maintenance services on
housing within its stock which has been bought under Right to Buy. It does not
include service charges for major works.

It is not designed as in-depth study but instead as a high-level diagnostic which
indicates which areas may require further and more detailed examination.

1.2 Our approach
The service charge system should meet the following requirements:

e the Council and Homes for Haringey should have systems in place to calculate
and collect the service charge due to it;

e the service charge should be "fair and reasonable" and reflect the actual cost of
services; and

e the Council should act as the leaseholder's agent in ensuring the quality and "value
for money" of the services.

In our review we have used a diagnostic check list, set out in detail in section 4, which
focuses on the following key areas of enquiry:

e core business systems and data quality;

e procurement, cost and quality of services;

e cost allocation; and

e Jeaseholder information.

1.3 Key findings

The leaseholder service charge system is managed by the Home Ownership Team
(HOT) within Homes for Haringey (HfH). We have set out our detailed conclusions
and recommendations in Section 5 but would highlight the following areas.



Page 180

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 2

A key principle that we have applied is that service charges should be calculated on
the costs of services to the relevant estate or block. There is no concept of pooling
costs or of one estate/block subsidising anothet. Therefore financial systems and
contract specifications should be aligned to reporting costs as far as possible at an
estate or block level.

However for local authority landlords this if often not the case as the authority
manages its housing stock with a view to balancing the Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) at a council-wide level and has no statutory requirement to account for costs
at anything other than a HRA level. This means that cost information is often held at
a council-wide or area level (in cases where a contract covers a specific geographic
area) rather than being reported at an estate or block level.

This is the case at HfH and therefore the HOT has had to put its own systems in
place to sort cost data. Whilst this is not unique to HfH it does raise some risks with
regard to the accuracy of individual service charges. These include:

e The HOT has to manually sort data (e.g. repairs) to identify individual block
and estate costs. This is a time intensive process and inevitably prone to
subjectivity and error.

e In some cases (e.g. block cleaning) area costs are pro-rated to individual units.
There is a risk of challenge to these charges on the basis of fairness.

Therefore we have recommended that these processes are reviewed to improve ways
of reporting. In addition, across all service areas we would recommend that HfH
considers the scope for the reporting and analysis of costs at estate and block level
and the separate job coding of chargeable/non-chargeable work within the
functionality of its SAP system.

There is also a need to reconcile service charge totals to control totals within the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA). This would provide an independent check that all
chargeable income is being claimed as well as a check against error and fraud. At the
current time there is no formal process for reporting this, although the HOT
Manager does undertake various checks and reconciliations. We have therefore
recommended that a formal process is established whereby the Chief Financial
Officer is able to review and sign off annual service charges based on a high level
assessment of chargeable and non-chargeable expenditure.

Notwithstanding these issues, the HOT is able to collate cost data from a number of
sources including SAP, the repairs database (TASK) and reports from service
managers, and uses databases and spreadsheets to calculate unit charges which act as
an audit trail for individual charging decisions.



Page 181

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 3

Whilst we have not carried out any sample testing the HOT systems do appear to
operate effectively and efficiently in the following ways:

e the HOT carries out an annual check and reconciliation with SAP and

property databases;

e the approach used for apportioning costs from an estate/block level to
individual units is reasonable;

e estimated and actual bills are issued on time;
e there is an audit trail of decisions whether to charge or not; and

e statutory requirements for consulting leaseholders on Long Term Agreement
have been followed.

Generally the level of information provided to leaseholders appears to be good - the
service charge account statement provides a clear statement of account with relevant
breakdowns and explanatory notes.

In addition HfH are launching a new initiative - the "Key Leaseholder Scheme" -
which will enable leaseholder representatives to review the records of communal
repairs undertaken to their block on a quarterly basis and raise any issues of quality of
repairs or accuracy of the record. This should offer an opportunity to address
concerns on the accuracy of repairs records on a concurrent basis and thereby reduce
disputes when bills are presented at year -end.

We have also identified some areas of risk which would benefit from further review.
These are:

e HfH can justify that it has sought to obtain "Value for Money" for
leaseholders through the competitive tender of services or through
benchmarking reviews for retained in-house services. However a more
detailed review of the outcomes for in-house services would assess whether
efficiencies have realised costs savings to leaseholders and/or quality
improvements in service delivery;

e HfH has a number of systems in place for checking on the quality of service
delivery, including good practice such as the "Key Leaseholder Scheme"
highlighted above. A more detailed review of the mechanisms that underpin
these systems would help to ensure that quality thresholds can be agreed and
enforced e.g. this would cover:

o the Schedule of Rates and pre- and post-inspection regimes;
o how effectively performance is addressed in contracts and Service

Level Agreements, including in payment mechanisms, and how any
savings are passed on to leaseholders;



Page 182

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 4

e we have not tested the internal consistency of the HOT systems by checking a
sample of service charge accounts and database entries. This would confirm
that the existing system operates in an internally consistent and robust
manner; and

e we have not had the opportunity to talk to leaseholder representatives; this
would help to identify key service issues from a customer's viewpoint.

The Council and HfH are preparing an action plan for implementation of our
recommendations, which will be presented to a future meeting of the Audit
Committee.

Finally we would like to thank officers in the Council and HfH for their time and
assistance during this review.



Page 183

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 5

2 Introduction and Context

2.1 Introduction

This report provides an overview and assessment of the London Borough of
Haringey's ("the Council's") arrangements for levying service charges for day-to-day
management and maintenance services on housing within its stock which has been
bought under Right to Buy.

2.2 Context

Most of the homes for which the Council is responsible are houses and medium rise
flats located in the east of the borough. The majority were built after 1945. Homes
for Haringey (HfH) manages 16,347 tenanted homes on behalf of the Council
including 1,479 used for supported housing. HfH also manages 4,455 council homes
which were bought by tenants under Right to Buy under a 125 year lease.

As with other residential leases, the leaseholder is responsible for the interior of the
flat and HfH on behalf of the Council landlord, is responsible for managing and
maintaining the exterior of the building and surrounding estate and, in some cases,
supplying services such as central heating. The Council charges the leaseholder for the

cost of these services through their annual service charge. The following service
charges were levied by HfH in 2008/09:

Service area Charge (£)

Cleaning 1,160,504
Lifts 23,600
Communal lighting 140,008
Grounds 294,218
Concierge 235,656
Heating - fuel 5,982
Heating - maintenance 0
Insurance 764,468
TV aerials 11,052
Controlled entry system 88,459
Pest control 11,117
Management charge 1,012,105
Ground rent 44,518
Repairs 494,128
Major works below £250 24,956
TOTAL 4,310,771

The mean average charge per leaseholder was £968, although within that average the
charge varies between /136 for those properties liable only for responsive repairs,
insurance, ground rent and a management fee, to almost £3,000 for those receiving a
full range of services including a concierge system.



Page 184

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 6

3 Approach

3.1 Scope of work
This review is designed to give an overview of the Council's arrangements for levying
leasehold service charges. It addresses the following requirements:

e the Council should have systems in place to calculate and collect the service
charge due to it;

e the service charge should be "fair and reasonable" and reflect the actual cost of
services; and

e the Council should act as the leaseholder's agent in ensuring the quality and "value
for money" of the services.

It is not designed as in-depth study but instead as a high-level diagnostic which
indicates which areas may require further and more detailed examination.

The review focuses on service charge systems for day-to-day management and
maintenance. It does not include service charges for major works.

3.2 Our Approach
In order to gain a high level overview of existing systems in these areas we have:

e undertaken interviews with key personnel - interviewees are listed in Appendix A;
and

e undertaken a review of key documents and databases used for calculating the
annual service charge - these are listed in Appendix B.

Using this information we have:
e undertaken an assessment using a diagnostic check-list focussing on the following
key areas:
o core business systems and data quality;
O procurement, cost and quality of services;
o cost allocation; and

o leaseholder information

e identified examples of good practice by HfH; and

e identified areas of risk where HfH may not fully meet the objectives set out our
diagnostic check-list.



Page 185

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 7

4 Findings

4.1 Introduction

We have set out our findings under each item from the diagnostic check-list. As we
have not undertaken detailed sample checking our findings are necessarily "high-
level". However we have identified where it would be of benefit to test compliance
with system requirements through sample checking.

Within this review we have examined the following service areas:

e Responsive repairs;

e Lift maintenance and repairs;

e Controlled entryphones maintenance and repairs;

e Cleaning of internal communal areas of residential blocks ("block cleaning")
e Cleaning of external areas of residential estate ("estate cleaning"); and

e Grounds maintenance.

These setvice heads account for £2,085,855 in service charges for 2008/09 which is
48% of the total charge of £4,310,771.

We have not reviewed the management charge in detail which accounts for a further
£1,012,105 of the total charge.

In each sub-section we have set out the rationale for our review and the "ideal" case
against which we have tested the current systems.

4.2 Core Business Systems and Data Quality

4.2.1 Estate and block costs

Service charges should be calculated on the costs of services to the relevant estate or
block. There is no concept of pooling costs or of one estate/block subsidising
another. Therefore costs should be reported wherever possible at an estate or block
level. Ideally:

e the financial system will report costs at an estate and block level and
differentiate between chargeable and non-chargeable costs' within its
reporting structure; and

! In most cases chargeable work will be work undertaken in communal areas and non-chargeable work will be work undertaken
in "non-communal" areas (i.e. inside individual properties ). However as some non-communal works may be chargeable (e.g.
repait work to windows, or repairs to a district heating system inside a flat) we have used the term "chargeable/non-chargeable
rather than "communal/non-communal”. These terms will require careful definition and separate coding between
communal/non-communal work in developing the specification for financial systems and contracts.

"



Page 186

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 8

e the contract specification and invoicing structure will require contractors to
invoice on an estate or block basis; and where relevant differentiate between
chargeable and non-chargeable costs.

Findings

Repairs

The HfH Direct Labour Organisation (DLO) delivers the responsive repairs service
based on a Schedule of Rates. Repairs are ordered through the TASK system. The
Home Ownership Team (HOT) utilises reports from TASK to filter repair orders
into communal (chargeable) and non-communal (non-chargeable) repairs and then
allocate the cost of communal repairs to estates and blocks. The HOT Manager
estimated that, from a total of 60,000 repairs, he filters out a list of 25,000 communal
repairs using a word-search of repairs descriptions. These are then individually
checked and sorted into costs for individual estates and blocks. In cases where there
is ambiguity (e.g. as to the correct block address; or uncertainty as to whether the
repair may be a duplicate order; or where the description is unclear) the HOT will
refer back to the repairs team for further information.

Ultimately the HOT will have to make a judgement as to whether or not a communal
repair is rechargeable. Whilst we have not carried out any sample checks there is a risk
that as this is a manual system it is not only a time intensive process but also prone to
subjectivity and human error.

Lifts

Lift maintenance and repairs are carried out under a Measured Term Contract (MTC)
with two external contractors split on a geographic basis (North/South of the
borough). The contractor invoices monthly for maintenance costs which are defined
pet block under the contract and for responsive repairs which are priced under a
Schedule of Rates (SoR).

Controlled entryphones

Maintenance and repairs are carried out under a MTC by two external contractors
split on a geographic basis (East/West of the borough). Annual maintenance costs
are defined per block within the contract; any responsive repairs in excess of £300 in
value are priced under a SoR. Monthly valuation reports are collated though OHMS
(the client-side repairs system)

Block cleaning

The cleaning of the internal communal areas of blocks is carried out by HfH's in-
house Estate Services Team. Costs are split by geographic areas. Block costs are
calculated through a pro-rata allocation of area costs based on unit numbers.

In general is a risk of challenge to charges which are pro-rated in this way and not
based on defined block costs. A recent Leasehold Valuation Tribunal® found that "the
apportionment of cleaning charges on a borough wide basis could result in unfairness
to smaller blocks". Although LVT decisions do not set a precedent, similar
conclusions have been reached in other LVTs and this remains a tisk to future service
charge recovery.

2 LB of Haringey vs Ms Kaya LON/00AP/LSC/2009/0102



Page 187

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 9

Estate cleaning

There is a Service Level Agreement (SLA) between HfH and the Waste Management
Department of the Council for estate cleaning. The contract is delivered by an
external contractor - Enterprise - which is contracted to the Waste Management
Department. Costs are allocated to estates on a formula based on the square meterage
of the estate served and the frequency of provision.

Whilst this provides a rationale for calculating costs incurred at an estate level, the
data defining estate areas is in a formula hard-coded into an excel spreadsheet. We
understand the source data is held separately within HOT files but we have not
reviewed these files or reconciled the two data sets.

Grounds maintenance

Grounds maintenance is undertaken by the Parks Service DLO under an SLA with
HfH. Costs are calculated per estate or block on the square meterage of grounds
maintained and frequency of visits (e.g. grass-cutting). This is data is entered in an
Access Database. Costs for additional "ad hoc" requests (e.g. for new planting) will be
based on a quotation which can be allocated by the HOT to estates through
interrogating SAP.

4.2.2 Repairs - warranties and insurance

Leaseholders should not be charged for repairs which are covered by warranties,
insurance, or which are directly rechargeable to individual tenants or leaseholders;
therefore the repairs system should have the facility to flag where this applies to
individual repairs so they do not form part of the chargeable total.

Findings
Repairs are ordered through a contractor call centre system (TASK) and logged on to
HfH's client system (OHMS).

OHMS records decent homes work and will flag jobs covered by warranties from the
decent homes programme. However individual operators can over-ride this and still
order the job.

There is a risk that individual repairs covered by warranties will still be charged.
Whilst the HOT are developing a centralised file of warranties to cross-check against
repair orders this is a manual system which could be prone to error and omission.

Insurance claims were not seen as a material issue by the Repairs Manager as the
repairs within the system would normally be below the threshold for policy excess
and not claimable; higher value jobs which may generate a viable insurance claim
would generally be tendered and so subject to review at this stage. However the HOT
team do carry out a check of repairs against a report obtained from the Insurance
Team to ensure repairs which are subject to an insurance claim are not charged. Again
this is a manual system which may be prone to error and omission.

We have not been able to ascertain the approach to repairs which may be directly
rechargeable to individual tenants or leaseholders although we would not expect this
to be a material sum in terms of the overall service charge.



Page 188

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 10

4.2.3 Repairs - $S20 threshold

Under Section 20 of the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985 (as amended by the
Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act 2002) the landlord must follow a formal
consultation procedure on any works for which any one or more leaseholders will pay
a contribution of £250 or more. Therefore individual repairs in excess of this
threshold should be subject to a separate consultation procedure. If not, the service
charge will be limited to the S20 threshold and the Council/HfH will lose income.
Therefore the repairs system should flag where repairs may exceed this threshold and
retain an audit trail of the action taken.

Findings

The repairs system does not flag where repairs exceed the S20 threshold. When
compiling the service charge, the HOT Manager checks all repairs orders against the
S20 threshold. If any exceed this then the charge is limited to the maximum allowable
without consultation (£250 per unit).

In 2008/09 21 repair orders were in this category, leading to estimated under-
recovery of £15,000. In the context of 25,000 chargeable orders and a total recharge
for repairs of c. £500,000 this is relatively low, but this should be kept under review.

4.2.4 System controls (1)

The leasehold charges system should operate in a controlled environment in which
decisions (e.g. to charge or not to charge) are formally recorded and an audit trail
established. This enables a check to carried out that a consistent practice has been
followed, and that an appropriate level of approval to decisions has been given.

Findings
We have reviewed the repairs database and the write-off process.

On the level of individual repair orders line-by-line checks of communal repairs are
carried out by the HOT for duplication; repairs which, due to their unit cost, should
have been subject to Section 20 consultation for major works; and that repairs are
allocated to the correct block/estate addresses. The HOT team has access to the
TASK system and can refer any queries back to the repairs team.

This will to some extent require subjective judgement in assessing whether the detail
available on any particular repair is sufficient to accurately allocate a service charge.

Records of this process are kept within an Access database providing an audit trail of
repairs which have or have not been charged.

Once charges are issued, the HOT Manager will only write-off charges in response to
challenges on the recommendation of HfH's Legal Services or on advice from the
service provider. A scheme of delegation is in place which requires the sign-off of the
Chief Financial Officer for all write-offs below £5,000 and the Lead Member for
write-offs over £5,000.



Page 189

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 11

4.2.5 Systems controls (2)

At a high level the authority should be able to reconcile the total expenditure within
the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) on management and maintenance with the
total expenditure billed to leaseholder plus the expenditure deemed to be non-
chargeable. This should include:

e identification and explanation of year on year changes in property numbers
and charging profiles;

e identification of service areas/categoties of expenditure and reasons for non-
charging;

e reconciliation back to control totals within the authority's accounting system;
and

e validation and formal signing off of the service charge accounts.

This allows senior management who are external to the operational management of
the service charge system to monitor systems for fraud or error without dealing with
or examining individual transactions. It also provides a check that all chargeable
income is being claimed by reconciling charges back to total expenditure incurred and
providing reasons for why categories of expenditure are not charged.

Findings
The HOT undertakes:
e an annual reconciliation of leasehold property records between OHMS, the
leasehold database and records held by the Legal department;
e areconciliation against SAP of total costs identified for individual service
heads; and
e 2 comparison against the previous year's service charge level at a service area
and overall level to identify trends and account for any unusual fluctuations.

However there is no reconciliation of these figures against control totals established
within the HRA for overall costs incurred.

There is also no formalised process by which these findings are reported and signed
off by senior officers outside of the HOT and the Council (landlord). There is a risk
that HfH will not be able to demonstrate that the potential for fraud or error has

been fully addressed and that the authority has maximised its service charge income.

4.3 Procurement, Cost and Quality of Services
4.3.1 Leaseholder consultation on Qualifying Long-Term Agreements
The authority should meet the requirements to consult leaseholders on Qualifying

Long Term Agreements as set out in the Commonhold and Leasehold Reform Act
2002 (CLRA 2002).

The CLRA 2002 requires landlords to consult leaseholders prior to letting "Qualifying
Long Term Agreements".



Page 190

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 12

It defines Qualifying Long Term Agreements (QLTAs) as those which are more than
12 months in duration and will result in a service charge of more than £100 per
leaseholder per accounting period.

This threshold includes VAT and on-costs and applies where one flat exceeds the
£100 threshold, although as the Council is zero-rated for VAT the threshold does not
include VAT for the Council's purposes.

The Act deems the following to be L'TAs rather than QLTAs and therefore not
subject to the requirements of Section 20:

. contracts of employment

. contracts with Tenant Management Organisations (TMOs) and Arms Length
Management Organisations (ALMOs)

. contracts with associated holding companies

. contracts of over five years where there were no leaseholders at the start of the
contract

o contracts entered into before 31 October 2003.

Findings

This has been applied in the following ways to the service heads which we have
focussed on:

Responsive repairs
The HfH DLO was appointed in April 2008 following a competitive procurement
through the OJEU procedure. HfH consulted with leaseholders using the S20

procedure.

Lifts and controlled entryphones maintenance

These contracts were competitively tendered in 2007 (lifts ) and 2006 (controlled
entryphones). The contracts were originally for 2 years and have since been extended.
Leaseholders were consulted through a S20 procedure for the controlled entryphones
contract; the lifts contract was below the £100 per dwelling threshold and so no
leaseholder consultation was required.

Block cleaning and grounds maintenance

Block cleaning is delivered by the HfH Estate Services Team and grounds
maintenance by the Parks Service under an SLLA. As in-house services which have not
been subject to tender these do not fall under the definition of a QLTA.

Estate cleaning

The estate cleaning contract was originally let in 1997 and has been extended to April
2011, with costs subject to indexation and some service extensions. As a contract
entered into before 1 October 2003 it is not defined as a QL'TA. However this service
is now subject to tender and a competitive procurement process is underway which
will require the Council to consult in line with CLRA 2002 - HfH officers have noted
that they are planning to implement this.



Page 191

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 13

General
The HOT Manager has issued guidance to procurement officers through circular
emails as well as undertaking training seminars with them.

4.3.2 Value for Money

The authority should be able to demonstrate that it has sought to obtain Value-for-
Money (VIM) either through the competitive tendering of contracts or the
benchmarking of services against comparable providers.

Findings

Repairs, lift, controlled entryphone, estate cleaning

The contracts for responsive repairs, lifts, controlled entryphones and estate cleaning
have, or are being, competitively tendered.

Block cleaning

We understand that the retained in-house contract for block cleaning was subject to a
VM exercise about 5 years ago and more recently as part of a Housemark
benchmarking club for estate services. It was found to be in the third quartile on
costs but performed well on quality indicators. There is also proposed to be a VIM
review of Estate Services in 2010.

Grounds maintenance
Grounds maintenance was subject to a VEM review 2 years ago which concluded that
there was scope for savings; the Council has targeted 10% savings by April 2011.

Note that it is not within the scope of this audit to examine the outcome of these
VM reviews or assess actual costs of services in comparison to industry benchmarks.

4.3.3 Service quality

In acting as "the agent" of leaseholders for service delivery, HfH should have robust
systems in place to monitor and manage the quality of services delivered e.g. to ensure
the accurate specification and pricing of works, and quality checks through pre- and
post-inspection. Contract adjustments (e.g. the imposition of penalties for poor
performance) should be reflected in the final charge to leaseholders.

Findings

Repairs

10% of repair orders are pre-inspected, although HfH are looking to reduce this to
5%. Less than 10% are post-inspected, although HfH are looking to increase this to
10%. Otder variances are limited to £150 and those over £150 require officer
approval.

HfH are aiming to reduce the number of items in the Repairs Schedule of Rates to
less than 250 items priced on the basis of an averaged cost over time. Whilst this will
simplify the ordering process and potentially improve response times there is a
potential conflict with leaseholder interests in that by averaging costs over time the
costs (and consequent charges) for individual repairs may not reflect the actual work
undertaken.



Page 192

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 14

Lifts
100% of lift repairs are pre-inspected; and 10% post-inspected.

Controlled entryphones
10% of repairs are pre-inspected and 10% are post-inspected.

Block and estate cleaning; grounds maintenance

Monthly monitoring of each contract is undertaken by Estate Services Managers
which are fed into performance reports which are submitted to a resident
representatives group which includes leaseholders. Feedback questionnaires are sent
to residents (around 40 are returned per month) and HfH propose to target
satisfaction surveys on individual estates during 2010.

We would expect to see an output specification which defines cleaning standards.
However we note from a recent LVT case’ that the quality of cleaning output at least
in that case was measured by the number of hours attendance by cleaners. If this is
the commonly used measure then it has the risk of leading to subjective judgements
of required cleaning standards and challenges from leascholders.

General

We have not undertaken a review of contract terms to understand how undez-
performance is reflected in payment mechanisms, nor the frequency and scale of any
errors found through pre- and post-inspection or repair orders.

Over and above contractors own checks, there is a relatively low level of pre- and
post-inspections (10% in most cases) and in similar circumstances other authorities
have undertaken additional sample checking by external surveyors. It is not clear that
the current system will address the risk that jobs which have been incorrectly
specified or priced are not identified and leaseholders are incorrectly charged.

HfH are introducing the "Key Leascholder Scheme" whereby leaseholders can
volunteer to review records of communal repairs for their block on a quarterly basis
and raise any issues in terms of the record's accuracy or quality of repairs. This is
designed to act as a more effective and concurrent check on repairs than the current
practice of issuing a list of repairs undertaken in the preceding financial year on the
request of leaseholders once they receive their actual bill in the following August.

4.4 Cost Allocation

4.4.1 Unit costs

The authority should use a consistent and reasonable basis on which to allocate costs
from estate/block level to individual units (this is usually on a formula basis based on
the unit size).

Findings

Cost allocation is undertaken by apportioning the cost of a repair using either the
rateable value (for flats bought before 1 April 1990) or a bed-weighting system (for
flats bought on or after 1 April 1990).

S1Bof Haringey vs Ms Kaya LON/00AP/LSC/2009/0102



Page 193

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 15

This is a reasonable basis for calculating charges although we have not undertaken
checks to confirm that this is applied consistently across the leasehold stock.

4.4.2 Indirect costs
The authority should have a consistent and reasonable basis for allocating indirect
costs to leaseholders.

Findings

A management fee is calculated which covers the work of the HOT; housing
management services; and support services. Costs are assessed on estimated time
spent on leaseholder related services. This is levied as a flat fee (rather than as a
percentage of the service charge due) for two separate groups of leaseholders: firstly
those who only receive lighting and insurance services; and secondly, those who
receive these and other services.

This appears to be a comprehensive summary of indirect costs. However we have
not checked the detail of the calculation or that it is applied consistently across the
leasehold stock.

4.5 Leaseholder Information

4.5.1 Estimated and actual bills

The authority should deliver estimated and actual bills within required timescales.
Estimated bills should be a reasonable reflection of the final actual bill.

Findings

Leaseholders should be issued with an estimated charge at the beginning of the
financial year. This is adjusted when the actual charge is issued following the end of
the financial year. In 2008/09 estimated charges were issued in February 2008 and
actual charges in August 2009. It is anticipated by the HOT that actual charges for
2009/2010 will be issued in advance of August 2010.

The total estimated and actual setvice charges from 2006/07 to present are compared
in the table below.

Estimated and actual service charges 2006/07 to present

Estimated Actual Difference
2006/07 £3,343,048 £4,028,887 +21%
2007/08 £3,917,365 £4,083,616 +4%
2008/09 £4,848,907 £4,310,771 -11%
2009/10 £4,671,733 N/A N/A

A full breakdown is given in Appendix C.

The over-estimation of bills in 2008/09 is equivalent to an average of £120 per
leaseholder. The primary reason for this is an over-estimation of responsive repairs
which has been adjusted downward for 2009/10. Where there is an over-estimate the
leaseholdet's account is credited with the relevant adjustment.




Page 194

Review of Leasehold Service Charges 16

4.5.2 Statement of Account

Leaseholders should be provided with a clear statement of their service charges
broken down by service head, with an itemised breakdown of individual service heads
available on request.

Findings
We have reviewed one statement of actual service charge for 2008/09 which was
presented by the HOT as the standard format for Service Charge statements.

Costs are broken down over service charge heads. The statement identifies the cost
for the block and the charge for the property, along with the estimated charge per
service head for comparison.

Notes accompany the statement which break down each service head is further sub-
headings on a block and unit basis.

An itemisation of estate repairs is also available on request by the leaseholder.

Leaseholders are provided with an explanatory booklets with estimated and actual
service charges.

4.5.3 Account adjustments

The reasons for credits (e.g. if an incorrect charge is refunded) and debits to the
leasehold account should be cleatly stated and explained to the leaseholder and
applied where relevant to other properties.

Findings

We understand that the HOT write to leaseholders to inform them of the reasons for
account adjustments, and these are recorded on the account, and where an
adjustment is relevant to an entire block/estate it is applied to all relevant
leaseholders.

We have not undertaken individual checks to verify this.

4.5.4 Housing and Regeneration Act 2008

The authority should be prepared for introduction of the Service Charge Statement of
Account and Individual Leaseholder statements for each accounting period
accompanied by an accountant's certificate (Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 -
note the final format and approach for this is yet to be published).

Findings

The HOT currently produce individual statement of service charge accounts which
are signed off by the Chief Financial Officer. Whilst the final requirements of the Act
are yet to be defined the HfH statements of account appear to be aligned with the
indicative structure so far published. The draft regulations are expected to be issued
shortly and so this should be kept under review. The effective date for the changes
are expected to be on or after 6 April 2010 and the first accounts under new
provisions are likely to be for year ending 31 March 2012.



Page 195

“POMO[[OF APUNSISTOD ST GONEII[OP
JO WAYDS 91} 1Y) Y9YD 03 Furyooyd J[duwres FJopIsuod pnod HiH

Tres yipne
1SNQOJF € SWIOJ ST JT UTedFa0se 03 Jursdayd o[dwes JopIsuod pnod HiH

.mowﬁmﬂu Rate MCﬁ,@B J0J Qoﬂudmoﬁwﬁu JO swdyds ® surejurews T OH 241,

*29378YD 01 SUOIS[IIP JO [Te Ipne
U UTEIUTEW 0] UDTYM UO SISeq o) sopraoid aseqelep ssa00y s, 1OH YL
(1) sjoa3u0d wayshs p LG

‘syredor SuTFOPIO FOF O[qISUOdSOF $T92JO JOJ PORUIPT sIuawINbox
Surures) A1esso00U 9FOUM PUE MITAJT Jopun 1doy 9q p[noys SIYT,

“PaSTed23 9q J0UUED
PU® POYSIIYI ()ZS 23 Pa2dxd siredor 03oUm SOOUBISUT JWOS 938 I,
ploysaiy} 0zZs - sireday €°1°'S

‘ren
pne ue opraoid 01 pagd3of st asuodsas s J01e39do Ol 1B} PUE SIOULISUT
asop ur siredor Fefy [ wsAs syredox oyl eyl 2INSTD Poys HIH

“PaSFeyd 9q [[PS 1A STWIE
2ouEINSUT 03 3199[qns J0 sonuerrem £q PorFoA0d siredor 1Y) ST B ST 9JoY T,
@oueinsul pue sanuelem - sieday Z°'L°S

‘uonedy1ads indino ue
JSUTESE STSEq 918159 JO JI0[q B TO $I1SOD dUFP 01 syuawasmbor Surdroaur
pue vonesyads g /19enT0d $31 Ui 2dods o) MTAdF P[nNoys HIH

"SIFOM [qBITIEYD
JO TONEDHNUIPT ISNQOT I0W MO[[E 03 S[SV.T, Urpim suondosap
qol syredox oroxdwr 01 MOY JOPISUOD PINOYs HIF W 1FOYS o UT

“WNSAS JYS $I JO AeUonduny oyl UM JFOM I[EIFIEYD
-uou /2[qead1eYd JO Surpod qol a1eredas oy pue [OAI[ YD0[q PUL LIS
1 51509 JO sisA[eue pue Juniodar 103 2dods oy J9PISUOd pnoys HiH

"SsouIre]
JO SISEq oY) TO 93U[[BYD JO ST B ST 979U} “SUTULID YI0[q JO 258D 9}
UT St “edJe UB JOJ 95T [[EFOAO O} WOIJ Pales-0rd oFe soSrey)d 93U A\

*JO332 UewNY puk L1AN22[qns
01 ouo3d 0s[e Inq $5920Fd JAISUIUT OWN € AUO JOU ST IT “WIISAS
[enueW © ST s19pF0 Fredor Sunedo[[E JO WIsAs 9U3 St JBY) YSIF B ST 9JoY T,

-aseqerep siredos o) wog poprdwod Aenuewr ‘siredos oarsuodsos

JO 9S¥D U} UT ‘JO S[€I0) IPIM EIFE WOTJ PILFIIIIESIP TE $I1S07) [OAI]
J20[q JO 91¥1$d UE I¥ $1502 130d0F 01 PIsn 10U ST (JYS) WAISAS [eLOULUY
O} ‘POMDIADT IM SEITE IDTAIDS O} U "WONIUNJ JUIWASLULW P[OYISELI]
PFO[PUE[ 91} (3IA POUSIE 10U 93 SWAISAS $SOUTSN] 9O SEIFE JWOS U]
$3509 )20|q pue 93e3s3 L'L'S

£311enp ejeq pue swajsAg ssauisng ai0) LG

suojepudaWWoI3dY SuoISnj2uo09H
mGOU‘N@GDEEOUDM TCN mGOﬂm‘DMUGOU m
Il sabieyn 991A19S P|OYasea] JO MaIASY




Page 196

"STOJFD JO 21BI PUE 2INIBU 2} JI2YD O}
$I9p70 JO Suryoayd ordures 1no Axred 03 syofoarns Juopuadopur Jo asn oy
JOPISUOD P[Noys HIH "SPUSA JO SINSST UOWWOD AUL AJAUIPT 01 PIMITA]

2q pP[noys sy29yd suondadsur-1sod pue -o1d o) Jo sowooIno Ay,

“paSreyd AR97I00UT JFE SIOP[OYISELI[ PUEL PIFLRUIPI JOU 93k

poo13d 30 poygroads AP293F0OUT U9 2ABY YITYM SO 18T} JSIF B S[IEIUd
(sased 3sowr Ut 0/,()1) suondadsur-1sod pue -o3d JO [9A] MOT A[PARE[F O[T,
Ayjenp ad1niss €°2°

‘SIOPIOYSSEI JOJ SIITAIIS

‘—U®>OHQEH JO SJSOD Padnpalt OJul paje[suel] Ua9( ALY SIIOUIIDIJJO MOY
pue Jopual O\wﬁﬁDQEOU ol uuwﬁﬁﬂw U29q 10U 2ATY YIIUYM SeIFE JOJ SMITAIT
JANFA 243 JO 2WOIIN0 943 JO MITAIT PI[Ielap 2J0W ¥ JopIsuod pnoys HiH

"SYFeWOUq ANSnpur 01 UOSIFEdUWOd UT SIITAIIS JO $1S0D

[eNI0E PISSISSE JO SMITAIT JATJ A 259U JO dWOIINO Y PIUTUWIEXD MITA]
STUD UT JOU AR 94\ "ATAIT SURFLWDUI] € JO JOPUal 2AnNadwod

01 122(qns U299 PeY UONEIIPISUOD JOPUN SEIFE IITATIS ) JO [[Y
KAauoy 103 anjep Z'2'S

"SJOOTJJO JUBAJ[OF O) OPINS 2DUIVJOT B
SE O[(E[TEAE IPBW ST $9INPI20Fd UONELINSTOD FOP[OYISEI] OF OPINS UINTIM
© 1B} PUDTIWIOJ9F P[NOM I DANIJIO W] sey yorordde smp ISy

*$J901330 SuINO0Xd TPIM SUOTSSIS FUTUTER) INO SILIFELD
pue sornpad0xd Y 1/T() UO JOPUTWOJ [TEWD U SanssT 35eue]y LOH 2YL

"SODTAIIS OSNOY-UT PaUTeIaF oFe Lo1d st sy.I/1() JO
UONIUPIP 9} JOPUN [[B] J0U OP 2DVBUIUTEW SPUNOIS PUE JUTUEI JI0[¢

*souoydAnuo pa[onuod ‘s337 ‘siredor oa1su0dsar sy 1 T0) SUIMO[0]
91} UO UONEINSUOD JOP[OYSeI] pasmboz oy 10 pamred sey HIH
sjusawdaiby

w91 -6uoT Buifyjenp uo uojje3nsuod 1apjoyasea L'Z'S

S3921A198 jJO Ajljenp pue Ss3so09H ‘Judwiainsodd Z2°G

“3urdreyd 10U JOJ J[EUOnES

S puE PagIEYd 10U SIUNOWE JO UONEIFNUIPI QdUBUNUTEW put siredos
30J VY H Y3 UT PAIINOUT $1S0D [E10] ISUTESE SISILYD JO UONBIIOU0IF

© OPN2UT P[NOYS STY T, “FOIPIO) [BIPULUL] JOTYD) o) £Q SIUNOIDE 23ed
9DTAJOS [ENUUE JJO SUTUSIS JOJ $$9003d [PWIFOF B YSI[qeIsd P[noys HIH

"LOH 92 JO 9pIsINO $390130 £q JJO PausIs
pue paazodos o3¢ SSUTPUT 259 YITUM £ $59203d PIsIewiFo] OU OS[E

ST 9O, "POIFNIUT SISO [[BFA0 JOJ VY H O3 UTIIM PIYSI[qeIS S[e103
[OTIVOD 03 S[€10) SITTEYD IITAFIS JO UONEIIOUOIIT OU ST 9FIU) FOAIMOF]

.mGOﬁNDuUS@ %GN .wOm JUnodd®

PUE SPUR AJNUOPT 01 [9AI] [[6IOA0 PUE BIFE OITAFOS © 1B SITILYD 9JTAJOS ©
1B $987e1]D 901398 sTBAA sno1adid JO UosTedwod € SoYeIIOpPUN PUE [OAJ]
©OTE DDTATOS B 1B JV'S I SISO SO[IOU0IIT OSTe 1] Juauniedo(J [68oT
o1 Aq P[oY SPF0J93F PUE 9seqeIep P[OYSELI 9} ‘SINH () U99MI9q SPFOIF
£3odoxd proyasea] Jo uoneNOUOIF [ENUUE Uk SaxeIropun T O YL,

(2) s|lon3u0d wajshg g'L°G

suonepuUdIWWO0I3dY

suoisn|duo9)

8l

sabieyn adIAIaS ploYaseaT] JO MIIASY




Page 197

‘Aproys paredonue
ST UOTUYM PINSST 93¢ SUONE[NSIF 1JeIP ) 90UO PIMIIAIF 9q P[NOYS STY T,

800C PV
UONEIIUASIY PuUt SUISNOL] U3 Jopun pasmbox oq 03 ST YOIym 23monmns

SATIEDIPUT O} [IM PIUSIE 9q 03 3eadde JunoddE Jo sITOWANEIS HIH
8002 }°Y uoneiauabay pue BuisnoH 'S

*2onoerd ur
pordde st yoeordde sip onsuo 01 Suryooyd o[duwres Joprsuod pnod HIH

‘sonsadoid

JUBAS[J Jopo0 [re 03 ways sarpdde o[qeordde oxoym pue syusunsn(pe
JUNODJE JOJ UOSEII O} JO SIOP[OYISEI SOYNOU T OH Y3 PUEISIOPUN I )\
sjuawjsnipe Junos2sy ¢'p°G

V/N

‘S10U %H—OH.NQNTMND mug,m WCBOTMNDHQ MQN»\wDﬁDH Lﬁkf JUnod2d®
JO JUDWIANEIS FLI[D & SOPTAOId JUDWDI LIS JUNOIDE dFFLYD 9ITATIS ],
jJunod29Yy jo jJuswWajels Z'v'b

V/N

*A78SS900U 2JOUM SIIDBINIILUT SSIFPPE 03 JEIA SUIMO[[OJ

o3 UT TORDE Saxe) T O Y2 PUE S[[Iq [eNIdE 93 JO ILWASI J[(LUOSLIF
©1u2sa1d sayewmso paysiqnd oy T, ‘01 /600 ¥0F 2[MPAYIs VO 2q 03
readde pue () /8007 UT QWD UO PIIIAIIP 239M S[[I] [eNIdE PUE PAIBWNSH
siiiq |enjoe pue pajewnys3 L p'G

uoljeuwriojul Japjoyasea] 'S

2018 P[OYISEI Y3 SSOIIE APUISISTOD
pordde st uonemores oy ansus 01 Surdayd opdures FOPISUOd PNOd HIH

-2A1sU92rdw0d 2q 01 Jeadde s2383EYD $I1S0D 102ITPU]
S350 30041pU| 2°E"G

"D01S P[OYISEI Y3 SSOFOE APUISISTOD
pordde st st ornsuo 03 Suryooyd o[dwes Foprsuod pnod HIH

"3[qBUOSEIT ST ITUN [ENPIAIPUT O [9AI]
320[q /218182 Ut woij $150d Juruoniodde 103 HIH £q pasn yorordde oy,
$3s02 jun L°etg

uoneodo||y 3so0) €°S

“SuiSreyd roproyasea] yo Loeimdoe ay3 Uo 3oedwr oY) $SISSE PNoYys I
suondrosap qol Jo Joqunu oY1 ur yononpas e supuawodwr 03 Jorrd
‘syredor 9ATSUOdSIT J0F 10ENTOD YOG € JO ISN I YINOIYD SIDUIDYFO

JO 9[eds pue sa1ex osuodsar paaordwur UT 3FIUIq € 9q ALt 939U ISTIYA\

*s31edoF UO Y292 JUSIFNOVOD PUE ATIIIJJD 2JOW B JIATOP O3 [enulod
AU SBY YITYM DANENIUT MIU B ST | QWIS JOP[OYased | 433, HIH

‘Pa+mour @MH_NQU 9U3l pue Ua3eliopun QO_ Lo
JO 9[Eds Tenide 911 U2oMI9q UIJeWi-STI € 9q Lew 2J93 §98¥D WOs Ul jel]
Sueowr wwﬂdnﬂow O\VﬂmGOQwOH JOJ 10BHUO0D S91BY JO IMpayd§ © JO asn aYT,

suonepuUdIWWO0I3dY

suoisn|duo9)

61

sabieyn adIAIaS ploYaseaT] JO MIIASY




Page 198

Review of Leasehold Service Charges

A Staff Interviewed

Name

Position

Organisation

Nesan Thevanesan

Home Ownership Team
Manager

Homes for Haringey

Peter Purdie

Head of Estate Services

Homes for Haringey

Les Armstrong

Head of Design and
Engineering

Homes for Haringey

Martin Hoctor

Repairs Client Manager

Homes for Haringey

Phil Harris

Assistant Director, Strategic
and Community Housing

Haringey Council

Doris Acquaah

ALMO Client Manager

Haringey Council




Page 199

Review of Leasehold Service Charges

B Documents Reviewed

Service charge database and spreadsheets for 2008/09
Lifts contract - progress meeting minutes
Door Entryphones contract - progress meeting minutes

Estate Services
e contract progress meeting minutes
e partnership board minutes
e performance reports
Report on charges to leascholders - Peter Robinson Housing Consultancy
Explanatory publications for leaseholders:
e Leascholders' Charter
e A guide to buying your home
e Actual Service Charge 2008/09
®  Your estimated service charge 2009/10
e Recovering service charges through legal action
e Paying for major works invoices
e Information pack for leaseholders
e Information pack for sub lessees
e Key leaseholder scheme

e Plain English guide to your lease
Sample service charge account and certificate

Sample lease



Page 200

Review of Leasehold Service Charges

C Estimated and Actual Service Charge

Breakdown
. 06/07 07/08 08/09 09/10
Setvice area
Est Actual | % Diff Est Actual | % Diff Est Actual | % Diff Est

Cleaning £969,573] £1,101,347 14%)  £1,072,168] £1,150,208 7%| £1,201,505] £1,160,504 -3%| £1,221,722
Lifts 18,688 £20,448 9% £21,136 L£17,594]  -17% £21,121 £23,600 12% £17,496
Communal Lighting £1206,975 £117,371 -8% £108,776 £135,224 24%|  £122,659  £140,008 14% £188,890
Grounds /185,299 £280,800 52% £227,043 £276,767 22%)|  £258,365]  £294,218 14% £259,431
Concierge 1227865 1223801 20|  g247141] 221613 10%| £256392] 4235656  -8%| 1249470
Heating - Fuel 14,346 4,857 12% /5,082 £4,270]  -16% £6,952 £5,982] -14% £5,151
Heating - Maintenance £126 £0] -100% £0 £0 £0 £0 £0
Insurance £677,299]  £705,125 4% £717,269 £751,155 5%|  £753,770]  £764,468 1%  £811,115
TV Aerials L11,571 £16,971 47% £9,720 £14,864]  53% £18,874 £11,052]  -41% £13,694
Controlled Entry System £70,684 /83,499 18% £75,150 /88,638 18% 184,779 /88,459 4% £806,707
Pest Control n/a £5,715 n/a £17,682 n/a £11,117 n/a|
Management Charge £570,362| £1,007,585]  77% £948,560( £1,026,542 8% £1,095,970] £1,012,105 -8%| £1,059,067
Ground Rent £43,660 [43,752 0% £44,120 [44,238 0% £44,570 [44,518 0% £44,840
Repairs £436,600f  £265,174] -39% £441,200 £280,369]  -36%]|  £668,550]  £494,128] -26% £400,850
Mws < £250 152,442 54,452 13104000 124,956 £313,300
TOTAL 3,343,048 | 4,028,887 21%] 3,917,365 | 4,083,616 4%| 4,843,907 | 4,310,771 -11%| 4,671,733




Page 201

Review of Leasehold Service Charges

o Grant Thornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2010 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd (Grant Thornton
International’). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Setvices are delivered by the member firms independently.

This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss
occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 203

o Grant Thornton

LONDON BOROUGH OF HARINGEY

AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT
MARCH 2010
Work Progress

2009/10

presented to the February 2010 Audit Committee.

2009/10

accounts audit

As part of our 2009/10 plan, we have begun work with the Council to help
prepare for the 2009/10 accounts audit, including the Head of Corporate
Finance attending a half day accounts workshop on 10 February at our
offices.

Interim - our interim audit work is underway and we will provide an update
on key messages to the June 2010 Audit Committee.

Final - we will audit the year end accounts between July and September 2010
and report our results to members as part of the Report to those charged
with governance (ISA260).

International In 2009, we held a workshop with the Council and issued an IFRS
Financial conversion report planner to management which highlighted the areas of
Reporting greatest likely impact for the Council and proposes a number of actions for
Standards the Council over the coming months. We are continuing to work with
(IFRS) management as preparations for IFRS continue and have a meeting
scheduled for 29 March to discuss progress.
Use of The use of resources assessment, using the key lines of enquiry prescribed
resources and by the Audit Commission, needs to be completed around a month earlier
data quality than last year. We will issue our Use of Resources report in September 2010
2010 and key messages will be presented to the October 2010 Audit Committee.

We have had a number of planning discussions with management to help
prepare for the 2010 assessment, including sharing of emerging good
practice from the 2009 assessment. We have agreed key milestone dates and
we will commence our work shortly.

Our local UoR projects on leaseholder service charges and partnership
working are now complete and we will present these reports to this Audit
Committee. Our workforce management review is nearing completion and
we will communicate our findings and conclusions to management this
month.

Agenda ltem 12




Page 204

Work Progress

Use of
resources and
data quality
2010
(continued)

Following last year's UoR assessment of inadequate (level 1) for data quality
we will carry out additional risk based data quality spotcheck work in
June/July 2010. We have recently agreed the scope of this work with
management.

We will plan and perform any other local UoR work required to support our
UoR conclusion between now and September 2010.

Grants 2008/09

We presented our report of summary findings to the February 2010 Audit
Committee.

Indicative fees
letter 2010/11

We have agreed our indicative fee for 2010/11 with the Chief Financial
Officer. This letter is prepared in advance of the audit year in order to
provide the Audit Commission will details of indicative fees nationally. Our
risk assessment and, if required, our audit fee will be updated and further
detail provided in our full 2010/11 Audit Plan, which will be presented to
the Audit Committee in early 2011. A copy of the letter is appended to this
report for information.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
March 2010

Page 2



Page 205

Our Ref PD/PH/CG
Gerald Almeroth
Chief Financial Officer
London Borough of Haringey Grant Thornton UK LLP
5th Floor River Park House ﬁjgnTgﬁrenet?n House
225 High Road London NW1 2EP
London N22 8HQ T +44(0)20 7383 5100
F +44 (0)20 7383 4715
DX 2100 EUSTON
www.grant-thornton.co.uk
10 March 2010
Dear Gerald

London Borough of Haringey - Indicative audit fee 2010/11
We are writing to summarise the audit work that we propose to undertake for the 2010/11
financial year at the Council and the associated indicative fee. The fee:

e  is based on the risk-based approach to audit planning as set out in the Code of Audit
Practice and work mandated by the Audit Commission for 2010/11

e reflects only the audit element of our work, excluding any inspection and assessment
fees. The Comprehensive Area Assessment Lead will be writing to you separately on
inspection fees.

As we have not yet completed our audit for 2009/10 the audit planning process for 2010/11
including the risk assessment will continue as the year progresses and fees will be reviewed
and updated as necessary.

The total indicative fee for the audit for 2010/11 is for £505,000 (exclusive of VAT) which
represents a £10,000 reduction on the agreed fee for 2009/10. A summary of this is shown in
the table below.

Audit area Indicative fee | Agreed fee
2010/11 2009/10

Financial statements, including WGA £360,000 £340,000

Use of Resources/VFM Conclusion £145,000 £175,000

(including local risk based work)

Total audit fee £505,000 £515,000

Certification of claims and returns* £90,000 £90,000

* Certification fee is estimated. This is charged at published houtly rates and the actual cost of
this work is set out in our annual certification report, issued in December .

Chartered Accountants

Member firm within Grant Thornton International Ltd

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: Grant Thornton House, Melton Street, Euston Square, London NW1 2EP
A list of members is available from our registered office.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority for investment business.



Page 206

The Audit Commission has published its work programme and scales of fees 2010/11 (see
extract at Appendix A). From 2010/11, the Council is required to prepate its accounts in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The transition to IFRS
will increase auditors' work, patticulatly in year one whete a restatement of the previous yeat's
accounts to the new basis will be required to provide prior year comparatives. The Audit
Commission has increased the scale fees for local authorities by 6% to reflect the costs of this
additional work, this is reflected in the indicative fee state above.

The scale fee for the London Borough of Haringey is £531,865. The £505,000 fee that we are
proposing is 5% below the scale fee (16% above scale fee last year). This is reflective of the
progress the Council is currently making with the transition to IFRS and our assessment that
there is a reduced risk in relation to our Use of Resources element of our work.

Using our IFRS experts, we will continue to help the Council to prepare for introduction of
IFRS, through awareness raising sessions for officers and members and constructive
challenge on the Council's plans and progress. This is included within the financial statements
audit fee. Specialist colleagues from Grant Thornton's Financial Reporting Advisory Group,
can also be commissioned for more detailed technical support, should the Council require it.

Our Use of Resources assessment will be based upon the evidence from three themes:

e  Managing finances
e Governing the business
e  Managing resources.

The key lines of enquiry specified for the assessment are set out in the Audit Commission’s
work programme and scales of fees 2010/11. Our work on Use of Resources informs our
2010/11 Value for Money conclusion. At the cutrent time, we have identified two risk areas
in relation to our value for money conclusion. For each risk, we consider the arrangements
put in place by the Council to mitigate the risk, and plan our work accordingly.

Risk Planned work Timing

Responding to Financial A review of the Council's Haringey Third

Challenges Forward programme is proposed for quarter
2010/11. of

The Council faces challenging 2010/11

savings targets going forwards in
order to balance its budget. Much
of these savings are planned to be
delivered through the Haringey
Forward Programme. Failure to
deliver on the Programme's
targets will lead to pressure on
services if savings are not
achieved.

The review will focus on the progress
that the Council has made in addressing
budgetary pressures to date and its plans,
including its medium term financial
planning processes going forwards. It will
also assess the Council's performance
against a series of metrics currently being
developed by the Audit Commission to
assess the financial resilience of councils
in the current economic conditions.

Page 2



Page 207

Risk Planned work Timing
Adult Social Care - Personal The use of personal care budgets will have a | Fourth
Care Budgets significant impact on the way adult social quarter
care services are delivered and the Council of
Personal care budgets are at the will need to ensure that it has appropriate 2010/11

cote of the government's aim of
personalising adult social care
services around the needs of users.
Through the Putting People First
Initiative, councils will be expected
to roll out a system of personal

commissioning arrangements and adequate
governance arrangements in place to ensure
that it is delivering this efficiently and
effectively.

We will undertake a review of the progress

the Council has made to deliver
personalisation in adult social care.

budgets for all users of adult social
care.

We will issue a number of reports relating to our work over the course of the audit. These are
listed at Appendix B.

The above fee excludes any work requested by you that the Audit Commission may agree to
undertake using its advice and assistance powers. Each piece of work will be separately
negotiated and a detailed project specification agreed with you.

We reported in our full 2009/10 Audit Plan that we were experiencing an increase in the level
of communications from local electors and other interested parties and were dealing with this
from within the audit fee. The indicative fee for 2010/11 includes an assumption around a
estimated level of audit work in relation to communicating with the public. We will keep this
under review and communicate if any additional audit fees need to be charged as a result of
further increases in our work in this area.

The key members of the audit team for the 2010/11 are:

Engagement Lead - Paul Dossett 0207 728 3180  paul.dossett@gtuk.com

Audit Senior Manager — Paul Hughes 0207 728 2256  paul.hughes@gtuk.com

Audit Manager - Caroline Glitre 0207 728 2078  caroline.glitre@gtuk.com

Audit Executive — Helen Phillips 0207 728 2385  helen.phillips@gtuk.com

A full plan will be issued in December 2010. This will detail the risks identified, planned audit
procedures and any changes in fee. If we need to make any significant amendments to the
audit fee during the course of the audit, we will first discuss this with the Chief Financial
Officer and then prepare a report outlining the reasons why the fee needs to change for
discussion with the Audit Committee.

Page 3



Page 208

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you are in any way
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact the
engagement lead in the first instance. Alternatively you may wish to contact the Head of
Government Audit at Grant Thornton UK LLP, Sarah Howard at sarah.howard@gtuk.com.

Yours sincerely

Paul Dossett
Engagement Lead

Grant Thornton UK LLP

Page 4



Page 209

A Extract from the Audit Commission's work

programme and scales of fees 2010/11

The scales of audit fees in this document cover all the work that auditors need to carry
out to meet their statutory responsibilities under the AC Act, in accordance with the
statutory Code. Copies of the Code and the associated Statement of Responsibilities
of Auditors and Audited Bodies may be found on the Commission’s website at

www.audit-commission.gov.uk

The Commission has defined the scale audit fee as the fee required by auditors to
carry out the work necessary to meet their statutory responsibilities under the AC Act
in accordance with the Code. It represents the Commission’s best estimate of the fee
required to complete an audit where the audited body has no significant audit risks and
it has in place a sound control environment that ensures the auditor is provided with
complete and materially accurate financial statements with supporting working papers
within agreed timeframes.

Auditors will tailor their work to reflect local circumstances. In particular, they will carry
out an assessment of the financial and operational risks facing the body and the
arrangements it has put in place to manage those risks. In this assessment, auditors
will consider the strength of the control environment; the quality of working papers
produced to support the financial statements; and the extent of internal audit work and
the reliance that can be placed on it. However, the core of the work undertaken will be
common.

Where audited bodies do not meet agreed timetables and/or provide poor
documentation such that additional audit work is necessary, or the audit is delayed, the
Commission will charge additional fees to cover the costs incurred.

Under the Code, the Commission may specify additional audit work which
supplements the local risk-based approach to planning the audit.

For 2010/11, the Commission has specified work in the following ateas.

Auditors’ input to Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) — the Commission will
specify audit work at all local authorities, police authorities and fire and rescue
authorities, leading to the delivery of use of resources (UoR) judgements. This will
include work on data quality as specified in the UoR guidance. This work will also
supportt the annual conclusion that the auditor is required to reach under the Code
on an audited body’s arrangements to secure value for money.

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) — the Commission has specified a
proportionate approach to the audit of the consolidation packs for WGA at all local
government bodies.

The cost of the above work programme is reflected in the scales of fees set out in this
document.

Page 5



Page 210

B Planned Outputs

Our reports will be discussed and agreed with the appropriate officers before being issued to

the audit committee.

Planned output

Indicative date

Full Audit Plan 2010/11 December 2010
Financial management report (UoR) January 2011
Adult Social Care Report (UoR) March 2011
Audit Strategy Document (Accounts) June 2011
Annual report to those charged with governance September 2011
report (Accounts)

Auditor's report giving the opinion on the financial | September 2011
statements and value for money conclusion

Use of resources report September 2011
Annual audit letter November 2011
Certification Report December 2011

Page 6



Page 211 Agenda ltem 13

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Audit Committee On 25" March 2010

Report Title. Progress Report on Counter Fraud Activity Relating to Housing
Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.

Report of Gerald Almeroth, Chief Financial Officer

~ .
Signed : b . M/WW

Contact Officer : lan Biggadike, Head of Benefits and Local Taxation (020 8489 3854)

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information only

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 To advise and update Members on the Counter Fraud performance of the Benefit
and Local Taxation Service from the 1**January 2010 - 8" March 2010.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
2.1. N/A

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

3.1 The Council has a published Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy. The activities
stated in this report directly relate to the Council maintaining effective counter —fraud
activities as defined by this strategy The requirement to maintain effective counter fraud
activities is a requirement of the Corporate Area Assessment as defined by the Key
Lines of Enquiry — Service Outcomes for Users and the Community




Page 212

4. Recommendations

4.1. That Members consider and note this report and the work being carried out by the
Benefits and Local Taxation Service in relation to Counter Fraud activity.

5. Reason for recommendation
5.1 For Members to remain informed of the activity of the Fraud Investigations Team and
are able scrutinise this accordingly.

6. Other options considered
6.1 Not applicable.

7. Summary
7.1 The Benefits and Local Taxation Service continues to maintain and further develop
an effective approach to counter - benefit fraud activity.

7.2 Since April 2009 BLT has achieved 74 successful sanctions against those found to
be committing benefit fraud. During quarter 4 to date 2009/10 BLT achieved 21
sanctions and has a further 4 cases referred for prosecution.

7.3 Key work priorities for the Fraud Investigation Team are prosecutions, the National
Fraud Initiative, Housing Benefit Matching Service, pro-active operations with the Police
and Homelessness and joint working with the Department for Work and Pensions.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The Chief Financial Officer notes the contents of this report and confirms that the
counter-benefit fraud activity undertaken is provided within the overall benefits & local
taxation cash limit.

9. Head of Legal Services Comments

9.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
advises that there are no specific legal implications which arise out of the contents.

9.2 Legal Services will continue to support Benefits and Local Taxation, in terms of
advice and prosecution work, in order to maximise the level of Government subsidy
available for recovering overpaid housing benefit.

10. Head of Procurement Comments
10.1 Not applicable.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 2




Page 213

11 Equalities &Community Cohesion Comments

11.1 The activities detailed in this report relate to the day to day work of the Fraud
Investigation Team. All counter fraud activity is undertaken with due regard and
adherence to the Council’s Equalities and Community Cohesion policies.

12. Consultation
12.1 No consultation was required for the production of this report.

13. Service Financial Comments

13.1 The role of the Fraud Investigation Team does not attract direct financial subsidy
from Central Government as there is no specific statutory duty to maintain counter fraud
activity in respect of Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.

13.2 However, there is a clear expectation on Local Authorities to maintain effective
counter fraud activity. This is currently measured by the Corporate Area Assessment
through the Key Lines of Enquiry.

13.3 The Benefits and Local Taxation Service maintains a dedicated team to tackle
benefit fraud. The role of the Fraud Investigation Team is clearly defined in the
Council’s Counter Fraud Strategy relating the Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit.

14. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

14.1 Appendix 1 - Detailed breakdown of sanction cases achieved during Quarter 4 to
date 2009/10

15. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

15.1 The background working papers are located within the BLT Fraud Section,10
Station Rd, Wood Green. The BF| Report was published in October 2007 and is
available on the internet under www.bfi.gov.uk

1 BACKGROUND

1.1 Counter fraud performance is primarily judged against successful outcomes in
respect of Prosecutions and Sanction based activity. Fraud staff are empowered to
investigate suspected benefit fraud and have a range of sanctions that can be applied to
those who admit to fraud or where there is sufficient evidence to warrant a prosecution.

1.2 The Council has adopted an Anti - Fraud and Corruption Strategy relating to Housing
Benefit and Council Tax Benefit. This specifies the type of activities which underpin

Report Template: Formal Bodies




Page 214

effective counter fraud activity.

2 COUNTER FRAUD ACTIVITY

2.1 Performance of the Fraud Investigation Team for the fourth quarter of 2009/10 is
summarised in table 1.

e Successful outcomes for 4th quarter to date 2009/10 (figures in brackets are for
the whole quarter equivalent period in 2008/09)

Sanction Type Number Year Status
Issued Target
Caution 29 (23) Accepted
Admin Penalty 3 (9 Accepted
Prosecution 0 @ Guilty
Total 32 (35) 35 (31)
Table 1

2.2 It is estimated that the final Sanctions performance during quarter 4 will be above
target for the period (expected to be between 36 and 47) - primarily due to a shift of
emphasis towards HBMS based work in the final quarter, in order to reach 100 Sanctions
in-year. There are a further 15 probable Prosecutions with our legal department, 3 with
SOL B (DWP Solicitors Branch) and 2 with the Crown Prosecution Service, but these have
not progressed as quickly as hoped, mainly due to court scheduling issues, but it is
estimated that 3 cases will be heard in 2009/2010 and the majority of those outstanding
early 2010-11.

2.3 The Benefits and Local Taxation Service originally set an annual target of 140
Sanctions for 2009/10. This isn’t a feasible target now as, in common with the majority of
Benefit Investigation Team’s nationally, the emphasis had changed from achieving
‘numbers’ of sanctions to dealing with the more complex cases where criminality is
involved — and this work remains ongoing. However a pro-active one-off ’"HBMS data
report’ will enable the Fraud Team to significantly increase overall sanction performance
in the final quarter and it is estimated that we will now achieve 100 sanctions by the year
end.

2.4 The Fraud Team are continuing to work in partnership with Homelessness and the

Report Template: Formal Bodies 4



Page 215

DWP in order to progress the large number of NFI referrals where additional information is
required before a determination can be considered. We are commissioning access to a
wired Broadband port in Haringey so that the DWP can access their systems via a GCSx
secure connection thus facilitating effective data exchange stage where. Additionally, our
work with the Homelessness Team is reaching the arrests and/or search warrants are in
process with 3-4 additional joint prosecutions likely early next financial year

2.5 Performance for the year to-date is contained in table 2. Bold figures are YTD to 8™
March 2010)

e Successful outcomes for year to-date (2009/10)

Sanction Type Number Target Status
Issued

Caution 54 (84) Accepted

Admin Penalty 15 (33) Accepted

Prosecution 16 (10) Guilty

Total 85 (127) 140 (126)

Table 2
3 Overpaid Housing Benefit

3.1 To date, counter fraud activity has identified £1,022,322 in overpaid benefit and a
further £15,151 in Administrative Penalties. Central government subsidy paid in relation
to overpayments is at a rate of 40p to the £1.00 or 40%.

3.2 Consequently, it can be estimated that £408,928 will be reclaimed from central
government in our subsidy claim, which effectively results in a 60% shortfall against
benefit expenditure.

3.3 The subsidy arrangements are designed to incentivise local authorities to recover
overpaid Housing Benefit. At this present time recovery performance in relation to all in-
year created overpayments cannot be accurately stated due to a national known bug
within Northgate’s software application. Northgate have predicted that this bug will be
corrected in a software release due in June 2010

4 ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION STRATEGY
4.1 The Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy - relating to Housing Benefit and

Council Tax Benefit is published on the Council’s website, along with the Sanctions
Policy and advice on how to refer suspected cases of benefit fraud.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 5



Page 216

4.2 The Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy outlines the types of activities the Council will
use to both detect and prevent benefit fraud. Since April 2008 the Benefit and Local
Taxation Service has re-focussed activities to remind benefit claimants of the importance
to report changes in their circumstances to ensure that the right benefit is being paid.

4.3 The Fraud Investigation Team in partnership with the Homelessness Investigations
Unit has successfully made a joint bid for an integrated Intelligence and Case
Management IT system where funding has been approved and a Project Manager
appointed.

4.4 This software system will allow for the programmatic sharing of Intelligence across a
number of Directorates (including Safer Communities and Educational Welfare initially) in
order to highlight inconsistent information provided by customers to different Service
areas and encourage a partnership approach to problem solving. This project is
progressing to timescale. The IT specification has been completed and the Invitation to
Tender was sent out on 5™ March 2010

4.5 The National Fraud Initiative has had all 1,279 Benefits recommended matches
checked with a further 648 high and medium priority cases cleared to date. This will be
treated as an area of priority from April 2010.

4.6 Once a suitable broadband connection has been identified, we will be working in
partnership with the DWP on NFI work, with the DWP leading on cases where there is a
‘living together’ element to the offence (with the LA ‘joining’ the case prior to IUC)
whereas Haringey will concentrate on the previously identified priority areas such as
internal/external undeclared wages, homelessness, students and alcohol licences (with
the DWP invited to join reciprocally) This should enable us in partnership to cover aimost
twice the amount of cases. There is agreement in place that Haringey’s legal department
will be handling all joint Prosecutions arising from the Local Authority, claiming for both
LA and DWP Investigator costs at trial.

Report Template: Formal Bodies 6



Page 217 Agenda ltem 14

Haringey Council

Audit Committee Date: 25" March 2010

Subject: Tackling Health Inequalities Audit Report and Action Plan

Report Author: Susan Otiti, Acting Joint Director of Public Health,
Haringey Council and NHS Haringey

1. PURPOSE

1.1 To update the Audit Committee on the progress made in addressing the
recommendations in the Grant Thornton Tackling Health Inequalities audit
report.

2. SUMMARY

2.1 Grant Thornton, the appointed external auditor for both Haringey Council
and NHS Haringey, undertook an audit of work to assess how we were
tackling health inequalities in the borough. While the audit report June
2008 was very positive, a number of areas for improvement and
challenges were identified. A Health Inequalities Audit Action Plan was
developed and an update of this plan can be found at Appendix 1. All
recommendations are ‘green’ except for one that has ‘amber’ status.
Progress has slipped on this recommendation as the Public health Team
experienced tremendous pressure responding to the Flu Pandemic
between May 2009 to January 2010 and members of the workforce were
diverted to work on this public health priority.

3. RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 The Audit Committee note the Health Inequalities Audit recommendations
and update of the Action Plan and recognise progress in the light of
pressures experienced by the Public Health team responding to the Flu
Pandemic from May 2009 to January 2010).

4. BACKGROUND INFORMATION

4.1 Grant Thornton, the appointed external auditor for both Haringey Council
and NHS Haringey undertook an audit of work to assess how we were
tackling health inequalities in the borough. This audit covered work within
both the Council and NHS Haringey and across the Haringey Strategic
Partnership (HSP). The audit produced useful recommendations to
support tackling health inequalities.

4.2 The audit report was presented to the Well-Being Partnership Board in
June 2008, and was considered by the PCT’s audit committee in
September 2008.



Page 218

4.3 An Action Plan has been developed to take forward the recommendations
made in the audit report to help reduce the health inequalities gap. The
Action Plan was taken to the Audit Committee in October 2008.

4.4 Grant Thornton presented the ‘Tackling Health Inequalities in Haringey -
follow-up report’ to the Audit Committee on 1% February 2010 and an
update on progress against the action plan was requested.

5. ANALYSIS

5.1 Outside of the Grant Thornton action plan a number of positive
developments should be noted by members.

5.2 Progress towards the national Life Expectancy target - One of the two
national health inequality targets is a reduction in the gap in life
expectancy by at least 10% between ‘routine and manual groups’ and the
population as a whole by 2010. To track progress against this target the
Life Expectancy Action Plan for Haringey was drawn up in 2006. The plan
focused on 12 key areas of activity (agreed at a consultation event to
facilitate development of the action plan). In autumn 2009 a progress
report was presented to the Well Being Partnership Board. The report
provided a half way progress report on improving life expectancy in
Haringey.

5.3 Life expectancy in both males and females is increasing. Between 2001-
2003 and 2005-2007, life expectancy in Haringey has increased 1.5 years
for men and 3 years for women. Male life expectancy (2005-07) in
Haringey is 1.5 years lower than England. Female life expectancy (2005-
07) is now 1.1 years higher than England.

5.4 The latest national report against the health inequalities target’ published
by the Department of Health states that Haringey is on target to achieve
its contribution towards the National Life Expectancy Target for
Males and Females, based on 2004-06 rolling averages. This is an
encouraging sign and indicates that we are continuing to make solid
progress towards improving life expectancy in Haringey.

5.5 Since the 2006 Haringey Life Expectancy Action Plan was published, the
landscape has changed, notably several key strategic initiatives have
been developed, such as, the Sustainable Community Strategy, the Local
Area Agreement and the Primary Care Strategy and partnerships have
strengthened the actions that have contributed to increasing life
expectancy. Addressing health inequalities was identified as a priority area
for improvement in the Comprehensive Area Assessment 2009.

5.6 However life expectancy is not evenly distributed in Haringey. At the two
extremes, male life expectancy in Tottenham Green (70.6 years) is 8

1Tackling Health Inequalities: 2007 Status Report on the Programme for Action. Department of Health. Available at:
www.dh.gov.uk/en/Publicationsandstatistics/Publications/DH_083471



Page 219

years lower than male life expectancy in Alexandra (78.9 years). Male life
expectancy tends to vary with deprivation in Haringey. The gap in female
life expectancy between the wards with the highest and lowest life
expectancy is 8.4 years.

5.7 A number of programmes have been developed and implemented to

target the borough’s deprived areas in order to address the health
inequalities experienced within the borough, for example smoking
cessation services and physical activity programmes.

5.8 Department of Health (DH), Health Inequalities National Support

Team (HINST) visit — October 2009 - NHS Haringey is a Spearhead
PCT,? to support Spearheads the DH established the HINST. The HINST
has visited PCTs across the country to support areas to improve
performance. The HINST visited Haringey in October 2009. The aim of the
visit was to review what we are doing in relation to reducing adult health
inequalities in the borough. They were particularly interested in keeping up
the momentum around the national 2010 life expectancy targets against
which Haringey is currently on track for both men and women. The HINST
held interviews, workshops and a community engagement focus group to
understand the local context and assess barriers to and opportunities for
continued progress at a population level. The visit benefited from the input
of many individuals within the Council, NHS Haringey, the North
Middlesex Hospital and the voluntary and community sector. The HINST
congratulated all partners on their commitment and passion for this area;
on NHS Haringey's 'visionary' primary care strategy; on the adults'
wellbeing arrangements; and on a variety of other aspects of our collective
work to make progress on health inequalities.

5.9 The HINST identified a number of high level recommendations to enable

6

Haringey to remain on track to achieve the target and to address the
inequalities within the borough. A number of the recommendations have
been achieved and the remainder are being addressed by all partners.
The HINST are returning to Haringey in late March 2010 to discuss
progress.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The following comments relate to those items within the action plan which
have direct financial implications:

e Recommendation 1 - NHS Haringey continues to invest in the JSNA as
part of its investment strategy and support continues to be provided by
the Council’s Policy and Performance Service.

2 Identified as local authorities with a combination of factors including high levels of deprivation, relatively low life expectancy and high mortality

rates for major killers such as heart disease and cancer



Page 220

e Recommendation 7 — The public health team within the PCT has
expanded since autumn 2008 with new consultant posts and additional
investment identified with the creation of a health economist post.



Appendix 1: Updated Health Inequalities Audit Action Plan

Page | Recommendation Priority Respon | Comments Progress January Progress January RAG
no. 1 = high sibility milestones 2009 2010 Status
2=
medium
3 =low
8 Recommendation 1 - to 1 Joint Phase 1: Core data set to Core data set The JSNA continues to G
continue the development Strategic | be discussed at: uploaded on help us understand
of the Joint Strategic Needs e Council Chief the website local need and inform
Needs Assessment Assessm Executives the commissioning
Haringey has decided to go ent Management Board cycle. We have
beyond the minimum data Steering 29 July completed reports on
set in developing the Joint Group e Primary Care Trust population projections
Strategic Needs Board 6 July social segmentation ,
Assessment and it is likely analysis and needs
there will be considerable Susan Core data set available on assessments on sexual
planning required to obtain Otiti the website August

detail for secondary
analysis. There are also
potential difficulties in
developing a Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment given
the high mobility of the
population; therefore
partners will need to ensure
that proper arrangements
are in place to ensure
development of the Joint
Strategic Needs
Assessment is successful. If
this is the case, it is highly

Phase 2:
e Project Brief to be
finalised August
e Consultation Plan to
be agreed and
undertaken from
Sept.
e Area(s) focus to be
decided by March
2009
(Links to recommendation 6
and 7)

Phase 2 topics
agreed and being
progressed

Information on JSNA
web page circulated

Consultation
plan and user
survey agreed.
Web based
consultation

health, alcohol and
mental health.

As part of the ongoing
programme of JSNA
HSP organisations will
work together to look
at:

e Carers

e CAMHS to adult
services transition

e Older People’s
Needs Assessment
Phase 2

L2z obed

g

.

g




Page | Recommendation Priority Respon | Comments Progress January Progress January RAG
no. 1 = high sibility milestones 2009 2010 Status
2=
medium
3 =low
likely that benefits will arise currently being e Kurdish
in the form of more effective developed. Community
commissioning aimed at e Supporting People
improving health and well- e Physical Disabilities
being and reducing health — Adults (including
inequalities. sensory impairment
and long term
conditions)
e Economic R
Q
assessment (duty to «Q
provide this begins CD
April 2010) R
e Updating the N
Children and Young
People’s Needs
Assessment
9 Recommendation 2 - to 2 Joint Cost-benefit analysis is not | Principles of NHS Haringey has G
improve cost/benefit Commiss | currently undertaken, cost/benefit analysis | developed a
analysis of options to ioning however, under World were applied to the Prioritisation
reduce HI. Group Class Commissioning, the PCTs investment Framework. This has
We recommend that Primary Care Trust is prioritisation been applied to guide
partners further promote a Keith planning a major piece of exercise during investment decisions
wider understanding of and Edmund | work to understand how Autumn 2008. This for 10/11.
focus upon the costs and s/ expenditure is related to approach will
benefits of options of Margaret | health outcomes, which will | become further
specific courses of action to Allen necessarily include impact refined as the PCT

reduce Health Inequalities.

on health inequalities. This

develops its WCC




Page | Recommendation Priority Respon | Comments Progress January Progress January RAG
no. 1 = high sibility milestones 2009 2010 Status
2=
medium
3 =low
will be started during capacity.
Autumn (October) 2008.
11 Recommendation 3 - 1 Well- Restructured Well-Being WBCE agenda has G
improve structure of being Partnership Board and now been
WBPB Chairs Well-Being Chairs restructured to
Consider the agenda of Executiv | Executive agendas to link reflect the 7
Haringey's Well Being e items to the 7 Well-Being outcomes. Similar
Partnership Board to have a Strategic Framework restructuring of
balance between strategy Susan outcomes beginning WBPB agenda
and performance issues Otiti planned. .
with specific linkages to the Q
Well Being Strategic In addition, a WBCE | The Well-being 18
Framework. workshop will take Strategic Framework l
Following embedding of the place in May 2009 to | and Partnership Board R
Implementation Plans review operation of structures are being (O%

consideration should be

given to involving Overview

and Scrutiny to challenge

the progress made against

the Health Inequalities
agenda.

Executive and
outcome groups, to
strengthen
connection with
Well-being strategic
framework.

reviewed following a
workshop in October
2009. (The May 2009
workshop was
postponed due to the
outbreak of the H1N1
virus and the need to
focus public health
resources on the
response).

A Joint Leadership




Page | Recommendation Priority Respon | Comments Progress January Progress January RAG
no. 1 = high sibility milestones 2009 2010 Status
2=
medium
3 =low
Event will be held in
April 2010 to agree the
vision, outcomes and
priorities of the new
Well-being Strategic
Framework and the
new governance
structures.
T
A draft of the new Well- 8
being Strategic D
Framework will go the N
Well-being Partnership k
Board July 2010.
Discuss performance using | Well-being
the well-being scorecard scorecard exception
exception reporting reporting now
beginning covered by both
(Links to recommendation 9 | agendas.
and 10)
11 Recommendation 4 - 2 Joint Major acute provider Trusts | The best ways to The Mental Health G
effective involvement of Commiss | already members. engage better with Trust and acute trust
provider trusts ioning acute trusts will be attend the Well-Being
There are opportunities to Group Clarify how to engage more | explored in the Partnership Board.

improve the effectiveness of

effectively with provider

WBCE workshop on




Page | Recommendation Priority Respon | Comments Progress January Progress January RAG
no. 1 = high sibility milestones 2009 2010 Status
2=
medium
3 =low
provider trusts within the Keith trusts, including in sub- 1.5.09 The Mental Health
health inequalities agenda. Edmund | groups. Trust, acute trust and
In particular, they could s/Susan provider organisation
provide further information Otiti Joint Commissioning Group are invited to the Joint
on Accident and Emergency to review which other Leadership Team on a
attendance levels. providers should be regular basis to discuss
represented and how. key strategic
developments.
12 Recommendation 5 - 2 Well- Making a Positive MPC group has The Haringey User G .
improve engagement with being Contribution group set up been set up Payment Policy was Q)
the public and Chairs (May 2008) agreed at the Well- 18
communities of interest Executiv being Chair's Executive l
Opportunity exists to e Board in 2009. R
engage with research O
institutions to understand Susan Building on relationship with | The Public Health
what their role could be in Otiti Institute of Child Health re: | team will continue to

the health inequalities
agenda. Once engaged that
resource could be used to
commission further studies
on areas where gaps
currently exist.

obesity (ongoing)

link with the Institute
of Child Health on
childhood obesity
issues, building on
previous
collaborations
regarding barriers to
healthy lifestyles




Page
no.

Recommendation

Priority
1 = high
2=
medium
3 =low

Respon
sibility

Comments
milestones

Progress January
2009

Progress January
2010

RAG
Status

Director of Public Health to
explore possibilities with
Middlesex University,
School of Health and Social
Care (Autumn 2008)

Discussions are
underway with
Middlesex University
to identify
opportunities to
connect

In September 2009
Middlesex University
joined the WBSP Board

The Community
Engagement
Framework was agreed
in 2009 and reaffirms
the HSP’s
understanding of and
commitment to
community
engagement.

Service users sit on all
Partnership Boards for
example the Older
People’s Partnership
Board and the Carer’s
Partnership Board.

Haringey LINK
continues to look at
Health and Social Care
issues within the

qzz abed

10



Page | Recommendation Priority Respon | Comments Progress January Progress January RAG
no. 1 = high sibility milestones 2009 2010 Status
2=
medium
3 =low
borough.
The Primary Care Trust
consulted on its
Neighbourhood
Development Plans at a
number of Area
Assemblies.
13 Recommendation 6 - 2 Joint Considering appropriate IT | Platform options We have brought G .
move forward the JSNA Strategic | platform options such as considered at JSNA | together on our website Q
The Public Health Team Needs those used in other Steering Group- a comprehensive library 18
should continue with the Assessm | authorities by March 2009, | Newham model of data, linking the |
development of the Joint ent such as: agreed. Business JSNA, needs R
Strategic Needs Steering o the Newham case being worked assessments, borough ~
Assessment, specifically the and model developed | up, profile, consultations
IT platform that is envisaged Technica by Geowise and surveys to the six
should be further explored | Groups using a product priorities of the HSP’s
to ensure that users can Eugenia called Instant Sustainable Community
interrogate the data set for Cronin / Atlas Strategy: Haringey: Our
their needs. Eve o Expanding the Place. As well as
Pelekano Geographical current data, this
S Information includes future plans
Systems internet with proposed
solution publication dates.
developed by e The IT Platform has
spatial to been agreed at the

11



Page | Recommendation Priority Respon | Comments Progress January Progress January RAG
no. 1 = high sibility milestones 2009 2010 Status
2=
medium
3 =low
encompass the Council IT Board.
partnership Potential suppliers
being identified
ABG funding for the IT
Platform being agreed.
The internet solution
developed by e spatial
can be accessed on the ;E
Council website at: Q
D
http://harinet.haringey.g N
ov.uk/index/maps- '&
online.htm
13 Recommendation 7 - 2 Director | Joint Strategic Needs Ongoing discussions | NHS Haringey has G
address capacity issues of Public | Assessment Technical on sharing recruited a Health
To ensure that the data set Health Group established and resources & Economist to provide
can be developed on a shares data developing joint additional resource to
timely basis it is imperative Susan analysts. Further the Public Health team.
that the public health team Otiti NHS Haringey has resources have

is at full capacity.
Consideration should be
given to use any capacity

within the Borough Council

for analyst sKills.

increased its capacity by
successfully recruiting to 4
consultant posts

The Primary Care Trust and

been identified in the
PCT’s investment
strategy for the
Phase 2.

In January 2010 NHS
Haringey and Haringey
Council held ‘Needs
Assessment Training’
for council officers to

12



Page | Recommendation Priority Respon | Comments Progress January Progress January RAG
no. 1 = high sibility milestones 2009 2010 Status
2=
medium
3 =low
Local Authority have develop their skills and
identified further resources understanding.
to support the Joint
Strategic Needs
Assessment (Primary Care
Trust via Investment
Strategy and Local
Authority via dedicated time
within new Information
Officer post). (August) T
Q)
15 Recommendation 8 - more | 2 Director | Director of Public Health A health inequalities | A second ‘Health: G 18
training on Hl issues of Public | has established London conference was held | Everyone’s Business’ l
There is potentially an Health Borough of Haringey in November 2008. It | partnership event to R
opportunity to enhance joint corporate public health was well attended by | look at health (e
training in Health Eugenia | group, with aim of elected members inequalities is planned
Inequalities at both Non Cronin cascading training through and NEDs, as well for summer 2010 to G

Executive Director and
Member level as well as
further down the
organisation.

London Borough of
Haringey.

Director of Public Health
with Assistant Chief
Executive Policy
Performance Partnerships
and Consultation is
convening an event for
elected

as senior officers.

build on the work from
the 2008 event and
beyond. It is proposed
to have this as a joint
event between OSC
and the WBSP Board to
share the findings of
the Marmot Review —
Fair Society, Healthy
Lives. The event will be

.

e

13



Page | Recommendation Priority Respon | Comments Progress January Progress January RAG
no. 1 = high sibility milestones 2009 2010 Status
2=
medium
3 =low
members.(October/Novemb open to all HSP and
er 2008) Theme Board
members.
Director of Public Health in The HINST led a PCT
discussion with Non Board seminar in
Executive Directors on January 2010 to
training needs. (Autumn discuss a number of the
2008) recommendations and S-DU
share good practice. Q
The session was open D
to all HSP members N
(O_C)
16 Recommendation 9-Well |2 Well At Well Being Chair Haringey has an G
Being Scorecard Being Executive on 20 June effective Well-Being
We recommend that the Chair agreed to discuss Partnership Board
Well Being Scorecard is Executiv | performance using well- which is co-chaired by
reviewed on an exception e being scorecard exception the Cabinet Member for
basis and that appropriate reporting as standing item Adult Social Care and
consideration is given to the Sarah on Well Being Chair Wellbeing, and the
performance agenda, this Barter Executive and Well-being Chairman of NHS

may require review by the
Well Being Chair Executive
prior to the Well-being
Partnership Board meeting.

Partnership Board

Haringey. This Board
has provided robust
governance and
oversight to the
Wellbeing agenda as
reflected in improving

14



Page
no.

Recommendation

Priority
1 = high
2=
medium
3 =low

Respon
sibility

Comments
milestones

Progress January
2009

Progress January
2010

RAG
Status

joint performance
against LAA targets.

Performance Summary/
Exception report
detailing the
performance on the
indicators within the
Thematic Board and
exception report
focusing on indicators
missing targets are
produced and
presented to the Well-
being Partnership
Board by the ACCS
Performance Manger.
Issues that may affect
performance reporting
on these indicators are
also discussed at Well
Being Strategic
Partnership - Agenda
Setting Meetings.

Le2 abed

19

Recommendation 11 -

develop formal plans and

Performa
nce

Both the Council and
Primary Care Trust are

NHS Haringey has
agreed an Associate

NHS Haringey has
identified the key

15



Page | Recommendation Priority Respon | Comments Progress January Progress January RAG
no. 1 = high sibility milestones 2009 2010 Status
2=
medium
3 =low
procedures for corporate Manage | seeking to develop plans for | Director for Public perspectives on CSR
social responsibility ment integrating corporate social | Health will be their relating to health.
Partner organisations Group responsibility (March 2009). | named lead to work
should develop formal with LBH
corporate social Mun The Council is developing a Work |s underway
responsibility plans or Thong People Strategy to cover all | The People linked to the Greenest
policies, which recognise Phung/ aspects of employment Strategy, agreed by | Borough Strategy.
their significant influence as Eugenia | including corporate social Members in Sept 08,
local employers, Cronin responsibility. The Strategy | covers all aspects Haringey Council and s-nt
commissioners, property will be considered at of organisational and | NHS Haringey are ()
owners and developers, and Management Board and people management | working together to o
neighbours to the local committee stage in - corporate social maximise the use of its N
community. These plans September 2008; it contains | responsibility is estate and identify &

should identify how partners
can use their full range of
services to stimulate health
improvement and address
health inequalities, and
consider the financial
implications of doing so.

a series of actions that will
co-ordinate corporate social
responsibility activities

An overarching policy of
Corporate Social
Responsibility can be
developed between NHS
Haringey, Haringey Council
and local voluntary and
community groups, this
needs discussion and
agreement, initially through
the Performance

central theme
running through it.
An enthusiastic
discussion was also
had about CRS at
Management Board
in January 2009.
Developing a CSR
Plan will be a
Leadership
Programme project
which is likely to be
completed in August
20009.

shared usage.

a1

GGG

16



Page
no.

Recommendation

Priority
1 = high
2=
medium
3 =low

Respon
sibility

Comments
milestones

Progress January
2009

Progress January
2010

RAG
Status

Management Group London
Borough of Haringey.
Agreement to develop a
joint policy would need to
be raised through the
Haringey Strategic
Partnership and agreed at
that forum.

It should be noted that there
are key work streams,
initiatives, projects and
strategies that correlate with
corporate social
responsibility not least the
Greenest Borough Strategy,
the Haringey Guarantee,
Child Poverty Strategy, Well
being and Safer
Communities Executive
Board work streams
amongst many others.
There are also schemes
within the local authority
which encourage staff
volunteering, and provide
work experience and

coz obed

17



Page
no.

Recommendation

Priority
1 = high
2=
medium
3 =low

Respon
sibility

Comments
milestones

Progress January
2009

Progress January
2010

RAG
Status

apprenticeships for
Haringey residents.

There is a need to pull this
work together with
overarching principles for
working as ethical and
socially responsible public
services and employers,
with a commitment and
tangible evidence of
creating and investing in a
culture of corporate social
responsibility.

€2 obed

18



Page 235 Agenda Item 15

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [N o) _]

Audit Committee On 25 March2010

Report Title: Internal Audit Annual Plan and Strategy 2010/11

Report authorised by: Chief Financial Officer r M
S

Report of and Contact Officer: Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Tel: 020 8489 5973
Email: anne.woods@haringey.qgov.uk

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-key decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the proposed Annual Internal Audit
Plan for 2010/11.

1.2 The report also advises Members of the internal audit strategy.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and/or other Strategies:

2.1Audit and Risk Management contribute to the Council priority to deliver excellent,
customer focused, cost effective services by reviewing key services and making
recommendations for improvement where appropriate. Follow up work is undertaken
to ensure that managers implement agreed recommendations and improvements.

2.2 Internal audit forms a key element within the revised Use of Resources assessment
and the CAA. The reports to both managers and the Audit Committee on progress
against the agreed audit plan and the implementation of audit recommendations
ensure that the requirements of the CAA assessment are fulfilled.

3. Recommendations
3.1 That the Audit Committee notes and approves the internal audit strategy.

3.2 That the Audit Committee approves the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2010/11.




Page 236

4. Reason for recommendation(s)

4.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the annual internal
audit plan as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to facilitate this, a draft audit
plan is provided for review and approval by the Audit Committee.

5. Other options considered
5.1 Not applicable

6. Summary

6.1 The internal audit service makes a significant contribution to ensuring the adequacy
and effectiveness of internal control throughout the authority. This report sets out the
planned programme of work for 2010/11.

6.2 The information has been complied from information held within Audit & Risk
Management and from records held by business units across the Council.

7. Head of Legal Services Comments

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report, and
comments that there are no specific legal issues arising out of the report or its
recommendations.

7.2 The Head of Legal Services also notes that the Draft Internal Audit Plan and Strategy
follows published and accredited guidance, and as such no legal issues arise out of
that document.

8. Chief Financial Officer Comments

8.1 The Chief Financial Officer notes that the proposed audit plan for 2010/11 has been
developed according to current best practice requirements for internal audit which
stress the need for them to be fully risk based following consideration of all available
information on future business issues and risk registers as well as an analysis of
materiality and risk of key services and systems.

8.2 The draft plan also outlines the responsibilities of Deloitte & Touche in terms of
reporting which provide further assurance that a timely and effective internal audit
function is provided for the Council.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1Not applicable

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec




Page 237

10. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

10.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all areas of
the council, which have an impact on various parts of the community. Improvements
in managing risks and controls will therefore improve services the Council provides
to all sections of the community.

11. Consultation

11.1 No external consultation was required or undertaken in the production of this report.
Consultation has been undertaken with respective service managers, Assistant
Directors, Directors and Assistant Chief Executives in the production of the draft
internal audit plan.

12. Service Financial Comments

12.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
completed by Deloitte and Touche to undertake the annual audit plan is part of the
five year contract which was awarded following a competitive tendering exercise in
compliance with EU regulations from 1 April 2007. The costs of this contract are
contained and managed within the Audit and Risk Management revenue budget.

13. Use of appendices
13.1  Appendix A — Draft internal audit plan and strategy 2010/11

14. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

14.1For access to the background papers or any further information please contact Anne
Woods on 0208 489 5973.

15. Background

15.1Local authorities are required by law to maintain an internal audit function. In addition,
The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2006 reinforce the
statutory requirement and re-state the need for the Council to maintain an adequate
and effective system of internal audit.

15.2Within Haringey, the Internal Audit function is comprised of Deloitte and Touche, who
undertake the majority of the internal audit work in accordance with the contract in
place, including IT and procurement audit. The in-house team is currently responsible
for investigations into allegations of financial irregularity, provision of advice on risk and
controls and grant certification work.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



Page 238

15.3Appendix A contains the proposed annual audit plan for 2010/11, which is fully risk
based and has been derived following consideration of the risk and materiality
(financial and other), of services and systems of the Council, the risk registers in place
and the 2010/11 pre-business plan reviews and draft business plans. This approach
reflects current best practice requirements for internal audit and ensures that, over the
life of the contract, the Council's key and higher risk systems and services will be
appropriately reviewed according to risk. This approach also ensures that the council
operates a fully integrated internal audit and risk management process.

15.4Appendix A also includes the audit strategy which will be used to deliver the council's
internal audit plan. As part of the contract with Deloitte and Touche, it is considered
appropriate to keep members advised of the strategy and the way in which the service
will be delivered and request their approval of it. The strategy has been drafted in line
with the 2006 CIPFA Code of Practice and best practice guidance for public sector
audit services.

16. The Annual Audit Plan 2010/11

16.1The proposed annual internal audit plan for 2010/11 is attached as Appendix A to this
report. It gives details of the planned audit work on the key financial and other systems
of the Council. Appendix A summarises the work which will be undertaken at a
corporate level, e.g. pro-active anti-fraud and project management and also provides
details of the work proposed for individual directorates.

16.2We have included brief details of the planned scope for each project, although the
detailed scope will be agreed with the client for the work at the planning stage of the
audit. Timings for the projects have also been agreed with the nominated clients to take
account of any cyclical or other work pressures, although these may be subject to
change during the course of the year.

16.3The proposed projects have been discussed with directors and their management
teams and will be subject to further discussions with the nominated client for each audit
as part of the detailed planning process. All completed projects are subject to a formal
follow up review process and the results of the follow up reviews will continue to be
reported for information to the Audit Committee, on a quarterly basis.

16.4We will continue to work with the Council's external auditors, Grant Thornton, to
ensure that audit coverage is maximised and duplication is avoided wherever possible
in order to make the best use of our combined resources. A planned programme of
meetings will take place during 2010/11 to ensure that use of audit resources is
effective.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



Page 239

16.5Table 1 below summarises the numbers of audit projects planned for 2010/11, by
directorate:

Table 1

Number of
Directorate Projects

Chief Executive — People and Organisational Development 5
Chief Executive — Policy, Performance, Partnerships, and
Communication

Children and Young People’s Service (excluding schools)
Urban Environment

Adults, Culture and Community Services

Corporate Resources (including key financial systems)

IT audit

Procurement and contract audit

Project management assurance

Total

W -
A CEIENT Y i ENE IS

16.6Included in the above table (within Corporate Resources) are audits of key financial
systems. We consider key systems to be those which are essential to the successful
management of the Council, and where failure of the system would have a material
effect on the organisation. These key systems, including payroll, accounts payable,
accounts receivable, council tax, housing benefits etc. are therefore subject to regular
review. This programme of work has been agreed with both the managers responsible
and the council’s external auditors.

16.7The number of projects listed in the table above excludes the follow up reviews and
visits to individual establishments as part of the schools and social services
programmes. The 2010/11 audit plan included at Appendix A has taken account of the
key risks and issues which have been identified via a review of: business unit,
departmental and corporate risk registers; new projects and procurement activities
reported to the Cabinet and the Cabinet Procurement Committee; the Annual Audit and
Inspection Letter; fraud investigation work completed in 2009/10;: and the 2010/11
business plan proposals submitted by business units. As a result, the 2010/11 audit
plan has included projects to address the key risks and issues facing the Council
including: data quality; safeguarding adults; personalisation contracts for service
provision; employment verification procedures; disposal/sales of properties; and cash
handling procedures.

16.8We will continue to provide support to key projects, including advice to project boards
at key stages of the scheme where appropriate, as well as undertaking reviews of
individual projects to ensure that the project is complying with the required framework,
and financial, reporting and other functions are being managed appropriately.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5



Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 241

9¢ J0 | ebey 01-c0-ZL L1/0L0C 9beISA0D upny feussiu) Asbulie yeiq

'SS®00B JIpNne JO 8d0JS 8y} SB YINS S10J0B) AQ PaUBIISUOD
eq Aew uojuido ypne ey Jo adoos euy sanoeId Ul JRY} B0U O} JuEHOdW! S| 1| "S|gejieAe 80USpING 8U} JO UONEjOdBAXS UE
uoniuiep AQ st pue 8INjosqge 8q JOAS UBD 80UBINSSE JO UOIUIO OU JBY} SSUSS B} Ul 8|qBUOSES! 8qg Ajuo “ienemoy ‘ued uoiuido ay |

"$88$800.d Buipiodas [enuue Aionjels d1ey} Jo ped se uo poda. 0} spesu
99HIWWOD PNY 8U} UYJIYM 9JUBINSSE JO YIOMBWEI} SU} JO JUSWS|e A9y B SI JIpne [eusslul AQ usaIb uoluido sy *eouruloAOB pue
|043U02 ‘JuslusbeUBW HSII UO 9ORILLWOYD JPNY U1 O} uotuido aA1399[qo pue juspuadspul ue apino.d 03 sI ypne jeusolul JO 9j04 By

senyjiqisuodsay pue ssjoy g}

"SI0)pNe [eulaxe s AoBulieH 10} SBWOH PUE S,]10UNOD 8Y} Y30G YIM UOIRLed0-00 PUB UOSIBI| 9AIJ08YS 8INSUT e
Pue sjuswalnbai A1oinyels JuBAS|al S99 UYIIYM SIIAISS PNE U JOAISP O} paJinbal s90.n0sal JIpne oy Ayjusp| e
MI0M JIpne 8y} woJy BulsLe suoiepusWIWOdS]
uim juswsebeuew Buipinoid Ag soueusonob pue |053U0D uowobeUBW MSH SJIoUN0Y sy} 0} sjuswsnoidwi Ajuep| e
-SYSII puB S8A1109[qo s, uonesiuebio
oy} o3 Auoud aaIb yoym ‘sueld ypne jenuue yBNoIY} SjUBWSBUBLIE 9OUBUIONOR pue j0u0d ‘JuswabeuBwWw XS BY} UPNY e
‘SjuswebueLIe 9oUBUIBAODB PUE [0JUOD ‘JUBWSBBUBW YSH S,)IDUNOD 8} UO UOIUIdO U UM 8911ILULLIOD JPNY 8U} SPINCI] e
*03 Sn 8|qeua [iIm yoiym pamoj|o} eq o3 Abojopoyiew pue yoeoidde ay; suyep o3 si ABojesis Hpne Jeulsiul Yyeip ey} Jo ssodind sy
ABa1ens 1pny jeulsju| ay; jo asoding ||

uononponu| "L

‘[encidde [ewlIo) 10} 993HWWIOYD JPNY 8y} 0} pauoda. aie ABsyenis ypne feussiut sy 0} sebueyd jueolyiubls
Aue pue syono] pue 8jI0jeg UM }OBAUOD 8U} 104 pesn si yoeoudde siyy jeyr pesodoid s 3 "2002 udy ur Juswiuiodde-o J1eyy
d0Uls 8YoNo | pue spiojeg AQ peje|dwod yIom sy} uo spjing 3| ‘Jeacidde [BWIOJ 1O} S8RIWWOYD UPNY 8y} 0} pejussald pue mojeq
N0 18s s| ABsyens sy -ueid upne [enuue | 1/0L0g dY} 4O Juoy By} 1e pepnjoul st ued ypne sy jo Aisallep oy ABajess $,]lounod ay |

‘lenoidde [euly 10} 93RILIWOYD JPNY SY) O} oINS
st ueid ey} pue swes; juswoeBbeuew JY} puUB SI0}08N] YIM posiBe pue passnosip ussq eney sypne pssodosd syj ‘ued
Ipne jenuue paseq xsii pejesbajul Ajinj e epinoid 0} 0L/6002 BuLInp uexepapUN YoM PneJ} dA0Ba. pue aAoe-0.d pue ojyoid
Pnelj s,ldunod ey} pue 'suejd ssauisng sieysiBal st Jyun ssaulsng pue [euswpedsp ‘91ei0diod 9y} UOHBISPISUOD OjUI 8)E} puB
L1/0LOC Ul [10UNOD Y} SSOJOE SjusLLEdap puB SHUN ssauisng Buioey sysu [elus3od oY) UO paseq ose ueid sy} ulypm pesodoud
supne ayj "L 1/0+0g Buunp pays|dwoo g 03 sypne jeussiul keburieH Joj uejd ypne [BUJSIUI [BNUUE BY} INO S}8S JUBWINJOP SIY |

L1/0102 ABajens pue ue|d Hpny |eusaju] yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 242

9¢ Jo g ebey 01-20-¢1 L1/010¢ 8beIon0D ypny jeussiu) Aebutie yeiq

‘lenocidde [euwo} 1o} 890D IPNY Y3 03 papincid aq [jim JesA fejoueul ayy Buunp ued

Npne ay; o} sebueyo jueoyiubls Auy “1eah ay) Buunp swes) juswabeuew Jioy) pue SI010aJIC UIM sSuoIsSSNasIp Buimoyjjo) pepuswe
Jayuny oq Aew ebetonoo pesodoid syl -uonesiuefio syl jo abpsimouy N0 pue |1DUNOD AeBuieH Joj dlom siesh snoineid
N0 JO SYNSaJ 8y} Yum Jsyeboy ‘L "z Je suoljeIspISUOD 8y} uo paseq ueld yeip e patedeid aaey am juiod SIY} IV "JIouno) ey
UIYIM s190140 A8y ynum 3nsuod jim am ueld [euolieledo [enuue pesodoid pue ABsjeins ypne [eussiul Jno asedsid 0} sn s|geus o]
uoijewlojul jo Buusyien g1z

‘pauue|d
s| ebesenoo ejeudoidde jey) ainsus digy O} SBRILUWIOD IPNY dYl YyIM paJinba. soueinsse BU} SSNOSIP ||IM JIpNe [eulalu] e
pue :aoe|d ul ind ussq sey sseo0.d
SU} JS}je Uey] [BIILLIOUODS SJOW S| JUSWAOPASP BuliNp S8SSaUNBOM JO UOIIOSLI0D PUB UORBOLIIUSPI 8Y} PUB ‘Sessenoid
umouy pue paysijgelss ueyy Aysll alow Ajusisyul oq ued sassedold BuiBueyd -1ounoy ey uiyum soed aye} 03 pauugd
10 9oe|d Bunfe) ebueyo JO JusIxd 8y} O} UBAIB 89 |jIM UOIBISPISUOD ‘@0UBUIONOB PUB [0JU0D ‘sl Bunsixa 03 uonippe uj e
‘Buisiie Jou aJe sjoedWwl 8SISAPE JBU) SoUBINSSE Uleb 0] ‘uoiusie alnbai s Aoy se pauljep J0uU SySIY e
‘uouido
9Ul JO ssaudAIsuayaIdWOD 8y} O} ppe O} 8beIsn0D S, Jesk yoes ul papnjoul 8q [iim S3SU Aey-uou jJo abuel syelidoidde uy e
:ieah Aiens payupne Ajjeonews)sAs pue Ajjny ag Jou pasu s8ss8004d puB SWSISAS yoNs ‘JIOAOMOH “paJinbal soueinsse
Sy} Joniop 0} siseq Jejnbas B UO peypne &g O] Pasu [IM ‘IoUNoD 8yl AQ paiijuspl SB ‘sassadoid IO SWelsAs NSU-YbiH e
{S9A1109[gO pue SWIE S) JO JUSWSASIYOE 8y} 0] Ao,
SE PS)IIUSP! SBY ‘SI0}PNE [BUISIXS S} PUE IDUNOD U} YdIym sysl o abues sjoym ay) ssedwoous [jim 8BBISAOD [[BIONO By e
-SAljBIjU| pPNEl [eUOleN
9y} ur uonedioed s,|IouN0Y 8y} Jo Hed Se pue JIpNe [euseiul AQ pasjdwod YIOM PNeI-Ilue SA1IOBS) pue onnjoe-oud ay| e
JI2UNOY 8y} SSOIOR JiuN SSauISNg Yoes 40} sueid ssauisng e
'sivysiBal ysIl pue $9s$9004d JusWSBBRUBW YSIJ S,]10UN0) By e
:BuIMOo|o} By} JO JUNODOR USYE] SABY OM
ob®'IaA0D Jipne [eusslul 8y} Buiuiwisiep Ul INg ‘Jeah A19ns 90UBUISAOB PUE [0J3UOD “Ysii JO 108dSE AI1ans JIpNE 0} Alessadou ou sy
abeiano) upny jeussyu; buikpmusp 1712

sbeisono) upny jewBiu] L2

@oueINSsSy pue yoeoiddy ‘ebeionor ypny jeusaqu) 2

"Sa.n|ie} |0J3U0D IO} sjgisuocdsal Buleq sioypne [euislul JO uolisenb

OU 8Qq UBD aJay} ale) [BUOISSB)OId &N UO SPJepPUB]S 8y YIM 9OUBPIOIDR Ul PSIONPUOD A|QBIISUOWSP S YIOM PN [BUISUI SB

Buo| se pue @oueUIBAOD pUB [013U0D si) Jo} ANjIgisuodsal S,881WWOY NPNY Sy} 8pasiadns Jou Seop uoiuido IpNY [euIsIu| ayl

L 1/0102 ABajens pue ueld upny [eussiu] yeiq — AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 243

9¢ Jo ¢ ebey 04-20-¢t LL/0L0g 9beienoD ypny jewsiul Asbuuey yeiq

119U} ssesse 0} ‘siseq s|dwes B uo Ajjewou ‘sjoJuod A8y uo N0 palLed s| Buiise] sseusAI}oay T
"wieishs / Bale o) JO SAAI08[QO pue swie
SU1 JO JUSWISASIYIE BUj} Ul XS JO [9AS] BUj} IO} JUSIOIYNS BIB S|0JIUOD U} JoY1aym Buissossy e
pue ‘weishs/eale ay; Jo saAioslqo
Pue swie ayj Jo Juswanslyoe ayy Bunnusnsid sesned sjqissod ay) pue SYsl 8yl Buiwiyuo) e
:OAJOAUL AjleurIou [IM S[0J3U0D [euslUl JO AoBnbape 8y} Bunenjeay
"S|0JJUOD [BUIBIUI 8U)} JO SSBUBANDBYS PuUB Aoenbape sy} 410Q sulwIglep 0} Jipne uy :uonediIsA
-SMOJ|04 Se s! ypne Jo adA} yoes Jo uoniuep sy
Hpne jo yideqg

'SMOJ|0} SE sa1ousnbal) pue syidep snolea o) pauue|d aJe sjuswubisse ay |
Buluuelq yuswubissy ¢z'z

"walsAs ||e1on0 ayy uo uoluido ypne ue Buipinoud pue Bunse; sjos3u09

Buisnooy ‘wieysAs sy uiyum sysii ey Buissasse ul WSy} IsISse O} slojpne O} UoiIBuLIOUl J8yLINy 9pIAoId (M pUB $S800.d Hupne ay;
Juswa|dwiod 0} paubisep 9 [JIM JUSLISSSSSE J|9S 8U| "SISBJ [BNUUE UE UO wsAs yoes 1oy s0J3U0D A8y 8y} 159) 0} pauueld |jis st i
SE 880D 1IPNY 8} PUB SIONPNE [BUISIXS PUE [BUISIUI O} SQUBINSSE JO 804N0S [BUORIPPE UB opinoud [lIm Siy swalsAs jeioueuly
Aoy 10} s|qisuodsai siebeuew asoy) 10} JUSWISSSSSE J|8S ¥SlI Ps||041u0d Jo swwe.lbo.d e dojensp o) pasodoid SI ¥ ‘LL/0L0g Buung

"SISEQ 8211940 B UO Pa}s|dwiod aJe Smainas yidep-ul pue SISeq [BNUUE UB UO Pa1se} ale s|04u09 Asy oy}

1BY} SaInsud yoiym 99e(d Ul si yiom Jo swiwe.Boid psuueld e Ynsel B Sy ‘SWisAs xe) IoUN0D pue Buisnoy ‘ejgealsdss sJunoooe
‘9|qeAed sjunoooe ‘|oJ3u09 Aleyebpng pue juswebeuew [eroueuly oibs1ess ‘jjosAed apnjour pue iy 03 slem Asuy 31 1ounoo sy

uo jJoedw [BLIBIEW B SABY PINOM YDIUM 9SOY) 818 SWlSAS [e1oueuly A8Y 8y ,sweisAs [eloueul Ae, Se ypne [BUISIXS pUE [BUISLUI
Aq paynuspr useqg saeY pue seAoslqo [euonesedo sy Buinaiyoe oy Juepodw a1 yoiym swiesAs JO Jsgquinu e sey |1ouno? sy |
swolsAg |eloueulq Aoy z'Z'Z

"JYBL UMO J18y) Ul pamainal 8q 0y ueld upne ayy ul pepnjoul 8q Aew sasseo0id pue sainpasoid
9Soy} ‘sesed swos u| "ueld ypne [enuue yelp oy} Buionpoid USUM DBIBPISUOD aJe Seate 9S8y} JO |y "sleisiBas ysu 91ei0diod
pue |ejuswiiedsp ‘Jun ssauisng jo juswdojersp sy} pue Hiomewely juswebeuew 1o0sfoid ‘sueid ssauisng [euly pue Buiuueld
ssauisng Buipnjoul sessao0.d 81e10di09 Ay ay3 Jo yed se papnjour s| Juswsebeuew 4SIY "ABerens pue Aojjog luswsabeury ysiy
91eJ0dio] s,10uno) ey senoidde sspIWIWOD PNy 941 pue jJuswaebeuew ysu 0} yoroudde paysijgelse llem ® sey |1ouno) ay]

diomawel yuswebeuen ysiy |1°g2

ddueINssy pue yoeosddy upny jeussu; gz

L 1/0102 ABajens pue uejd 1pny |[euialuj yeiq - Aebuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 244

9¢ Jo ¢ abey 04-20-¢L L1/0L02 9beIBA0D Npny [euwisiul AebulieH yeiq

. :Buimoy|o} ayy Jepisuod

M em ypne yoes Jo ped sy "s|0Ju0d Jo/pue sysu Buibeuew Joj sjqisuodses siolo sy} salluspl sesseooud juswebeuew
ASH S IOUNOD By "WdY} INOGe 8dUBINSSE UIED 0} Jop.o Ul A3osuIp sesse00ld ypne 0} Jpne [eulslul Joy Alessadeu sAeme jou s1
SI9PIAOId SJUBINSSY JOYIQ UO douel9y Z'S

‘AebulieH 10} S8WOH JO/PUE [I2UNOY) 8Y} 4O SAIINDSXT JSIYD SU} “O} Jol1euw SU3 18481 10 ‘YUIM JNSUOD [[IM 8M ‘SIOYPNY [BUISIXT BU}
UM 1011}u0d jo ased Aue u| “ejeidoidde siaym 3Jom Ino uo Ajas 0} Anunpoddo By} sIoypny [Bulsix3 8yl JSYO |lIm am ‘Jeinoiued uj

IOM JIPNE JO JONPUOD 8y} Ul uoljelado-09 Joj ssijuniioddo yeeg
pue ABojourwie} pue spoylsw ‘senbiuyosy ypne Jo Buipuejsispun uowwoo ssnosi(y
-1S8J91Ul [BNINW JO SIO1RW SSNISI(]
‘sue|d JIpne 8y} Uo YNSUC) e
:0] suoijesiueb.o
U30q 4o} sioNpny [BuISIXT SY) UM Alieinbal 198w 03 488S [IIm am SIoypNY [Bulsiu| S, AsBulieH 10} SBWOH pUe |IoUNoY 8yl Sy
SIoHpNny [eusoix3 sy} yum diysuonelgy  |°g

SI9PIAOId 9JUBINSSY JOYIO PUE SIONPNY [eusalx] yum diysuonejoy g

"BPBW 8Q [[IM HMJom
9U1 19Npu0od 0} palinbai 8q |jIm Yoiym ‘SABp JJB}S JO JOQUNU 8U} JO S1BWIISS UB ‘PaIJIIUSP! IOM JIpNE [BUJSIUI JO JUBLLSIS YIBS IO

AluQ 1senbay Ag uoleplieA pue dn mojjo4 MO

¥S1J JO SISEQ 8y} UO P8}os|es uoleplieA pue dn mojjo4 wnipsiy
[enuuy uoleayLIsA pue dn mojjo4 ybiH

upne jo Asuanbai4 yide( aoueoubig Ajuony

:SMO||0} SB oq |IIm Aouenbauy pue yidep pauue|d sy} pue 1oUNoY ay; O} 9ouedIub!s sy uo Buipuadap pasiiold eq [im upne yoeg
; upne jo Aouanbaiy

"AjaAj08ye pajusws|duwl US9q SABY SUOITEPUSLILIODS. IPNE SNOIASId ey} UIBHSOSE O} JIpNEe uy :dn mojjo4
"SOINIAIOB dduBINSSE pue ueld uonoe ‘ABsiesss j043u00 ajelidoidde
UB SBY DUE JUBASIS ‘S|QISUSS SI YSM PBIUSWINOOP SUl JI SUIULIBISP PINOM SIY] "INO PALLED
q [|!m 1pNe [9Asl-yBly € ‘sysli pue sesse JuedylublS SSO| U0} ‘UOIIBONLIGA O} BAIJRUIS}E UE Sy :uolepIep
"J0J8 JO sesne? Jo Jequinu abie| B BulIBA0D JO ‘0L
fejndiyed e jusasid O} [BYIA SB palilUSP! 9SO} 8B S|03U0D Aoy "8d13oeid Ul uoljeledo OAI108})0

1 1/0102 ABsjens pue ueld upny [ewssiu] Yyeiq - Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 245

o¢ Jo G ebey 04-20-21 |1/010¢ 8beisnoD ypny feussiul Aebuler yeiq

‘ejelidosdde assym yiom dn mojjo} ypne jo Buwi L e
pue ‘uopejuswasidwi 1o} saulpesp
pesibe pue Ajjiqisuodses ‘esuodses juswsebeuew yum Jeyiebol sjeuonel e Ag pspoddns suonepuswwoss pajeleq e
‘Bursiie sanssi Asy Bunybiybiy pue suoisn|ouo? e BuistewwWwNS ‘UpPNe 8u} JO 1x8U00 8y} Bulurejdxs Arewiwns aAlNd9axe uy e
BPNIOUL [IIM SIY L "Jewlo) paaibe syi ul paonpoid 8q Ajjewou [jim suodeay

“Hodals yelp sy} o} asuodsal s juswebeuew
J0 1di90al 8y} JO SHeaM oM} ulyIm pansst Buleq suodas feuly yum Bupesw SIU} JO s¥8aMm Bauyl ulyum paanpoud aq [im suods.
lipne yeiq ‘Bunesw 1xe ue ul Jebeuew 921AI8S 8y} 0} SBUIPUY B} UO %oBQP8ea) apIA0Id [lIM Jo)pne ay) ‘Yiompisty auy jo uons|dwod
Buimojjo4 "eate suo ul ssue sbuipuy Jofew i sjdwexs o} ‘Jabeuely HPNY pue .I0J08JIP 8JIAISS JUBASISS 8Ul YIM Juswoaibe
Aq paiiea eq Aew podai jo 8jA1S BYL *SIPNE JUSWIYSIOE}SD Buipnjour ‘ueid ypne jenuue sy} ulyum pauIRILOD 108loud ypne yoes
10} paONpo.id 8q [|Im SHOdS) JIPNE [BULIOS "SIOJ08JIP SIIAISS |[B O} pepiroid usaq sey SIYl pue siebeuBW 82IAISS BY) PUB JO)PNE
dU} Yi0q JO sanijiqisuodsal sy} pue Jpne yoes Jo sebels Aoy oy} 1IN0 s}es yoiym 0o030.d Burpodos Hpne psaibe ue aney opp

suodey upny 1°z¥
Buipodey g¥

"Buitesw yxa auy Joy a1ep pauueld pue sAep
196png pauueld ‘seemainiaiul Jo sinpayds pauueld ‘yoeoidde pue adoos Jipne ‘S9NI1108[qO BBJB B} SPNIOUI [|IM DOUBISE JO SWIS |
HPNE 84} JO JUSWIBOUSWWIOD U} 81048q SHo9M 931U} 1SES)| 1B 90B|d 8)E} ||IM SIYL "}IPNE JUBAS[SI B} IO} 99USISB) JO swu8} pajielsp
9y} ea.be 0} siebeurw JuBAS|al BY) YUM pabueLie aq |im sBunesw Buuued ‘ue|d ypne [eussiul [enuue 8y JO |eAcidde Buimoyjo

UOHEBOHNON pue supny jo Bulwi] |-y

S|020}01d Buiuodoy v

"SWEes} MIIASI JBYI0 YUM BUpIOM JUIOr  »
pue isbuipuy 40 Ayjiqeres e6ned 0} suopouny 8OUBINSSE JO YoM dly1oads 9y} siseq sjdwes e uo Bunipny =
:$95$900.d SOUBINSSE JSYJ0 JO SHPNE doUBINSSE AYfenb oy1oeds
:onj0AUl Aew sy -(uexe) Apeadje suonoe syeadal
YOIYM XIOM JIpNE JO JONPUOD JNOYIM) SOUBINSSE [[BISAO 8U} 0} 9INQIIJUOD UBD S8SS800.4d 99UBINSSE 9S8} JO MJom 3y} moy
19PISUOD UBD 1PNy [BulSiU| JBY) JBPIO Ul ‘painsse Ayjenb pue paypne aq SaAjesway} UBD $8ss900.d 8SaU} yolym u Aem ay| e
pue (swes} uooadsul 1O MaIASL JaY10 JO
YI0M 8U} ‘SMBINSL YSHD PausWnoop ‘sesseo0.d Buipiodey diyspiemalg "6-9) 90r|d Ul 8JB SEsSe004d 9oURINSSE J9Ylo JBUYM e

L L/0102 ABejens pue ueld upny [eussiu] yeiq — Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 246

9¢ Jo 9 ebed 01-20-21 L1/0L0e 8beisno) upny jewsuj AsbulieH yeiq

IlB4OAO By} JO juswalels psealbe ue pue uojuido |enuue uno Buieiodiodur paonpold 8g OS[E [IIM SSRILUIOY JIPNY S, Jlounon
9y} 0} poday [enuuy uy ‘j}senbas uodn spuodes Jpne Jno Jo s81dod [N} UM papinoid 8g Osfe [Im 99JHWWOYD 8y} JO siaquis|y

"spodal Jipne [eutsiul Jallies ul peaibe suonoe syl |iiny 0} Juswebeurw sy Aq saunjie) Aue Jnoge 810U v
PUE :SI0}PNE [BUISIUI BY} O} UIBJUOD JO 818 Yolym sssuodsal juswebeurw Aue Inoge ajou y
‘SUOIIBPUSLUILLIODA || JO S|IBjep |IN4
‘A10Bs1e0 AJio1d Yoes Ul SUOIIEPUBWILIODS JO JOquINN
:9JUBINSSE JO [9A8] 8} INOGE UOISN|OUOD |[BIOAD
-Upne 8y} Jo SaAIR0RIgD e
"9oUBINSSE PBYIWI|, PAAISISI YDIym SHPNE [eulajul pa3e|dwiod sys Jo yoes 1oy s|ielep Buimoljoy ayy snid “yiom peysidwod
j0 Arewwns e epnjoul (M pue ‘siseq Asuenb B UO 9891IWIWOY IPNY S,[IDUN0D 8U} O} pajuesald aq |im 1odas sselboid v
supodey soniwwo) upny g'zv

"9snge Jo Joue ueolyiubis 0} usdo walsAs syl Buines| yeam Ajjeieusb si j013U0D :80UBINSSY ON
WSt
1B S8A108[qO WelsAs sy} INd 0} SB YoNS B S|0JIUOD JO WISAS BU} Ul SESSOUNBOMN :90UBINSSY PBJILLIT

"3SI 1B SOAI308Iq0 weysAs ay)
40 dwos Ind YoIym sesssudeam dJe 818y} INQ ‘WeISAS punos Aj[ediseq B S| 918y 90UBINSSY [BIIUBISQNS
"$8A1}08Iq0 WelsAs oy} sAsIyoe 0} paubisap |03U0D JO WBISAS PUNOS B SI 8oy | :80UBINSSY |IN4
:spodal ypne ul pasn aq |iim uotuido 4o sjeas] Buimo)|oy ay |

"sa01308.d mc_xb; poob ‘passaippe oq 0} sanss!

SS8UISNQ 18Y10 (WslsAs juswebeuBWw SSBUISNG SY} YIM SSOUBLLIOJUOD-UOU JOUIN e AjioLd
"suolje|nfBal Yyiim SOUBLLIOJUOI-UOU {UOI}ONPAI JO UOIBDIIUSPI

3sli ejenbapeul ‘eale juswanoidwl {pessaIppe 8Q 0} SaNss| ssauisng juepoduw) :g AjlioLid
‘'spJepuels
pe1dedoe pue suopeinbal YIm SOUBWLIOJUOD-UOU |BIJUBISONS S|0U0D SSauIsng

Aoy ul sosseuyesm ‘pessaippe Apienbspe Buileq jou MSU SSeuIsSNg |BOINID 1 Ajiond

'SMO||0} SB PESSOSSE 89 ||IM YOIym JPNE 8y} woly sBuipuly ay) uo paseq
aq |im uoiuido SIy|  "¥SH IO Bae S|GRYPNE SY) JOAO POSIDISXS [0J]UOD JO [9A8] 8Y} UO UOUIdO |jeien0 ue apiaoid [im spodas pny

L 1/0102 ABajens pue ueld Hpny jeusdiu| yeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo]



Page 247

og Jo 7 ebey 0t-20-2L L1/010¢ 9beIen0D upny [euisiuf Aebuue yeiq

‘sieBeuew jusiio AQ 99IAIS BU} 4O UONENEAT e

pue ‘senieinBa.il eroueul ojul suoebiiseAur 838|dwoo 0} Usxe; swi joyibus e

-Ue|d JIpNe [BUISIUI BY} JO JUBWOASIYDY e
“90IAISS JIPNY [BUISIU 8} IO} SORILIWOYD PNY By} 03 papiAcid Ajjus.ino
oI Udlym sI03edIpul 8oUBLLIOLSd SU) MOJeq [IBISP S\ "UOIOUN JIPNE [BUISIU S,UONESIUBBIO BU) JO SSBUBAII08YS B} MBINSI pUE
A0} UOW PINOYS 88RILUWOD 1PNV S,[1oUN02 8} ‘(9) 2'Q UORDSS “Loday UNWS Pue 8pos) PauIquwIon payslignd sy; o3 sp.iebas Y

SIOjedIpuU| @oUBULIONdd |G

"Alrenb 1oy s|qisuodsal S|ENPIAIPUI PaBUILION
pUe sainpaooid ypne Ayjenp
:$8Inpaooid aJed Jowoisny
‘spJepuejs |BUOISS8}0.d
-saunpseoo.d sjuredwon
-uoljejuswnNoop pue yoeoidde pajielsq
‘sainpsooud Ayeny) e
:sainjesy Buimojjoy
SUl S8PN|oUl pue UOISIACId 8DIAISS INO JO S108dSE |[B SIOA0D UJIYM ‘lenuepy Ajend usnum pejieisp e paonpo.d 0S|e aney op\

", Aisnpuj o3 py, uoisiaip Bujuresy ypne [eussiul isijeloads Ino AQ uanIb sasinoo
paJojiey Ajjeroeds pue Bujuies; qol-ay3-uo Jo Jnsal e se senbiuyosy ypne JusIoiys 1sow ayi Aojdwe yess Jno je jey; Buunsug e
‘Aurenb 1seybiy ay; jo ase seunpeoo.d
4N0 1By} Sinsus 03 ouslIadxs Ybnolys padojensp usaq sey ABojopoyiew Juswubisse NQO “(v) sioupny [euUIBI| JO BINIISU|
oy} pue (y4d|D) Aoueiunoddy pue sdueul4 21Ny JO INISU| PaJsLBYD By} "eeniwwo) sadnoeld Buiipny syi Aq panss
9SOy} Buipn|oul ‘SpJepue)s [BuOISS840.d PUB JUSWIUISAOL) UM s911dwo? ey yoeoidde pue ABojopoyiew Jipne ue BuiAiddy e
:AQ 9A9IyOR BM YOIyM ‘SPIEPUESS [BOUYDS} PUB Aenb 1saybly sy 4O S8TIAIBS YIpne [eusiUl BULIBAIISP 01 PaIIWILIOD aJe JpN

aoueinssy Ajjenpd G

"P3jUsWS|dWI JOU SUOIBPUSWILODA) IO SBaJe JUBOUBIS UO Alejuswwiod pue ‘epew
suoliepuswwodal Jofew jo Arewwns ‘ueid ypne jsuiefe aBesanoo Jipne Jo sjielep Buipnjour pue ‘epinoid 03 age 218 am 9ouBINSSE

L 1/0102 ABarens pue ueld upny [euisiuj yeiq — Aebuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 248

og jo g abey 0L-20-ct k1/010¢ 8beionoD ypny [eussiul AebuiieH yeiq

"ue|d ypne paseq sl 8y} 40 AJoAISp
S|geus 0} paJIiNbal SJUSWSIE)S POYIOW PUB S80INOS3I “SI[IS S} SaJ10adS YIOM JPNE PEDINOSING Y} 40} 19 BAJUOD By ‘suoije|nbey
PNy PUE SjUN0ddY 8y} puB Z/61 1OV JUSWUIGAOD [BO0T U} 4O LG UONDSS Jopun sjuswaiinbes Aiojniers s iounod sy
4N} O3 JOPIO Ul SBDIAISS JIPNE [BUJB)UI BululBwR. 84} SPIA0ID [|IM JOBJUOD PSOINOSINO BY "S8SSe00id UOREBIINILIED JUeIb oi0eds JO
uona|dwod sy} Ul IsISSE 0} Yiom Buiyepspun pue siebeuBW 0} S|0UOD PUB SYSH UO 89IAPE Buipinoid SE [|om se ‘eonoeid JO S8p02
Areuldiosip s,110uNod au} 4O seYdE8Iq [eRuUsiod S1eBNSaAUl Yels JO siequisw Jusuewed ‘L) (IN} OM} 8YL */00Z pudy Ul ‘sejnu
©INpad0.d |I0UN0D Yim 8OUBPIODDE Ul ‘P HPNY [BUISIU| J0JOSS OlIGNd 8YONO| PUE S]I0j8Q O} POPJEME SEM SUOIEPUSWILIODS)
$.801WLLOD }PNY 8} U0 Paseq JOIU0D JBaA 8Al VY "900Z SUN( Ul 981IWOD IPNY ay3 AQ peroidde pue palspiSuod Sem >iom
PUE $8DIN0S8J JO XIW 8y "10BJU0D papinoid Ajjeulsixe Ue pUB Jjels 8Snoy-ul JO Xiw B AQ PaIsAl|ep SI 90IAJeS JIPNE [BUSIUI B |

$82IN0SaYy ‘9

LL/OLOZ >@®~M‘SW pue uejd 1pny jeuisjuj yeiq — >®@CtNI JO :@:Ohom uopuo”



Page 249

9¢ 10 6 ebed

04-20-c} +1/010g 8beionoD ypny [eussiul AebulieH yeiq

0GLL [el0]
vel Aousbuinuon
9¢01 [e10}-gng
00t S91eI0108.(] IV juswebeuey
0S $83eJ0108.10 IV dn mojjo04
uonedIuNWWo) pue sdiysisuned
0§ ‘@ouBLLIOMBd ‘AD1j0d - 8AIINDBXT JOIyD SYSIY pue SWwalsAg 91e.10308.1(]
swdojanaq euonesiuebiQ
GS pue 8|dosd - S9AIIN09XT JaIyD SYSIY Pue SWwalsAg ajei0}08.I(]
0S S90IAI9S AjUNWIWO) pue 8inyn) Npy SYSiY pue SwalsAg aje.0108.1
(slooyos Arewiid 1oy uonoadsul SIS pue supny
502 80IAI8S S,8|doad BunoA pue usipjiyn |00yog Buipnjour) sysiy pue SWalsAg 9184010841
Gg JuswiuoJIAUg ueqUN SYSIH pue SwaisAg 83el0308.1g
g sejel0108. IV podang pue juswdojanaq juswiebeuepy )Siy
oV S93e10308.1Q IV pnel{ Aoy Old
G9 S9JBI0308II] IV | 8JIAPY }08[0id puB 80UBINSSY JusWabeue )y 109[01g
G/ $80.n0say 93es0dion) upny 1]
g9 $92.N0say 93e10dI0) ¥pPNY JUusWaINd0.d
L9 $92.n0s8Yy o1e10di09) SYSIH pue swalsAg ajei010a.1(g
ovl $80In0say 91e.10dI0)) (S3Y) sweisAg |eroueur] Aoy
sAeq ajeloloalq ealy

*SB POSLBLULUNS 84 UBD %I0M JO UMOPE.q 8y ASBULIBH 10} SOWOH YIM IS 8U} O
Hed se pa1s|diiod 94 [|Im 3By} 3IOM JPN. SpNjoul 10U SSOP UDIUM ‘0GL‘| SI PSISAIIeP 9 0} SABp JO Jaquunu [B10} 8y "JOBAUOI By}
UHM SOUBDIODDE Ul S| YyOlym ‘Jeak [eroueuly |1/01L0Z @Us Bulinp pe1s|dwiod oq 0} ¥J0m HPNE [eUSlUl 8U} JNO S19S MO|ag 8|ge)} 8y |

LL/0L0g :@beiono) upny jeuseju) AobuueH

L1/0102 ABsjens pue ue|d upny |euidiu] Yeiq — AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 250

9¢ 40 0| ebed

04-20-¢L L1/01L02 8beiono) ypny [eussiu Aebulier yeiq

:sea.e buimol|o) ey} Bulienod s|043u09 JuedIubIS

2oueUl pue Asy Y109 Jo Builse} pue ‘uoieIusWNIOp
ajelso0dion Buipnjour pue ‘suoiepuUSWIWLIODaI JIPNE SNoIASId
oL e JO pesH Jo dn-mojj0} Buipnjour ‘ypne waesAs joas| ybiH (S4M) wewsebeuey Ainseal |
"SUOliBpUSWIWOIa] sSNolAaid Jo dn MOjj0] e
pue A19n0091 J91SESIP PUB AJIN08S ‘SS8008 || e
‘peonpoud Buieq uonewlojul Juswabeuey e
‘sonbayo pauinioy e
:owooul Jo Bupjueg e
‘owooul Jo obeiolg e
‘syuswAed paijiuepiun o uollebilssAu] e
Juswebeuepy ‘SeNNp Jo uolebalbeg e
1990 *® SWOoU| -1ebp9| [esousb sy} 03 sidieoal Jo Buisoq e
4O peaH /]043U0D -SUOIIBIIoUODDY e
B Bullunoooy — ‘Buiues; yeig e
90UBUIH JO pPeaH :881npa20id pue soI0Ij04 e
:seae Buimoj|of ayi Bulieno sj043u09 juedliubis
9ouBUI pue Asy U109 jo Buiysey pue ‘uoneUSWNIOP
91e10dion Buipnjoul pue ‘suoiiepusWIWLIOd8 JIPNE SNoIASId
St /€ JO pesH J0 dn-mojjo4 Buipnjoul ‘ypne weisAs jans| ybiH (S4¥) bundieoey yseo
"SUOIIBPUSWIWOD84 Snojaaid Jo dn mojjo4 e
PUB :S8INpa20.d UMOP 3SO|D)
:Bunuoda. juswebeuew s1ei0dion) e
Ainsealj -SJUSWIBIIA e
% $199[0.d :Buiniodel Juswabeuew jeyuswipedsq e
‘sjebpng - ‘sisAjeue soueLIBA pUB |043U00 AJRlebBpng e
90UBUI JO peaH ‘Buiyies 1ebpng e
:seaJe BuiMoj|0) 8y} BulIBAOD S|043U09 JuBdlIUBIS
2oueUI4 pue A8y yjoq jo Buiisal pue ‘uoizeIuaWNIop
91e40dI0D) Buipnjoul pue ‘suoliepusWILLIOda. JIpne snoiasid (S4M) 1onu0) Aryebpng
Gl ) JO pesH jo dn-mojjoj Buipnjoul ‘Upne welsAs jans) UBIH | g Juswebeuey [eloueul4 o1691ENg
shkeq | Jopenp ETTRe) adoog a1} Hpny

:SH)SlI pue swelsAs 91eI0}08.11Q PUR SWeISAS [e1ouRUL4 A9) — S82IN0S8Y o1ei0dio)

1 1/010¢ ABsi1ens pue ueld 1pny [eusdiu] yeiq — Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 251

9€ 4o 1| obed

01-¢0-2L L1/01L02 8beisnoD ypny [eussiul Aebuuier yeiq

EEYSENEDY
sweshg pue ‘A1eA0081 Js)SesIp g AJIN0sS ‘SS8008 || e
[erouBUIg sjoqjuoo enbayn e
PUB |013U0D) S|0JUCD SOV e
% BuUNOYDY — :3|l4 Jo)Sew Jsliddns 01 sjuswipuswy e
9oUBUI JO PESH) ‘Sjuswhed e
‘WaysAs 0] s8oj0AUl JO Indu] e
Jobeuepy :S9JJOAUI JO UOITBOYILISD g 1dI900y e
90UBWLIONSd :sea.te Buimo||o) eyy Bulienod sjouoo juedyiubis
d2d/Auswaino0.d pue Aey yioq Jo Buiisey pue ‘uoieusSWNIOP
a1eJ0dion Buipnjour pue ‘suoiyepuswiwoga. yipne snoinsid
Sl JO pesH Jo dn-mojjo4 Buipnjour ‘ypne waeisAs [9as| ybiH (S3M) (sioupain) sjgehey SjUNo2oY
"Suoljepuswwooal snoinaud Jo dn mojjo4 e
pue ‘A1an0084 JsISesIp g AJINO8S ‘SS9008 || e
‘1ebpa| auy Jo aiNoNiS e
fUOIJ.I[IOU0D8) JUNOJJE [O4JUO)) e
‘18bpeT sy; 03 Indul pue WaejsAs Joposy e
|043U0D) ‘peonpo.d suodal @ uoiewIOU] JUSWSBRUBY e
% BuiUNOoY — ‘sfeusnof jo Buipioos. g uone|dwo) e
90uBULlH JO PESH ‘Aus eleg e
:sea.te Buimo||o} sy} Bulienod sjouoo juedyiubis
doueUl pue Aey Yioq Jo Bunsa} pue ‘uoieUSWNIOP
ajesodion Buipnjoul pue ‘suolepusWWO9a Jipne snoinsid
St JO pesH jo dn-mojjo4 Butpnjoul ‘ypne weisAs [ans] ybiH (S4¥) 4e6pa [essusy) 3 Bununoooy
"SuofiepusWIWO9a] snoineid jJo dn MOjj04 e
PUB p8jolI1Sal S| BJEp O] SS800y e
‘uone|siBal suy yum saldwoo Buiiodey e
-9PBW SJUBWISOAUI puUB SUBO| JO AjiBajul
9y} poddns 0} 10 PaLLIBD UOHEIOU0D8. JBinBoy
‘PosIWIXeW S| MOJ} YSeD 1ou
Ainsesi| S.]1oun0Y 8y} Jo souewLIoad 8U} 1BY} 94NSUS
9 s109(0.d O} papIA0.d SI UOIIBWIOUI [BIOUBUL AIBSSO00N e
‘syjebpng - ‘Pe108}0.Id S4B S}9SSE IOUN0Y) e
90ueUI4 JO peaH YUm paldwod aJe sjuswalinbal anle|sibo e
sheq | Jepenp sl adoog o1} Upny

L 1/0102 ABsjens pue ue|d Hpny [eussju] yeiq — Aebuurey jo ybnosog uopuo




Page 252

9¢ J0 g | obey

0L-20-¢1 11/0L0g 9besonoD ypny [eussjul AebueH yeiq

‘Juswiebeuew pne.d

swiejo payepyoeg

‘Buixepu| pue Bujuuesg

:|wByos yum soueldwon

‘seinp jo uonebsibeg

‘Aisnoosi seisesip pue AJinoss ‘ssedoe ||
'$8.nps204d pue s8191104

:seaJe Buimo||o) sy} Bulienod sjou00 JuediubIS
pue Asy yioq jo Buiisal pue ‘uoleUBWNIOP

179 Buipnjoul pue ‘suoiiepuswiwooal jIpne snoinsid
0z o Jo pesH buioy J0 dn-mojjoy Buipniour ‘ypne waejsAs [aAs| ybiH (S3¥) suyduag Buisnoy
"SuOijepUBWILIODa) Snolrsid JO dn mojj0 e
pue {A1an0081 1o e
:1obpa) [eseusb o3 uonelIoU0IeY e
1uswebeue 'sidigosi yse) e
1990 % :S90I0AUI JO Buisiey o
awoaU| JO pesH s8InNpao04d pue SBIDI0d e
:seate Buimo|jo} 8y} Bulienod sj03u00 JuediubIS
|aoueUl4 pue A8y uyjog jo Buise} pue ‘uoneIUSWNIOP
a1eJ0di0n) Buipnjoul pue ‘suonepuswwodss ypne snoinaid (S34y) (s10108Q
Gl o) JO pesH J0 dn-mojjo} Buipnjour ‘upne weishs aAs] ybIH Aipung) 9jgeAIs08y SIUN02oY
"SuOlEpUSWIWO2a) snoireid JO dn mojjo4 e
pue ‘A18A0081 JSISESIP B ANINDSS ‘SS8008 || e
‘Bulioyuow souBWIOUS] e
Ainseal| BWodu| e
© s109/0.1d 'S9|BS @ SOsSeydIng e
‘syebpng - ‘SJUBWIISOAUL JO UOIIBOLISA e
9JUBUI4 JO pESH Buluresy g souepING
:SBaJB BUIMOJ|04 8y} BuLIBAOD S|0U0D JuBdlIUBIS
aoueUIl4 pue Ay yiog jo Buissy pue ‘uoiBUSWNIOP
9jei0dion Buipnjoul pue ‘suolepusWIWOas JIPNE snoirsid
oL % JO peoH Jo dn-mojjo} Buipnjour ‘upne welshs |ons| ybiH (SdM) uswisaAu| pun4 uoisusy
"SUOIIEPUSLIWIODSI SNOIASId JO AN mOjj04 e
skeq | sepenp 1D adoag 91} upny

L 1/0102 ABajens pue ueld upny [eusalu| yeiq — Asbuue jo ybnoiog uopuo




9¢ J0 ¢ ebey 04-¢0-ct LL/0L02 9be1en0D Hpny jeussjul AebuiieH yeiq

pue As yjoq o Buiisae) pue ‘uoliEjUSWINIOP
179 Buipnjour pue ‘suoBpUSWIWLODS ] upne snoineid :
o] v Jo peaH bBunoy Jo dn-mojj04 Buipnjour ‘lIpne wejsks |ons] ybiH (S4M) HONN

Page 253

"Suoljepuswiwo9al snoiaa.d jo dn mojjo4

pue ‘A19A0081 J9)sesIp B ANINJBS ‘SS90 ||
'$81np8o0.d pue sa101j04

‘sjusissosse s)iyousg

:S90UBMO||B PIOA

‘spunjey

1196pa) [esousb yym uoielIoUOIaY

!$81B. U01309]|09 jO BuLIojiUO

4O BHIM

‘uonoe A1enogai 198

‘S1UnoOoE ssusdsng

:siahedxe} woyy sydieoey

Bunng

‘suofjeol|dde uononpal ¥ JUNOJsIC

‘1SI| UOIJEN[BA PUE )IGeP USSM}BQ UOIBIIOUOISY
1swAed jo spoyle

aunjonuis [euonesiuebiQ

:seaJe Buimo||o} ay1 Bulisnod s|0.u00 Juedlyubis
pue Asy yioq jo Bunssl pue ‘uoBIUBWINOOP

179 Buipnjoul pue ‘suoiepusWwWoas pne snoias.id
St 4 jo peaH Bupoy J0 dn-mojjo) Buipnjoul ‘ypne weisAs [ens) ybiH (Sd) xeL j1ounog

"Suoljepuswiwodal snoirsid Jo dn mojjo4
PUB M8IASI 82UBWIIOLSY

‘losjuoo Aseyebpng

‘Apisgng

[Jonuo) Ayeny

-uoleljiouoo8y

‘sjeaddy

'sjuswihedisnQ

-SluswAed

shkeg | Jouenp Ve adoog a1 ¥pny

L 1/010¢ ABsjens pue ue|d upny jeusaju| yeiq - Aebuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 254

9¢ Jo 7| abed

01-20-L L1/0102 8beIenoD ypny jeussiul Aebuler yeiq

SO0INIBS
Jswoisny

:SeaJe BuIMO||0} 8} MBIASI [[IM S\
"JoW S4B 82IAISS SIY} JO SBAI38[QO By} 1By} 2NSUd

(204D 1e18168Y YSiY)
90IAJ8S 10BUO0D suoyds|oy

g JO peOH WIidlu| 0} 80e|d Ul S|0JJUOD 8Y] JO MBIASI [|N} B 8] ||IM SIY | SINOH JO INQ J0 Juswabeuey
'siapin0.d jjoiAed paoinosino
SdAD YHM S|O0YIS 9S0y} 40} Yyum paldwos ussq aney
‘90uBUIH JO pROH Juswialels 8y} Jo sjuswainbal sy} 1ey; Wajuoo
03 Bunse) sidwes 919|dwod [Im HpNe [BUISIU|

aoueUl4 "1eaA 8y} Ul papiwal pue PaIONPSP SUOIINGIIUOD (LL/0L02

81eiodion) uoisuad s18yoes)} BUuIMOYS Juswiale)s awainbas uoiyeISD JuRIL)

9 JO pesH [enuue ue 838]dwod 0} pasinbai si 1IouUNoD) ay | SUOIINQLIIUOD SUOISUSd ,SJ8yoes |
$8901A19G Auedoud 19181694 YS14 HUN ssauIsng sy}

a1el0dion Ulyim 821A18S 8Ul AQ paijiuspl sj01uod AsY ayj JO S]0jU0D A9y JO Bulysel — Jsisibau

oL JO peoH Buiisel uo Buisnooy ypne paseq ysi B 8q |jIm SIy| Sl $82IAI9S Aladoid 81elodion
*19181684 XS11 JUn SsauIsng sy}

119 UIyum ao1AIeS 8yl AQ paiijusp! S|ouod Asy 8y Jo $]0JU0D

o] Jo peaH Bunoy | Bunsel uo Buisnooy Jpne Paseq ysli B g [IiM SIY | Aoy jo Bunsey - 1eysiBas ysu |1g

"suoljepusWWwo9a. snoinaid JO dn mojjo4
pue ‘A1sn008 JSISESIP B AJINDSS ‘SS8008 ||
:$8inpeo0.d ¥ $8191|0d

{90UBMO|[B PIOA

‘spunjey

:196p9) [esousb yum uonelIou0OeY

iS9]B.1 U01108]|09 JO BuLIoNUOW

4O S

‘uonoe A1enooal 1g8Qg

:S1UNOYJE asuadsng

‘siohedxe) wouj sydieosy

Bulng

41181 8|qRIIBYD

{1SI| UOIIEN[BA @ HOSP USSMISJ UOHEBIIOU0DSY
‘aunjonas jeuonesiueblio

:seaJe BuiMOj|0} 8y} Bulisno9 sj03u09 JurdlIUbIS

sheq | iepend

jualio

2do2g

o111 ¥pny

L 1/0102 ABsjens pue ueld upny [eussiu] yeiq — AsbBuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo




9g 4O G| ebey 04-¢0-¢t 11/0102 8beienod ypny rewsiu; AebuLey yeiq

"poyepdn aJe ‘|79 pue 8dueinsul ‘B0 ‘Spi0da]
Siuswpiedep Joyjo ainsus 03 Sainpado.d
uoneolilou pue sisysibel 1osse jo Bunepdn e
‘sessao0.d
suonediunwwod pue Ayojgnd ‘Buisitienpy e
‘s[esodsip Joj $9s5920.d [eAoiddy e
‘Sjuswebue.re Buloyuow
pue ABejess Juswebeuew j9sse 0) SHUIT e
:s9inpa20.4d pue Adjjod ‘uoneluswnoog e
.Sjuswalinbal
[eoo] pue Aionjeis yum soueldwor) e

$99I1AI8S Auedoud :seale BUIMO||0) BU} MBIAGI |IM SN “1OW BJB
81elodion 90IAIBS SIY} JO SBAI308[QO 8y} ey} ainsus 0} 8og|d (04D 4018168y MSIY)
0L 2 JO pesH Ul S|0J3UOD 8y} JO MBIASI SWIBISAS |Inf B 8q |)Im SIY| saladoud Jo ssjes/siesodsiq

Page 255

*J8bpaT [BUILLION UNM UOIIBIIDUCDOSY e

pue 8dueinsu| ‘YaNN ‘Xel

[1ouno 68 paureureW aJe SPI0Ja) [ounon
JUBABJ8I ||B 8INSUS 0] S9SS8204d UOIBIIHION e

-1918160y
aoueUl4 19SSy 8y} 81epdn pue 9)EPIIEA 0] SS800. »
81eJ40dI00 “(uonerosidep pue uonesijeydes
JO pesH Buipnjoul) seunpeoo.d pue seioijod [e20] pue
Aioinyess ‘syuswalinbas SH4| yum aoue|dwon) e
$9oInIeg Auadoud :seaJe Buimoj|0} ay) BuLIsAoD (S0HO ‘€040 4e18169Y HSiy)
9jeJodion S]04u02 JuedlIUBIS pue A8y yjoq jo Bunss) pue uonenjea
oL Z JO peaH ‘uolelUBINDOP Bulpnjoul ‘upne wasAs |ans] UBIH |  1osse PUB SH4| 0 uoieluswaldw|

"suinjal Alojniels Aue Buipnjoul
‘uoijewiojul Juswebeuew pue Buiodey e
pue s8558004d MOIASS PUB BULIONUO e
sainpsoo.d
A1onoosy Jsisesiqg pue Aynuiuo)) sseuisng e
-s8inpadoid pue Adijod ‘uonyeluswindog e
‘Sjuswiaiinbal Aloinjers
pue [BO0] ‘[BN}ORIU0D YUm doueldWwOo)) e

shkeq | Jopenp CITe) 9doog 311 Hpny

L 1/0102 ABajens pue ueld upny [leusaqu| yeuq - AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 256

9¢ Jo g1 ebey

04-20-cl 1 1/0L0¢ 9beianoD ypny [eussjul AebulieH yeiq

102

[e1o

Ot

S92INIBS
£ [eba7 Jo pesH

"suine. Aioiniels buipnjou
‘uoljewojul Juswsbeuew pue Buiodey e
PUB 1588$9004d MOIASS PUB BULIOJUO e
-90IAISS 3U} JO Buiey ew pue uoiediuNWWo.) e
1$8800.d UOIBI|I0U0D8) PUB SWOUI
JO U0o1308|j00 ‘sebieyod [Bo0| pue Aloinjels
Buifidde pue Bumss Joj S|0U0D pue WaISAS e
iseoinles o) suoiiealdde o3 Buipuodsa.
pue Buisseoo.d ‘Buinedal J0) S9sS80014 e
:$8inpad0o.d pue Aojjod ‘uoijBlUBWINOO(] e
‘sjuswalinbal Aloineys yum aouendwon e
‘Seale BUIMOJ|0) BU} MBIABI [IIM S
"JoW aJe 8JIAISS SIY] JO SBAI108[QO BU} 1BY] 2INSud
0} 80B|d Ul S]O4U0D BY} JO MBIABI [N} B 8Q |IIM SIY |

(9040 se18169Y Ysiy)
sebiey) pue |eo0

"sjuswebue.ie Buniodss pue Bulioyuoy e
PUE [S|0JJU0D pue Juswebeuew 1ebpng e

sheq

JeuenY U]

2do2g

o111 upny

L1L/010¢ ABsjens pue ueld upny [eussiu] yeiq — AsbuueH Jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 257

9¢ J0 /| ebed

04-20-21 11/0L02 8beienoD ypny feussiu AsbuLer yeiq

Gl

Juswaind0.d
a1es0dio)

4O peaH

"Sjuswabueie
Bupodes pue  Buuojuow  uoneloUCDSY e
:seseya.nd 1o} sainpssoud
[esodsip pue uoiusles Bulpn|oul ‘spiodsy e
'suone|nbai
[eloueuly pue sainpsoo.d pied sseyoind ay;
UM saljdwod sinyipuadxs o adA} pue [onsT e
90INIBS By}
asn O} paj3us JoBUO| Ou .1 IO BAOW ‘OABS)
OUM SI921J40 JO} spJeod aseyaind JO Uonosjj0D) e
:sJesn pJeo aseyaund 1o} sessesoud
uoljesioyine pue jeaosdde ‘uoneolddy e
‘saunpaooid pue Aajjod ‘uoieiuswnoog e
‘Sjuswalinbay
Aionjess pue [eoo] yim souedwon e
s1esn pJed eseyoind
Jo s|dwies e 10} seale BuiMmo||0} Y} MBIASI [IM BN
‘JSW aJe eaJe SIy) JO S8AI108[QO Bl 1BY] 94NSUS
0} 99e|d Ul S|0J3U0D 8Y} JO M3IASI [N} B 8q [|IM SIY ]

SpJed JipaJo/eseyoind 81ei0diod Jo asn

0¢

[

1UBWaIN20.d
alelodion

Jo peaH

"$95$9004d UOIIBN|BAS UO PASEQ SIOJOBIUOD
JO UOIIDB|8S PUB UOIEPUSWILLIODSY e
pue !sebess | || pue DDJ 1. J0BJUO0D Yoes 1o}
Pasn $88$800.d JUSWISSOSSE PUB UOIIBNBAT o
isebels ] || pue DO 1B 1984U0D
{OBs IO} BLISILIO UOIIBN|BAS JO UOHBDIIIUSD| e
:uoijeisiba| pue sjuswalinba.
N3 pue Aionjess ‘[eoo] yum aouedwon) e
-LL/0L02
Bulinp 18] s30B43U09 JO B|dWES B IO} [1DUNOY)
9y} SS0JOE seaJe BuIMO||0) Y} MBIASY ||IM SN
‘JoW aJe BAJE SIY} JO SBAIOS[QO aY) 1By 8INSuD
0} 90e|d Ul S|0JJU0D U} JO MBIAB [N} B 8q [JIM SIY |

$2Inpa20.d UolEeN[EAS J0BIJUOD

sheq

Jayenp

juslD

adoog

o1} upny

1PNy JuswWaINd0.d

L L/0102 ABelens pue uejd upny [eussiu] yeiq — Asbuuen Jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 258

9¢ Jo g| ebey

04-¢0-¢t L1/0L0c 8beieno) ypny feussul AebuleH yeiq

59

felol

Gl

JuswaIN00.d
a1e10di0n)

0O pesH

“Spioyse.y;
N3 PUEB [BO0] JO/PUB JOAIEM YUM Saljdwiod
ainyipuadxs pue juswaebebus juenbasgng e
pue :sjuswainbal ayeli0dios yium Aldwoo
UdIum JUBYNSUOD Yoes Joj 89.(d Ul S}0BUOD) e
{(s1eniem Jo asn Buipnjour) [aAs] 81e10108.1p
Je soueusUieW BUIpN|OUl ‘SPIODSY e
‘S]UB}NSUOD JO SN 40} $8859204d
uonesuouyine pue jearosdde ‘uoneoiddy e
'$2inp8o0.ud pue Aojjod ‘uoijelusungo e
Spjoysa.y; pue sjuswalinbai
N3 pue AI0INjelS ‘[BD0] Yim aouedwor) e
:S)UN ssauisng
J0 9idwes e 1o} seale BuIMO||0} DY) MBIASI [jIM SN
‘Jow aJe BaJe SIY} JO SOAI}OS[QO By} 1By} 2INSud
0} 90e[d Ul S|03U0D 8U} JO MBIABJ [|N} B 8] [|IM SIY |

SJUBYNSUOD JO 8s

Gl

JuswiaInNo0.d
918400109

JO pesH

‘SIanem panoidde
UM selidwod ainyipuadxs juenbasgng e
pUe {|9A8] 91BJI0}03.IP 1B S8Inpas0o.d
[esodsip pue uonusial Buipnjoul ‘spiodsy e
:s1sonba. JaArem 10} sess800.d
uoljesuioyine pue [eaoidde ‘uopeonddy e
's8inpe00.d pue Aoljod ‘uoeluawNIO( e
'Spjoysaly} pue sjuswalinbal
N3 pue AIoINje]s ‘[ed0] yim soueldwo)) e
S}yun ssauisng
40 s|dwies e 10} Seate BuIMO||0) BY} MBIAS [|IM AN
"JoW 8Je BaJe SIU} JO SOAI}08[qO 2yl 1By} 84NSud
0} 80B[d Ul S|0J3U0D 8Y} JO MBIABJ [N} B 8] [JIM SIY |

SI9AIBM JO S

L1/0102 ABajens pue ueld upny [ewsdu| yeiq — AsbBuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 259

9¢ J0 61 ebed

01-20-2t LL/0L0Z 8beisno) ypny jeussiuf AebuiierH yeid

| sheg |sopenp| weiy | 8doog | aH} upny |

-HpNy 1]
LL/0LOZC >@®uw‘;m pue ueld }1pny [ewdju] yeiq — AsbuueH JO cmzchcm uopuoT]



Page 260

9¢ J0 0z ebey

04-20-¢L L1/010g 9beISA0D 1pny [euisiul AeBurier yeiq

Gl

uonexe|
[e007
B Syjdueg jo
pesH bunoy

seoepelul Aue pue ‘sjuswebueLie A1on0oay leysesiqg

/ Aununuo) ssauisng pue sainpsoo.d dnyoeq ‘sjo4u09 ey
upne Buisssooud ndino ‘yndu; jo Bunsay sjdwies yum Jayieboy
‘wa)shs ay3 jo uoNBINBIUOD ANINDSS PUB S|OJIUOD SSBIIE [eaiboj
‘8injonuis sseooe Jesn ojeldoldde se suiwexs Im ypne ay |

"Aluo 8seqeIEp PLIOA! 8} 1B PSYOO

J8neMoy Ue|d 1PNy [eulsiu] 60/800¢2 8y} jo Led se pejejdwod
SEM B8JE SIU} Ul IpNne snojasid Ajuo sy “swirejo sy $s800.d

0} pasn uoneddde ayj Je 300j |jIm JPNEe 8y "Sswesns juswAed
PuE 8nusAal JUBDIIUBIS SBPNJOUI PUE |OUNOY) U} JO) WSISAS

Aoy B s siy] "yyeusg xe] 10Unos) pue BuisnoH pue xe] [10uno) Jo
Buisseoo.d sy3 Joy uoneoydde prom 91eByLIoN sy} asn AeBulieH

ipny uoneolddy
- Slijousag pue senusasy

uonexe|
8007
% syjeueg o
pesH Bunoy

1S9} 8y} Jo Buipodal pue 158} 84} 18 80UBpUSHE S8}

Ha dY} 10} $85$900.1d 8} MBIABI O} YOO |IIM JPNE 8y “Jebeue)y
Aununuod pue Ajunoag 1] ayi yim pewLIuoo 8q ll'M pspusye
9Q 03 1881 8y "s3s9] Alenoosy Jeisesiq 2160}8100) pue S|eloueul 4
dVvs ‘Buptied BaIAID sy} pepusiie sAey sypne SNoINSId

uoneolddy
s}jsusg pue senusnay
1s9] A1snoosy Jsisesig

Gl

S90IAISS
1] 4O pesH

S|0}UOD) |BJUSWIUOIIAUT

pue [edisAyd pue A)undsg 90iA8(g HiomiaN ‘Hoddnsg yiomieN
‘Buiojiuoly ‘ABojodo] yiomieN ‘Juewsbeur YIOMIBN S yons
SBa.Ie JBAOD [[IM Jipne Siy] -ainjiey Jo swuiod 8jBuls sjeuiwIe pue
AyoedeD Yi0M}aU MBINBI 0} HIOMISU BU]} JO JuswabeuewW 8y} Jeno
o0eld ul sjo43u09 Ind aney JuswaBeuBW JI AJuspl 0} 8iNJoNIS
YIOM3IBU |[BJBAO B} PS)PNE JOU 8ARY NG WBISAG Buieied
SMOPUIM YIOMISN 8y} Pelipne 8ABY SHPNE [BUIS)Ul SNOIASI

8IN10NISBIU| HIOMISN

ol

4

S80INIBS

oiberens v

Buipsenbejeg
-av

LTIV

94} Jeno a2e(d uf 1nd aJe Sj0Au09 Slelidoidde Jey) aunsus disy 01
$955800.d ss8UISNg UO 10BdWI 8y} PUB SeoBLISIUI JO uonelouoo8l
‘I-{iomswel ulyim sjuswAed Jo UOIESLIOYINE By} JOAO

©2e|d Ul S|0U0D B} AJIUSPI O 498S [[IM HPNE SIYL dYS Ulgiim
sjuswied 1o} uolesLIOYINE JUSNbasSQNS INOYIM UOHESLIOYINE
Buimoljoy waisAs sy} woy Aposuip spew aq o} sjuswied

Mojje 0} painbiyuod Buieq s WeisAs ale) [e100g [-MJomawe. ay |

SjuswAed
[-YJomawe.l

sAeq

lauenp E]TTe)

2doog

o111 ¥pny

LL/0L0ZC >®®~m.;w pue ue|d 1pny jeuidiu] yeiq — >®DE‘~NI JO CODOuOm uopuon




Page 261

9¢ J0 |z obeyd

04-c0-¢k L1/0L02 8beIoA0D Hpny [euisiul AsBuLier yeig

S/

eloL

Ol

snoLep

‘PajusWws|dwi Se paylew aie

SUOHEPUSWIWIOD3. 819UM SOUSPIAS UBIGO PUB SUOIIEPUSLILLIODS!
}Pne snoinsid Jo SUOREBPUSIWODSI JO SNIB]S BU} urepaose

01 8Q |IIM I0M SIY} JO SNJ0} 8y "spodey Ipny [eulsiul 01/6002
9y} Jo Yed se panssi sypne o} susiA dn MO]||O} JO SBLI8S B ayeuapuUN
03 8sodoid am suodal ypne snoirsid jo ped se pajejdwod

suonoe Buuswe|dwi ale Juswabeuew ey} sINSUS dieyog

sdn mojjo4

Ot

SOIAISG
1l JO pesH

"SwieysAs || Jo yuswabeuew yoyed sy Joj paydope s9101j0d

3y} pue aiemAdg pue snuip woly peyosioid ase swisysAs 1ounon
1ey} Bunnsus 1oy sse00.d 8y spnjoul jim ypne SIYL ‘swalsAg
BunesadQ I1ounog uo sayoied jo ejepdn ay; pue uoljos30.4d SnUIp
J0 81epdn 8y 40} 908|d Ul SBY |10UNOY) 8y} S8SS800.d 8y1 1B Y0o0]
lIIM IPNE SIY ] "$82IN0S8. UOIIBULIOLUI S|IOUNOD 8U} JO UO0830.d
®U1 Joj Juswaiinbal Asy e si yoeNe sniip Jo uoljusna.d syl

uswsbeue
Yored pue sniip ‘Ayinoeg

0]

b

asd
— 10303l
Aindag

SdAD

‘buiiodas juswiebeuepyy -

Abs eileq -

‘Buipieys eyep pue sennp jo uonebaibss Ayinoes weishg -
*$8Inpado.d UolBlSIUILIPE PUB Salyiqisuodsal ‘sajoy -
luswebeuew ¥siI pue 9oUBLISAOB 108014 -

-:seale

Buimojjo} ayy 03 uonE|R. Yyum YIoMawel} |043U0D 8y} Jo Aoenbepe
a3 Buirenieas Aqg syuswaiinbal Aoijod Ajinoss ajei0dio0 pue
[BUOIBU JUlOd 10BIUOD U3 yim Ajdwod o3 palidde pue sjo.3uo9
S} SSBSSE ||IM JIPNEe 8y | "SS900E JO UOIIEDO0|[B 8y} JO) pue

BIEP SAIISUSS JO U0I308104d B} 10§ SUONRISPISUOD AJNoas As) Jo
leguinu e sade|d PUB JUSWUISAOKL) [8207 03 Saljdde siy] 'seiued
pajsaJsiul sL1o pue sisuonioeld ase)) [B100g Aq passeooe

©Q ued ey} uaipjiy) |ie Bulienod esegelep e se paysiqe)ss useq
SBY juiod J0eju0) swelboud sienei piiyo A1eng sy jo ped sy

JUI0d 10B3U0D)

sheq

lapeny

jualn

9do2g

91111 ¥pny

LL/0102 ABejens pue ueld Hpny [eussiu] yeiq — Aebuurey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 262

9¢ J0 2z obey 01-20-Z} L1L/0L0Z 86B19A0D HpnYy [euieiu) AsBuiier yeiq

$82INI8S
uolea108y
- J0308.IQ
Gl L juelsIssy 90104 Mied e
S90INISS
auljIuo.I4
- 1030811 (sewsyos
Sl e 1UB)SISSY papuny Aj[euisixs) SOWSYOS UONONPSY UOGIED) e
Awouoog g
uoljessusbay
‘Buiuuely
Sl 2 -av Yiomewe. 4 Juswdojens( 00 e
Awouooy
uoijeisusbay
‘Buluueld
0L i - Qv JoUIOD) SpIepy e
Awouoog ¥
uonessusbey
‘Buiuueld solousbe
oL e -qay 18Y10 yym sdiysuonele. Buipnjoul — spuejliesH e
"We9s| 90UBWLIOLSd
g Adljod ayy ulypm Jebeuepy 109l0id ay) yum
uone}NSUOD Ul uejd ypne [eusiul 8y} Ul UOISN|UI
10} pauiusp! ussq aaey sjosloid Buimojjo) ey
‘swwesboud
pJemio4 AsBulieH pue ued |1ounoo sy} Jo AleAlep
Ile4oA0 8y} JO ped se [1ouno) syl AQ payiusp
se ‘s}ooloid Asy JOpPISUOD [|IM MJom ypne ay | doueINSSy Juswobeuey j098loig
shkeq | 1epenp IUETTe) adoog a1 upny

:S9jeI0108II] IV

L1/0102 ABajens pue ueld upny [eusalu| yeiq — AsbBuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 263

9¢ Jo £g obey

04-¢0-C} +1/010g 8be10r00 Hpny jeussiu AebulieH yeiq

oct

eyl

paiinbai

Se §,3)V pue
s10300.1q |1V

"PalIIUSPI S|0JIUOD B} JO SSBUBAITOBYS By}
SS9SSE I0/PUB Paljijusp! S|043U0d 8y} Jo Aoenbepe
8y} ssasse “ysu 8y} sbeuew 0} s|03u09 Buipiebs.

90IApe apinc.Id Jayys [IIm om ‘erelidoidde sisym

"ABoreng ysiy

JO JUBWSBRBUBIA S,/I0UNOY Y} UM 8OUBPIOIIE Ul

sJaysi6. ysl oY) e1epdn pue melna syuswpedep
Ile 1By} 8insud 0} WBJSAS | | JUS|BAOYD S,|10UN09 8y}
JO JusWwebeUBW By} Ul ISISSE 0} [IUNOY) dY) SSOJ0.
Juswpedag yoes 4oy S1010841Q pue sisbeuew yun
ssauisng Asy ypm asiel| [iim am Jeak ayy Buung

9JIApE pue poddng juswabeuepy ysiy

oy

P-1

paJiinbai

se s,30V pue
$10199.17 |1

"ue|d pney-ijue

SA1}0B-04d BY} Ul PEPN|OUl 8] 0} YIOM JO SBaJE
pusWIWO9sI pue Ajljuspl jim em ‘sejijoid pnely
pue usxeuapuUN SISAjBUR YSLI BY} JO } NS B SY
‘ABe1e.41S pPnel4 [RUOIIEN 8] puB

SBaJE XSl ybIy JO MBIA SPIM-UOPUOT “UOISSILILWLIOD
UpNY ‘sAljellul pnelq [BUOIIEN 8y} JUNOOJE 03U
9)e] OS[e ||IM S\ "S8SBO pnely snoinsid useq aney
819y} 84oym ‘seaue ysii ybiy 0D [jim MIom InQ

pneJj-1juy dAI}0B-01d

sAeq

1epeny =)

9d02g

o111} upny

L1/010¢ ABa1ens pue ue|d Hpny [eussju] yeiq — Aebuurey jo ybnosog uopuo-




9¢ 10 $Z obey 01L-20-2} 11/0L0Z 86819100 1pny [eussiu) AeburieH yeiq

‘Sjuswabue.lie Buiniodss pue BuLoyuopy e
pue j0J3u0d pue Juswebeuew 1ebpng e
'sse00.d uoljeljiouoal pue
SWIOJU! JO UOI308]|0D ‘sabieyd [B20] pue Aiojniels
BuiAjdde pue Buies Joy sj0u00 pue WolsAs e
-$95$900.d JUBWS2I0JUT pUB BULIOHUO e
:Slspinoid adinies
Aymn 69 suopesiueblio [eulsixs pue Sjuswyedeap

[10UNOD JBYJ0 ‘sadinles Buluue|d 0] Syul| e
:59ss890.d [eAOIddE pUE JUSWISSESSE ‘UONEIIddY e
Awouoo3 pue :seinpado.d pue Aojjod ‘uoieluswNoog e
uoljelsusbey | ‘sjuswelnbai [eo0] pue AIoINeIS yim souedwon e
‘buiuueld :S9AI1303[qO |041U0D pue sease Buimoj|o} syy Bulisnoo
- 10}08.1I( ‘ISW aJe 82IAISS SIY] JO SBAI108[QO BU] 1BY] 84NSUS (203N Je1s1baY Msiy)
o] 2 juelsissy 0] 90E|d Ul S|0JJUOD 8] JO MBIABI [[N} B 8Q ||IM SIY | SSaUINJMET JO S8jedIIe))

Page 264

‘'suinjal Alojniels
Buipnjoul ‘uoiewIoUl JusWebeuBwWw pue Buiodey e
PUE $8SS8004d MaIA8l pue BuLIouO e

:$s9004d UONEBI|IOUOD8) puB

SWODdU! JO UOI308]|09 ‘sabieyd |20] pue Aloinjels
Buifldde pue Buipes Joy sjou0d pue WolsAS o

:$82110U [B00| puk AJoInie}s 0} Bulpuodsai
pue Buisseoo.d ‘Buinleosl J0) S8SSe201y e
'sainpaoo.d pue Aojjod ‘uoieluswNoog e
‘sjuswalinbal Aioiniels yum souedwon e

seale
Awouoo3 pue Buimojjo} 8yl mainal [[Im S\ “18W BB 9IAISS SIU}
uonessusbey JO SOAI308[gOo By} yeys ainsus 0} 89e|d Ul S|0JIU0D By}
‘Buiuue|g JO MaIAaI [Ny B 8Q [IIM SIY ] “JesA e suolieoldde 0ooz
- 101%841( Ale1ewixoidde yum sjesp pue suoljeinbay Buipjing auy (01/6002 WO} psemIO} paLLIeD)
oL L JuelSISSyY UM 90UBljdWO0D S8Insus uoo8s [04u0d Bulpjing ay | $821AI8S |043u0D) Bulpjing
shkeq | Jjouenp TVETTTe) adoog a1} Upny

1811030811 JUSWUONIAUT UBQIN

L 1L/0102 ABajens pue ueld 1pny jeulsiu| Yyeiq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo’]



Page 265

9¢ J0 Gz obed

041-20-21 11/0L0¢ 8beiono) ypny reussiul Aeburer yeiq

"sjuswebue.ie Buruods. pue Bulioyuo
PUE J0JuU0D pue Juswabeuew jebpng
‘siepinoid aoinles 03 sjuswAed pue seo10AU|
‘s1apinoid 82IAISS JO MBINBI pUB BuLIoj IO
:saunpavo.ud pue Aoljod ‘uoiyejuswinoog
:SJ0jeaIpu| [euoneN Buipnjoul

SERIVEIS sjuswalinbai [e00] pue Aiojnieys yym souedwon e
auljuo.I4 ISOAI}09[QO |043U0D puE Sesle BuIMO||0) By} BulIBA0D (803N Je1s1Bay Msiy)
- 1032211 ‘IowW aJe 82IAIBS SIU} JO SOAI309[QO BY} JBY) 9UNSus (Buiddi-A|4) uelq uonoy
0L L JuelsISSy 0] 89e|d U} S|0JUOD B} JO MBIASI ||N} B 8] [IM SIU | Buidwng sy} Jo uoneusWe|dw|
'suinial Aloyniels
Buipnjour ‘uoirewojur Juswebeuew pue Buiiodey e
PuUB 18855820.d UOIJBOIJIISA PUB UOI08||00 BIR(]
‘9ouewIouad J0J0B.IUOD JO BULIONUO
‘syuswiebuelle [BNORIIUOD yum
9ouel|dwoo Bullo}IuOW JO} S|OJHUOD PUB WSLSAS e
‘sainpagold pue Aoljod ‘uoielusWwNO e
S9INIBS ‘Sjuswiaiinbal A10injess pue [Bo0] yim souedwon e
auluo.l4 'seaJe BuIMO||0} 8U} MBIABY [|IM (803N 1018160y Msiy)
- 1030811 SM "J1aW a.Ie 8JIAISS SIU} JO SOAI3OS8[QO By JBY] 8insus S92INIBS
oL S JuBlSISSY 0] 80B|d Ul S|0JJUOD B} JO MBIABI ||N} B 8q [|IM SIY | 8|0IYsA paxejun pue pauopueqy
‘'suinjal Aloynies
Buipnjour ‘uonew.ojur Juswebeuew pue Buiodoy e
pue :s8s$9004d UONBINIISA PUB UOI}OS||00 BlB(] e
‘9ouBWIOUad J010BANUOD JO BULIONIUO) e
‘Sjuswabueuie [BN1OBJUOD YlM
9ouel|dwod BulIojUOW JOJ S|0JJUOD pUB WRISAS e
'$8inpad0.d pue Aoljod ‘uoiBUBWINDO(] e
S9oINIBS ‘sjuswaiinba. AloInjers pue [eoo] yym souedwon e
auIjIuoI 1S3A1}99[gO |043u0D pue seale Buimoyjo) ay) Bulsnod (803N 4e38168Y Msiy)
- 10308.1Q ‘JoW a.le 82IAISS SIY} JO SBAI308[QO By} JBY) 9NSUd uonelado pue juswobeuew
0L 2 JuB}SISSY 0} 99e|d Ul S|0JJUOD 8Uj} JO MBIASI |IN} B 8Q |)IM SIY | Ayejes Ajunwwon A1DD
skeq | ieuenp JuaiD adoog [} upny

L 1/0102 ABajens pue ueld upny [euidu| yeiq - Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 266

9¢ Jo 9z obeyd

0L-20-¢L L1/01L02 8beIBA0D 1pny [eulsjul AeBuiie yeiq

S8 lejo|
"sjuswebue.e buiiodss pue BULIOHUO e
puB [JoU0D pue juswebeuew 196png e
:SJopIn0Id 82IAI8S 0] SjuswAed pue S8OI0AU| e
{SJ8pIN0Id 8IAISS JO MBIASI pUB BULIOJUO e
.Sjuswalinbal
YJOMaWR) [BN1OBIIUOD Yim doueldwo)) e
's8inpeoo.d pue Aoljod ‘uoieiusWwNgO( e
SHOS IS9A1}08[qO [013U0D pue seate Buimojjoy sy} Bulienoo (903N se1s160Y Msiy)
~ 103081 ‘19W 8Je 8IIAISS SIY] JO SBAI108[QO0 BU} 1BY] 84NSUS uolepowwoooy Aesodws | Ioy
oL % juesiIssy 0} 99B[d Ul S|0J3U0D 83U} JO MBIABI [N} B 8 [|IM SIY | saipedoud 184 pabeuepy Jeddng
SHOS "J91s16a1 Ys1d yun sssuisng
~ 1030811 9yl ulyum 8oinies ayy AQ peiyiauspl sjoiuoo Asy sy S|0J3U0D
oL e ueisissy jo Bunsa} uo Buisnooy Npne peseq 3su B aq [IM SIU] Aoy jo Bunse) — usysiBai ysu SHOS
"s9inpa20.d Buipiodss pue Buioyuow ‘dn mojjo4 e
PUE \NHO PUB YH YlIM UOSIEl| pUB 0} |Bliojoy e
'SPJ028J dYS puUB [eNUBW JO SOUBUSIUIBIY e
‘sainpe20.d pue Aoljod ‘uoneluswndog e
‘syuswialinbas Aojjod s1e40dI00 Ynm souedwor) e
Abereng ‘juswipedap 8y} UIYNM SHUN SSauIsng
% Juswanoiduwj I[e SSOJOB S8AI308[QO |041U0D pue Seale Buimoj|o)
ssauisng ay} Bulienod ‘Jow aue sjuswalinbai a1el0di09 Juswebeurw
~ 1019311 pue Wa1sAs sIy} Jo SeA08lqo sy 1By} 84nSus 80ussqge - sainpad0.d
Gl L JuelsISSY 0} 99B[d Ul S|0JJU0D BY} JO MBIASI [N} B 8Q |jIM SIY | 9}e10d100 yum soue)dwo)
sheq | J1openp Jualn 2doog 911} Hpny

I L/0102 ABejens pue ueld upny jewssiu] yeiq — Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 267

9¢ jo /g obed

04-c0-gt L1/010g 9beIvA0D HpnY [eusslul AebulieH yeig

:S8inpado.d
Aiojueaur pue Ayinoss Buipniour ‘sjesse [eoIsAyq e
-8LOJUI JO UONEI|I0U0D3) pue Buipiodal ‘Bunjueg e
1U0I109]|0D BWIODU|
-S82INJBS pue SPoob o) sjuswAe e
JuswWaIN00.d J10BIJIUOD e
-2Injipuadxa [eisusb/Buiseyoing e
:S9[NJ 8unpasoud
[BIOUBUI S,J10UNOY 8} ypm jueldwod s 891AI8S BY)
assg ey soueinsse apino.d 0} seate Buimo)jo) ay; Burisnod
- 1039841Q ‘JaW 8Je d2IAIBS SIY} JO SBAOS[QO By} 1BY) BNSUS suonenbay [ejouBul4 yum
oL L Aindag 0} 89€|d U] S|0AJUOD SY} JO MBIABI ||N) B aq |lim siy | 99uBldWwo) - s8dIAIeg Hodsuel 1
"$8.npa90.d pue ebesn Junoddy 1seidw| e
pue :sainpsso.d
%08Yd %J01s pue sbesn Buipnjoul ‘s)0015 e
'Sseunpaso.d
Alojusaur pue Ayunoss Buipnjou ‘sjesse [eaIsAyq e
'SWODUI JO UOIIE.IIOUO8s pue Buipioda. ‘Bunjueg e
{UOI109]|00 BWIOoU| e
-S82IAISS puB SPOO0B Joj sjuswhe e
‘Juswiaino0id J0BAIUOD e
-2nypusdxs |esousb/Buiseyoingd e
:S9|NJ ainpavo.id
[BIOUBU S,]IOUNOD 84} YIMm Jueldwod si 80IAI8S dY)
asg 1By} 8oueINsse apino.d 0} seate Buimojjoy ayy Burisnoo
- 10}23.1( ‘JoW aJe 92IAISS SIY} JO SBA308[qO By 1By} 8INSUS suolenBay [elouBUl4 Yyum
oL L Aindag 0} 89B|d Ul S|0JJUOD BUj} JO MBIABY [N} B 8q [jIM SIY | aoueldwo) - seainiag Busien
assg 183181621 ys1 Jun sseuisng
—40}08IIQ | Yl ulyum 8oIAI8S BUl AQ pailjuspl S|oU0D AsY By} $]043U09D
0L 9 Ainda( 10 Bunyssy uo Buisnooy ypne peseq Msu B aq [Im syl Aoy J0 Buiisa) — JsysiBal ysi asg
sheq Jauenp jusiD adoog 8111 upny

:92InI8S s,81doad Buno, pue uaippiyn

L 1/01L02 ABajens pue uelq upny [eusaju| yeiq - AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 268

9¢ J0 gg ebed

01-¢0-¢t L1/01L0C ebeIon0D Hpny [eusiul Aebulier yeiq

Ot

ssljie
® USIPIIYo
- 1019341

Ainde(

"sjuswebue.se Buiodas pue BuLONUO e

pue sainpado.d Buueq pue UOHE|IDUOSY e
sainpaooud

[esods!p pue uonuslas Buipnioul ‘Spi0osy e

Sjusl0 0] SjuswAed e

‘yseD Jo abe.0}s pue UoI308||0D)

-uoisinoud

8JIAI9S PUB S1USI|D JO MBIASI PUB BULIOHUO e

:$8SS900.d |B1IBJ0] PUR JUSLLISSOSSE ‘Uoijeolddy e

-s9.npado.d pue Aojjod ‘uoieiuswinoog e

‘sjuswialinbas A1oinjels pue (00| yum souedwon) e

'S8|NJ 8INPa20.id [BlOUBUY S, [IOUNOYD) By}

Ulim Jueldwod S| 821AI8S 8] Jey} 8oUBINSSE 9pIA0Id 0]

PUE ‘Jaw aJe 82IAJI8S SIY} JO SBA103[q0 8y 1BY) 84NSUD

0] 80B[d Ul S|0UOD 8} JO MBINSI [|N} B 8Q ||IM SIY ]

sainpaosoud

Buiipuey yseo - (s21nl8s
spuny d1ignd 03 8s4N028J ON)
Sjuswade|d pue Buiuoissiuwo)

ot

sealjiwe
® UsIpP|iyD
- 1010841

Aindaq

"sjuswebue.ie Buiiodsl pue BuLOUO e
pue sainpadoid Buijueq PuUB UOHEIIDUODSY e
sa.inpaoso.d
[esodsip pue uoniusias Buipnioul ‘Spi0osy e
‘S1UBI[D O SjuBWAey e
'ysed Jo abr.IOIS puB UOI108||0D
‘uorsinoid
SJIAJSS PUB S}USIID JO MBIASI puB BULIONUO e
-$9885900.d [BLI9j8) pUE JUBWISSESSE ‘UoiRolddy e
:$8Inpad0.d pue Aojjod ‘uoielusWNOO(] e
‘sjusWaainbal A101NElS PUE [BO0] UM aouedwon) e
:S9|NJ 8INPa20.d |elouBUY S JIOUNOY) By}
UM JueljdwoD S| 82IAI8S 8U) By} 80URINSSE SpIA0Id 0}
PUE ‘Jow aJe 82IAISS SIY] JO SBAI30S[QO Byl 1BY) 8iNSuUs
O] 80e[d Ul S|0JJUOD BY] JO MBIAS |IN§ B 8q [[IM SIY L

seJinpaoo.d Buipuey
yseD - 890IAI19g aien) Buines

'$8inpeo0.d pue sbesn Junodoy 1saidw| e
pue ‘sainpssoud
%98Y2 3001s pue abesn Buipnjoul ‘sy001g e

sheq

Jayenp

jusiin

2doog

ol ¥pny

1 /0102 ABajens pue ueld 1pny [euisiu| yeiq - AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 269

9¢ Jo 6z abed

04-20-¢iL 11/0102 9beienoD ypny reussiul Aebuuer yeiq

dJUBUl{ SJAD

pue {Ajojes pue yyesH e
‘owoou| e

{Aunoss pue uonosjoud Bleq e

‘pund |eroyjoun e

‘Juswebeurw jossy e

'SpJ028l BuRUNO29E JusWesSINgSI e

Buyers e

‘losuoo Ateyebpng e

:@31S40 pue suonoadsur jooyog e

‘uonesiuebio yuswebeuepyy e

:seaJe Buimoj|o} ays Bulienod

‘JaW aJe 82IAJIBS 8Y} JO SOAI}IS[gO By} 1BY) BINSUS

0} 80e(d Ul S|0J3UOD B} JO MBIASI ||N} B 8 [|IM UPNE 8y |

"sasn|dins Jo syoyep abeurw 03 AyjiqeU] -
pue ‘juswebeuew [ejoueuly syenbapeul Jo AI0ISIH -

/SI8Yoes} epnjoul
pesH sjooyos | JUNOJJE Olul UsYE) S10joe4 “swiwelboid Jpne sjooyos
0/ p-1 [enpiAIpuj 8y} Buige|dwod ui usyes s yoroidde paseq ysi v Sjo0yos Asewtid
:swweibo.id upny sjooydsg
'S|00Y0s
PUE sjuswiedap SHAD [BJ1USD Spnjoul [|Im MaIAss By |
SdAD ‘sjuswiebue.re Buiiodss pue Buloyuopyy e
- 90UBUI4 pue suondo juswAed aaljeuI)E JO MOINSY e
JO pesH ‘sjuswied anbsyo pue
‘Siejsuely [eussiul Buipnjour ‘syuswiAed jo swnjona
Wb 198 pue sasse20.d juswAed juaiund Jo uoljeolyUSP| e
Q OWOoU| :s3inpadoid pue Aoijod ‘uonejuswNoo e
JO pesH -Sjuswaiinbal Alonjess pue [eoo] yym souedwon e
:S8A1309[q0 |0.3U0D pue Seale
asg Buimol|oy sy} BudA0D paasiyoe si Asuow 1o} anjea
- 1010311 pue ‘1w si ss800.d SIY) JO SBAI3OSIQO BY) 1BY) BINSUL sainpaosoid
oL L Aindeq 0] 89e|d Ul S|0JUO0D BY JO MBIASI [N} B 8Q (1M SIY | obJeyoas pue syuswied jeuisyu
skeq | Jepenp ETTTe) adoog 9|4} upny

L1/0102 ABajens pue ueld Hpny [eussju] yeiq — Aebuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 270

9¢ J0 Qg abey

0L-20-c1 11/0L02 9beienoD upny jeussiul Asburier yeiq

S0¢ [e10}
‘pepinosd Joddns syl 81eUIPIO-09
0} Wes) soueul SJAD 8Ul YIM 8siel| [[IM SN “S|O0YDS
oouBUy SdAn | [BNPIAIPUL JB  ueMenspun Bueg 3iom SISNA  Bu:
/S10U0Ba) 0} Jold sIousenob pue s19o10 9oUBUY ‘SI8YOES] PESH
peaH ,sjooyos | (SI00Yds Joy Bulutesy pue souessisse Buiobuo apinoid s|00yog
S -1 [enpiAIpu| ueld ypne 8y} Ul PSPNjOUl USSY BABY S$99IN0SOY Arewiid - siop AlosInpy SIS A
"lemaual 10} anp S| 4S0Q
WIoJ} 81B01IBD SISINH 8Ul 949ym SISINL Aloingess sy
Yim 8oueldwod PanuUIIUOD UIBLISISE O} HSIA B 9pnjoul
[[IM 3IOM ‘S|O0YDS AIepuoo9aS JUBAS|SI 10} ‘Ajjeuoiippy
douUBUY SJAD .
/slayoes] 'S|ooyos
pesH sjooyos | Alepuooss oy swwesboid ppne eyl sulwISBp O} (dn mojio4 SISNH
0/ -1 [enpiaipu] pasn s ‘sjooyos Areuwlld 1o} se ‘yoeoidde peseq ysu vy Buipnjour) sjooyog Arepuoosg
(SIS4) sjooyos
Ul plepuess juswebeuey [eroueul4 A10Inje1s syl yum
9oue|dWOo9 UIBLISOSE 0} S|00YDS O} JISIA B 9pNnjoul Os[e
[lIM %IOM ‘s|00y0s Atelulid JueAs|al 10} ‘Ajleuonippy
‘S|eaw [00Yog e
shkeq | 1epenp alD adoog 3|11 HpNny

L 1/010¢ ABejes1S pue ueld upny [eussiu| Yyeiq — AsbuueH Jo ybnoiog uopuon




Page 271

9¢ Jo | ¢ ebeyd

01-20-¢lL L1/0L02 8brisno) ypny feussiuy AsbuLier yeiq

0t

S9OINISS
oibojens
g BuipsenBajeg
-ay

B0IAJ9S PUEB S1UBIIO JO M8IASI puB BuLIo)IUO
-$95$900.d [BLI9J04 PUB JUBWISSOSSE ‘Uoijeolddy
:s9Jnpsoo.d pue Aojjod ‘uonreluswinoog
sjuswalinbal Aiojniels pue [8oo] yum soueldwon
:S9A1}09[qO [043U0D pue SeaJe Bumo||0) o) Bulienoo
‘Jow a.Je 92IAISS SIY] JO SOAI30S[QO By} 1By} BINSUS

0} 82e[d U} S|0JJUOD BY} JO MBIABI [N} B 8 [|IM SIY |

(200V ‘S00V Je1si1BaY Msiy)
$8JIAJSS }npe - Buipienbajeg

0¢

S9OINISS
oiberens
% Buipienbajeg
-av

SOOINISS
Hnpy - av

‘Sjuswabue.se Buriodas pue BuloiUO e
PUE JOJJUOD pue juswebeuew 106png e
'slopinoid 90IAISS 0] SjusWABRY e
‘uoisinoud
S0IAISS pUE S1USI|D JO MIIASI PUB BULIOHUO e
‘siopinoad
90IAI8S 10} $95S990.d Juswiuiodde pue Buliepus| e
‘s8inpad0.d pue Aoljod ‘uoieluBWNDO(] e
siuswiaainbai Aloiniels pue [eo0] Yyum souedwor) e
IS9AI1309IQO [0J3U0D pue seale Buimojof ay) BuleAod
‘JowW aJe 9IIAISS SIU] JO SAAI308[QO By} 1BY] 8INSUD
0} 99B|[d Ul S|0J3U0D BY} JO MBINSI ||N} B 8 JIM SIY |

(200V ‘S00V Je1siBoy ysiy)
(s10B1U0D J0ds) seoInIeg oIbolesS
PUE 84D [BID0S YNPY 9pNjouUl O
uoisinoid 82iAles

10} S]0BJUOD — UONESIBUOSIoY

0}

4

SO0INISS
Hnpy - av

"SmalAa. Auiinios pue upne
SNOIAId WOJ} SUOIIBPUSWIWODS JO dn MOJj04 e
pue sjuswsbuelse Buiiodas pue Buuonuopy e
}jo)u0o pue juswebeuew 1ebpng e
‘uorsinoid a901n19s
pUB Spadu ,S1UdI[O JO MSIASI pUB BULIOJUO
‘S9OIAISS Jiodsuel} JO) $8559004d JUSWSIND0I e
:s8Jnpedo.d pue Aoijod ‘uoielusWwNDO( e
:Seate BuIMO||0} By} MSIASI [jIM
SM 'I8W 8Je 9JIAISS SIY} JO S9AIIOSB[QO B} 1BY) 9INSUD
0} 92€|d Ul S|0A3UOD 8Y} JO MBIASI ||N} B 8q |IIM SIY |

(S0OV 418169y ysiy)
SOOIAIOS Wodsuel| — a5us) Ae(

sheq

Jauenp

juaiid

adoog

311 upny

:892IA19S Ajlunwiwo) pue ainyny ‘synpy

L1L/0102 ABejesiS pue ueld Hpny [eussiu] yeiq — Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 272

9¢ Jo z¢ ebed

04-¢0-¢L L1/010g 8beionod ypny jeussiu) Aeburier yeiq

0s

[e1o

0}

S80INIeS
uole8I09y

- av

‘sjuswabue.se Buiniodes pue BuLojuopy e
puE :j0J3u09 pue juswebeuew 1ebpng e
‘sseoo0ud
UOIJe||Iou0d8) pUB 8LIOJUI JO UOI}D8]j00 ‘sebieyo
BuiAidde pue Bumas Joj s|0.jU0D pue WLISAS e
:Siapinoid 90InISS 0] SjusWwAe e
‘si1epinoud 821nI8S
[eul9IX® J0} $8$$800.d 10BAUOD puUe Bullapus| e
'sainpaoo.d pue Aoijod ‘uopeiusWNOO( e
Sjuswalinbai Aioiniels pue [eoo] yum soueldwor) e
:$9A1308[q0 |043U0D pue sease Buimoyjoy sy; Bulierod
‘1oW a.e d2INISS SIY} JO SOAI08[QO By} 1YL 94NSUD
0} 99€|d Ul S|OAUOD 8Y} JO MBIASI ||} B 8q |IIM SIY |

(€00V Jo3s160Y Msiy)
Miomewely
sselddns panoidde sjiodg

"suoioadsul DD

pue Jipne AQ spew SuoljepuswWWo9al Jo dn mojjo4
pue !syuswebue.re Buiiodss pue Buloyuop
1]0,u0d pue Juswebeuew 186png

‘swajsAs [enuew pue || - Juswebeuew SpI0day
:uorsinoud

L 1/0102 ABajens pue ueld UpNY jeussiu] yeiq - Aebuuen jo ybnoiog uopuo




og Jo g¢ abey 0L-¢0-cl L1/0L0g 8beisno) upny [eussiul AebuLieH yeiq

paleys ‘JoWw a.e 921AJSS SIU} JO SBAIJ08IQO Sy} By} 8InsUs | Buipnjoul ‘s8inNpa20.d uoIjeIIjIIBA
ol L JO pesH 0} 90e(d Ul S|0JJUOD 8Y3 JO MBIASI [N} B 8 [|IM SIY | Buiobuo - juswihojdwg

'SHUN ssauisng AQ pjay
UOlIBIUSWINIOP JO $X28Y0 j0ds spnjoul [Im Ipne ay |

‘sjuswebuelie Buiodey e
PUB :S308Ud J0dSs PUB UOIIBIUSWNIOP JO UOIIUSIOY
:89889004d MalIAS) pue BuLIOyUOy e

SPJ02aJ puUB UOIIBIUBLINDOP ‘S8SS920.4d
uonesuoyine Buipnjoul ‘sjuswiAed [enuepy e

‘seshojdwa

0} siuswAed [euly jo ases|as pue [enoidde Jebeuew
Buipniour ‘sesseo04d UonESLIOYINE O1UOCH08|T e
'sainpadoud pue Aoijod ‘uoliejuswinoog e
‘Sjuswia.inbal |Bo0] pue Aloiniels yim souedwo) e

S92INISS 'S9AI1308(q0 |043U0D pue seate Buimo||o} ay; BulidAoD
paJeys ‘JoW a.e 82IAISS SIY} JO SBAI308[QO By} Jey} 8nsud (e1s Aousbe/Aieiodwsey
oL v JO pesH 0} 89€|d U] S|0JU0D 38U} JO MBIABI [N} B 8 [IIM SIY 1 Buipnioul) sesuadxa saholdwig

Page 273

"UOIIEI|10UOD8. WIBISAS

pue suoioNPap |j0ihed

-Aed o1 sjuswisnipe ¥ suoieleA ‘sjuswiAey

. ‘SIOABST PUB SIBLIBIS MBN

'SPJ02aI pue suoloesuel) Jo Anibalul g Ajjiqeley
's24npad0.d pue Aaljod ‘uoiieluswinooQ
'sjuawalinbas Aioiniels yum souedwon

:seale Buimol|o} ayy Bulionos

S90INIBS S|043u09 JuediubIs pue Aoy yjoq jo Buisse) pue
paJeys ‘uoljeluaWINOOP Bulpn|oul pue ‘SUOIIEPUBWILLIOIS. JIpne (1pne [enuue)
Sl v JO pesaH snoinaid jo dn-mojjo} Buipnjoul ‘ypne weisAs jons] YbIH wiaysAs |eioueuly Aoy — |j0iABy
S92INISS "J91s1bai ysu Jun ssauisng
Jequisp Jo 9yl ulyIm dolnies sy} AQ payiuspl s|osuod Asy auyp S$1043u02 A8y Jo Buiysey
oL 2 pesH Ainde@ | jo Bupsey uo Buisnooy pne peseq ysid e oq M siyL | - JeysiBal ysu Aoeioows( (820
shkeq | Jjepenp {ETTe) adoog 91111 Hpny

‘juewdojans( JeuoniesiuebiQ pue sjdoad — BAIIN298XT JoIyn

L L/01L02 ABsrens pue ueld upny [eussiu| yeiq — Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuon




9g 40 ¢ obey 01-20-21 11/010Z 86819100 1PNy [euseju] AoBuLieH yeiq

GG e10]

Page 274

‘'suinyal Aloynmers
Buipnjour ‘uoiewoUl Juswabeuew pue Bulodey e
pue ‘saiousbe Joyjo pue ISH Yum uosier] e
{$9$56004d UOIIBDINIIBA PUB UOII09||00 BlR(Q e
{sjuapIoul
a|geyodal Buipnour ‘eouewoped Jo BulIOyUO e
{spuswaiinbal AIoINies Yyym
9oue||dwod BulojUOW IO} S|0UOD PUB WBISAS
sainpaoo.d pue Adijod ‘uonelusWNDO(
‘Sjuswalinbal A10NeIS pue [Bo0] yim adueldwon) e
:SOAI308[qO |013U0D pue sease Buimojjoy ayy Bulienoo

‘1oW 8Je 9IIAISS SIU} JO SBAI308[Q0 BY) 1By} 8NsSud (4218169 Msiy eyei0dion)
0] L HH JO peeH 0} 80e[d U] S|0JJUOD 8Y} JO MBIABI ||N} B 8Q [|IM SIY | Ayejes pue yyesH
‘'sjuswisbuele buiuodey e
pue

{5855900.d |BUIBISI PUB UOHBIRISS Buipnjoul s¥98Yd
VS| PuE g49 40§ seunpado.id uoneoyuana Buiobup e
‘sywuad yiom/esia Areisodws) pjoy oym sesiojdws
J0 y08dsau ul sainpasosd dn mojj0) pue BuLIOJUO e
‘orendoudde aieym seiousbe juswiuienob
1910 Y}IM $8sS8204d UOSIBI| PUB O} |BIISJOY
‘sywied yiom/urewal 0} Wb paywi| 1o
‘sywad yiomsesia Aresodws) Buipjoy sesiojdws
10} seunpasoud Buipiooss pue UoiBOIIIUSP|
‘{saunpsaoold pue Adjjod ‘uoneuswndog e
‘syjuswaiinbays Aioniels yim soueldwo)) e "$)08Yo Ajioyiny Buipsenbajeg
S92INIBS 1SOA1308[QO |043U0D pue sease Buimol o} ay) Bulienod Juspuadspuj pue gy

L1/0102 ABajens pue uejd Hpny [ewsiu| yeiq — Asbuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 275

9¢ J0 g obkey

0+-c0-¢L L1/010g 9beIBA0D NPy [euisiul AeBuLeH yeiq

Ot

SUOIIBOIUNWIWIOD
JO pesH

:SJ8pino.d 8o1Aes 03 SjusWwhed e
:uoisinoud
S0IAI8S PUB SUBI|O JO MBIASI PUB BULIOHUO
'saunpado.d pue Aoljod ‘uopejuswinoog e
sjuswalinbal
[e00| pue Aloiniels yum souendwon) e
'S8A1109[qO |043U0D pue seale BUIMO||0) 8y} BuLIBAOD
‘1oW aJe 99IAJBS SIY] JO SBAI10S[QO aY] 1By} 8INSUS
01 99e|d Ul S|0JJUOD 8U} JO MBIASI ||Ny B 8] [|IM SIY 1

S90IAISS
uoljejaidieiul pue uone|sue. |

0t

saIuUNWIWoD
12Jes jo peoH

"sjuswabue.ie Buiuodss pue Buoyuol e
puUE |0Ju00 pue Juswabeuew 1aBpng e
:SJ9pIn0Id 8DIAISS O} SjusWAey
:uoisinoud
9JIAISS PUE SJUI|D JO MBI PUB BULIOYUO) e
:$84npad0.d pue Aojjod ‘uoneluswnoog e
‘Sluswalinbal
[BOO| pue A103njels yum souedwon e
:S9A[108[qO |0.3U0D pue seaIe BuIMO||0) B} Burienod
‘IaW e 92IAISS SIY] JO SBAI3OS[QO BY) 1BY] 9INSUS
01 89e|d U S|0J3UOD 8U} JO MOIARI [N} B 8Q |jIM SIY |

swayog
luswebeuey Jepusy AeburieH

O}

c

Adljod
S0UBWLIONSd JO
pesH ajes0di0n

‘'suinial Aloinjels
Buipnjour ‘syuswebue.re Buiiodss pue Buuoyuopy e
*$9S59004d UOIJBDIILIOA PUB UOI108]|00 BIB(] »
‘seunpad0.d pue Aojjod ‘uonelusWNOO e
‘Sjuswalinba.
[B00| pue Aio3njels yum soueldwon e
:pamaina.
q ||IM S9A103(CO [043U0D pue seale Buimo)|0)
9L OBqPo8) JipNk [BUISIXS PUR SUOIIBPUSWILLIODS.
upne jewsiut sieah snoinaud jo dn mojjo) e Buipnjou
‘IoW aJe 30IAJSS SIY} JO SOAIIDB[QO U} 1B 9INSUS O}
99e(d Ul S|0UOD Y} JO MBIASI [9A8] YBIY B 8q [Iim SIyl

(v0dd Je1s160Y Ysiy)
SJ01edIpuUl 9ouBWIOLIRd
[euoieu — Ajenb ejeq

sheq

Jaueny VETTTe)

adoog

a1} upny

:uonediunwwo) pue sdiysisuped ‘aouewIOpad ‘Ad1j0d - 9AIINd8XT JBIyD

LL/01L0ZC >m®um.5w pue ue|d 1pny |euisju| yeiq - >®DC_L=WI JO :m:cgom uopuo




Page 276

9¢ J0 9¢ ebey

04-20-2} L1/010Z 8681800 HpNY [RUIelU| ASBULIEH YRI(

0g jelo]
"sjuswebue.ie Bupiodas pue BulloliUCY e
PUE j0Jju00 pue juswebeuew 1e6png e
0BQPa8) JaW0ISNO pue BULIO}UOW S0UBWIOLS] e
-59$5900.d Buiie) ew pue uoiBIUNWIWOY) e
sheq | ssuend CTTTe) adoog a1 upny

I 1/010¢ ABajens pue ue|d upny |eussju| yeiq — Aebuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 277 Agenda ltem 16

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [N o-]

Audit Committee On 25 March 2010

Report Title: Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

Report of:  Chief Financial Officer

Signed : [ {Y KJ\J\AM\\
)

Contact Officer : Gerald Almeroth, Chief Financial Officer

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report

1.1. To receive the Annual Audit Letter for 2008/09 from the Council's external auditors,
Grant Thornton and to note the issues raised and actions being taken.

2. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

2.1. The Annual Audit Letter is part of the formal process of external audit and provides
an independent assessment of the Council’s position in terms of progress in meeting
its strategic objectives.

3. Recommendation
3.1. To receive the Annual Audit Letter for 2008/09 and to note the Council's response.

4, Summary

4.1. The Annual Audit Letter for 2008/09 summarises the key issues arising from the
work undertaken by the external auditors; Grant Thornton, during their 2008/09 audit
work. The main two areas of audit work are in respect of the audit of the accounts
and the Use of Resources assessment under the new Comprehensive Area




Page 278

Assessment (CAA) process.

4.2. Interms of the audit of the accounts for 2008/09 the Council received an unqualified
opinion from the external auditors. This was formally reported to the General
Purposes Committee on 24 September 2009 within the statutory deadline. The
auditors also reported that the Council has improved performance against key
targets in the certification of grant claims and returns.

4.3. In respect of the Use of Resources the overall score was assessed as a 3 out of 4
(performing well). The auditors also concluded that the Council has made proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ending 31 March 2009, except for producing relevant and
reliable data and information to support decision making and manage performance.
This was formally reported to the Audit Committee on 5 November 2009.

4.4. This report also outlines how the Council is addressing the key issues raised by the
external assessment process and summarises the actions. This was reported to
Cabinet on 26 January 2010.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1. The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report and
has no specific comment to make.

6. Service Financial Comments

6.1. The resource implications for implementing the actions recommended in the Annual
Audit Letter have been considered as part of the overall financial and business
planning process. The majority of actions are included within the existing approved
budget although a small investment bid for implementation of International Financial
Reporting Standards has been put forward for Members to consider.

7. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
7.1. Annual Audit Letter 2008/09 — Grant Thornton

8. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
10.1 The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

* Report of Chief Financial Officer to General Purposes Committee on 24
September 2009 — Annual Governance Report 2008/09

e Report of Chief Financial Officer to Audit Committee on 5 November 2009 -
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) Auditor's Report on the Use of
Resources 2008/09




9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

Page 279

Background

The Annual Audit Letter for 2008/09 is compiled by the Council’s appointed
external auditors Grant Thornton. It summarises the conclusions and significant
issues arising out of the audit work for the Council in the preceding year. It
includes information from the audit of the Council's accounts, the Use of
Resources Assessment and the certification of claims and returns.

The Annual Audit Letter for 2008/09 from Grant Thornton is an important external
assessment of the Council’s overall position and the Use of Resources element
features as a major part in the framework under the new Comprehensive Area
Assessment and individual Organisational Assessment.

The auditors’ findings have been reported previously to the General Purposes
Committee and to the Audit Committee and actions agreed in response. The
Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the implementation and progress of
the detailed actions, which are summarised in this report. The auditors have also
agreed the substance of the detailed actions.

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

This is the second year of Grant Thornton operating as the Council’'s external
auditor. Council officers have worked closely with Grant Thornton in preparation
for and during the audit and a positive relationship existed continuing from the
experience of the previous year.

In relation to the Council’s 2008/09 statutory financial accounts an unqualified
opinion was given by the auditors. This is a positive outcome and this also forms
part of the input for the auditors’ Use of Resources assessment.

The auditors concluded under the Use of Resources assessment that in overall
terms the Council achieved a score of 3 out of 4 (performing well). This maintains
the overall 3 from the previous year. A significant proportion of other local
authorities received a reduced score in this assessment under the new CAA
arrangements.

Under the value for money conclusion the auditors view is that the Council has at
least adequate arrangements in all areas except for in its ‘use of data’
assessment. On this individual area a score of only 1 was achieved. This reflects
the findings of the Joint Area Review and the Ofsted review in Children and
Young People’s Services and some other data quality spot checking issues in
Housing and Housing Benefits.

The Use of Resources assessment comprises of three overall themes:

¢ Managing finances (overall score 3);



10.6.

Page 280

e Governing the business (overall score 2);
* Managing resources (overall score 3).

The Council has improved its performance in the work required for certification of
grant claims and returns, in particular improvements in timeliness and reduced
numbers of qualifications. A number of areas of weakness were identified in the
data quality for the housing benefits claim and actions have been agreed to
improve the performance on this for 2009/10.

11. Recommendation

11.1. To note the Annual Audit Letter for 2008/09 and the Council’s response to the
actions relating to the new audit recommendations as set out in the letter.

12.  Summary Actions

12.1. A summary of the key actions are set out in the table below. These have been
previously reported to the Audit Committee where progress will be monitored.

Letter Recommendations Response Responsible

Section Officer

1 The Council needs to continue | The Council has a detailed Chief
its preparations for the project plan and project board | Financial
introduction of accounting responsible for implementing | Officer
under International Financial the new IFRS. The Council
Reporting Standards (IFRS), will continue to work closely
including ensuring that asset with Grant Thornton to ensure
valuation procedures are timely implementation and
sufficiently robust and careful management of the
accounting for fixed assetsis | project risks.
further strengthened.

1 The Council should address, An action plan to address the | Director of
as a matter of priority, the recommendations within the | CYPS / Chief
identified weaknesses in data | Use of Resources section of | Financial
quality, including in the child the letter was submitted to the | Officer /
protection and housing and Audit Committee on the 5 various
council tax services, in order November 2009. The key officers as set
to achieve at least an actions for Children and out in the
"adequate" assessment in Young People’s Services are | Audit
future. set out in the JAR Action Committee

Plan. report




Page 281

Use of Resources — in addition | An action plan to address the | Chief
to the data quality issue a recommendations within the | Financial
number of possible areas of Use of Resources section of | Officer
improvement were highlighted | the letter was submitted to the
Audit Committee on the 5
November 2009.
Certification of claims and An action plan to address the | Chief
returns recommendation on data Financial
quality and the Housing and Officer

Council Tax benefit claim was
submitted to the Audit
Committee on the 5
November 2009.




Page 282



Page 283

Grant Thornton

London Borough of Haringey

Annual Audit Letter 2008 /09

21 December 2009



Page 284

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

Contents

1 Introduction and key messages

2 Audit of accounts

3 Use of resources

4  Certification of claims and returns

- Appendix A 2008/09 reports issued

Appendix B Audit fees 2008 /09

% 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

Page

12
14

15



Page 285

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

1

Introduction and key messages

Purpose of this Letter

11

This Annual Audit Letter (Letter') summarises the key issues arising from the work
that we have carried out at the London Borough of Haringey ('the Council') during
our 2008/09 audit. The Letter is written in an accessible style, designed to
communicate our key messages to the Council and external stakeholders, including
members of the public. The Letter will be published on the Council's website.

Responsibilities of the external auditors and the Council

1.2

13

14

L5

1.6

This Letter has been prepared in the context of the Statement of Responsibilities of
Auditors and Audited Bodies issued by the Audit Commission (www.audit-
commission.gov.uk).

We have been appointed as the Council's independent external auditors by the Audit
Commission, the body responsible for appointing external auditors to local public
bodies in England. As external auditors, we have a broad remit covering finance and
governance matters.

Our annual work programme is set in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice
(the Code') issued by the Audit Commission and includes nationally prescribed and
locally determined work. Our work considers the Council's key risks when reaching
our Code conclusions.

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice, we also act as
agents for the Audit Commission to review and provide a certificate on the accuracy
of grant claims and returns to various government departments and other agencies.

Itis the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper arrangements are in place
for the conduct of its business, and that public money is safeguarded and properly
accounted for. We have considered how the Council is fulfilling these
responsibilities.

What this Letter covers

1.7

This Letter covers the audit work we have carried out in 2008/09, including key
messages and conclusions from our work in:

®  auditing the 2008/09 year end accounts (Section 2)

*  assessing the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of its resources (Section 3)

. certifying claims and returns (Section 4).
g

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 1



Page 286

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

1.8

1.9

We have not repeated recommendations agreed with the Council during the year in
this Letter. A list of the reports issued can be found at Appendix A. Appendix B sets
out our actual and budgeted fees for 2008/09.

The findings of our work in 2008/09 contribute towards the Audit Commission's
Organisational Assessment of the Council and the Comprehensive Area Assessment
for Haringey. The results of this work will be reported separately to the Council by
the Audit Commission.

Key conclusions and areas for Council action

1.10

1.11

112
1.13

1.14

The key conclusions from our 2008/09 audit are as follows:

e We issued an unqualified opinion on the Council's 2008/09 accounts by the
required deadline. The Council engaged in the accounts audit in a very
positive and responsive tashion.

e Although the Council performed well overall in the new use of resources
assessment, our VFM conclusion contained an "except for" qualification in
respect of the Council's use of data, based on a number of weaknesses

identified with the Council's data quality.

e Our review of the Council's treasury management arrangements
demonstrated that the Council has put sound arrangements in place and,
tollowing its exposure from the Icelandic banking crists, has taken decistve
action to deal with the nationally and locally identified areas for
improvement.

We highlight the following key areas, where the Council should take action in
2009/10:

e  The Council should continue its preparations for the introduction of
accounting under International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
including ensuring that asset valuation procedures are sufficiently robust and
accounting for fixed assets is further strengthened.

e The Council should address, as a matter of priority, the identified weaknesses
in data quality, including in the child protection and housing and council tax
services, in order to achieve an "adequate” assessment in future.

The context for these key messages can be found in this Letter.

This Letter was agreed with the Chief Financial Officer on 4 December 2009 and
will be presented to Cabinet.

We would like to take this opportunity to express our appreciation for the assistance
and cooperation provided during the course of the audit. Our aim is to deliver a high
standard of audit, which makes a positive and practical contribution that supports

the Council's own agenda. We recognise the value of your co-operation and supportt.

Grant Thomton UK LLP
21 December 2009

2 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 2



2

Page 287

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

Audit of accounts

Introduction

21

)
o

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Council's 2008/09 accounts on 25
September 2009, ahead of the statutory certification deadline. Our opinion confirms
that the tinancial statements 'present fairly' the financial position of the Council.

Prior to giving our opinion on the accounts, we are required to report significant
matters arising from the audit to "those charged with governance" (for the purposes
of accounts approval, the General Purposes Committee is designated as "those
charged with governance"). We presented our Annual Report to those Charged with
Governance to the General Purposes Committee on 24 September 2009 and
summarise only the key messages in this Letter.

Audit of the accounts

23

™)
[ 3]

The Council produced an initial set of draft 2008/09 accounts on 5 June 2009 (prior
to submission of full draft accounts on 24 June), which enabled an initial team and
technical review of the accounts to take place and be fed back, prior to production
and approval of the formal draft accounts. This enabled audit work to begin early
and was useful for the client in obtaining timely feedback on its accounts. We have
submitted the closedown process used by the Council to the Audit Commission as
an example of good practice.

Closedown was well managed by the Council this year and there is clear corporate
commitment to producing good quality accounts. This resulted in a smooth audit
process and a reduced level of proposed adjustments. Additionally, the Council has
already engaged etfectively in taking forward planning for accounting under
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Our audit identified a small number of misstatements within the accounts, which
had no net effect on the income and expenditure account or the General Fund
balance . Management agreed to process all accounting adjustments and the majority
of proposed amendments to classification and disclosure to improve presentation.

Financial performance

2.6

The Council reported a £0.75m revenue surplus at March 2009 and has set a
balanced budget for 2009/10 and for the period of the current Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFES). General fund reserves reduced from £11.9m to £7.5m in
year due to planned support for the MTES. Overall, the Council maintains a healthy
level of reserves, including a £10.1m risk reserve and a £14.1m financing reserve.

The Council has begun its preparations for the anticipated funding reductions trom
2011. Officers are addressing this as part of a strategic approach through the
tinancial planning process.

2 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 3



Page 288

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

2.8 The Council 1s experiencing some financial pressures in 2009/10, notably through
increased service volume from demand led children's services. The Council is
pursuing plans for mitigating the impact of the financial pressures in these areas and
continues to closely monitor the position each month.

Financial systems

29 We undertook sufficient work on key financial controls for the purpose of designing
our programme of work for the financial statements audit. Our evaluation of the
Council's key financial control systems did not identify any control issues that
presented a material risk to the accuracy of the financial statements.

2.10 Our accounts audit work identified some areas where the Council should continue
to work to improve its systems, primarly around valuation and accounting for fixed
assets. Further details of these matters are set out in our Annual Report to those
Charged with Governance, which contains a schedule of actions agreed with
management to resolve the identified issues.

2.11 We reviewed the work of internal audit and concluded that the scope and conduct
of internal audit work was appropriate to support our work 1n auditing the Council's

2008/09 accounts.

212 We performed a high level review of the general I'T control environment as part of
the overall review of the internal control system and concluded that there were no
material weaknesses within the I'T arrangements that could adversely impact our
audit of the accounts. We reported our findings in July 2009 and agreed actions with
management to resolve the minor control issues identified.

Annual Governance Statement

213 We examined the Council's arrangements and process for compiling the Annual
Governance Statement (AGS). In addition, we read the AGS and consider whether
the statement 1s in accordance with our knowledge of the Council. As the AGS must
be reviewed and, as necessary, updated as at the date of signing our audit opinion,
we reviewed the final version of the AGS as part of our audit completion
procedures.

2.14 We concluded that the AGS was consistent with our knowledge of the Council,
subject to a proposed adjustment to update the AGS for our recent assessment of
the Council's 'use of data', which management incorporated into the final version of
the document. It will be important for the Council to ensure timely and robust
action 1s taken to implement the required control improvements identified in the

AGS.

© 2009 Grant Thaornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 4



Page 289

Annual Audit Leiter 2008/09

Icelandic Banks - the Council's Response

2.15

The Council held £37m investments in the three Icelandic banks that went into
administration in October 2008. Accounting standards require councils to make
their best estimate of any impairment of financial assets. The Council calculated the
impairment on its investment in accordance with relevant guidance and, tollowing
receipt of updated forecast recoverability information in September 2009, recognised
a net impairment of £8.2m (including future loss of interest) in 2008/09.

In light of the Icelandic bank crisis, auditors were requested by the Audit
Commission to review the treasury management arrangements in place at councils.
Our review of the Council's treasury management arrangements demonstrated that
the Council has put sound arrangements in place and has taken decisive action to
deal with the nationally and locally identified areas for improvement.

Members' expenses and allowances

217

Due to the high profile coverage of Parliamentary expenses during 2008/09, we
looked at members' and senior officers' allowance and expenses in greater detail than
in previous years. Our review of the arrangements in place, found appropriate
procedures and controls are currently in operation at the Council.

Looking ahead

218

We would like to draw to the attention of those charged with governance further
significant changes that will happen to the statement of accounts in future years, the
most significant of which is the full implementation of IFRS into the 2010/11
accounts. Although this may seem a long way off, it is important that authorities
start planning now, as there will be significant changes to the accounts. Our
experience in other sectors shows that audited bodies that are well planned for the
transition to IFRS have fewer amendments to their accounts and are less likely to be
charged additional audit fees, than those who are not well prepared.

We recognise that the Council has already carried out a lot of work in starting to
address IFRS and is well placed to go forward although, as our audit suggests, there
are some significant challenges around fixed asset accounting and valuation. In
addition, the Council will need to consider and manage the group accounting
implications of the likely required consolidation of Alexandra Park and Palace under
IFRS.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 5



3

Page 290

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

Use of resources

Introduction

3.1

We issued our annual VEM conclusion on 25 September 2009, at the same time as
our accounts opinion, ahead of the required deadline. We concluded that the
Council made proper arrangements to secure economy, ettficiency and etfectiveness
in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2009, except for producing
relevant and reliable data and information to support decision making and manage
performance.

Prior to giving our VEM conclusion, we summarised the basis of this conclusion in
our Annual Report to those Charged with Governance, which we presented to the
General Purposes Committee on 24 September 2009. We provided further detail
and set out the results of our assessment of the Council against the use of resources
framework in our Use of Resoutces 2009 report, which was presented to Audit
Committee on 5 November 2009. In this Letter we summarise the key messages
from this work alongside relevant current findings, and look forward to forthcoming
challenges for the Council.

2008/09 VFM conclusion and use of resources assessment

3.3

3.4

3.6

Our VFM conclusion was informed by our use of resources work which, in councils,
is based on the Audit Commission's new use of resources (UoR) assessment. The
new framework emphasises outcomes over processes, and brings new areas into
the assessment such as environmental management. It presents a more robust
challenge than the old framework, based on different scoring criteria. It should be
noted, therefore, that changes from prior year scores do not necessarily reflect an
objective change in performance.

In order for us to provide an unqualified conclusion, the Council needed to achieve
an 'adequate’ assessment (score of at least 2) for each component of the UoR
assessment. Failure to achieve an 'adequate’ assessment in any one area results in an
"except for" conclusion.

Our UoR assessment concluded that the Council had at least adequate arrangements
in all areas, with the exception of an assessment of 'inadequate’ (score of 1) for "use
of data". This reflects the findings of the joint area review, the Ofsted review of
safeguarding children and mixed results within our own data quality spot-checking
work.

Therefore, our VFM conclusion contained an "except for" qualification in respect of
the Council's use of data.

2 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 6



Page 291

Annual Audit Letter 2008/69

3.7

3.8

Scoring scale

1 - Below minimum
requirements - inadequate
performa
2 - Only &
requirements - adeguate

MInImum

performance

3 - Consistently above
minimum requirements -
performing well

4 - Well above minimum
requirements — performing
strongly

* Within the Managing

39

3.10

3.11

Astde from the "use of data" component of the assessment, we would like to
emphasise that the Council performed well to achieve a number of level 3 scores, as
the prevailing score nationally is 2. In the context of London, the Council's overall
performance was similar to others, reflecting the stronger performance of London
councils in the new assessment.

The 2008/09 scores by Key Line of Enquiry (KLoE) area are shown in the table
below.

Table 1: UoR scores 2008/09

Theme / KLoE Score

Theme | - Managing finances 3
1.1 Financial planning 3
1.2 Understanding costs 2
13 Financial reporting 3

Theme 2 - Governing the business

21 Commissioning and procurement 2
22 Use of data 1
23 Good governance 2
2.4 Internal control 2
Theme 3 - Managing resources 3

31 Managing natural resources 3*
32 Asset management 2
3.3 Workforce management N/A*

We assessed the Council as performing well (level 3) in the areas of managing
finances and managing resources. The managing finances assessment reflects
particular strengths in the areas of integrated financial and service planning, financial
reporting and stakeholder consultation.

The overall score of 3 for managing resources is largely attributable to the
underlying score of 3 for managing natural resources, which is an area of strength
for Haringey. Apart from the score of 1 for "use of data,” we assessed the Council as
performing adequately in all areas of the governing the business theme.

The high priority recommendations arising from our UoR assessment were for the
Council to ensure that it:

® continues to demonstrate outcomes across its key areas of activity in order
to deliver its strategic priorities and, thus, retain its "performing well"
assessment for managing finances

® s able to clearly articulate and quantify the financial and non-financial
benefits arising from all areas of the Haringey Forward and core efficiency
programmes, including showing how service review and analysis activity,
such as that undertaken for the benefits service in 2008/09 and planned for
corporate support functions in 2009/10, is leading to the targeted levels of
improvement

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 7




Page 292

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

e can demonstrate that arrangements for inter-agency child protection practice
are improving in line with the action plan submitted to Ofsted in response to
the joint area review

¢ 15 addressing identified weaknesses in data quality management and reporting
in relation to child protection, in line with its existing action plan, in
particular reducing the need for manual checking and manipulation in
performance reporting

® continues to develop data quality checking mechanisms for housing and
council tax benefit claims in order to minimise the high level of errors in a
number of payment categories when compared to other councils.

We agreed a number of recommendations management to implement these
improvements and we will review progress with implementation during the 2009/10
audit.

Follow-up of prior year local VFM work

Health inequalities

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

As part of our 2007/08 external audits of the Council and Haringey Teaching PCT
(the PCT"), we carried out a joint risk based review of Health Inequalities, to
support our 2007/08 use of resources conclusions at both bodies.

In June 2008 we 1ssued "Tackling Health Inequalities in Haringey", a joint
performance report across local government and the health economy in the
borough. This raised a number of recommendations around the Joint Strategic
Needs Assessment (JSNA), the structure of the Health and Wellbeing Partnership
Board (HWBPB) and the need to address capacity issues.

In April-June 2009, we followed up on progress made to date against the
recommendations raised within our June 2008 report.

In general, good progress has been made in implementing our recommendations,
with eight of the original eleven recommendations either implemented or on track to
be implemented by the agreed deadlines.

However, there are some areas where progress has not been made as quickly as
planned and the Council and PCT will need to work together, with other partners, to
ensure implementation to agreed timescales. We recognise that other pressing
challenges faced by the PCT and Council may have played a part in delaying some of
the actions in this area. The key messages are summarised in the table overleaf.

D 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. ]



3.18 We agreed a revised action plan with Council and PCT management to implement
the remaining recommendations and will seek updates on progress during the
2009/10 audit.

Probity and propriety

3.19 As part of our 2007/08 audit, we carried out a review of the Council's arrangements
tor probity and propriety, the results of which fed into our annual VFM conclusion.
Our work covered the following areas:

e ethical governance

e the Standards Committee

® counter fraud and corruption

¢ confidential reporting procedures

® managing the risk of fraud

e responding to proven cases of fraud.

3.20 We concluded that the Council's arrangements were generally robust and no serious
issues were identified from our work. We did, however, identify some areas where
the Council could further improve arrangements to move towards best practice and
we agreed an action plan with the Council in November 2008.

3.21

Page 293

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

Table 2: Health inequalities - summary of progress on implementation

Areas of good progress

Areas where more action is needed

The JSNA has been progressed, with the
Phase 1 report being circulated to
stakeholders in August 2008 and Phase 2
is underway and due for completion by
December 2009

The PCT, Council and other partners will
need to ensure that the new partmership
structures are finalised as soon as possible
and, subsequently, kept under review to
ensure that they are working effectively.

Capacity issues have been addressed, with
the PCT having now recruited four
public health consultants

Partners will need to ensure the effective
implementation of current plans for
better mvolvement of the acute sector in
the health inequalities agenda.

The Wellbeing Scorecard is now reviewed
on an exception basis which avoids

unnecessary detail being presented to the
HWBPB

More training on HI issues is needed to
support the further development of the
JSNA.

We followed up on progress in November 2009 and found that the Council has
made good progress in implementing the recommendations made in our initial
report and target dates have been agreed for those not yet implemented.

£ 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.



Page 294

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

3.22

3.23

3.24

Key recommendations implemented by the Council include:

the introduction of a training programme for all Standards Committee
Members

agreement of a revised Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy that is explicit in
its application not only to Council employees but also to contractors of the
Council

the corporate risk register being updated to include the risk of fraud and

corruption occurring as a risk to the Council

declarations of interest are now included as a standard agenda item for all
committee meetings

with the exception of the Vice-Chair of the Audit Committee, there is now
separate membership of this Committee and the Council's Scrutiny
Committees.

There are a small number of areas for further action to help support further
improvement in the Council's governance arrangements:

the Council should improve its evidencing of how it proactively raises
standards of ethical conduct.

there remains some scope for the Council to raise the profile of the
Standards Committee and its role in improving ethical standards, including
implementing recommendations made by the Monitoring Officer

as set out in our Use of Resources report the Council has not yet completed
its assessment of governance arrangements for its significant partnerships,
although this is planned to take place by March 2010.

We will review progress in implementing these remaining matters as part of our
2009/10 use of resources audit.

National Fraud Initiative

3.25

We have recently completed a mandatory National Fraud Initiative (NFI) RAG risk
assessment for the Audit Commission, based on the Council's progress in
investigating potential data matches. It is expected that the Commission will carry
out NFI spotchecks in a sample of bodies assessed as "red." In common with most
of our audited bodies, we assessed the Council as "amber" on the basis of progress
made to date and we will continue to monitor progress as part of our 2009/10 plan.

Questions from the public

3.26

We have experienced an increase in the level of communications from local electors
and other interested parties and we are currently discussing a number of matters
with the Council, including a land sale issue, leaseholder service charges, CCTV,
grant awards and special educational needs funding. We will consider these issues in
the context of our audit responsibilities, including our use of resources conclusion,
and will report any matters to the Council as required.

2 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 10



Page 295

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

Looking ahead

3.27

We agreed our indicative 2009 /10 audit fee with the Council in March 2009. The
letter set out our 1nitial assessment of the local risk based use of resources work we
plan to catry out to support our VEM conclusion. This comprised:

®  additional risk based work on data quality
®  apartnership working project carried out jointly with the PCT
® early work in assessing workforce management arrangements

®*  ongoing review of treasury management arrangements.

We confirm that these assumptions remain relevant and we will build these into the
risk assessment for our 2009/10 plan, along with specific follow up of our 2008/09

recommendations and any new risks emerging between now and when we agree our
full plan in December 2009.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 11



Page 296

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

4 Certification of claims and returns
Introduction
4.1 In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Audit Practice, we also act as

agents for the Audit Commission to review and provide a certificate on the accuracy
of grant claims and returns to various government departments and other agencies.

4.2 The Audit Commission prescribes our work in this area. Each year, it agrees with
the relevant grant paying body the work and level of testing which should be
completed for each grant claim and return, and set this out in a grant Certification
Instructions (Cls).

4.3 Certification work provides important and valuable assurances to taxpayers over
public funds:

e each year, auditors certify £43 billion of public funds

. since 2004, auditors have found errors of over £0.5 billion in the claims and
returns prepared by local authorities

e the level of the errors found by auditors and corrected by authorities since
the new arrangements were introduced in 2004 is almost five times the cost
of auditors' certification work

e 10 per cent of claims and returns have been adjusted for errors and 37 per
cent have been qualified over the past five years

e significant amounts of overpaid subsidy are recovered from authorities by
grant-paying bodies when action is taken to follow up auditors’ qualifications
— one grant-paying body has recovered over £63 million in the past three
years.

4.4 In its national report, "Review of arrangements for certifying claims and returns"

(September 2009), the Audit Commission identified that further improvements in
performance in preparing and auditing claims and returns are achievable:

local authorities need to attach greater importance to the preparation of
claims and returns to reduce the volume and value of errors made

grant-paying bodies should improve their understanding of the certification
process

auditors need to do more to raise the protile of certification work at the local
level and encourage authorities to improve their use of resources.

2 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 12



Page 297

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

Key messages

4.5

4.6

47

4.8

49

Each year, following certification of the programme ot claims and returns we
produce a summary report for the Council and agree an action plan in respect of any
identified improvement areas. We presented our Grants Report 2007/08, to the
Audit Committee in February 2009 and are nearing completion of the certification
of 2008/09 claims and returns.

In February 2009, we reported that the Council had improved performance against
key targets, including levels of qualifications and amendments and timeliness of
submission, compared to the previous year:

Our work on certification of 2008/09 claims and returns is nearing completion and
we can confirm that, overall, the Council's performance has improved from 2007/08
in terms of timeliness of submission, and levels of qualitication and amendment.

The exception to this was the Council's Housing and Council Tax Benefit claim.
This was qualified due to a number of issues with the quality of data. We 1dentified
more issues with the claim at Haringey than at the other councils that we audit. An
amendment of £18k was made to the claim (total value £259m), which decreased
the amount due from the Council to the Department for Work and Pensions. We
have already made a recommendation, in our Use of Resources report, to improve
the quality of housing and council tax benefit data.

We will report comparative performance measures along with our views on how

well the Council has implemented previously agreed actions in our forthcoming
Certification of 2008/09 claims and returns report.

$ 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 13



Page 298

Annual Audit Letter 2008/69

Appendix A 2008/09 reports issued

Report Date issued
Audit Plan May 2008
Review of probity and propriety November 2008
Use of Resources and Data Quality 2008 December 2008
Grants Report 2007/08 January 2009
Review of Data Quality Arrangements in Adult Social Care March 2009
Audit Strategy Document June 2009
Information Technology controls July 2009
Health Inequalities follow-up September 2009
Annual Report to those Charged with Govemance September 2009
Use of Resources 2009 October 2009
Annual Audit Letter December 2009
% 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved. 14



Page 299

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

Appendix B Audit fees 2008/09

Audit area Budget Actual

2008/09 2008/09
Financial statements, including WGA 327,200 327,200
VEM conclusion/Use of resources/Data Quality 143,920 143,920
Total Code of Practice fee 471,120 471,120
Certification of claims and returns (2007/08) *100,000 107,248
Total fees 571,120 578,368

* Represents the initial estimate of the cost of certification work, which is billed on a

cost mcurred basts.

© 2009 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Al rights reserved.



Page 300

Annual Audit Letter 2008/09

'Y GrantThornton

www.grant-thornton.co.uk
© 2009 Grant Thormton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

"Grant Thornton" means Grant Thornton UK LLP, a limited liability partnership.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm within Grant Thormton International Ltd (Grant Thornton
International’). Grant Thornton International and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership.
Services are delivered by the member firms independently.

'This publication has been prepared only as a guide. No responsibility can be accepted by us for loss

occasioned to any person acting or refraining from acting as a result of any material in this publication

16



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Anti-money laundering regulations and council policy
	7 Quarter 3 risk management update and revised corporate risk management policy
	8 JAR action plan update
	Item 8 - Appendix 1 Milestones.doc.
	Item 8 - Appendix 2 Performance
	Item 8 - Appendix 3  Ofsted Follow up inspection report

	9 Data Quality Update
	Item 9 - app 1 - Central Performance Audit NI58 NI59 NI60
	Item 9 - app 2 - Data Quality Audit Schedule V06 2010_11

	10 Partnership Working
	Item 10 - LBH Partnership working FINAL 16 March (2)

	11 Leaseholder Charges
	Item 11 - LBH Leasehold Service Charges Final 16 March

	12 Grant Thornton - audit progress report
	Item 12 - app1 - LBH - Indicative fee letter 2010-11 10 March (2)

	13 Housing benefits 4th quarter to date progress report on counter fraud activity
	14 Tackling Health Inequalities in Haringey
	15 Internal Audit Annual Plan and Strategy 2010/11
	Item 15 - app 1 - Audit Plan

	16 Annual Audit letter 2008/09

